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PUBLIC SHARE FOR SHARE OFFER

febuary 15th 2002

The board of directors of Arcelor, which met on 13th February, 2002, congratulated itself on the success
of the three public share for share offers relating to the exchange of Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor shares for
Arcelor shares, following the satisfaction of the conditions relating to the acceptance levels of the offers.

The Arbed shareholders tendered approximately 98.32% and the Usinor shareholders 83.35% of their shares to
the Arcelor public share for share offer. According to a notice from Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S A. of 13th
February, 2002, 118,495,385 Aceralia shares, representing approximately 94.79% of the total issued shares, were
tendered to the offer.

As a resuit, the board of directors has decided to issue with effect from 15th February, 2002:

157,993,846 Arcelor shares in exchange for the shares tendered for Aceralia shares;

106,377,571 Arcelor shares in exchange for the shares tendered for Arbed shares;

235,056,475 Arcelor shares in exchange for the shares tendered for Usinor shares;

16,787,931 Arcelor shares in exchange forvthe Arbed shares (1,561,668) tendered by Staal Viaanderen ;

being a total of 516,215,823 new shares representing an increase in share capital of 2,581,078,115 euro with a
sum of 4,645,942 407 euro being transferred to the share premium account, this premium being entirely at the
company's disposal.

In addition, Arcelor is issuing 24,343,320 Arcelor O.C.E.AAN.E. 2005 in exchange for the 24,343,320 Usinor
O.C.E.A.N.E. 2005 tendered to the Offers (out of the 25,000,000 Usinor 3.875% O.C.E.A.N.E. 2005 in circutation,
being 87.37% of such securities), and 26,990,988 Arcelor O.C.E. AN.E. 2006 in exchange for the 26,990,988
Usinor O.C.EAN.E. 2006 tendered to the Offers (out of the 28,575,899 Usinor 3% O.C.E.AN.E. 2006 in
circulation, being 94.45% of such securities).

Following such success, the board of directors of Arcelor has decided to recpen the Arbed and Usinor offers.

The offer for Arbed shares will be reopened in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and in Beigium on the same
conditions as the initial offer, being 43 Arcelor shares for 4 Arbed shares. The public share for share offer will be
reopened from 18th February, 2002 until 8th March, 2002 inclusive.

The offer for Usinor shares and Usinor O.C.E A.N.E wili be reopened from 18th February, 2002 untit 8th March,
2002 and will be carried out on the same conditions as the initial offer, being 1 Arcelor share for 1 Usinor share, 1
Arcelor O.C.EEAN.E 2005 for 1 Usinor O.C.EAAN.E 2005 and 1 Arcelor O.C.E.AN.E 2006 for 1 Usinor
O.C.E.A.N.E 2006.

A financial notice will be published in the French press in relation to the reopening of the public share for share
offer in relation to Usinor shares and Usinor O.C.EANE..

Press relations
Patrick Seyler +352 4792 2362
Oscar Fleites +34 98 512 6029

Investor Relations

Martine Hue +33 1 41 25 60 96
Guillaume Chevalier +33 1 41 25 97 11
Laurent Beauloye +352 4792 2434

This press release does not constitute an offering of securities.
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FIRST LISTING OF ARCELOR

Arcelor, leading steelmaker worldwide, becomes a reference value for the financial markets

Today, the new shares of Arcelor have been admitted to the listing simultaneously on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange, on the Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels, on the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris SA and on the
Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges. This first listing concretizes the actua!l integration of the
Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor groups.

The three public share for share offers launched by Arcelor on the Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor groups have been
clearly successful as shown by the results recorded at the closure of the operation. Arcelor has received in France
93.35 % of Usinor's capital, whereas in Belgium and Luxembourg, 98.32 % of the Arbed shares have been
brought into the new group. In Spain, 94.79 % of the Aceralia shares have been presented to Arcelor.

Its shareholder structure provides the new group with a great visibility and a strong liquidity with more than 70% of
the shares offered to individual and institutional shareholders (" free float ).

The success of the share for share offers reflects the former Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor shareholders' confidence
in the new group and its project. They thus give proof of their support to the will of the three founding companies
to take part in the reconfiguration of the steel industry worldwide and to incorporate new industrial, commercial,
financial and human assets to ensure steel's progress in Europe and in the world.

Arcelor has the ambition to create value for its shareholders as well as for its customers. Arcelor claims to be a
responsible player moving towards a healthy and durable growth to be built up with regard to people and to the
environment.

With its four sectors of activity - flat carbon steel products, long carbon steel products, stainless steel and
distribution-processing-trading -, the new group relies upon its visibility and its attractivity to become the reference
in steelmaking on the financial markets and on the stee) markets worldwide.

The assets Arcelor has at its disposal in terms of a diversified product range meeting the requirements of more
and more globalized customers as well as in terms of the potential of identified synergies, allow the group to give
a satisfactory response to the challenges of an ever more demanding economic environment.

Luxembourg, February 18th, 2002

Press relations

Patrick Seyler +352 4792 2362
Ignacio Agreda +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites +34 98 512 6029

Investor Relations

Martine Hue +33 1 41 25 60 96
Guillaume Chevalier +33 1 41 25 97 11
Fernando Sainz +34 91 596 8554
Laurent Beauloye +352 4792 2434
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARCELOR

in its first meeting heid at the headquarters in Luxembourg on March 1, 2002, the Board of Directors of Arcelor
has acknowledged its composition as decided upon by the General shareholders’ meeting.

Directors consists of the following members :

- Joseph Kinsch, Chairman of the board

- Francis Mer, Chairman of the board

- José Ramoén Alvarez Rendueles, Vice-chairman of the board

- HRH Prince Guillaume of Luxembourg, Director

- Daniel Bouton, Director, Chairman and Managing director of the Société Générale, Paris

- John Castegnaro, Director, Trade Union Leader, Luxembourg

- Jean-Yves Durance, Director, President of the Management Board of MARSH France

- Ignacio Fernandez Toxo, Director, Trade Union Leader, Madrid

- Jean-Pierre Hansen, Director, Chairman and Managing director of Tractebel, Brussels

- Ulrich Hartmann, Director, Chairman of the Supervisory board of E-ON AG, Dusseldorf

- Corporacién JMAC represented by Ramdn Hermosilla Martin, Director, Madrid

- Hedwig De Koker, , Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Vancaen PLC, Brussels
- Jean Lapeyre, Director, Trade Union Leader, Paris

- Daniel Melin, Director, Consultant Emadys, Paris

- Francisco Javier de la Riva Garriga, Director, Executive Vice-president of Fertiberia S.A., Madrid
- Georges Schmit, Director, General Secretary of the Ministry of the Economy, Luxembourg
- Sergio Silva de Freitas, Director, Senior Vice-president of Banco Itau, Brazil

- Fernand Wagner, Director, Luxembourg

M. Paul Junck, Corporate Secretary, has been appointed Secretary of the Board of Directors

In addition, the Board has established two committees within the definition of the principles of a corporate
governance conceived to provide the sharehoifders with information, to offer transparency to the markets and to
optimize the group's operations.

The committees are:

1. Audit committee with the task to assist the Board of Directors in its functions of Company and Group
controlling among others. Its members are:

- José Ramén Alvarez Rendueles, Chairman
- Jean-Yves Durance, member

- Hedwig De Koker, member

- Georges Schmit, member

2. Appointment and remuneration committee

. This committee will propose to the Board of Directors the policy to apply in terms of remuneration of the members
of the Management Board. In addition, this committee is mandated to present proposals to the Board of Directors
concerning the appointment of members of the Board of Directors and of the Management Board.

This committee consists of:

- Joseph Kinsch, Chairman

- Francis Mer, Chairman

- José Ramoén Alvarez Rendueles, member
- Jean-Pierre Hansen, member

Luxembourg, March 1, 2002

Press relations

Patrick Seyler +352 4792 2362
Ignacio Agreda +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites +34 88 512 6029

Investor Relations

Martine Hue +33 1 41 25 60 96
Guillaume Chevalier +33 1 41 25 97 11
Fernando Sainz +34 91 596 8554
Laurent Beauloye +352 4792 2434
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FINAL RESULTS OF THE EXCHANGE OFFERS

Pursuant to the terms of a memorandum of understanding signed on February 19, 2001, the three companies
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR decided upon a joint industrial ptan, the internal organization of ARCELOR, and
the principal terms of their combination through the launching by ARCELOR of three exchange offers for all the
capital stock (excluding the ACERALIA 1997 Warrants) and voting rights of each of the companies.

Calendar of the Transaction:

12/24/2001 Opening of the offer on ARBED in Luxembourg and Belgium and the offer on USINOR in
France

01/04/2002 Opening of the offer on ACERALIA in Spain

01/31/2002 Closing of the offers in Luxembourg, Belgium and France

02/08/2002 Closing of the offer in Spain

02/18/2002 Beginning of market listing and trading (Bourse de Luxembourg, Premiers Marchés of
Euronext Paris and Euronext Brussels, Madrid, Barcelona, Bibao and Valencia Stock
Exchanges)

02/18/2002 Reopening of the offers on ARBED and USINOR

03/08/2002 Closing of the reopened offers in Luxembourg, Belgium and France

Results of the First Offer:

At the closing of the offers on ARBED and USINOR, on January 31, 2002, the following securities had been
tendered:

- 9,895,588 shares of ARBED, representing 98.32% of the share capital;

- 235,056,475 shares of USINOR, representing 93.35% of the share capital;

- 24,343,320 of the USINOR 3.875% O.C.E.A.N.E.s due 2005, of the 25,000,000
outstanding, representing 97.37% of these bonds;

- 26,990,988 of the USINOR 3% O.C.E.A.N.E.s due 2008, of the 28,575,999
outstanding, representing 94.45% of these bonds.

At the closing of the offer on ACERALIA, on February 8, 2002, 118,495,385 shares of ACERALIA (representing
94.79% of the ACERALIA shares outstanding at the close of the offer) had been tendered.

As a result, the Board of Directors decided to issue, effective February 15, 2002, the following:

- 106,377,571 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the ARBED shares tendered in the Offers;
- 235,056,475 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the USINOR shares tendered in the Offers;
- 157,993,846 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the ACERALIA shares tendered in the Offers;
- 16,787,931 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the contribution by Staal Viaanderen
of 1,561,668 ARBED shares;

representing a total of 516,215,823 new shares.

ARCELOR also issued:

- 24,343,320 ARCELOR O.C.E.AN E.s due 2005 in consideration for the
USINOR 2005 O.C.E.A.N.E s tendered in the Offers; and

- 26,990,988 ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E s due 2006 in consideration for the
USINOR 2008 O.C.E.A.N.E.s tendered in the Offers.

Results of the Reopening of the Offers and the Contribution
by ARBED ESPANA BV of ACERALIA Shares:

Given the clear success at the closing of the initial offers, and in compliance with applicable provisions, it was
decided to reopen the offer in Luxembourg and Belgium, as well as the offer in France, with the terms of the offers
remaining unchanged.

At the closing of this reopening of the offers in Luxembourg, Belgium and France, on March 8, 2002, the following
securities had been tendered:

-102,416 ARBED shares;

- 10,640,794 USINOR shares;

- 337,328 USINOR 2005 O.C.E AN.Es. and
- 729,888 USINOR 2006 O.C.EAN.E.s.

On March 1, 2002, the Board of Directors of ARCELOR decided, in connection with the contribution of 297,354
ACERALIA shares by ARBED ESPANA BV, to issue new shares in consideration for this contribution.

httn://www . arcelor.com/anglais/html/presse/com 09 htm
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As a result, ARCELOR issued, effective March 18, 2002, the following:

- 1,100,972 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the ARBED shares tendered;
- 10,640,794 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the USINOR shares tendered;
- 396,472 ARCELOR shares in consideration for the contribution

by ARBED ESPANA BV of ACERALIA shares;

representing a total of 12,138,238 new ARCELOR shares.
ARCELOR also issued:

- 337,328 ARCELOR 2005 O.C.E.AN.Es. and
- 729,888 ARCELOR 2006 O.CE.AAN.Es.

Final Situation:

At the completion of the exchange offers and the ancillary transactions mentioned above, ARCELOR issued a
total of:

- 528,354,061 ARCELOR shares. Taking into account the 6,450 preexisting shares, the total number
of issued ARCELOR shares is 528,360,511, which represents a subscribed share capital of EUR
2,641,802,555;

- 24,680,648 ARCELOR 2005 O.C.EAN.Es. and

- 27,720,876 ARCELOR 2006 O.C.EAN.Es.

As of today, ARCELOR holds:

- 118,792,739 ACERALIA shares, representing 95.03% of the shares of ACERALIA;

- 11,659,672 ARBED shares, representing 99.43% of the shares of ARBED;

- 245,697,269 USINOR shares, representing 97.58% of the shares of USINOR;

- 24,680,648 USINOR O.C.E A N.E.s due 2005, representing 98.72% of these bonds; and
- 27,720,876 USINOR O.C.E. A N.E s due 2006, representing 37.01% of these bonds.

The three Exchange Offers launched by ARCELOR on the ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR groups met with
great success, as demonstrated by the results at the closing of the transaction.

The shareholding structure of the new Group provides strong visibility and liquidity, with more than 70% of the
shares offered to private and institutional investors (“free float").

The success of the exchange offers reflects the confidence of the former shareholders of ACERALIA, ARBED and
USINOR in the new Group and its plan. They have demonstrated their support of the desire of the three founding
companies to participate in the reorganization of the world stee!l industry and to bring together industrial,
commercial, financial and human strengths to develop steel in Europe and elsewhere in the world. ARCELOR
thanks the shareholders of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR for having, through their renewed confidence,
allowed the birth of this new Group.

Relations Presse
Patrick Seyler +352 4792 2362
Oscar Fleites +34 98 512 6029

Relations Investisseurs

Martine Hue +33 1 41 25 60 96
Guiltaurme Chevalier +33 1 41 25 97 11
Fernando Sainz +34 91 596 9554
Laurent Beauloye +352 47592 2434
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------- Press Release - 19/04/02------- Page 1 of 2

CHEREPOVETS, RUSSIA 2002 f CesepCranb

THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE GALVANIZING LINE "SEVERGAL" BY SEVERSTAL,
RUSSIA'S STEEL INDUSTRY'S LEADER, AND ARCELOR, THE WORLD'S LARGEST
STEEL COMPANY, HAS BEGUN AT SEVERSTAL'S INDUSTRIAL SITE
(CHEREPOVETS, VOLOGDA REGION).

Today Severstal's General Director and Head of the Severstal group, Alexei Mordashov, and the Co-Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Arcelor, Francis Mer, laid down the foundation stone of Severgal, their joint plant, which
will produce automotive hot dip galvanized steel.

Severgal is a company registered in the Russian Federation and owned 75% by Severstal and 25% by Arcelor.
Severgal annual capacity will be 400,000 tons. The plant will include a galvanizing line and will be built at
Severstal's industrial site up to 2004. Severgal will sell its products mainly to the Russian car industry, in particular
for exposed panels of automobiles.

Arcelor will grant the joint venture a license for the use of its proprietary product, ExtragalTM, including the
trademark and associated know-how. ExtragalTM, which is a pure zinc hot dip galvanized steel product, was
specifically developed for the automotive industry. It is produced in Europe by Arcelor, in Canada by DoSol, a joint
project with Dofasco, and from 2003 it will be produced in Brazil at the Vega do Sul plant, currently under
construction.

The project, which wilt be mainly supplied in steel substrate by Severstal, will also benefit from the company's
present expertise and future development program for the production of high quality cold rolled steel. Severstal's
modernization program includes important investments as well as the development of an efficient quality and
management organization aimed at increasing product quality and obtaining international quality certificates.

The ExtragalTM technofogy and trademark associated with Severstal management, technical and commercial
expertise in Russia, will be key success factors of Severgal.

Arcelor is a company born from the merger of European steelmakers Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor, which employs
nearly 110,000 employees and operates worldwide in 60 countries, 2001 sales amounted — on a pro-forma basis
— to 27 billion Euro for a crude stee! production of 43.5 million tonnes.

Severstal = Cherepovets Steel Mill is an affiliate of the Severstal group which employs 45,000. Severstal sells
steel to over 50 countries. In 2001 its sales volume was 1.8 billion USD for a crude steel production of 9.3 million
tonnes.

CHEREPOVETS, RUSSIA, April 19th, 2002

Severstal Arcelor
Press relations Severstal Cherepovets Russie Corporate Communications Luxembourg
Olga EJOVA Patrick SEYLER
phone: (8202) 56 4865 phone: +352 47 92 23 62
fax (8202) 56 1256
Jean LASAR
press@stal.ru phone: +352 47 92 23 59
http:/Awww severstal.ru fax | +352 47 92 26 58
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ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF APRIL 26, 2002

The Ordinary General Meeting of Arcelor shareholders, held on April 26 with Messrs. Joseph Kinsch and Francis
Mer in the chair, approved the company's financial statements closed on December 31, 2001(*) and

the resolutions that were submitted to it by the Board of Directors. The General Meeting decided to appoint as
auditors the société civile KPMG Audit Luxembourg, both for the financial statements of the public limited
company Arcelor and for the consolidated financial statements of the Arcelor Group, for a period ending with the
audit of the accounts for the 2004 financial year.

Statements by the Chairmen:

In his address Chairman Joseph Kinsch thanked the shareholders for the confidence they had shown in the plan
of Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor to pool all their industrial, commercial and human strengths in a new company. A
large number of shareholders had in fact responded to the Public Exchange Offers faunched by Arcelor for the
shares of the three founding companies. He noted that at the end of the operation and taking into account the re-
opening of the offers for Arbed and Usinor between February 18 and March 8 of this year, Arcelor had received
99.43% of the Arbed shares and 97.58% of Usinor's capital. In Spain 95.03% of the Aceralia shares were
submitted to Arcelor.

The subscribed capital totais 2,641,802,555 Euros, represented by 528,360,511 shares.

Mr. Kinsch noted that the shareholder structure of the new Group afforded it high visibility and strong liquidity, with
more than 70% of the shares having been offered to private and institutional investors (“free float").

Mr. Kinsch closed his statement by affirming that it was Arcelor's ambition to be the benchma’rk of the global
steelmaking industry.

Chairman Francis Mer highlighted the fact that thanks to the geographic diversity of its production locations,

the complementarity of its business lines and the breadth of its product range, Arcelor can offer its customers
winning steel solutions, including high-quality services. By combining the innovation policies of the three founding
companies and by capitalizing on a range of diversified products with high added value, Arcelor was strengthening
its assets to enhance its value in the eyes of its customers and financial markets. He added:

"The reason why we established Arcelor is to provide an original, suitable and - we believe - pioneering response
to the necessary reconfiguration of the global steel industry. With Arcelor we have become a

global Group”.

Mr. Mer pointed out that as a leading player in the global steel industry, Arcelor intends to fully shoulder its
responsibilities by promoting a model of sustainable development. The Group is endeavouring to control its
environmental risks, to reduce the nuisance concomitant to its operations, to offer environment-friendly steel
solutions and to improve occupational safety and health. Human resources management, a civic commitment to
serving the community and innovation strategy form part of the same concern for sustainable development.

Commenting on the Group's performance, Mr. Mer confirmed the medium-term financial target that the Arcelor
Group had set itself: to earn an average return on its capital employed of 15% before tax over the three-year steel
cycle and to significantly reduce debt by improving the ratio of debt to shareholders' equity.

CEO Guy Dollé emphasized that the process of forming Arcelor had taken place in a difficult economic
environment. The year 2001 had been marked by a deterioration of the international economic situation, which
had been further exacerbated following the events of September 11 in the United States. In such an environment,
world steel consumption had increased only slightly over the whole year.

Although uncertainties remain as to the strength of the world's economies’ recovery, Mr. Dollé foresees, for

the current year, an improvement of the stee! manufacturing activity. Although the rebound in the US was still
moderate, the prospects of global economic growth were better and growth should begin to fook more positive in
the course of the second half of 2002. This improvement is mainly the result of the necessary rise of selling prices
for most products offered by the Arcelor group, as well as of an optimization of the alignment of production vs.
demand.

Economic growth in the European Union, which had still been weak at the beginning of the year, might become
more sustained in the second half-year thanks to support from household demand, a revival of exports and the
economic recovery in North America. This situation should lead to a rebound in apparent steel consumption at the
end of the second half-year, with a positive impact on prices.

The protectionist decisions of the US government, intended to protect a US steel industry which has delayed its
restructuring, will affect European steelmakers by causing a certain drop in exports to the United States. The
safeguard measures adopted by the European Union following these decisions will allow to avoid an increased
flow of third countries steel products to the European Union and will avoid to destabilize a situation on the path to
improvement

Referring more particularly to Arcelor, Mr. Dolté concluded that the economic environment, which was still
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characterized by a great deal of uncertainty, represented both a challenge and an opportunity for the Arcelor
Group. A challenge, because the Group had to operate in a difficult environment. An opportunity, because in this
situation it had to muster all its strengths in order to make Arcelor's integration a success as soon as possible and
to take advantage of complementarity of products and markets in order to set an example for restructuring the
stee! industry on a global scale.

Luxembourg, April 26, 2002

") Arcelor, a société anonyme under Luxembourg law, was incorporated on June 8, 2001. The company's
first financial year ended on December 31, 2001.Arcelor did not have any operational activity at the
close of the period under review.

The company will draw up consolidated financial statements which will be submitted to the General
Meeting of Shareholders on April 25, 2003 .

Press relations Investor relations
Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362 Martine Hue: +33 1 41 25 60 96
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 +33141259898

Jean Lasar; +352 4792 2359
(Spain)

Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites: +34 98 512 6029
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PRESS RELEASE

Today, Jean-Pierre Raffarin, Prime Minister of the French government, proposed
the office of Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry to Francis Mer who since
February 19th, co-chairs with Joseph Kinsch the Board of Directors of Arcelor, the
steelmaking group issued from the merger between Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor.

"It is a great honor for the Arcelor group to have one of its Chairmen, a convinced
European, appointed to this very important responsibility", Mr. Kinsch commented.

Before presiding over the destinies of Arcelor, Francis Mer distinguished himself
restructuring and privatizating the Usinor group which he led with talent, rigor,
vision and a bold sense for social consensus. Respected by the international
community for his entrepreneurial qualities, Francis Mer was one of the architects
of the creation of Arcelor, which shows the path to the necessary consolidation of
the steel industry worldwide as an answer to the challenges of the globalization of
markets.

As from today, Joseph Kinsch will chair alone the Board of Directors of Arcelor.

Luxembourg, May 7th, 2002

Press relations Investor relations
Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362 Martine Hue: +352 4792 2151
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 e +33 1 41 25 9898

Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359
(Spain)

Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites: +34 98 512 60 29
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Arcelor : Implementation of a European Works Council

Arcelor - created through the merger between Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor - and the
national and European trade union organizations have signed on May 27 an
agreement on the implementation of a European Works Council. This agreement
will provide for the creation of a social dialogue at the highest level and an
improved information flow within the group.

This Council - composed by representatives from both the employer and the
employees - will allow to take into account the range of common interests
generated by the new European dimension of Arcelor and to reinforce the group's
identity in face of its new challenges.

This agreement enforces the original principles underlying the creation of the
European Consultative Committee of Arbed-Aceralia and of the European Group
Committee of Usinor. In the spirit of continuity, the members of the new European
Works Council of Arcelor will contribute to develop the border crossing European
social dialogue by refining it with the input of the various cultures they are
representing. The members of the Council stress the need for capitalizing the
collective experiences and competences acquired within the existing European
Committees. They consider social dialogue a key factor for the company's success
in the scope of the European construction.

Luxembourg, 27th May, 2002

Press relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359

(Spain)
Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 4894 162
Oscar Fleites: +34 985 1260 29

(France)
Sandra Luneau +33 1 41 25 65 04
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ARBED requests de-listing of its shares form the Luxembourg, Brussels, Paris and
Frankfort stock exchanges

In the context of its meeting of 31st May 2002, the board of directors of Arbed has resolved to request the de-
listing of the shares of the company from the official fisting of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Premier
Marché of Euronext Paris S.A., the Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels S.A. and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

Filings to that effect have been made on 31st May, 2002 with the competent authorities of the various concerned
stock exchanges.

This decision is made following the acquisition by Arcelor in the context of its public exchange offer on Arbed of
99.43 % of the share capital of the company.

This decision follows the intention declared by Arcelor in the public exchange offer prospectus relating to Arbed of
20th December 2001 to consider a delisting of the Arbed shares from the official listing of one or more of the stock
exchanges on which the shares were listed depending on the success of the exchange offer.

Luxembourg, June 3rd, 2002

Press relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359

Investor relations
Martine Hue: +352 4792 2151
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Press Release - 21.06.02

RESULTS OF THE FIRST QUARTER 2002

The Board of Directors met under the chairmanship of Mr Joseph Kinsch on June 21, 2002 and reviewed the
consolidated accounts of the Group for the first quarter of 2002.

For the first quarter ending March 31, 2002 the Group’s net income was a loss of 24 million euro.

Millions of Euro 1st Quarter 2001* 15! Quarter 2002 *
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Net Sales 7,342 6.824
Operating income 401 65
Net income 186 - 24
{Group share)
Earnings per share ** +0.4 -0.05

* Proforma
**{n euro. Treasury shares at March 31, 2002 not taken in account.

Consolidated net sales amounted to 6,824 million euro compared to 7,342 million for the first quarter 2001 on a
proforma basis, or a decrease of 7% on a comparable basis. This evolution reflects essentially the strong
decrease in average selling prices in Flat Carbon (-9%) and Stainless Steels (-11%), Long Carbon Steels
benefiting from a small rise (2%).

Flat Carbon also suffered from a negative volume/mix effect (-3%). Long Carbon benefited from a slightly positive
effect (+2%), while stainless enjoyed a positive +8 % effect sustained by the beginning of a restocking process.
Distribution Processing and Trading activities were more contrasted, showing a decrease in Packaging and Tubes
but remaining globally positive in Distribution and Construction.

Tota! net sales of Arcelor Group for the first quarter 2002 comprise 3,315 million euro for Flat Carbon Steels,
2,224 million for Distribution Processing and Trading, 1,086 millien for Long Carbon Steels and 1,079 million for
Stainless steels.

For the first quarter of 2002, 77% of net sales were in the European Union, 11% in North America, South America
represented 4% and the rest of the world 8%.

Operating income was positive at 65 million euro to be compared to 401 million for the first quarter of 2001, on a
proforma basis. The four different sectors contributed as follows (after goodwill); Fiat Carbon Steels - 73 million,
Distribution Processing and Trading 35 million, Stainless Steels - 17 millions and Long Carbon Steels 125 million.
This important decline of operating margin for the first quarter is essentially due to the severe fall of selling prices
which hit a historical low on flat carbon steels and to a reduction of shipments linked to an end of destocking.

In a context of continuous adjustment of production in the Carbon Flat Steels sector, cost reduction programs if
close to objectives could only partially offset the impact of selling prices drops.

Implementation of synergies linked to the merger is on schedule and Group integration is progressing well.

Financial expenses at 90 million euro improves by 39 million compared to the same period of 2001. Due to the
results of South American companies, contribution of associated companies was - 25 million euro.

Millions of Euro December 31, 2001* March 31, 2002 *
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Shareholders equity including 8,484 8,353
minority interest
Net debt 6,206 6,553
Net debt/sharehoiders equity 073 0.78
(including minority interasts)

* Proforma

Net debt at March 31, 2002 was 6,553 million euro compared to 6,206 million at December 31, 2001, variation
being principally due to dividend payment in January 2002. A plan for substantial working capital requirements
reduction will allow the realization of debt reduction by year end.

Prospects

After a period of reduced activity of end user customers, following business climate of third and fourth quarter of
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2001, one can observe an improvement of apparent consumption during the second quarter of 2002. This trend
could be reinforced along the third quarter as inventories both in the distribution networks and in the consumer
channel have reached a level which can be considered low at the end of the first quarter.

Moreover, in order to face protectionist measures enforced by the government of the United States with regard to
steel products imports, the European Community has adopted measures which could contribute to prevent
additional imports into Europe.

In this context, Flat carbon steel prices have been rising since the beginning of the second quarter after having
reached historical lows registered these last twenty years. New selling price increases have been announced for
the third quarter and are being realized for most of the markets.

Within this context, the Group expects a significant improvement of results for the second quarter of 2002.

Luxembourg, 21th June, 2002

Press relations Investor relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362 Martine Hue: +352 4792 2414
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 France

Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359 +331412598698

France Spain

Sandra Luneau : +33 1 41 25 65 04 + 34 902 152 153

Spain

lgnacio Agreda: +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites: +34 98 512 60 29

AYINA NN

hittom s/ avrmr s mven Alasv camalamalaia/lhitenl fivncanlnnm 1L tiaa



Press Release - 26.06.02

b Tk Steel

ey arcelor ¥

PRESS RELEASE

On October 8th, 2001, the Consortium composed of ARCELOR S A, SALZGITTER AG and THYSSENKRUPP
STAHL AG had submitted a global offer for the acquisition of selected assets of the four Polish steel mills; Huta
Katowice S.A., Huta im. T. Sendzimira S.A., Huta Cedler S.A. and Huta Florian S.A.

The submitted offer expired by end of 2001, but all Consortium members are still interested to participate in the
successful reorganisation of the Polish steel industry. The latest developments in this privatisation process, with the
creation of Polskie Huty Stali {(PHS) and its foreseen investment programme, however, appear not to be in line
anymore with the aforementioned developed offer.

In view to continue the jointly realised studies and in order to respect the interests of its members, the Consortium
members decided to continue acting on an individual basis in the future. Each member will have the opportunity to
represent itself directly in this privatisation process and contact the Polish authorities in order to receive clarification
and initiate further actions on the new terms and timing of the privatisation process of the Polish steel industry.

Duisburg, Luxembourg, Salzgitter, June 26th, 2002

Arcelor

Press relations

Patrick Seyler; +352 4792 2362
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359
Investor Relations

Martine Hue: +352 4792 2151

Salzgitter

Press relations

Bernd Gersdorff: +49 5341 21 23 00
Investor Relations

Bernhard Kleinermann: +49 5341 21 37 83

ThyssenKrupp / ThyssenKrupp Steel

Press relations

Erwin Schneider: +49 203 52 2 56 90
Dietmar Stamm: +49 203 52 2 62 67
Investor Relations

Dr. Martin Grimm: +49 211 82 43 64 64
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Résultats ler semestre 2002

2002 FIRST HALF RESULTS

COMING BACK TO PROFITABILITY

® Recovery of results for the second quarter
® Integration under way, first synergies realized
® Encouraging prospects

Luxembourg, August 30, 2002

The Board of Directors met on August 30, 2002 under the chairmanship of Joseph Kinsch, reviewed the Group's
consolidated results of the second quarter 2002 and approved the consolidated accounts for the first half of 2002.
Following Francis Mer's resignation, Edmond Pachura was appointed Board Member of Arcelor

At June 30 2002, pro forma consolidated net income was 93 million euro.

Key Figures of the Group

in million of euro First Half 2001 First Quarter 2002 Second Quarter First Half 2002
Pro Forma- 2002
Unaudited*
Revenue 14,314 6,824 6,881 13,705

EBIT 611 67 274 341

Net income,

Group share 369 -22 115 93
EPS*™ 0.77 -0.05 0.25 0.20

**in euro.

Revenue of the Group for the first half amounted to 13,705 miliion euro compared to 14,314 miliion for the same
period of 2001, or a 4% decrease on a comparable basis (6,824 million for the first quarter and 6,881 million for
the second quarter).
Geographical breakdown was as follows ;: 75% in the EU, 12% in North America, 5% in South America and 8% in
the rest of the world.

EBIT was 341 million euro (67 million for the first quarter and 274 million for the second quarter), or 2.5% of net
sales, against 611 million for the first half of 2001.

After financial interest expenses of 214 million euro and no contribution from associated companies, Group share
of net income amounts to 93 million euro (022 miltion for the first quarter and 115 miltion for the second quarter).

Cash generated by operations of 682 million euro, compared to 1,114 million for the same period 2001, benefits
from a decrease in working capital requirements essentially due to a reduction of inventories.

In million euro December 31, March 31, June 30,
Pro Forma-Unaudited* 2001+ 2002 2002
Sharehclders'equity 8,509 8,353 8,249
Net financial debt** 6.510 5878 6,317
Net financial debt /
Shareholders'equity**** 077 082 077

** including minocrity interests..
“** modified following restatements for accountancy purposes linked to the merger as of February 28, 2002.
**excluding securitization effect.

At June 30, 2002, net financial debt was 6,317 million euro, or a decrease compared to December 31, 2001
(6,510 million) and March 31, 2002 (6,878 million). Increased efforts, most notably toward an improved control of
working capital requirements, will contribute to further reductions of financial indebtedness.

At June 30, 2002, the net financial debt/shareholders’ equity ratio, including minority interests, was 0.77, to be
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Résultats ler semestre 2002 Page 2 of 3

compared with 0.82 at March 31, 2002 and 0.77 at December 31, 2001.

Breakdown of revenue and EBIT by sector

In million euro First Half 2001 First Half 2002
Pro Forma-
Unaudited* Revenue EBIT % Revenue EBIT %
Flat Carbon Steel 6,902 380 55 6,420 20 03
Distribution-
Processing 5,016 102 2.0 4 864 97 2.0
and Trading
Long Carbon 2,129 200 9.4 2,225 231 10.4
Steel ! ) ! )
Stainless Steel 2,227 -95 -4.3 2,241 25 1.1
Other Activities 385 -22 5.7 478 -37 7.7
Intra group sales -2,345 ns ns -2,523 ns ns

The shrinking of revenue {pro forma) for the Flat Carbon Steel sector compared to 2001 results from a fall of
average selling prices (-7%), shipped volumes being slightly reduced over the period.

Distribution, Processing and Trading have seen a more contrasted evolution, the second quarter showing globally
a clear improvement after a very difficuit situation at the beginning of the year. Distribution and steel service
centers experience a reduction of volumes to the benefit of prices, when Construction remains in line with the first
half of 2001 and Tubes show a clear progression.

Revenue for Long Carbon Products reflect new price increases for certain products (+1%) and a good volume
situation (+4%).

For Stainless Steels, both the acceleration of markets recovery and increase in nickel price during the second
quarter have aliowed significant improvements of average selling prices and volumes for flat products, mainly in
Europe and in Asia, while selling prices for Stainless long products have stabilized at low levels.

After a very difficult first quarter, improvement in prices and volumes for flat carbon steels and stainless steeis
announces positive evolutions which still translate only partially in the results of the second quarter. The strong
increase of Long Carbon products is essentially due to excellent performance of Brazil and Southern Europe. The
progression of results for the Group also benefits from cost cutting actions and a synergy program which is on
schedule.

PROSPECTS

Despite a hesitating world economy evolution, the Group expects a positive development of its results reinforced
by a better adjustment of produced volumes as welt as a significant improvement of the mix.

A rigorous approach in terms of appropriate supply answering to the bare needs of the market should allow an
improvement of the profitability of the Group in terms of capital employed.

*Pro forma-unaudited financial disclosures are meant to simulate the effects of the merger as of February 28,
2002 for periods of time starting prior to this date. Half year accounts fully compliant with IAS will be avaiiable on
the Corporation’s web site : www.arcelor.com on September 2, 2002.

This press release contains certain forward looking statements regarding anticipated market evolution and the
future prospects of Arcelor. While these statements are based on the Company's best estimations as of the date
hereof, actual results will vary as a function of market conditions, the action of competitors consumer demand,
steel prices, economic conditions and other factors.

Note: The 1st half 2002 results and highlights of the Arcelor Group will be commented during the press
conference which will take place at the Group headquarters in Luxembourg, 19, avenue de la Liberté, on
September 3, at 10.30 am

Press relations: Investor relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362 Martine Hue: +352 4792 2414
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 00 8004792 4792
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359 +33 141259898
France

Sandra Luneau: +33 1 41 25 6504

Spain

Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 489 4162
Oscar Fleites: +34 98 512 60 29
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Press Release - 03.09.02 Page 1 of 1

PRESS RELEASE

On August 30,2002, the Board of Directors of Arcelor decided to proceed with the acguisition of 96,5% of the
shares of Stahicord Austria AG from its current shareholders.

TreflARBED Bettembourg S.A. of Luxembourg, a 100% controlled ARCELOR company, will perform the
acquisition. Stahlcord Austria AG has two factories, one in Furstenfeld, Austria, and another in Szentgotthard,

Hungary.

In 2001, Stahlcord Austria AG shipped some 10 kt of Steelcord products to the major (European and Nonth
American) tyre manufacturers at destinations in Europe and abroad. After the acquisition, which is expected to be
closed before December 31, 2002, the combined production volume of TrefllARBED Bettembourg S.A. and
Stahicord Austria AG will amount to some 35 ki of Steeicord products.

For TrefilARBED the acquisition represents a strategic choice to follow the major tyre manufacturers' progressive
expansion into Central and Eastern Europe.

TrefiARBED operates Steelcord plants in Europe, USA, South Korea and China. It is a leading producer of
Steelcord and related products with shipments to all continents.

Luxembourg, September 3, 2002

Press relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359

France
Sandra Luneau: +33 1 41 2565 04

Spain

Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 4894 162
Oscar Fleites: +34 985 1260 29
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ARCELOR SELLS ITS STAKE IN BAMESA

In the fight of its disposal commitments given to the European Commission following its creation, Arcelor has sold
its 49% stake in the Spanish service centers group BAMESA ACEROS, previously held by USINOR.

14% have been sold to the Spanish holding ARMASFI, which already held 51% of BAMESA ACEROS, and 35%
to the Turkish group BORUSAN.

Furthermore, Arcelor has acquired 40% of the BAMESA ACEROS Turkish subsidiary, BAMESA GELIK.

Luxembourg, October 10, 2002

Press relations Investor relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2362 Martine Hue: +352 4792 2414
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 00 800 4792 4792
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359 +33 141 259898
France

Sandra Luneau: +33 1 41 25 65 04
Spain

Ignacio Agreda: +34 94 4894 162
Oscar Fleites: +34 985 1260 29
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Inauguration of CST's hot rolling mill in Brazil

On November 11th, Companhia Siderurgica de Tubardo (CST), in which the Arcelor group is the major
shareholder together with CVRD and Kawasaki, officially inaugurated its new hot rolling mill at Vitéria in
the State of Espirito Santo on the South-East coast of Brazil.

The ceremony took place in presence among others of Guilherme Gomes Dias, Minister of planning and budget
(representing the President of the Republic), José Inacio Ferreira, Governor of the Espirito Santo State, Guy
Dollé, CEO of Arcelor, Roger Agnelli, Executive Chairman of CVRD, Luis Paulo Velozo Lucas, mayor of Vitéria,
and Sergio Vigidal, mayor of Serra.

The Arcelor representatives also included Senior Executive Vice Presidents Guillermo Ulacia, Jean-Yves Gilet,
Paul Matthys and Michel Wurth, as well as Gérard Bernard, responsible for the BU Brazil, and the management of
CST with its President José Armando de Figueredo Campos.

This inauguration marks the entry of CST - company that up to now only delivered slabs - on the market of hot-
rolled coils. It is an important step for CST that marks its downstream development and confirms the interest, for
Arcelor, of the stake taken in this company in 1998 via Acesita to accompany its automotive development
strateqgy.

800,000 tons of the hot-rolled coils manufactured by CST will feed the new Vega do Sul plant presently under
construction at Sao Francisco do Sul in the South of Brazil. This new Arcelor site, in which CST holds a 25%
and which will manufacture pickled, cold-rolled and galvanized steel mainly for the automotive market, is also
affiiated to Arcelor's Flat Carbon Sector. The remaining hot-rolled coils of CST will go to the local markets and to
exports.

Thus, with the Vega do Sul investment, all the Brazilian participations confirm the position and the role of Brazil in
Arcelor's long term strategy, in particuiar in flat carbon steels.

Luxembourg, November 11, 2002

Press relations Investor relations

Patrick Seyler: +352 4792 2360 Martine Hue: +352 4792 2414
Paul Bertemes: +352 4792 2367 00 800 4792 4792
Jean Lasar: +352 4792 2359 +33 1412598 98

With nearly 110,000 employees in over 60 countries, Arcelor is the world's biggest steel producer. In 2001, on a
pro forma basis, annual production was approximately 43.5 million tons of steel with a turnover of over 27 billion
euros. It is a major player in all its main markets, which include automotive, construction, household appliances,
packaging and general industry. The Arcelor group is also active in engineering, copper sheet and heavy steel
plate. :
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Résultats ler semestre 2002

2002 THIRD QUARTER RESULTS

Results in line with expectations

® Margins improvement
® Progression of synergies
o Net indebtedness reduction

Luxembourg, November 15, 2002

The Board of Directors met on November 15, 2002 under the chairmanship of Joseph Kinsch and reviewed the
consolidated accounts for the third quarter of 2002.

After a very difficult first quarter and a clearly better second one, the third quarter is characterized, as in previous
years, by a lower activity due to seasonal slowdown effects. However, traditional Summer plant stoppings did not
prevent the Group from continuing to reduce casts and progress with synergies.

For the third quarter, pro forma consolidated net income was 50 million euro.

Key Figures of the Group

In millions of euro 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter
Pro forma - unaudited* 2001 2002 2002 : 2002
Revenue 6,231 6,824 6,881 6,438
EBITDA 390 301 580 511
EBIT 132 67 274 243
Net income Group
share 73 =22 115 50
EPS* 0.15 -0.05 0.25 0.10
**in euro

Revenue of the Group for the first nine months of 2002 amounted to 20,143 million euro compared to 20,545
million for the first nine months of 2001, or a decrease of 2% on a comparable basis. Group share of net income
amounted to 143 million euro compared to 442 million for the same period. It does not fully reflect yet the trend
reversal observed during the second and third quarters of 2002 nor the increased efforts of the Group to reduce
costs.

Revenue of the Group for the third quarter 2002 was 6,438 million euro compared to 6,231 for the same period of
2001, or a 3% increase on a comparable basis.

Geographical breakdown was as follows: 74% in the EU, 13% in North America, 6% in South America and 7% in
the rest of the world.

EBIT amounted to 243 million euro, or 3.8% of net sales, against 132 million or 2.1% of net sales for the same
pericd of 2001.

After financial interest expenses of 128 million euro, contribution from associated companies of 25 million and
taxes of 91 million, Group share of net income was 50 million. Increase of fiscal charges for the third quarter is
due to currency effects in a brazilian entity not fiscally integrated.

At September 30, 2002, cash generated by operations of 1,261 million euro shows noticeable improvement
compared to the. situation at June 30, 2002. This evolution reflects the capacity of the Group to keep reducing
working capital requirements.

In milfions of euro
o December 31, June 30, September 30,
Pro forma - unaudited 2001 2002 2002
Shareholders' equity ** 8,509 8,249 8,104
Net financial debt 6,510 6,317 6,036
Net financial debt/shareholders’ equity *™* 0.77 077 0.74

** including minority interests.
** excluding securitization effect.
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Résultats ler semestre 2002 Page 2 of 2
At September 30, 2002, net financial debt was 6036 million euro, or 2 substantial decrease compared to
December 31, 2001 (6,510 miilion) and to June 30, 2002 (6,317 million).

At September 30, 2002, the net financial debt/shareholders'equity ratio, including minority interests, was 0.74, to
be compared with 0.77 at June 30, 2002 and 0.77 at December 31, 2001. Pursuit of debt reduction remains a
priority for the Group.

Breakdown of Revenue and EBIT by Sector

in "‘é't?gs of T3 2001 T12002 T2 2002 T3 2002
5;2:3&2:. Revenueo|EBIT.| % [Revenue|EBIT| % [Revenue(EBIT.| % [RevenuelEBIT| %
Flat Carbon Steel ** 3,093 | 44 {14 3,290 (-73]-2.2 3,490 | 93 |2.7] 3,089 | 98 |3.2
Distribution Transformation and Trading | 2,283 | 53 [2.3] 2224 | 35|16 2640 | 62 [2.3] 2,379 [ 98 [4.1
Long Carbon Steel 979 69 |7.0y 1,086 {125[11.5] 1,139 | 106(9.3| 1,008 | 83 (8.2
Stainless Steel 935 |[-331-3.5{ 1,079 {-17(-1.6f 1,162 | 42 (3.6 992 |25 (2.5
Other activities 98 1] -] 254 | -1 - 224 |-36] -] 199 |-47] -
Intra group sales 1157 {ns | - |-1109 | ns} - |-1774 | ns | -1-1239|ns | -

**after reintegration of sales of ceils and billets to packaging and rail activities (=>1H 2001 Fiat Carbon Steel net sales = 7,378
million. Intra group sales = -2,821 million)

For the Flat Carbon Steel sector, variation of pro forma revenue between third quarters 2002 and 2001 reveais
stability of shipments and average selling prices.

Customer mix has evolved showing an increase of shipments to automotive and a decrease to general industry.
Significant rise of average selling prices to general industry during the third quarter offsets the sharp drop noted
during the first half of this year. Average selling prices to the automotive sector remained stable.

For Distribution, Transformation and Trading activities, volume and price effects are slightly positive compared to
the third quarter 2001. Average selling prices show the capacity of DTT to pass on to the customers the increase
in metal prices.

Revenue for Long Carbon Products for the third quarter 2002 show a 3% increase compared to the same period
of 2003. This favourable evolution is mainly due to brazilian activities, average selling prices and volumes
remaining slightly down in Europe.

For Stainless steels, volumes remained globally stable and average selling prices have increased for flat stainless
products. Both volumes and selling prices remain stable for long stainless products but at very low levels.

PROSPECTS

There is still concern over the possibility of a significant recovery of economies and this feeling should dominate
the world economic landscape for a few more months.

Despite this disappointing business climate, the Group counts on a positive evolution of its results and confirms
the pursuit of a rigorous approach in terms of appropriate supply to the bare needs of the market.

* Pro forma unaudited financial disclosures are meant to simulate the effects of the merger as of February 28, 2002 for periods of
time starting prior to this date.

This press release contains certain forward locking statements regarding anticipated market evolution and the future prospects of
Arcelor. While these statements are based on the Company's best estimations as of the date hereof, actual resuits will vary as a
function of market conditions, the action of competitors consumer demand, steel prices, economic conditions and other factors.
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Press Release - 10.12.02 Page | of 1

ARCELOR signs a memorandum of understanding (MOU) on the disposal of its units
of Beautor and Sorral

In accordance with the commitments of disposals given by Arcelor to the European Commission during its
creation, Arcelor informs that it has concluded a MOU on the disposal to the Duferco group of its coating lines of
Beautor {(cold rolling and electro-galvanizing) located at Beautor (France) and of Sorral (hot-dip gaivanizing and
organic coating) located at Strasbourg (France). After consultation with the workers' representatives a final Sales
Purchase Agreement shall be negotiated and submitted for approval to the Commission of the European Union.
Sorral is a 100% subsidiary, Beautor a 99.65% subsidiary of the Arcelor group.

These disposals should be effective during the 1st quarter of 2003.

Luxembourg, December 10, 2002
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Arcelor signs a Memorandum of Understanding on the acquisition of the Pallanzeno
rolling mill and the acquisition of a stake in the San Zeno melting shop

In the framework of the strategic development of its activities in the Long Products Sector, Arcelor informs that it
has concluded a Memorandum of Understanding with the Duferco Group on the acquisition of the entire rolling mill
of Pallanzeno, in the north of italy, and the acquisition of a stake in the San Zeno di Naviglio melting shop, near
Brescia in Italy. '

The plants of Pallanzeno and San Zeno presently belong to Duferdofin, a 100% subsidiary of the Duferco Group.

The final agreement will be submitted to the approval of the relevant authorities.

Luxembourg, December 19, 2002
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Arcelor and CVRD made a firm proposal for the acquisition of CST shares

Luxembourg, December 23, 2002 - Arcelor (Luxembourg), the world's iargest steel producer, and Companhia Vale
do Rio Doce ("CVRD" (Brazil), the world's largest producer of iron ore, have made a joint proposal for the
acquisition of Acesita S.A's (Brazilian flat stainless steel producer) participation in Companhia Siderurgica de
Tubaréo ("CST") {Brazil), one of the world's largest producer of stabs which is also a producer of hot rolied coils, in
which both Arcelor and CVRD already have a participating interest.

Arcelor and CVRD have also entered into a long term cooperation agreement to jointly accompany the
development of CST. The first step of this agreement will consist in combining, consolidating and sharing their
respective equity interests in this company.

For Arcelor, this partnership confirms the position and the role of Brazil in the group's long term strategy in
particular in the flat carbon steel with the following objectives:

- producing high end products for the automotive industry and for the general steel market in Brazil;

- implementing a strategy of slabs including the development of CST's export capabilities.

Capitalizing on the already existing relationship between Arcelor and CVRD, this partnership aims ultimately at
combining both companies' expertise and leadership in their respective areas with the objective of creating further
value for their respective customers and shareholders.

Luxembourg, December 23, 2002
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Press Release - 24.01.03

Strategic group orientation projects

At its January 24 meeting, the board of directors of steel group Arcelor has been informed about the conclusions
of strategic studies that have been conducted for almost one year. The goal was to analyze the competitiveness of
production structures across Europe and to define the orientations for the industrial evoiution of the production
infrastructure and its capacity.

The strategies for the "Long Carbon Steel” and “Distribution Transformation Trading" sectors had been defined
based on future profitability objectives at the occasion of previous meetings of the board of directors.

The studies on the orientation of the “Stainless Steel” segment will be concluded by the end of April 2003. in order
to substantially improve the competitiveness, they foresee, at stable capacity, the concentration of the steel
production, for instance through the construction of a new steelmaking plant upstream of the hot rolling mill of
CARLAM in Charleroi, Belgium.

For the “Flat Carbon Steel” sector, it has been noted that the targeted competitiveness objectives can only be
reached through the implementation of a concentration strategy of the liquid phase on the most competitive sites.
These are the coastal sites with the most attractive production costs. Taking into account the increase in the
performance of the plants in the context of the current implementation of improvement plans and the resulting
availability of steel, the study leads to foresee, over time, the phased discontinuation of non-competitive
capacities.

The board of directors noted that within Arcelor there will be a structural overcapacity for flat carbon steel
products. An important volume of unprofitable orders needs to be added to this figure. Therefore the board has
asked the management board to prepare all necessary measures in view of the concentration of future
investments on the most competitive sites in order to guarantee the overall position of the group. As a
consequence, major investments for the refurbishment of so-called continental or landlocked blast-furnaces would
not be carried out. Such investments have an average life expectancy of 12 to 15 years.

The board estimated that it is its duty to make this information public immediately in order to mobitize all the
constituencies impacted by the development and the implementation of these orientations. This mobilization
should allow, in particular on those sites where these measures should have an impact on employment, to set up
the accompanying measures required for the redeployment of the workforce and the industrial reconversion of the
area. Arcelor is committed to initiate the dialogue in a constructive spirit in order to prepare the future.

Arcelor employs 106,000 associates at its various sites, generating annual sales of aimost 27 billion euro, with a

production of approximately 44 million tons of steel in 2002. The group is structured into four major product
segments.

Luxembourg, January 24, 2003
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Résultats annuels 2002 Page 1 of 3

2002 ANNUAL RESULTS
A good operational performance in an unfavourable economical environment

o Synergies higher than expected
o Dividend of 0.38 per share

The Board of Directors met on February 27, 2003 under the chairmanship of Joseph
Kinsch, reviewed the consolidated accounts and approved the Company's accounts for
2002.

The Board of Directors will propose to the shareholders Meeting a dividend of 0.38 euro
per share. Dividend will be paid on May 22nd, 2003.

Despite a difficult environment for the world economy which was characterized by a
pronounced growth slowdown, the Group realized a good gross operating result
neighbouring two billion euro. This significant improvement is essentially due to cost
reduction progress and more particularly to synergies which at 190 million represent almost
the double of the target set by the industrial plan at the time of the merger.

At December 31, 2002, Pre-Tax amounted to 393 million euro. Pro forma consolidated net
income was - 121 million. It corresponds to a consolidated net income adjusted for
exceptional non cash items (458 million).

Key Figures of the Group

In millions of euro Pro forma - unaudited* 2001 2002
Revenue 27,512 26,594
EBITDA 1,379 1,978
EBIT - 200 780
Pre-Tax - 681 393
Net income Group share -339 -121
EPS*™ -0.70 -0.25
" in euro

*** as published in 2002

Revenue for the Group in 2002 amounted to 26,594 million euro compared to 27,512 in
million for 2001 or a 3.34% decrease.

Geographical breakdown was as follows: 75% in the EU, 12% in North America, 5% in
South America and 8% in the rest of the world.

Gross operating income amounted to 1,978 million or 7.4% of net sales compared to 1,379
million or 5% of net sales in 2001. It shows, additionally the positive effect of price
increases which took place quarter after quarter, the significant cost cutting realization.

Operating income was 780 million euro or 2.9% of revenues compared to -200 million in
2001. Even though hit by one off non cash exceptional items (185 million of impairment),
operating income shows significant improvement.

After financial interest expense of 464 million euro, a positive contribution from associates
of 77 million and taxes of 462 million, net income (Group share) was - 121 million.

Taxes essentially comprise intangible assets write down (deferred taxes accounted for in
some of the Group's subsidiaries) and constitutes a non recurring non cash item.

At December 31, 2002, cash generated by operations was 1,800 million euro. Capital
expenditure was 1,415 million euro, or a slight decrease compared to 2001 (1,590 million).
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Résultats annuels 2002

Net Financial Indebtedness

in millions of euro December 31, December 31,
Pro forma - unaudited* 2001 2002
Shareholders’ equity ** 8,819 8,058
Net financial debt 6,510 5993
Net financial debt/shareholders' equity ** 0.74 0.74

** including minorities and residual negative goodwil,

At December 31, 2002 net financial debt was 5,993 million euro or a decrease of 517
million compared to December 31, 2001. This debt reduction is attributable to a good
control of working capital requirements and capital expenditure. At December 31, 2002 the
net financial debt/shareholder's equity/ (including minerities and residual negative goodwill)
was 0.74 (0.74 at December 31, 2001). Stability of this ratio is due to the Brazilian real
devaluation impact on Group equity.

Breakdown of revenue, EBITDA and EBIT by sector

in million euro Pro Forma 2001** 2002
Non audited Revenue |[EBITDA| % | EBIT | % |RevenuelEBITDA| % | EBIT %
Flat Carbon Steel 13,572 | 570 |4.2]| -67 |0.5) 13,222 | 825 |7.0| 216 1.6
Long Carbon Steel 3,963 595 [|15.0 367 [9.3] 4 256 613 [14.4] 430 10.1
Stainless Steel 4,240 -53 {(1.3)] -677 |(16)] 4,248 200 [47] 45 1.1
Distribution Processing
and Trading 9,541 292 |31 186 |20 8444 319 (34| 209 22
Other activities 1,251 -1 o1 14 11 910 -79 |8.7) -120 (13.2)
Intra Group sales - 5,055 ns ns - 5,486 ns ns

** as published in 2002

Revenue for Flat Carbon Steel amounts to 13,222 million euro in 2002 compared to 13,
572 million in 2001 or a slight decrease (-2.6%) reflected by lower average selling prices
than in 2001 as first quarter registered low historical prices, which only started to increase
as of second quarter. Compared to 2001 shipped volumes have only increased by 0.3%.
The significant improvement of gross operating income (925 million euro in 2002 compared
to 570 million in 2001) is due to a better optimization of the mills but mainly to significant
cost cutting. Operating income was 216 million euro in 2002 compared to a loss of 67
million in 2001, a significant progression despite the impact of one off exceptional item
(asset impairment of 185 million).

For Long Carbon products, the revenue increase of 7.4% is attributable to the integration of
new companies as well as to a sharp increase in shipped volumes (+4.2%). Average
prices are slightly down (- 2.4%), prices in Northern Europe being hit by an increased
weakness of the construction markets.

Revenue for Stainless Steel remain stable in 2002 at 4,248 million. However, at 200 million
euro for 2002, gross operating income shows significant improvement compared with 2001
which was a loss of 53 million. This progress is essentially due to cost cutting and to
synergies, shipped volumes increasing by 1.3%. Operating income is positive compared to
a 677 million loss incurred in 2001 essentially due to one off exceptional items (asset
impairment)

Revenue for the Distribution, Processing and Trading sector is down by 1% compared to
2001 and reflects a reduction of shipped volumes. Gross operating income increased in
2002 (319 miltion compared to 292 million in 2001) and translates clearly price increases
for 2002 as well as significant cost reduction.

Revenue for other activities was 910 million euro compared to 1,251 million in 2001. Gross
operating income was a loss of 79 million compared to a loss of 1 million in 2001. This
sharp decrease, being essentially due to the decline of technological markets hitting copper
foil activities.
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Résultats annuels 2002 Page 3 of 3

Results of the parent company

At December 31, 2002, results of the parent Company were positive at 260 million
euro.This result essentially comes from dividends paid by Group subsidiaries.

PROSPECTS

The year 2003 has started amidst political and economical uncertainties which should
weigh on investment and therefore on industrial activity. In such a context the Group
nevertheless confirms the strategic objectives defined at the time of the merger, the
implementation of synergies and debt reduction.

In an environment developing in very different ways, the Group is positive about a rigorous
approach, in terms of appropriate supply following demand and margins evolution.

For 2003 the Group expects improved results considering higher than 2001 average selling
prices, mastering of inventories and important progress in terms of cost reduction and
synergies.

The organization of the Group is in place and integration is viewed as a success.

Luxembourg, February 27 2003

* Pro forma unaudited financial disclosures are meant to simulate the effects of the merger as of February 28, 2002 for periods of
time starting prior to this date.

This press release contains certain forward looking statements regarding anticipated
market evolution and the future prospects of Arcelor. While these statements are based on
the Company's best estimations as of the date hereof, actual resuits will vary as a function
of market conditions, the action of competitors consumer demand, steel prices, economic
conditions and other factors.
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Résultats annuels 2002 Page 1 of 1

ARCELOR ACQUIRES CST SHARES

ARCELOR and Companhia Vale do Rio Doce (CVRD) inform that they agreed to buy from Acesita S.A. (Acesita),
shares of Companhia Siderurgica de Tubardo (CST) owned by Acesita. Such shares are not affected to the CST
controlling shareholders agreement.

This transaction is related to the bid made by ARCELOR and CVRD to Acesita publicly announced on December
23, 2002. As previously informed, the increase of CVRD's stake in CST is transitory, given that a way out option is
already guaranteed by contract from 2007 onwards.

The acquisition will be compieted until April 24, 2003. It will involve the acquisition by CVRD of 4.42% of the
common shares and 564% of the preferred shares of CST, representing 5.17% of CST total capital.
Simuitaneously, ARCELOR will acquire the remaining common and preferred shares of CST, representing 8.84%
of CST total capital. The average price per 1,000 shares to be paid by ARCELOR and CVRD will be US$ 22.66.
Therefore, ARCELOR will spend US$102m with the purchase of CST shares.

After the closing of this transaction, ARCELOR will own 24.934% of CST common shares and 29.962% of CST
preferred shares, totaling 28.022 % of CST capital, the same percentages of CVRD.

The acquisition by ARCELOR and CVRD of CST common shares equivalent to 14.85% of its voting capital,
owned by Acesita and affected to the shareholders agreement, could take place in the future if the other members
of such shareholders agreement authorize the transaction or after the expiration of the current CST shareholders
agreement - May 2005.

ARCELOR and CVRD confirm that the CST expansion project, which involves the construction of a third blast
furnace, will come on stream in 2006. This project will be totally financed by CST from its own cash flow and/or
debt issuance.

Capitalizing on the already existing relationship between Arcelor and CVRD, this operation aims ultimately at
combining both companies' expertise and leadership in their respective areas with the objective of creating further
value for their respective customers and shareholders.

Luxembourg, March 28, 2003
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Privatization process of Polish steel industry

Arcelor confirms its interest in the Polish market which has an important medium and long term growth potential. Based
privatizations in Spain and France as well as with the upgrading of units in former East Germany, Arcelor considers that, f
on value creation, the economic performance of the Polish steel industry (PHS) is not compatible with the privatization pro
the Polish authorities.

The ambitious project developed by Arcelor aimed to integrate PHS step by step into the European structures of the
producer, in particular by opening outlets for high quality steels. Not having had the opportunity to convince the Polish auth
of its approach, Arcelor has decided not to submit an offer in the context of the current process.

Leveraging the geographical location of some of its factories, Arcelor clearly intends to further develop its industrial activitie
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Arcelor sells 50 per cent share in Lusosider to Corus

Luxembourg, Apnl 22, 2003 - Arcelor S.A. and Sollac Méditerranée, a subsidiary of Arcelor, have
agreed to sell Sollac's 50 per cent share in Lusosider Projectos Sidertgicos S.A., a Portuguese 50/50
joint venture between Corus and Arcelor, for EUR 10.84 million in cash to Corus Staal BV, a subsidiary
of Corus Group plc.

Completion of the transaction is subject to confirmation by the competent cartel authorities.

Lusosider had net assets of EUR 58.2 million as at December 31, 2001 and it made a loss of EUR 0.3
million in the year to December 31, 2001,

With 104,000 employees in over 60 countries, Arcelor is the world's largest steel producer. in 2002, on
a pro forma basis, annual production was approximately 44 million tons of steel with turnover of 26.6
billion euros. It is a major player in all its main markets: automotive, construction, household appliances
and packaging, and general industry.

Note to the Editor

Following the merger of Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor in February 2002, to form Arcelor, the European
Commission required Arcelor to divest a number of assets, including its stake in Lusosider.

Lusosider produces hot dipped galvanised steel sheet and electroiytic tinplate. Lusosider's head office
and production facilities are located at Aldeia de Paio Pires in Seixal near Lisbon, Portugal. It employed
303 people as at December 31, 2002. In 2002, it produced 213,000 tons of hot dipped galvanised
sheet and 66,000 tons of tinplate. Its galvanised sheet market is principally steel service centres; its
tinplate market is mainly food and beverage can making and packaging. Around 88 per cent of total
sales are within the Iberian Peninsula.
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Arcelor Ordinary General Meeting on April 25, 2003

The Ordinary General Meeting of Arcelor's shareholders held on April 25, 2003 and chaired by Mr. Joseph Kinsch adopt
on the agenda.

in particular, the Meeting approved the accounts of the parent company for the 2002 financial year and the payment of a
EUR 0.38 per share, due on May 22, 2003.

The items on the agenda were:

Report of the Board of Directors and opinions of the independent auditor on the annual accounts and the consolida
2002 financial year

Approval of the annual accounts for the 2002 financial year

Approval of the consolidated accounts for the 2002 financial year

Allocation of results and determination of directors' emoluments and of the dividend

Determination of attendance fees to be paid to directors

Discharge of the directors

Final appointment of a replacement director

Renewal of the authorisation of the Board of Directors to acquire shares in the Company or to cause the acquisition
other companies in the Group

s Authorisation of the Board of Directors to grant options to subscribe or purchase shares

2002: A year of integration in a difficult global environment
Throughout 2002 the Arcelor Group operated in a difficult global economic environment, characterized by a marked slow

"Our Group's operating performance nevertheless measures up to our ambitions and expectations. Right from our first fi
demonstrated that by pooling the human, industrial, commercial and financial resources of the three founding companies A
Usinor, we can take up the challenges of globalization with strengthened potential, based on the determination and compe
said Mr. Joseph Kinsch, Chairman of Arceior's Board of Directors.

Mr. Kinsch emphasized that the General Meeting of shareholders that marked the conclusion of the group's first year of
special event. "Today is our first opportunity to report to you, you who have decided to trust us and to support the formidab
Arcelor represents"”, he told the shareholders.

Mr. Kinsch recalled that the main operating sectors had posted some contrasting performances, but that the Group as a
to generate the synergies it had announced and had even exceeded the targets set for 2002. He added that each of the G
had also achieved some significant management gains.

The Chairman stated that during the first year of its existence Arcelor had decided to operate according to the principles

governance, to apply the rules of the IFRS international financial reporting standards (IAS) and to observe a commitment
development in ali its activities.

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr. Guy Dollé, pointed out that the Group had succeeded in increasing its sel
steps. In this context he reemphasized Arcelor's policy of tailoring supply more closely to demand and of giving priority to p
than volumes.

"All these factors have enabled us to achieve a gross operating profit ahead of our initial objective. From this point of vie
accomplished one of the goals set when establishing Arcelor: to establish a more balanced relationship with our customers
are much more concentrated than we are, without compromising the trust they place in us”.

Mr. Dollé noted that the strategic reflection carried out for each operating sector "clearly aims to bring each activity up to
level so as to achieve our value-added creation objectives”. In the flat carbon steel products sector this strategic orientation
approved by the Board of Directors on January 24 of this year, aims to concentrate European liquid-phase steel production
sites and for the blast furnaces at the continental locations to be phased out in due course. As for the stainless steels secto
orientation that will be submitted to the Board of Directors in the weeks to come aims to sustainably enhance the competiti
steel in Europe.

Mr. Dollé summarized by saying that "2002 was a year of integration, 2003 will be a year of consolidation. !t is now up to
the longer term the good start that Arcelor has made”.

Qutiocok

in his analysis of the way the Group's different lines of business are developing in 2003, Mr. Dollé showed both confiden
"Confidence because our customers' stocks are still for the time being at normal levels and because we don't have any par
a sudden surge of imports into Europe.

v
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This also allows us to remain confident about the trend in prices that we are aiming at in 2003 and about our ability to im
notably by means of synergies.

But caution as well, because there are some genuine threats to our business at the global leve!l, be they uncertainties re
economic recovery or the way exchange rates are moving".
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Commitment charter

for member companies of the NextEconomy and NextPrime segments

Listed companies that apply for admission to the NextEconomy and NextPrime market segments
undertake to respect the highest standards of financial communication.
These undertakings are summarised below in 8 points.

~By its membership of the NextPrime segment of the Euronext market, our company attests to its commitment to offer

high level of liquidity and of financial information. To this end, it has voluntarily given a certain number of

hndertakings, relating on the one hand to the liquidity of its shares and, on the other hand, to the nature, the format
and the frequency of provision of financial information.

Liquidity of our share

»

In order to provide investors with the liquidity that they require, our company's share is traded continuously.

Financial information
In order to fulfil the expectations of our partners - investors, shareholders, analysts, journalists - in respect of
transparency, we give Euronext an undertaking to provide on an ongoing basis high-quality financial data in excess of
our regulatory obligations.

»

»

In addition to our annual and half-yearly reports, we publish quarterly financial reports.

Our financial documents, our annual and quarterly reports, our financial information reporting dates and our press
releases are published in English.

~ Our annual report indicates the general policy adopted by our company with regard to corporate governance.

We have adopted the IFRS (international Financial Reporting Standards) accounting standards as approved by
the European Union.

We organise at least two analyst meetings each year.

We are setting up and will maintain a high-quality website comprising information capable of fulfilling our partners’
expectations in respect of financial transparency. This website contains as a minimum our annual and quarterly
financial reports, our admission prospectus, available information on our shareholders, our financial information
reporting dates and other documents addressed to investors. The same information is communicated to Euronext
which also places it online.

We are making every effort to follow Euronext's recommendations with regard to transparency in respect of share
dealings by directors of the company and with regard to corporate governance, and give the financial community
all necessary information to enable the preparation of analyst reports on our company. '

euronext

NextPrime
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sociéte anonyme
registered office: 19 avenue de la Libentg, 1-2930 Luxembourg |
R.C. lxembourg B 82.454 ’

NOTICE
IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ARCELOR WiILL BE HELD ON
FRIDAY 26TH APRIL 2002 AT 11 AM CET WiTH THE FOLLOWING AGENDA!

AGENDA AND PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS

1. REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE STATUTORY AUDITORS
2. APPROVAL OF THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

31sT preemeer 2001
Proposed resolution (first resolution)
Alter having heard the reports of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors, the General
Meeting approves the full nonconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2001 as they have been presented and which show a total profit for ARCELOR of 290.07 EURO.
3. ALLOCATION OF RESULTS
Proposed resolution (second resolution)
The General Mesting resolves to allocate the profit of 230.07 EURD to the legal reserve.
4. DISCHARGE OF THE DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3°1ST DECEMBER 2001
Proposed resofution {third resoiution)}
The General Meeting resolves 10 give discharge to the Directors for the fulfilment of their duties during
the financiat year ended 31st December 2001,
5. DISCHARGE OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

31st DECEMBER 2001

<oposed resolution (fourth resolution}

The General Meeling resolves to give discharge to the Statutory Auditors for the fulfilment of their duties
during the financial year ended 31st December 2001,
6. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Proposed resolution (fifth resolution)
The General Meeting resolves to appoint KPMG Audit, socigte civile, tuxembourg, as the independent
auditor for the noaconsolidated financial statements of ARCELOR and the consolidated financiaf sta-
tements of the ARCELOR group. for a period ending with the supervision of the 2004 financial
staterments.
(Note: The above is a transfation from the original French which will prevail in case of inconsistency.)

The General Meeting will validly deliberate, regardiess of the number of shareholders present and the
number of shares represented. Resolutions will be adopted by simple majority of the votes validly cast
by shareholders present or represented at the meeting.

The Board of Directors reminds that the conditions for attendance or representation
by proxy at the Genera! Meeting are as follows:

1. Shareholders personally registered in the ARCELOR register of shares:
~nditions for attendance in person

areholders personally registered in the ARCELOR register of shares will receive a package by post
'Eontaining inter alia the notice of the General Meeting with the agenda and the proposed resolutions
and a form on which they can indicate whether they intend to personally atiend the meeting or wish to
be represented thereat by proxy {hereinafter, such form will be referred 1o as the “Form”).
Shareholders personally registered in the ARCELOR register of shares before 13th April 2002 will be
admitted to the General Meeting without any formality. They are nevertheless kindly requested to
provide notice of their attendance by using the Form which should be returned duly completed, dated
and signed. by 19th April 2002 al the latest, to Euro Emetteurs finance, 48 Boulevard des Batignolles.
F-75850 Paris Cedex 17. which has been appointed by ARCELOR for that purpose.
Shareholders personally regisiered in the ARCELOR register of shares who wish 10 be represented Dy
proxy at the meeting should foliow the instructions in 3 a) below,
Holders are reminded thal, pursuant to article 6.4 of the articles of incorporation, no entry will be
made in the register of shares and no notilicalion of transfers of shares will be recognised by
ARCELOR during the period commencing 20th April 2002 and ending at the ctosing of the Generat
Meeting on 26th Aprit 2002.

2. Shareholders not personally registered in the ARCELOR register of shares:
conditions for attendance in person

a) Shareholders holding their shares through Euroclear France may atlend in person and vole at the
General Meeting provided they cause to be delivered to Euro Emetteurs Finance, 48 Boulevard des
Batignolles, F-75850 Paris Cedex 17, which has been appointed therefor by ARCELOR, the duly com-
pleted, dated and signed Form together with a blocking certificate indicating the number of shares
held and stating that such shares have been blocked until the close of the General Meeting on 26th
Aprit 2002 (nereinafter referred to as the “blocking certificate”). These documents must reach Euro
Emeteurs Finance by 19th Aprii 2002 at the latest.

The Form and the blocking certificate should be requested from the bank, the professional securities
depositary or the financial institution with whom their shares are on deposit. The aforementioned inter-
mediaries may obtain the Form from Eurc Emetteurs Finance, 48 Boulevard des Batignolles,
F-75850 Paris Cedex 17 (Phone. »33 1 55 30 58 88; Fax +33 1 55 30 59 30).

b) Shareholders holding their shares through an adhering entity of the Servicio de Compensacion y
Liquidacion de Valores S.A. may attend in person and vote at the General Meeting provided they
cbtain from the bank, the prolessional securities depositary or the financial institution with whom their
shares are on deposit, a " tarjela de asistencia " and a “certificado de legitimacion”. The “certificado
de legitimacion” must state that the aforementioned shares have been blocked unti! the close of the
Generat Meeting on 26th Aprit 2002. Both the "tarjeta de asistencia” and the “certificado de legiti-
macion” must reach (he Spanish intermediary, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argeniaria $.A., Clara del Rey
26. E- 28004 Madrid, by 18th April 2002 at the latest. Those dacuments will subsequently be
centralised by Euro Emetteurs Finance in Paris (France).

¢) Sharehoiders holding their shares through Clearstream Banking, Luxembourg, or Euroctear Bank.
Brussels, may attend in person and vote at the General Meeting provided they give an instruction to
this effect to the bank, the professional securities depesitary or the financial institution with whom their
shares are on deposit, and by causing such shares to be blocked umtil the close of the General Meeting
on 26th Aprit 2002. These instructions as well as the blocking certificate must be forwarded via
Clearstream Banking, luxembourg, or Euroclear Bank. Brussets. to the centralising bank, Banque
Geneérale du Luxembourg, 50 Avenue J.£. Kennedy, - 2957 Luxembourg, by 19th April 2002 at the
latest. Such instructions and certificales will subsequently be cenralised by Euro Emetteurs Finance in
Paris {France).

3. Conditions for proxy voting

a} Sharehalders personally registered in the ARCELOR register of shares and sharehaiders holding
their shares through Euroclear France may be represented by a proxy at the General Meeting by caw
sing @ power of attorney to be delivered to Euro Emereurs Finance, 48 Boulevard des Balignolles.
F-75850 Paris Cedex 17, appoimed by ARCELOR therefor, by 19th April 2002 at the (atest. They
must for that purpose use the Form. which enables them. should they so wish, 10 give voting
instructions to the proxy.

Shareholders halding their shares through Euroclear France must provide a blocking certificate with
the Form, The Form and the blocking certificate should be requested from the bank, the professional
securilies depositary or the financial institution with whom their shares are on deposit. The aforemen-
tioned intermediaries may obtain the Form from Euro Emetleurs Finance, 48 Boulevard des Batignolies,
F-75850 Paris Cedex 17 {Phone. +33 1 55 30 59 88; Fax +33 1 55 30 59 30).

b) Shareholders holding their shares through an adhering entity of the Servicio de Compensacion y
Liquidacion de Valores S.A. may be representad by a proxy at the General Meeting provided they
give an instruction to this effect 1o the bank, the professional securities depositary or the financial insti-
tution with whom their shares are on deposit, and by causing such shares to be blocked until the close
of the General Meeting on 28th April 2002, which has to be evidenced by a “certificado de legiti-
macion”, These instructions and the “certificado de legitimacion”, must reach the Spanish intermediary.
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria S.A., Clara del Rey 26, E- 28004 Madrid, by 18th Aprit 2002 at
the latest. Such instructions and certificates will subsequently be centralised by Euro Emeneurs Finance
in Paris (France).

¢) Shareholders holding their shares through Clearstream Banking. Luxembourg, or Euroclear Bank,
Brussels, may be represented by a proxy at the General Meeting provided they give an instruction to
this effect to the bank, the professional securities depositary or the financial institution with whom their
shares are on deposit, and by causing such shares 1o be blocked until the close of the General Mecting
on 26th April 2002. These instructions as well as the blocking certificate must be forwarded via
Clearstream Banking, Luxembourg. or Euroctear Bank, Brussels, 1o the centralising bank. Banque
Genérale du Luxembourg, 50 Avenue J.-f. Kennedy. L 2951 Lluxembourg, by 15th April 2002 at the
tatest. Such instructions and certificates will subsequently be centralised by Euro Emetteurs Finance in
Paris (France).

4. Requesting documents
Shareholders may obtain copies of the report of the Board of Directors, the nonconsolidated financial
statements for the period ended 31st December 2001, the repont of the Statutory Auditors as well as
of the resolutions proposed by the Board of Directors from the fallowing contact numbers and
addresses:

@ directly from ARCELOR:

- registered office - Shareholder Department
- Liege - Legal Affairs Department

- Madrid - Investor Relations Department

Phone +352 4792 2187 Fax +352 4792 2548
Phone +32 4 2366830 fax -32 4 2366847

Phone +34 91 596 94 31 or + 34 802 152 153
Fax -34 91 596 94 60 or +34 88 512 6088

- Paris - Investor Relations Department Phone +33 1 41 2598 98 fax +33 1 41 2597 80
sor

- in Luxembourg. from Banque Génerale du Lluxembourg

Phone +352 4242 3039 or + 352 4242 2992 Fax +352 4242 2979

-in France, from Euro Emetteurs Finance, 48 bid des Batignoltes, F-75850 Paris

Phone +33 1 55 30 58 88 Fax +33 1 55 30 59 30

- in Belgium. from Fortis Banque Bruxelles

Phone +32 2 565 54 48 Fax +32 2 565 53 40

- in Spain, from Banco Bitbao Vizcays Argentaria

Phone +34 913747007 Fax +34 913746869

All such documents may also be downloaded from the websile www.arcelor.com where they will be
avaitable on the "General Meeting” page from 9 April 2002.

For the Board of Directors
The Chairmen
francis Mer Joseph Kinsch

Luxembourg, 5 April 2002
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Approval of non-consolidated financial statements as of 31
December 2001

In its meeting of 1 March 2002 the Board of Directors approved the non-
consolidated financial statements of ARCELOR S.A. set out hereunder consisting

in:

- the balance sheet as of 31 December 2001 and the profit and loss
account for the period from 8 June to 31 December 2001 showing
shareholders' equity without the results for the period, of EUR
32,250.00 and net results for the period of EUR 290.07,

- the notes to the financial statements,
- the list of Directors as of 31 December 2001.

Luxembourg, 1 March 2002

The Board of Directors

[signatures]
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ARCELOR S.A.

REPORT

of the Board of Directors to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
of 26 April 2002

For the purpose of the amalgamation of the ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR
groups through the combination within one group of their industrial, commercial
and human resources, ARCELOR S.A., based in the Grand Duchy of Luxemburg,
was incorporated on 8 June 2001 to become the parent company of that new
group..

On 19 July and 21 November 2001 the European Commission gave its approval
to the amalgamation. Further to that approval, the Board of Directors decided on
12 December 2001 to launch the three public exchange offers on all the capital
stock and voting rights of ACERALIA Corporaciéon Siderurgica S.A., ARBED S.A.
and USINOR S.A.

The offers were a resounding success as witnessed by the fact that at the close
of the public exchange offers

- 98.32% of the ARBED shares outstanding at the close of the offer,

-93.35% of the USINOR shares outstanding at the close of the offer,

-94.79% of the ACERALIA shares outstanding at the close of the offer
were tendered to the offers launched by ARCELOR S.A.

As a result, all the conditions precedent to the public exchange offers had been
fulfilled.

Shareholders are reminded that, on 7 June 2001 the ACERALIA, ARBED and
USINOR groups entered into a fiduciary agreement under which they appointed
BNP Paribas Luxembourg and Dexia Banque Internationale Luxembourg as their
fiduciaries, and transferred EUR 16,125 to each of the fiduciaries with the
instruction to incorporate ARCELOR S.A. with a share capital of EUR 32,250,
and to hold the shares as fiduciary assets in their name but for the account of
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR.

ARCELOR S.A.

At the end of the period under review, ARCELOR S.A. had no trading activity of
its own.



The first financial year ran from June to December and closes with a net profit of
EUR 290.07. We propose that the General Meeting allocates this amount to the
legal resene.
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ARCELOR S.A.
Profit and Loss Account
for the period from 8 June to 31 December 2001

Note
Other operating income
Other operating charges
OPERATING PROFIT 6

Interest income
Other interest and similar income

Interest charges
Interest payable and similar charges

FINANCIAL PROFIT

RESULTS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES,
BEFORE TAXATION

Tax on results from ordinary activities

RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD

2001/EUR

6,782.92
-6,782.92
0.00

496.56
496.56

74.94
74.94

421.62

421.62

131.55

290.07

ltems of the legal schedule that do not apply are not featured (Article 207 Paragraph 5 of the

law of 10 August 1915 as thereafter amended).

The above presentation complies with the provisions of article 231 of the law of 10 August

1915 as thereafter amended.



ARCELOR S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The company was incorporated on 8 June 2001 for an unlimited period under
the form of a société anonyme. Its registered office is in Luxembourg City.

The initial company name of NEWCO STEEL was changed to ARCELOR by

a resolution of the extraordinary general meeting of 12 December 2001.

2. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

21. General Principles

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with Luxembourg
legislation and with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.2, Principal valuation rules

2.2.1. Receivables

Receivables are carried at their nominal value as assets on the balance sheet.
Specific adjustments to value for receivables that appear to be partially or

completely irrecoverable are, if applicable, recorded at the end of the financial
year.

222, Debts

Debts are carried at their nominal value as liabiiities on the balance sheet.
3. RECEIVABLES

The receivables represent invoices to be issued to ARBED S.A.

4. SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2001, the subscribed and fully paid up capital of
EUR 32,250 is represented by 6,450 shares without nominal value held by :

BNP PARIBAS LUXEMBOURG S.A. 3,225
DEXIA BANQUE INTERNATIONALE A LUXEMBOURG S.A. 3,225

Total 6,450



ARCELOR S.A.

5. DEBTS
Debts primarily represent charges in connection with the setting up of the

company and amounts owed to the tax administration in respect of taxes on
net results and value added tax due.

6. OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit consists essentially of fees re-invoiced to ARBED S.A. in
connection with the setting up of the company.



ARCELOR S.A.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of ARCELOR S.A.

In accordance with article 62 of the law of 10 August 1915 as amended, we
are pleased to report on the fulfilment of our mission in respect of the first
financial year from June to December of 2001.

Within the scope of our mission, we verified the balance sheet as of 31
December 2001, amounting to EUR 37,533.68, and the profit and loss
account for the financial year, which closes with a net profit of EUR 290.07, as
well as the notes to the financial statements. We performed our mission on
the basis of the customary diligence in Luxembourg for the execution of
mandates of statutory auditors.

Our audit consisted of appropriate samplings and verifications.

We were in particular able to determine that the balance sheet and the profit
and loss account as of 31 December 2001 are in agreement with the
accounting records.

We therefore recommend to the general meeting of shareholders to approve
the financial statements as presented by the board of directors.

Luxembourg, 1 March 2002

The Board of Statutory Auditors

[signed] [signed] [signed]

Marce! Weiler Alfonso Neira Gonzalez Alain Geurts
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ARCELOR
FIRST OUARTER REP0ORT 2002

ARCELOR
Société anonyme
Registered office:

19, avenue de la liberté
12930 Luxembourg

Trade Register: Luxembourg B B2 454

Capital subscribed and paid up at
31.03.2002: EUR 2 641 802 555
Authorized capital (including subscribed
capital): EUR 5 000 000 000
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ARCELOR

FiRS1 QUAPRTER REPORT 2002

Arcelor was created following the merger of
Aceralia, Arbed and Usinor. By leveraging
their complementary technical, industrial and
commercial strengths, the three partners have
built a group committed to establishing itself
as the benchmark in the global steei industry.
With more than 100,000 employees in over
sixty countries, Arcelor is the world’s leading
steel producer. In 2001, on a pro forma
basis, the Group posted annuol production
of approximately 43.5 million metric tons
and revenues of more than 27 billion euros.
Arcelor is a foremost supplier in all of its
core markets: automotive, construction,
household appliances, packaging and
general industry. The Group is also an
importont supplier in the engineering, copper
foil and heavy-gauge plate segments.

Arcelor operates in four core business
sectors: Flat Carbon Steels, Long Carbon
Steels, Stainless Steels and Distribution
Transformation Trading. Each sector is
organized into business units, which cover
either a geographic area or @ dedicated
solutions portfolio.

Arcelor is the world’s leading producer of
flat carbon steels in terms of both volume
and value, turning out close to 30 million
metric tons in 2001, With almost 55,000

emp|oyees, this sector represents revenues o

approximately 13 billions euros, which is
close to 10 % of the global market.

The product portfolio spans the complete
spectrum of thin flatrolled products: hot-
rolled coils, cold-rolled coils and corrosion-
resistant sheet steel. These products are
shipped to customers in a wide range of
sectors: avtomotive, household applionces,
packaging, construction and civil
engineering, machine construction and
processing.

The Group is also the world’s number one
producer of long carbon steel products,
producing approximately 11 million metric
tons in 2001, This sector counts 18,000
employees and generates revenues of

4 billion evros.

The product portfolio comprises three

categories:

- Heavy-gauge long products: beams,
structurals, sheet piling, special structurals,
rails and merchant steels;

- lightgauge long products: concrete
reinforcing bars and wire rod;

- Drawn products: steelcord (reinforcing
rubber tires and cladding), saw wire, mild
steel drawn products [bright wire,
annealed and galvanized wire, messing,
concrete fibers], and hardened steel {pre-

stressed wire).

Long products are mainly used for
construction and engineering applications,
the tire and cladding industry, as well as
other industrial and agricultural segments.

Arcelor is a top player in the stainless steels
market in terms of both volumes and
revenues, producing some 2.6 miflion metric
tons of raw steel in 2001, With 15,000
employees, this sector generates revenues of
4.1 billion evros and has a 15 % share of
the global cold-rolled market. Arcelor spans
almost the entire range of stainless steel and
alloys products available in Europe, Asia
and the Americas. The product portfolio
comprises:

- Flot stainless steel: Ugine and ALZ
[Europe), Acesita (Brazil, with a 27.68 %
sioke), Thainox {Asia) and J&L (USA);

- long stainless steel products: {PLIA long
stainless steel and alloys} in Europe,
Mexico and USA;

— Precision rolled stainless steel strip and flat
nickel alloy products: imphy Ugine
Précision (Europe, USA);

- Stainless stee! specialty plates, specialty
steels: Industeel (Europe}.

Stainless steels are shipped to four core
markets: household appliances (heavy white
goods and small applionces), automotive
(mainly for exhaust systems), construction
and urban furniture {facades, equipment)
and industry {food, chemicals and oil).

Arcelor's Distribution Transformation Trading
sector supplies customers with both Group
solutions and third-porty products. The sector
counts 16,000 people and generated in
2007 revenues of 9.4 billion euros.

The business units in this sector offer a
number of competitive advantages:

- close proximity to a dispersed customer
base, strong customer loyalty thanks to a
large sales force;

- exlensive service and logistics networks;
- expertise in downstream Steel Solutions;

- added-value for the steel products
proposed.

Distribution activities focus on four core

segments, ensuring customers maximum

flexibility:

- service centers {steel product finishing
unitsj, which deliver ready-to-use steel
solutions;

~ steel sales and trading, which store and
perform light finishing of products for
smaller customers;

- plostic sales and trading, serving
customers in the construction and civil
engineering seclors;

- volue-added steels sales and trade,
specializing in the distribution of anti-
corrosion, anti-obrasion and high-strength
steels.

Distribution business units deliver products to
customers in such markets as household
appliances, construction, rolling stock and
general industry.

Processing activities include:

- panels, structurals and tubing for the
construction, public works and civil
engineering markets {frames, shells,
finishings and interior decorating);

- packaging steels {consumer goods for
the food industry and other segments).

Trading octivities involve the purchase and

resale of steel products produced by third-
party manufacturers.



HIGHLIGHTS

On February 18, 2002, Arcelor shares were
listed for the first time on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, on the Premier Marché of
Euronext Brussels, on the Premier Marché of
Euronext Paris SA and on the Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock
Exchanges. Following the three public share
for share offers launched by Arcelor on
Acerdlia, Arbed and Usinor between
December 24, 2001 ond February 8, 2002,
and extended in France, Belgium and
Luxembourg from February 18, 2002 to
March 8, 2002, Arcelor now owns 97.58 %
of Usinor, 99.43 % Arbed and 95.03 % of
Aceralia.

On March 1, 2002, in line with the Group's
newly defined principles of corporate
governance, the Arcelor Board of Directors
announced that it had set up two commitiees
to provide information for shareholders,
ensure openness vis--vis the markets and
optimize the Group's functioning. The Audit
Comnmittee is tasked with assisting the Board
of Directors in ils control functions. The
Appointment and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for proposing to the Board the
policy to apply regarding remuneration of
members of the Management Board. In
addition, this committee is mandated to
present proposals to the Board regarding the
appointment of members of the Board of
Directors and the Management Board.

On March 15, 2002, the first stone was laid
at the Vega do Sul plant in Sdo Francisco do
Sul, Southern Brazil. This new unit will
process cold-rolled and galvanized steel
sheet and will have an annual production
capacity of 880,000 metric tons. The plant
will come onsiream during the second
quarter of 2003. The State of Santa Catarina
was chosen for this new plant to serve nearly
automotive facilities in Southern Brazit and
other Mercosul countries. Companha
Siderurgica de Tubarad (CST}, the Brazilian
company in which Arcelor has a substantial
stake, will supply hot-rolled coils to the Vega
do Sul facility.

On March 28, 2002, Thainox, Arcelor’s
stainless steel business unit, inaugurated its
new annealing and pickling line for raw
material, at its Rayong plant. Thainox

produces high-grade coils and cold-rolled
stainless steel plate for both domestic
customers and for export, especially to
China.

Early April 2002, Circuit Foil announced that
construction work was complete at the Circuit
Foil America plant in Quebec, Canada.
Circuit Foil is o global supplier of highgrade
copper foil to printed circuit board
manufacturers and operates production
plonts in Luxembourg and Quebec.

Nippon Steel Corporation (NSC) and
Arcelor jointly confirmed that Arcelor will
henceforth fulfill Usinor's commitments within
the scope of the Global Strategic Alliance
{GSA) signed with NSC. As a result, the two
partners will address customer demand for a
broader scope of products other than flat
steel ond stainless steels which were the
allience's initial areas of focus. Furthermore,
on April 10, 2002, Nippon Steel and
Arcelor signed an agreement with the Indian
steelmaker Tota Iron Steel (Tisco} to provide
joint technical assistance to Tisco in its
relationship with steel customers in the Indian
automative industry.

On April 19, 2002, Russia’s number one
steel producer Severstal and Arcelor began
construction of the Severgal galvanizing line
at the Severstal plant in Cherepovets, in the
Vologda region, northeast of Moscow. The
new facility will offer an annual production
capacity of 400,000 metric tons. Products
will mainly be shipped to the Russian cor
industry, notably for exposed automolive
parts. Arcelor will grant the joint venture a
license for the use of its brand product,
Extragal™, including the associated know-
how. Extragal™, which is a pure zinc hotdip
galvanized steel product, was specifically
developed for the automotive industry. The
plant will mainly be supplied by Severstal.

On May 27, 2002, Arcelor and the national
and European trade union organizations
have signed an agreement on the
implementation of a European works
Council. This agreement will provide for the
creation of a social dialogue at the highest
level and an improved information flow
within the group.

This council - composed by representatives
from both the employer and the employees -

will allow to take into account the range of
common interest generated by the new
European dimension of Arcelor and to
reinforce the group’s identity in face of its
new challenges. The agreement enforces the
original principles underlying the creation of
the European Consultative Committee of
Arbed-Aceralia and of the European Group
Committee of Usinor.

On May 7, 2002, Francis Mer was named
French minister of the economy, finance ond
industry. Since thot date Joseph Kinsch chairs
alone the board of directors of Arcelor.

Lastly, to build cohesion ocross the new
Group, in February 2002 General
Management embarked on a series of
roadshows at Arcelor's main sites. These
contacts in the field provided an opportunity
to present the Group’s new organization in
each of its businesses and to promote
dialogue, as management listened to
employees’ viewpoints and explained the
motivations behind the Group's major
strategies and challenges. These meetings
provided a forum for exchange, allowing
participants to share their experience and
experfise and gain o deeper understanding
of the different cultures brought together
within the new group.
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Following a progressive decline in growth in
economic activity and international trade in
2001, the first quarter of 2002 was marked
by a degree of stability and, in some cases,
an upswing in indicators for certain
geographic regions.

After a significant slowdown in economic
activity as from the start of 2001, the
American economy logged 5.6 % growth
during first quarter 2002 compared with
fourth quarter 2001 {annualized rate). In
contrast, during the first 3 months of the
year, industrial output increased by only
2.5 %, which was nevertheless an
improvement on the steep 3.7 % decline
over the full year. Despite forecasts of
favorable quarterly development for the rest
of the year, industrial output in 2002 is not
expected to improve on 2001 levels.

However, the macro-economic recovery
appears to be firmly underway in the United
States and GDP is expected to increase by
2.5 % in 2002, following the modest 1.2 %
rise of the previous year.

In contrast, the decline in economic activity
in the European Unicn that was felt as from
the second quarter of 2001 continued
throughout the year. The lockluster economic
climote persisted during the first quarter of
2002. According to Eurostat, growth in all
EU countries combined stood at 0.2 % in the
first quarter versus the previous quarter. The
recovery forecast as from the second quarter
of the current year is expected to be weaker
than in the United States.

Over 2002 as a whole, forecasts point to a
modest 1.5 % increase in GDP (1.7 % in
2001). Industrial output is expected to
decline over the year by approximately
0.8 %.

Eastern European countries, excluding CIS
{Community of Independent States — the
former USSR}, are expected to experience
moderate 2.5 % growth in 2002, which is
comparable to 2001. The 4.1 % growth in
industrial output during the first quarter of
2002 will remain below the annual

ACTIVITY OF STEEL CUSTOMER INDUSTRIES EU 15 COUNTRIES {*)

BEliRs Rt

e

P G0N

Avlomotive (1.0)% 4.0)%
Construction 1.0% {1.2)% 1.4%
Machine construction - .- . 1.0% 1.0%

Engineering equipment/ . * 1.5% {2.3)% [5.31%
metalworking B

Household appliances [t.0)% 1.0% (2)%
{*} : adjusted for inflation {source: Arcelor, Eurofer, economic institutes)

averages achieved in 2001 and 2000. for
the year as a whole, output is nevertheless
forecast to reach 5 %.

After a remarkable & % increase in 2001,
the CIS is expected to post a 4 % rise in
GDP during 2002. GDP in the Near and
Middle East is forecast to increase from
1.3 % in 2001 to 2 % in 2002.

Apart from Japan, the Asian economies are
now on course for recovery. Private
consumption, exports and industrial output
are all up. Across the region, GDP is
expected to increase by 4.5 % in 2002,
following moderate 3.5 % growth in 2001,
Japan remains in the grips of recession and
the experts forecast a 1 % decline in GDP
over 2002.

latin America is forecast to experience an
increase of close to 1 % in growth

(0.7 % in 2001). Brazil is expected to post a
2 % increase in GDP. The economic crisis in
Argentina is expected to deepen with ¢ 10
to 15 % decline in GDP, a 7.5 % yearto-
yeor fall in indusirial cutput {down 12.4 % in
Aprit 2002] and inflation liable to peak at
80 %.

ACTIVITY IN STEEL INDUSTRY

In the first quarter of 2002, Eurofer
shipments of hotrolled coils in the European
Union fell by 6.9 % compared with first
quarter 2001, uncoated cold-rolled sheet by
13.5 % and heavy plates by 11.3 %.
Shipments of coated sheet increased by

1.7 %, while heavy structurals rose by 3.7 %.

The reduction in customer inventory levels
continued during the first quarter. This is
expected to have a positive impact on

apparent consumption of steel products in
the European Union countries. As against the
first half of 2001, order levels were up
significantly for hot-rolled coils, uncoated
cold-rolled sheet, coated sheet and heavy
structurals.

Protectionist measures implemented by the
American government under Section 201
resulted in price rises in the United States
that were significantly higher than the level
of duties levied on certain steel product
categories. The indirect shortterm impact on
European markets due lo jrode being
diverted to other markets is therefore
expected to be limited. The measures
adopted by the European Union in response
to these decisions will help limit the increase
in steel imports to the EU from third-party
countries and thereby avoid destabilizing o
sifuation that is cursently showing signs of
improvement.

European steel exports fell by 4.8 % in the
first quarter of 2002 compared with the
same period in 2001, Al the same time, the
European Union remained a net steel
importer during the same quarter.



WORLD CRUDE STEEL PRODUCTION

Western Europe 60.5 57.9 (4.4)
of which: UE [15) 55.3 52.9 (4.4)
Central and Eastern Europe 9.9 9.5 {4.8)
cis 32.0 31.6 (1.2)
of which: Russia 18.6 18.5 0.1)
‘North America 40.8 391 {4.1)
" of which: USA 31.0 29.3 {5.3)
South America 131 12.7 (3.7}
- of which: Brazil 9.4 9.3 (1.7
Asia : o S 1070 119.1 11.4
- &f which: China o : 43.5 55.4 27.3
Japan 34.5 33.8 {2.0)

Other countries 10.6 1 5.3

[*) 1IS] estimated figures, Moy 2002

[**) World = 64 countries surveyed by IISI [approx. 98% of world production)

ARCELOR GROUP CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Operating result ‘

Net result {Group share}

Earnings per share **

Proforma

** In euro. Treasury shares ot Morch 31, 2002 not taken in account.

For the first quarter ending March 31, 2002
the Group's net income was a loss of
24 million euro.

Consolidated net sales amounted to 6,824
million euro compared to 7,342 million for
the first quorler 2001 on o proforme basis,
or a decrease of 7% on a comparable basis.
This evolution reflects essentially the strong
decrease in average selling prices in flat
carbon [-9%) and stainless steels (-11%),
long carbon still benefitting from a small rise
(+2%).

Flat Carbon also suffered from a negative
volume/mix effect (:3%). long Carbon
benefitied from a slightly positive effect
(+2%}, while Stainless enjoyed a positive

+8 % effect sustained by the beginning of o
restocking process. Distribution
Transformation Trading activities were more
contrasted, showing a decrease in
packaging and tubes but remaining globally
positive in distribution and construction.

Total net sales of Arcelor Group for the first
quarter 2002 comprise 3,315 million euro

Shareholders’ equity

including minority interests 8,484 8,353
Net financial debis 6,206 6,553
Net financial debts /Shareholders’ equity

{including minority inferests) 0.73 0.78

* Proforma

for Flat Carbon Steels, 2,224 million for
Distribution Transformation Trading,
1,086 million for Long Carbon Steels and
1,079 million for Stainless Steels.

For the first quarter of 2002, 77% of net
sales were in the European Union, 11% in
North America, South America represented
4% and the rest of the world 8%.

Operating income was positive at 65 million
euro to be compared to 401 million for the
first quarter of 2001, on a proforma basis.
The four different sectors contributed as
follows {after goodwill): Flat Carbon Steels
73 million, Distribution Transformation
Trading 35 million, Stainless Steels

-17 millions and Long Carbon Steels

125 million. This important decline of
operating margin for the first quarter is
essentially due to the severe fall of selling
prices which hit an historical low on flat
carbon steels and to a reduction of
shipments linked to an end of destocking.

In a context of continuous adjustment of
production in the carbon flat steels sector,
cost reduction programs if close lo objectives
could only partially offset the impact of
selling prices drops.

Implementation of synergies linked to the
merger is on schedule and Group integration
is progressing well.

Financiol expenses at 90 million euro
improves by 39 million compared to the
same period of 2001. Due to the results of
South American companies, contribution of
associated companies was - 25 million euro.

Net financial debts ot March 31, 2002 was
6,553 million euro compared to 6,206
million at December 31, 2001, variation
being principally due to dividend payment in
January 2002. A plan for substontial
working capital requirements reduction will
allow the realization of debt reduction by
year end.
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FIRST QUARTER 2002 RESULTS OF ARCELOR’S CORE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

FLAT CARBON STEELS

Net sales i . 3,770 3,315
Change at comparoble structure’ ‘ (12)%
Operating result 267 {73)
% of soles 71% 2.2)%
Shipments B .

[in '000s of metric tons} 7,351 4,887

* proforma figures

The results of the Flat Carbon Steels business
are impacted by the low level of industrial
customer prices, which hit a floor during the
quarter. Furthermore, the weakness of the
euro versus the dollar, raises the cost of raw
materials.

The European automotive industry saw a
year-on-year fall in production of 4 % in the
first quarter of 2002. Behind this are
contrasting trends in different countries. In
Denmark, the UK and Belgium, in particular,
production increased, while Spain and ltaly
saw production fall significanily. After
experiencing an unusually poor fourth
quarter in 2001 due to a substantial
reduction in inventory by customers, Arcelor’s
activity for the first quarter of 2002 reflected
market uncertainty but was nevertheléss in

LONG CARBON STEELS

line with forecasts. The transfer of Usinor,
Arbed and Aceralia customers to Arcelor
resulted in no lost business, and the renewed
multi-year contracts account for close to 70 %
of the new Group's business volume in the
automotive sector.

In the first quarter of 2002, the Group waos
named 2001 Supplier of the Year by
General Motors and was awarded with
quality and supplier Performance Certificates
by Toyota.

The fall in investments in general industry
that began in 2001 continued ot the start of
this year, putting downward pressure on
production in the engineering sector, where
export demand remained low. However,
certain sub-sectors showed signs of recovery.

[in-milions of edroy
Net sales
Change at comparable structure +4%
Operating result 90 125
%. of sales ‘ 8.6% - 11.5%
Shipments .
{in '000s of metric tons) 2,922 2,908

* proforma figures

Business levels in the Long Carbon Steel
sector where characterized during the first
quarter of 2002 by diversified market
performance according to both geography
and product breakdown.

In Brazil and Spain, shipments and prices
held at good levels, marked in particular by

strong consumplion of concrete reinforcing
bars.

in Northern Europe, this sector continues to
face o more difficult market as consumption
has dropped and prices remain exposed to
downward pressure.

The construction sector experienced
contrasted results across Europe, with poor
demand prevailing over the market as a
whole. Business remained weak in Germany,
while activity was more robust in Spain ond

aly.

Production in the household appliance sector
remained flat across the European market.

Arcelor, in line with most other European
steelmakers, who had reduced output during
the last quarter of 2001, continued to odapt
production to market requirements, thereby
contributing to a better balance between
supply and demand in Europe. However, the
reduction in prices versus fourth-quarter
2001 for quarterly contracts was
unavoidable.

Positive signs emerged regarding export
prices oulside of Europe compared with the
last quarter of 2001. The decision by the
U.S. government to impose high tariffs on
steel imports unsettted the market, raising the
risk of shortages and triggering a rise in
prices.

The rise in the price of scrap of the end of
the first quorter is expected to have an
unfavorable impact on second quarter
results.

In the sheet piling market, sales continued to
advance at a so?isfoclory pace in Europe,
especially in the Netherlands and Germany.
Volumes and prices remained at good levels
in the United States.

The situation was contrasted for structurals,
with a slight rise in prices, offsetting a
decline in volumes shipped.



STAINLESS STEELS

fingmillionsTohevrs

Net sales

Change af comparable structure 4)%

Operating result 52 (32) (17

% of sales (2.81% (1.6)%
Shipmants ) o

{in '000s of metric tons) 640 647

* proforma figures

Following the collapse in 2001, the stainless
steels market posted a significant increase in
prices, namely in Europe and Asia, driven
by improved nicke! prices. Real consumption
in Europe is slowly beginning to recover, but
a certain degree of uncertainty remains.
Apparent consumption, meanwhile,
increased substantially during the first quarter
as customers rebuilt inventories that had
follen to exceptionally low levels at the end
of 2001,

On the industrial front, the optimization of
production capacity at ALZ and Ugine
should offset the shortage in hotrolled
products and rerolling coils observed in the
first quarter.

Apporent consumption is expected to remoin
al a good level and prices should stabilize ot
least until the end of the summer.

The recovery is slowing getting underway in
the United States. In conjunction with high
order intakes, this has enabled J&L to grow

DISTRIBUTION TRANSFORMATION TRADING

Net sales ‘ 2,144 2,224
Operating result . ) P - 35
% of sales. 2.8%: 1.6%

* proforma figures

The Distribution-Trading-Processing sector
had a generally difficult first quorter of
2002, reflecting the overall state of
economic aclivity. The rise in metals prices
drove up sales prices in certain markets to
the delriment of volumes. The result was a
yearon-year decline in first quarter net sales,
with the fall in volumes only partially offset
by the rise in sales prices.

The level of activity in the long carbon
products distribution segment was
satisfactory in Spain, but strong pressure on
beams prices impacted results. In other
countries volumes fell significantly, but an
increase in sales prices should help improve
margins in the second half of the year.

For Steel Service Centers/Distribution and
Trading, sales fell notably compared with first
quarter 2001, Prices recovered slightly, but
again to the detriment of volumes. No

significant improvement in activity is
expected during the second quarter of 2002,
but margins should gradually improve.

Activity in the construction sector fell short of
forecasts, with resulls similor to those of first
quarter 2001. Price levels dropped and
margins were eroded in Germany. Business
is expected to recover during the second
quarter.

In the steel packaging sector, volumes
remained stable in the first quarter 2002
compared with the previous year. Despite
this, results picked up at the end of the
quarter following the recovery of the activity
and stronger industrial performance. Second
quarter results should improve as a result of
this recovery.

Yearon-year demand for tubing was weak in
the first quarter of 2002. Sales prices

its market share. Hotrolled steel prices are
rising, while cold-rolled products are
stabilizing during the second quarter, with
hopes for a further increase during the third
quarter.

Demand is brisker in almost all Asion
countries and the outlook through to the third
quarter is positive as customers rebuild their
inventories. As a result, prices are beginning
lo rise.

The specialty plates business maintained only
an average level of activity in the pressure
vessels and conslruction segments as project
delays persist. In contrast, stainless stee!
plates made a strong recovery with an
increase in firstquarter prices.

The situation was contrasted in the long and
precision-rolled product segments. Stainless
steel wire and alloys showed an
improvement, while activity in the tubing and
bar segments remained depressed.

reached their lowest level at the end of
February before recovering slightly. The
outiook remains poor for the second quarter
as further price increases appear difficult.

In the United States, distribution of flat steel
products J&F Steel) saw a low level of
activity during the first quorter. The second
quarter is not expected to bring recovery in
any markets. The American government's
protecticnist measures led to increased
margins but weakened procurement.

Brisk demand in the construction sector led to
a significant year-on-year increase in long
product volumes (Skyline Steel). Pressure on
sales prices due to increased competition is
nevertheless expected lo lead to contracting
margins during the second quarter, despite
sustained market demand.

After a lackluster first quarter for the
Distribution Transformation Trading sector as
a whole, the increase in sales prices -
although difficult ~ should make it possible to
pass on the rise in metals prices and recover
margins, especially in packaging,
distribution and tubing.
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OUTLOOK

Following reduced business activity in
customer industries at the start of the year,
there are signs of improvement which should
become more vigorous during the course of
the year.

In the automotive indusl‘ry, business is
expected to pick up during the second
quarter.

Aclivity in the engineering equipment sector
is forecast to progressively improve, with
renewed investments expecled in the second
half of the year. However, production
capacity utilization rates in industry remain
low. Despite o more positive outlook [except
in Germany), the construction sector could
also suffer from flagging industrial
investments during the year.

Improved consumer confidence in most
European countries should drive renewed
demand in the household appliance market
during the second half of the year.

Following slack demand between the end of
2001 and eorly 2002, customer industries
should post stronger demand during the next
few months. Customer and outlet inventories
reached low levels ot the end of the first
quarter, which is expected to generate
stronger demand from customer industries.

In response to the profectionist measures
taken by the U.S. government against steel
imports, European steelmakers have adopted
protectionist measures to help avoid a
massive inflow of imports.

As a result, after reaching low levels during
the first quarter, flat carbon steel prices are
beginning to recover during the second
quarter for quarterly contracts. In addition,
Europe's main producers announced further
increases in April for application in the third
quarter. Trends that began in the second
quarter are expected to continue in the third
quarter in all markets. In the United States,
prices are expected to soar fo very high
levels in July and August. A moderate
increase in prices in export markets
[excluding Asia and North America) was
also observed at the start of the second
quarter. Export performance remains
influenced by the increase recorded in the
value of the dollar,

"This report contains forward-Hooking statements that involve a number of risks and uncertainties.

These statements are based on current expectations whereas actual results may differ.”
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

First quarter 2002 consolidated financial figures on proforma bosis for the Arcelor group ore
presented in accordance with international accounting principles {IAS] adopted by the 1AS8

(International Accounting Standard Board).

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET PROFORMA (unoudited)

ASSETS

in million of eurcs 12.31.200! 03.31.2002
NON CURRENT ASSETS 14,381 14,513
Intangible assets {2,961} {2,900}
Property plant and equipment 12,397 12,430
Investments under equity method 1,962 1,912
Cther investments 606 598
Receivables and other financial assets 841 860
Deferred tax assets 1,836 1,613
CURRENT ASSETS 13,641 14,452
Inventories 6,699 6,468
Trade receivables 3.326 41037~—
Other receivables 1,439 I,SOT_
Cash and cash equivalents 2,177 2,443
TOTAL ASSETS 28,022 28,945
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

in million of euros 12.31.2001 03.31.2002
Shareholders’ equity group share 7321 7,215
Minority interests 1,163 1,138
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,569 9.020
Interest bearing liabilities 5,053 5,193
Employee benefits 2,108 2,123
Other long term provisions 708 19
Deferred tax liabilities 541 601
Other 159 184
CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,969 11,592
Trode poyables 4171 4,535
Interest bearing liabilities 3,736 4,187
Other amount poyables 2,504 2,497
Provisions 558 373
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,022 28,965




CONSOUIDATED HESULTS

ARCELOR - FIRST QUARTER REPORT

2002

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT PROFORMA [uncudited)

in million of euras 2001 Q1/2001 Q1/2002
WET SALES 27,512 7,342 6,824
GROSS OPERATING RESULT {EBITDA} 1,349 680 301
Amortization and depreciation (1,656) (349} {327)
Depreciation of consolidation differences 69 70 91
OPERATING RESULT (EBIT) (238) 401 65
Net financial results {570) (129} {90}
Income from associates 23 22 (25)
Result of disposal of associoted company 66 66

RESULT BEFORE TAX 719) 360 (50}
Income tax 336 {70 33
RESULT AFTER TAX (383) 290 (17)
Minority Interests 25 {104) {7}
NET RESULT GROUP SHARE {358) 186 (24}
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT PROFORMA {unaudited)

in million of euros 12.31.2001 03.31.2002
Cash flow from operating activities 2,245 154
Acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets {1,690) (314)
Other ocquisitions and disposals (36) {23)
Cash flow from investing octivities {1,726} (337}
Contribution of shareholder's equity 44 10
Dividends paid (359) 1182)
Increase/decrease in loans or other financing 304 419
Other ) 2)
Cash flow from financing activities {10} 445
Impact of exchaonge rate and other variations {24} 4
Increase (decrease) of cash 485 266
Balance ot the beginning of the period 1,692 2,177
Balance at the end of the period 2,177 2,443




MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES PROFORMA (unaudited)

12.31.2001  Appropriation Capitel Scope 1@ Result 2002 03.31.2002
Total 2001 ond increose Variations ond exchonge Torol
transfer and IAS differences

in million of evros adjustments
GROUP SHARE
I . Issued cupital 2,641.8 2,641.8
Il . Share premium account 4,755.2 4,755.2
{It. Own shares (891.9 (891.9}
V. Reserves 0.0
V.  Other consolidation reserves 1,326.7 (457 .6) 16.1 885.2
Vi. Difference on first consolidation 0.0
VII. Foreign currency translation reserves {151.9) 0.3 [151.6)
Vill. Results brought forward 0.0
1X. Result for the period (358.9) 358.9 {24.3} (24.3)
TOTAL Capitel and reserves (Group share) 7,321.0 {98.7} 0.0 16.1 {24.0} 7,214.4
MINORITY INTERESTS
I, Capital ond reserves 1,380.5 {40.8} (31.5} 1,308.2
. Own shares (11.4) {11.4)
lll.  Foreign cuirency translation (181.4} 15.7 [165.7)
IV. Result for the period (24.6) 24.6 6.8 6.8
TOTAL Capital and reserves [Minority interests) 1,163.1 {16.2) 0.0 {31.5) 22.5 1,137.9




vy arcelor

ARCELOR
19, Avenue de la Liberté
L-2930 Luxembourg {G.-D )

www.arcelor.com

Corporate Communications
Tel. +352 4792 2360

Investor Relations
Tel. +352 4792 2414

France:

Tel. +33 1 41 2598 98
Spain:

Tel. +34 902 152 153



55, ol

DRSOV T A
LR
,“::grx;,;y,\!.'zu

gy

St

ibee
Y

SR

oy S0 N T w i RIS et
SR N e

- &
HSEEReR as
SRR e
5);@.{»&5?“-;;% Bl
B

ik

w

s
sty
S

v&} :
£
pafae ey
SRR R L
o 1;”, ey
By

)
e
3 :
e

SERD
e e

vl
Ly
3

o

BeL
o

s

s
i
A

g
e
i

i

& ¢ el

ANy i O
Sl G e
Fen =
i
Rnie
S

$e
i

£

a5
A

s i

SRR
Rk A ek
R -

XA,

L

e

o
wa%{

Sy
emism R R
i B

T g

o

sl

B i
et o

ol A

2
e
Pa
Mo ey
T

e

il 2

fg

e
bt e
e

i
=

SRE

e
ARG TREITE S
e oy

v
AL e
T R
et e 11;3?“5&.;%%';

Lo

R /\ e
PR
S

e

o e

£ g e
el At e
CApamEea g T

R

SRy
iy
T

STl

e At

s Ry

o s Gl A
N Sl
B T N

TS

5o

a5

Vi el

W

Tind

Rl
PR
L e
Sk e

i

; 305
ik s L
e Gl . i
LA e SRR e G O
Wt on e et s
T & ; e e e
L S

LR
s

e
s
g

e
i A

g e
g e T

T

S

R R

g
bRl
fus e
Sk ey

chasii Al
s

%

e

TRt
R TR g

ied b . - S
o e s Wil L e

4

O —
e

Bl

AR,

N
et

e
i)
s

s o

35S

K

S,
egaisty

5y

e

B

5
.
),

o
£ty
Sk

AR AR

O

y-,
phetpei ot

SR

R

A,

M
310,

e




10[2210 Ca

2002 ‘'z ounp

~ uonejussald w::mmm
S Ncomgmtmsd 181




L_o_mEc G

Ax,mﬁ_._ﬁv.ﬁ_m.mczmmw
zoneLo  lonerRk U

0- vo' ~ sdd

sajes }ouU JO 9, Se
ateys dnolio
mEou:_ }oN

%S m mm\mm wm: JO 9 se
v S uEd

%6 | - | »..wu\m.w“m: 40 9% se

08 valg3

L . solEsEN

&mm

| .w._ﬁ_oﬁ

pajipne UON “BuLLI0JOId

R 1o N 5 G oo dn3an

sainBi} A9y dnouo
K




"20-1D 10-LD 1002 Q00T - 6661
008 R G d

0¢

00G

00S 1

oosz . SPIeSIeN/vaLigdY”

1002 0007 666L

e pels o

| @
B B e .
1522 99'gz e

| m.o_,m.m 19N

sainbiy Aay dnolio
® | |



S lopoinGa

|BloL

w0 BWO
suoneulw|3 - o

SR JBYI0 eouaWy YINos

6L eals sse|uBlS

 eouBWY YHON

%Esh  199Is uogied Buo |
%9'8Y .

. posuogeolels  wger  (g)n3

10}08S SsauIsng | 1 eole __mu_.camhmoww
Aq Aq

2002 4914enp s}

J1aA0UIN} JO UMop)ealgd
o




102210 Ca

\NN\: O sapsjeujoyse
¢l e tmm,.

408G+ . limpoob m>=m@mz -
261 - T pulnosy -

SRS co;m_omamn.w
co;m_w_toE<

%G°¢C a ,&Q Oh o . wm\mm. .NQQ .xO % mmﬂ

% %Tk

uuotm x_AE.,W._‘,n,. _Eﬁm:oor‘ 2002 —.ch
oo_._n_ | \mE:_o> ,,,._,wm:a:o FG o T oo dNnad N

|]93)s uog.eo je|
®




._O_mu.:u | @Y

20-LD 1002 0002 666}

7T oo

|@9}s uoqJed je|d
o



o JopanC

%G°LL &wm E , m.m\mm JoU JO 9% SE

(1mpooB anljebeN -
BuLunNday -
uoneioaidap @
- uonesipowy

© saes jouj0 % S°
~ vaus3

'so|es JoN

%ze % %be

o I09Pe. qw - juElsu0d
. eoud - jeunjop - ebuey)

pajpne :oZ...,mEg&EQ

N__Dm N

|99)s uogJed buo
o |




LO_mULO [ @Y

No 5 10-LO Sow ooom 89 20-LO 4002 0002 666}

‘ 0oL soles Hmz /183 vy ¢

- 005 02

4

Z0-1D 1L0-LD 1002 000Z 666 ' Z0-lD L0-LD 1002 1000Z 6661

0S¢

[4
ok €
G6S - , e S REE L : . ; S Pl
7 S S o 09¢. 7.

valgs | B ,, ,;w,m_m‘hm 19N

|99)s uogJed buo
@




10[9210Ca

%o wsT- sefes jou o % se.
- oze- . Lue3

Inmpoob aanebeN — -
buLnosy -

uonerosidap @

- uolesiuowy

 sepesjoujo g se
 yaug3a

sajes 19N

o\c Ll .. . aXU.V..

paye - peye  ueisued  Zo0Z  L00Z
eoud  ewnop eBueyp D JO

R " paypne uoN Buiojold -

|99)S SSajule)S




‘_O_mu‘_Co
2010 1040 1002 ooom 82 ____ooo_N, 6661 IR
iy

20-L0 10D L00Z 0007 6661

2010 10D 4002 0002 | 6661

vaLig3



J0[e210 Ca

%8Z. SRR . sees}ou Jo % se

NI
)Y
i

s . L=

[1Mpoob annebaN —
BulInNoey -
uoneroaidap B
~uonesipowy

. sopseu L0 % 5B
- vaug3a

s9[es 1oN

B o | B b&.ﬁ:mgz -BUIIOJOIS

S HN3AN

Buipeu] - uonewojsuel] — uonngrisiq

~ .



10220 Ca

1O 10-LD L00Z. 0002 . 666} 20-4D 1007 000Z 666}

_,”,._.mm No- o

R | O “0 o | AR 0.
; “ o B | . 8l 0T seesioN/llgl .

AR e B 00L& .- < . K2

P B B | T 92 N, LA

00¢

00€

0op

¢0-10 10-10 1002 000C mamr

Lis g

valigs

‘Buipeu] - uonewlioysuel] - uonguisia
¢ o



Jo[@2I0 Ca

&N xmm ” mm\m.m 10U JO 9 SB

G9 oy - le3

0L+ ___>>coom m>:mmmz -
,,._mvm-m o Bumnoey -
T T co:m_omamcw

co;‘mw_toE<

e
S L8

wwﬁ.,MMNNMM

. %y &mm S \mm\mm 10U JO %, mm,

safes 1N

T perpre oy wwiopid

mmmwﬁWWmmw 00C rch .
oo KO mzrnMw _:u¢ﬂmm o dndi

dnouo |ejol




10[2I0 Ca

e e .. aaeys a:Em EEQ 19N
R ¢ ] K o wumm:muc_ Auoulpy
06z - - xejJayeyoid
0.- . xejswoouj
com xe} a10j9q JJoid
: >cmano _omﬁm_oowwm Jo |esodsIp O }NsaY
, 7 $9)eID0SSE WOJ) BLI0dU|
Ty _m::mmm [eioueul
mmcmcu uoljepljosuo)
| co;m_omam_u %9 uohesIowY -
valiig3a
‘s9jes JoN

palIpNE UON "BLLLIOJOId

BRCERT

JuNnodoe ssoj R Jjoad pajepijosuo)
e | e




102210 Ca

Amo;___n_m__ .w wumwmmv ‘xmu paliajep #mc mc_v:_oc_ SUOISINOLd ,

VeL - (%) buuesy
womﬂ,w | Emn leroueuly 1aN
68T . SUOISIAOIH
hmmm TR aJeys dnouy -
N vwﬁw i L ~ sonasel pue [eyded

_,,wmv v . |endeo Bupuom

2L LS 21 . ﬂmwwm,nux_u_-

@ g . w .. .. poypneuoN euiooid
obueyo  zolgLo  bokeTy o d¥N3NW

}J99ys 9ouejeq pajepljosuod
@ ® |




10j32i0 €

sz zosz  Si3ssVVIOL

VYA AR Em\m\:zum yseo pue yse -
6EY°L ~ sa|qesoal Jayj0 -
9ze’e So|qeAlaoal apel] -
6699 . SBLIOJUBAUY -

R | S13SSV INIWIND

9e6" L . sjesse xg] pausjed -

' Lpg - sjesse [ejoueuy Jayjo pue S9/qEAII9Y -
909 0 spusuiseAul 1vY)O -

296 boﬁmE Aynba sspun syjusuwjsanyl -

S 6 N F EmEQScm pue jueld Apadoid -
= -~ sjesse ajqibueyu -

w._.mwm< ._.ZMNEDUZOZ

Lo ~ poypne UoN "eulojoid

S}osSSy — }99Ys aouejeq pajepljosuod



o210 Ca

wm_._._ gavi1viol

o mcoﬁSE& -
mmEmAmQ sjunowe J8yjQ -
saniiqel| Bulieaq jsatspuj -

- mm\om& ed apel] -
wm_._._..__m<_|_ INIWAND

184)0 -

L xe] palisje(q -
m:QmSQQ wiey buoj 48yjQo -
w5 sainqel] :Qw:m& -
~_saniqel| m::mmo Jsausju] -
w.u.__h_.__m<_._ ._.zmmm_:o zOz

;mmi ayj Jo mEooS yorym *o :

| sysa.apul AJLIOUIN -
xmm\a ‘mS JO i mEooS yorym Jo .-
o eueys dnouo -
l_.. ﬁ_:om_ “mmmn._o_._mms._w,

~ pajipne UON "BeuLI0joId

-AN3 N

soljijiqel] — }9ays adsue|eq pajepljosuod

S .



.‘_,”o_mﬁoc

IO B _ vo:oa ay} u_o‘_ucm. w_cu am_ oo:m_mm
o co_..ma ay) u.o m:.::..mon.w:a je aduejed

.._wmo yo Ammmm._ooE asealou|
m:o_um_._m> 19yjo pue aje. abueyoxa Jo yoeduwi
e w:_>;om mc_o:m:: Eot >>o= ysed

. : s kmﬁho

mc\o:mcc gmso To) mcmo\ ] mmmmgomb\mmmmgos

C pred spusping

bsg mkmn\ocmgm:w Jo uoynqLU0Y
sonIAoE BUNSaAUL WO} MO} YSeD

. ok _,m\mmoqwib:m suoysinboe J8Y10
&mmwm ,oB&:EE pue ajqibuej jo suopisinboy
” mm;_>;um m:;m._mno Eou >>o= :mmo_”

bm%:m_:oz .m::&oi_

~uN3aw




Prospectus dated 27th June, 2002

“Yarcelor

ARCELOR

a “société anonyme” Incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg
19 avenue de la Liberté, L-2930 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

PROSPECTUS
FOR THE ADMISSION TO LISTING
ON THE LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE

of the 38,961,038
3% Guaranteed Bonds due 2017 (the “Bonds™) in a nominal aggregate amount of
EUR 749,999,981.50 convertible and/or exchangeable into new and/or existing Shares of ARCELOR
guaranteed by
ARCELOR Finance
a “société en commandite par actions”, incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg
19 avenue de la Liberté, L-2930 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
and
the new Shares of ARCELOR that may be issued upon conversion of the Bonds
and
the new Shares of ARCELOR and the New O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR 2005 and 2006 to be issued

pursuant to the public withdrawal offer by way of exchange on all the USINOR shares and
O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2005 and 2006 not yet held by ARCELOR

and

the new Shares of ARCELOR that may be issued upon conversion of the O.C.E.A.N.E.
ARCELOR 2005 and 2006. ’

Admission to listing of the new ARCELOR Shares to be issued pursuant to the public withdrawal offer by
way of exchange on the USINOR shares and that may be issued upon conversion of the Bonds and of the
O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR on the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris, the Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels
and the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges and admission to the listing of the New
0O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR 2005 and 2006 on the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris will also be applied for.

See “Risk factors” in section 4.17 for information that should be carefully
considered by prospective investors.

Global Co-ordinator
Jor the issue of the Bonds

SG Investment Banking

Joint Lead Managers and Joint Bookrunners
for the issue of the Bonds

Deutsche Bank SG Investment Banking
Co Lead Managers
Jor the issue of the Bonds
Commerzbank Securities Crédit Agricole Indosuez Lazard KBC Financial Products
UK Limited
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IMPORTANT NOTE: ARCELOR is responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus.
To the best knowledge of ARCELOR, the information contained in this Prospectus is in accordance
with the facts and does not omit anything which is likely to affect the import of such information.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this
Prospectus in connection with the issue of the Bonds, the New O.C.E.A.N.E. or the Shares and, if given or
made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised. Neither the
delivery of this Prospectus at any time nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of ARCELOR or the Group since the date hereof
or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus contains information relating both to the markets in which the Group operates and to the
steel industry in general. Some of this information is taken from studies carried out by organisations outside
the Group. It also contains forward-looking statements concerning the ARCELOR Group or the Group’s
objectives in terms of market share, business activity and results. These statements and objectives are
inherently uncertain and these objectives may not be achieved, and the forecasts on which they are based
could prove incorrect. Forward-looking statements are usually accompanied by terms such as “believe”,
“foresee™, “intend”, “expect” and similar expressions. The actual results, savings and synergies generated by
the ARCELOR Group may differ from those anticipated, particularly as a result of the risks described in
section 4.17 “Risk factors™ of this Prospectus, to which investors should refer; investors should therefore be

careful in relying on such forward-looking statements.

The Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy the Bonds, the
New O.C.E.AN.E. or the Shares. The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or sale of the Bonds,
the New O.C.E.A.N.E. or the Shares is restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. Persons into whose
possession this Prospectus may come are required by ARCELOR and the Managers (as defined in chapter 10
below) to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions as to the offering of the Bonds, the New
O.C.E.AN.E. or the Shares and the distribution of this Prospectus. This Prospectus may not be used for, or in
connection with, any offer to, or solicitation by, anyone in any jurisdiction or any circumstances in which
such offer or solicitation is not authorised or is unlawful. Neither ARCELOR nor any of the Managers
accepts any responsibility for any violation by any person, whether or not a prospective purchaser of the
Bonds, the New O.C.E.AN.E. or the Shares, of any of such restrictions. The Prospectus does not constitute
an exchange offer on the USINOR shares and the O.C.E.A.NN.E. USINOR in any jurisdiction. For a further
description of certain restrictions on offers and sales of Bonds, or the Shares and on the distribution of this
Prospectus, see chapter 10 “Subscription and Sale™.

The Bonds, the New O.C.E.AN.E. and the Shares to be issued upon conversion or delivered upon
exchange of the Bonds or the O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR have not been and will not be registered under the
U.S. Securities Act of 1933 and, subject to certain exceptions, may not be offered or sold within the
United States.

The figures set out in this Prospectus concerning the ARCELOR Group have been prepared on a
pro forma basis.



ACERALIA:

ARBED:

ARCELOR:

ARCELOR Finance :

Clearstream:
Company:
EBIT:
EBITDA:

Euroclear:

Guarantor:

Group or ARCELOR Group:
Issuer:

New O.C.E.A.N.E.

Mémorial C:

O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR

O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR 2005

O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR 2006

O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR 2017

or the Bonds

OPRE

Public Exchange Offers

Shares or ARCELOR Shares:

DEFINITIONS

means ACERALIA CORPORACION SIDERURGICA S.A., a sociedad
anonima incorporated under Spanish law which has its registered office at
Residencia La Granda, Gozdn (Asturias), Spain.

means ARBED, a société anonyme incorporated under Luxembourg law
which has its registered office at 19 avenue de la Liberté, L-2930
Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

means ARCELOR, a société anonyme incorporated under Luxembourg
law which has its registered office at 19 avenue de la Liberté, L-2930
Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

means ARCELOR Finance, a société en commandite par actions
incorporated under Luxembourg law which has its registered office at 19
avenue de la Liberté, L-2930 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.
means Clearstream Banking, société anonyme.

means ARCELOR.

means eamings before interest and tax.

means eamings before interest, tax, depreciations and amortisations.

means Euroclear Bank SA/NV, as operator of the Euroclear system,
Brussels.

means ARCELOR Finance.
means ARCELOR and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.
means ARCELOR. ’

means the New O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR 2005 and 2006 that may be
issued pursuant to the OPRE.

means Mémorial C, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg.

means the O.C.EAN.E. ARCELOR 2005 and 2006, including the New
O.CEANE.

means the bonds of ARCELOR which are convertible into and/or
exchangeable for new or existing ARCELOR Shares (obligations
convertibles et/ou échangeables en actions nouvelles ou existantes)
3.875% due 2005.

means the bonds of ARCELOR which are convertible into and/or
exchangeable for new or existing ARCELOR Shares (obligations

convertibles et/ou échangeables en actions nouvelles ou existantes) 3%
due 2006.

means the 38,961,038 bonds of ARCELOR which are convertible or
exchangeable into new or existing ARCELOR Shares (obligations
convertibles et/ou échangeables en actions nouvelles ou existantes) in

a nominal aggregate amount of EUR 749,599,981.50 3% due 2017.

means the public withdrawal offer by way of exchange (offre publique de
retrait par voie d'échange) of ARCELOR on the shares and
O.C.E.ANNE. issued by USINOR not yet held by ARCELOR on the last
day of the OPRE.

means the three public exchange offers successfully made by ARCELOR
on ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR referred to in sections 3.2.2 and
3.2.3 hereof.

means the shares in ARCELOR.



Spanish Liaison Entity

USINOR:

O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR:

O.C.E.A.N.E USINOR 2005:

O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2006:

means the Spanish Liaison Entity, Custodian and Payment Agent in
charge of the duties set forth in Circular n® 6/1999, of 15th September
1999, of the Servicio de Compensacion y Liquidacién de Valores,

S.A. (“SCLV™), with regard to the ARCELOR Shares in Spain. Until
14th August, 2002 such Entity is Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria,
S.A. (“BBVA™), whose details are Clara del Rey, n® 26, Madrid 28002,
Spain. The name and details of the new Spanish Liaison Entity will be
communicated in Spain in due time by publication of a Relevant Fact
(as defined by Spain regulations) and will be available at the registered
office of ARCELOR.

means USINOR, a société anonyme incorporated under the laws of
France which has its registered office at Immeuble La Pacific, 11-13 cours
Valmy, La Défense 7, 92070 La Défense Cedex, France.

means the O.C.E.AN.E. USINOR 2005 and the O.C.E.ANN.E. USINOR
2006.

means the bonds which are convertible into and/or exchangeable for new
or existing USINOR shares (obligations a option de conversion et/ou
d’échange en actions nouvelles ou existentes) issued by USINOR on 18th
February, 2000 for a nominal amount of EUR 496,750,000, bearing
interest at a rate of 3.875% per year, maturing on 1st January, 200S.

means the bonds which are convertible into and/or exchangeable for new
or existing USINOR shares (obligations a option de conversion et/ou
d’échange en actions nouvelles ou existentes) issued by USINOR on 8th
December, 1998 for a nominal amount of FRF 2,499,999,936, bearing
interest at a rate of 3% per year, maturing on st January, 2006.



SUMMARY PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

ARCELOR was created as a result of the amalgamation of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR, and the
intention of these three European groups to combine their industrial, commercial and human resources to
create a world leader with the ambition of becoming the benchmark in the steel industry. With approximately
108,000 employees in over 60 countries, ARCELOR is the world’s largest steel producer. In 2001, on a
pro forma basis, its annual production was approximately 43.5 million metric tons of steel and it had a
turnover of over 27 billion euro. ARCELOR is a major player in all its main markets: automotive,
construction, household appliances, packaging, and general industry. The ARCELOR Group is also active in
engineering, copper sheets and heavy steel plates.

The ARCELOR Group is developing its activities in four business sectors corresponding to the main
activities of the Group: flat carbon steel, long carbon steel, stainless steel and distribution-transformation-
trading. Each business sector comprises operational units covering either a geographical region or a range of
products and services.

ARCELOR is the world’s leading producer of flat products, both in terms of volume and value, with a
crude steel production of nearly 30 million metric tons in 2001. With nearly 55,000 employees, this business
sector accounts for a turnover of more than 13 billion euro, which is nearly 10% of the global market.

The product portfolio covers the entire range of thin flat steels: hot-rolled coils, cold-rolled coils, and coated
sheets. These products are used in the automobile production, domestic electrical appliances, packaging,
construction, civil engineering, mechanical construction and processing.

ARCELOR is also the world’s largest producer of long products, with a crude steel production of nearly
11 million metric tons in 2001. This business sector has nearly 18,000 employees and a turnover of
approximately 4 billion euro. The portfolio offer contains three categories of products:

e heavy long products: beams/heavy sections, sheet piles, special sections, rails and merchant bars;
o light long products: rebars and wire rod;

e drawn products: steelcord, horse wire/saw wire (wire used to reinforce tyres and rubber hoses and
saw wire), low-carbon steel products (bright, annealed and galvanised wire, welded mesh, fencing,
concrete fibres) and high-carbon steel products (pre-tensioned wire).

Long products are mainly used in construction and infrastructure, in the tyre and hose sectors and in the
industrial and agricultural sectors.

ARCELOR is one of the world leaders in the stainless steel business, both in terms of volume and
turnover. In 2001, it produced nearly 2.6 million metric tons of crude steel. This business sector has
15,000 employees and a turnover of 4.2 billion euro, with a 15% share of the world market for cold-rolled
products. ARCELOR produces virtually the whole range of stainless and alloy products.

The product portfolio is made up of following categories:

o flat stainless products;

¢ long stainless products and nickel alloys;

e  stainless steel precision strips and nickel alloy flat products;
s  special plates.

Stainless steel products are used in four principal markets: household appliances (large electrical
appliances and household equipment), automotive (especially in catalytic converters), construction and urban
furniture (facades and equipment) and general industry (food, chemicals and oil industries).

ARCELOR’s distribution-transformation-trading sector develops its activities based on steel produced by
the Group or purchased from third parties. The sector has 16,000 employees and a turnover of nearly
9.6 billion euros in 2001.



The main features of ARCELOR’s distribution-transformation-trading business are:

e close relations with a broad client base which is maintained by a large sales force;
e the importance of service and logistics;

e expertise in the downstream promotion of “Steel Solutions”;

e the addition of value to the marketed steel products.

The distribution business is divided into four divisions which enables clients to be serviced with
maximum flexibility :

e the service centres division (units for steel products finishing), which supply “ready-to-use™ steel;

o the steel trading division (with stockage), which carries out light finishings for small and medium
sized end customers;

e the plastics trading division for the construction and public works sectors;

+ the advance technology steel trading division, specialised in the distribution of corrosion-resistent,
anti-abrasion and mechanical steels.

Products marketed by the distribution business are used in markets such as household appliances,
construction, rolling stock and general industry.

Transformation activities involve:

e  panels, sections and tubes for the construction, public works and civil engineering markets
(frameworks, shells, building accessories and interior decoration);

e steels for packaging (mass consumer goods and food and non-food products).

Trading activities consist of the purchase and resale of steel products not produced by the Group’s plants.



1.1

1.2

1.3

CHAPTER 1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR CERTIFICATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

Responsibility for auditing the accounts of ARCELOR
Independent auditors:

KPMG Audit, société civile

31 Allée Scheffer

L-2520 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

Declarations of the persons responsible for auditing the accounts of ARCELOR

Please refer to chapter 5.

Responsibility for auditing the accounts of ARCELOR Finance
Independent auditors:

KPMG Audit, sociéteé civile
31 Allée Scheffer
L-2520 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.



CHAPTER 2 THE BONDS AND THE GUARANTEE

2.1 Terms and conditions of the 3 per cent bonds due 2017 of a nominal aggregate amount of
EUR 749,999,981.50 which may be converted into and/or exchanged for new and/or existing shares
of ARCELOR guaranteed by ARCELOR Finance

(ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. 2017)
(THE “BONDS”)

1 NUMBER AND NOMINAL VALUE OF THE BONDS

This Bond issue by ARCELOR (the “Issuer” or “Arcelor”) consists of 38,961,038 Bonds maturing in
2017 in a nominal aggregate amount of EUR 749,999,981.50 with a nominal value and principal amount per
Bond of EUR 19.25 which may be converted into and/or exchanged for new and/or existing Shares of
ARCELOR. Any reference to a “Share” in these terms and conditions shall refer to the ordinary shares of
ARCELOR.

2 FORM, NATURE AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS

The Bonds will exist only in registered form. Upon issue on 27 June 2002 (the “Issue Date”), the Bonds
will be registered in the name of Banque Générale du Luxembourg SA (“BGL” or the “Paying Agent™)
acting as common depositary in the name and on behalf of Clearstream Banking, société anonyme
(“Clearstream”) and Euroclear Bank, S.A/N.V_, as operator of the Euroclear system (“Euroclear”) in the
register of the Issuer held in Luxembourg by or on behalf of the Issuer. Clearstream and Euroclear will hold
the Bonds on behalf of their respective participants.

Bonds held by investors through Clearstream and Euroclear will be credited to such investors’ account
held with a bank, an investment services provider or a professional securities depositary.

The transfer of Bonds held through one of the settlement systems mentioned in this Condition 2 shall be
by means of an entry in an account, either in accordance with the internal rules of the relevant system or, for
transfers between or through participants of different systems, in accordance with the rules applicable
between the systems concerned.

3 ENTITLEMENT (“Jouissance”™)
The Bonds will carry rights as of the Issue Date.

4 INTEREST

The Bonds will bear interest from and including the Issue Date at a rate of 3 per cent per annum of the
nominal amount, i.e. EUR 0.5775 per Bond of a nominal amount of EUR 19.25, payable in equal installments
of EUR 0.28875 in arrear on 27 June and 27 December of each year (each, an “Interest Payment Date™)
commencing on 27 December 2002.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period of less than six months, it will be equal to the product
of (i) the above annual interest rate, (i1) the ratio of (a) the number of days accrued since the last Interest
Payment Date (or, if none, the Issue Date) and (b) 365, or 366, depending on the exact number of days
included between the next Interest Payment Date (excluding such date) and the same date of the preceding
year (including such date) and (iii) the nominal value of each Bond.

Interest will cease to accrue from the date on which the Bonds are redeemed.

Claims in respect of interest will become void after a period of five years from the due date for payment
thereof.
5 REDEMPTION
5.1 Redemption at maturity

The Bonds will be redeemed in full on 27 June 2017 (the “Maturity Date™) at their principal amount.
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Claims in respect of principal will become void after a period of ten years from the due date for
payment thereof.

5.2 Purchase or public offers by the Issuer

The [ssuer shall have the right to purchase the Bonds at any time before maturity, without any limitation
on price or number, either by repurchasing them on the stock exchange or off-exchange, or by means of
public offers for purchase or exchange. Any such transaction shall not affect the due date for redemption of
any Bonds still outstanding.

The Bonds purchased on the stock exchange or otherwise (including upon exercise of an option by a
Bondholder under Conditior: 5.6) or through public offers may, as the Issuer may decide, be (i) cancelled, (ii)
held by the Issuer, (ii1) re-sold on the market or (iv) sold to a subsidiary or affiliate of the Issuer.

Bonds redeemed on the Maturity Date, as well as Bonds which have been converted, will cease to be
considered as being outstanding and will be cancelled.

5.3 Early redemption at the option of the Issuer

5.3.1 The Issuer shall have the right, at any time on or after 27 June 2007, to redeem on the date specified
in the notice therefor all of the outstanding Bonds at their principal amount plus accrued interest if the result
of multiplying:

— the existing Conversion/Exchange Ratio (as defined in Condition 13.3); by

— the arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the Share on the Stock Exchange, or failing this, on a
regulated market of the European Union calculated over a period of 20 consecutive Stock Exchange
Trading Days on which the Shares are quoted as chosen by the Issuer from among the 40
consecutive Stock Exchange Trading Days preceding the date on which the notice anncuncing the
redemption is published (as provided in Condition 5.4);

exceeds (i) from 27 June 2007 to 26 June 2012, 130 per cent. of the principal amount of each Bond and (ii)
from 27 June 2012 to the seventh Business Day prior to the Maturity Date, 100 per cent. of the principal
amount of each Bond.

“Business Day” means any day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are open in
Luxembourg and on which Clearstream, Euroclear and the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross
Settlement Express Transfer System (TARGET) are open for business.

“Stock Exchange” means the regulated market on which the Shares are listed, quoted or traded or, if
more than one, the market which in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, after consultation with the Issuer,
offers the greatest liquidity in the Shares. As of the Issue Date, Stock Exchange means the Premier Marché
of Euronext Paris S.A.

“Stock Exchange Trading Day” means any day when the Stock Exchange quotes the Shares other than a
day on which quotes cease prior to the exchange’s usual closing time.

5.3.2 The Issuer shall also be entitled, at its option, at any time, to redeem all of the outstanding Bonds at
their principal amount plus the interest remaining to be paid for the period between the last Interest Payment
Date and the actual early redemption date, provided that the number of such Bonds is less than 10% of the
original number of Bonds issued.

5.3.3 In each case specified in Conditions 5.3.1 and 5.3.2, Bondholders shali remain entitled to exercise
their rights as provided in Condition 13.
5.4 Publication of information relating to early redemption or redemption at maturity

Information relating to the number of Bonds cancelled, converted or exchanged and to the number of
Bonds still outstanding shall be provided each year to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for public
information and shall be available on request from the Issuer or from the Paying Agent in Luxembourg.



If the Issuer decides to redeem the Bonds prior to the Maturity Date, a notice to the Bondholders shall
be published not less than 30 days nor more than 90 days before the early redemption date in accordance
with Condition 14.

5.5 Early redemption of the Bonds in the event of default

The representatives of the masse (as defined in Condition 10) may, pursuant to a decision of the general
Bondholders’ meeting, by joint written notice sent to the Issuer, with a copy to the Paying Agent, require that
all the Bonds be redeemed at their principal amount plus the interest remaining to be paid for the period
between the last Interest Payment Date and the actual redemption date if any of the following events occurs
and is continuing:

{a) the Issuer and/or the Guarantor defaults in the payment of principal or interest due in respect of any
Bond and such default continues for a period of 20 days from the due date;

(b) the Issuer and/or the Guarantor fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the
terms of the Bonds and such failure is not remedied within 40 days following receipt by the Issuer
of written notice of such default from the representatives requiring the same to be remedied;

(¢) if any present or future Relevant Indebtedness of the Issuer or the Guarantor, other than the Bonds,
shall be or be declared due and payable prior to the date on which the same would otherwise
become due and payable by reason of an occurrence of a default on the part of the Issuer (following
the giving of such notice, if any, as is required under the document governing such Relevant
Indebtedness and as extended by any applicable grace period) (i) unless such Relevant Indebtedness
is in aggregate less than €50,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currencies or (ii) unless the
Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, has disputed in good faith by appropriate proceedings
that such Relevant Indebtedness is due, in which event such default shall not constitute an event of
default hereunder so long as the dispute shall not have been finally adjudicated against the Issuer or
the Guarantor respectively; :

(d) if the Issuer or the Guarantor is the object of a gestion contrélée, a concordat judiciaire, a faillite, a
banqueroute or a liquidation judiciaire, in conformity with the Luxembourg Code of Commerce (as
modified, from time to time) and the law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies (as
modified, from time to time) or becomes subject to any similar legal procedure, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings whatsoever; or

(e) if the Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be, in full force and effect or
the Guarantor or any actionnaire commandité of the Guarantor other than the Issuer (i) ceases to be
liable, save in circumstances described in (ii) below, as an actionnaire commandité of the Guarantor
for the obligations arising on behalf of the Guarantor under the Guarantee, or (ii) enters into a
merger, restructuring, consolidation, amalgamation or scission unless the acquiror or the resulting
surviving company or each of the surviving companies (as the case may be) is, or becomes, an
actionnaire commandité of the Guarantor or otherwise guarantees, on substantially similar terms as
the Guarantee, or assumes all of the obligations of the Issuer, or is in fact the Issuer, under the
Bonds.

“Relevant Indebtedness” means any indebtedness for borrowed money represented by bonds
(obligations) or other assimilated securities (including obligations or assimilated securities initially privately
placed) which are for the time being or are capable of being quoted, listed or ordinarily traded on any stock
exchange, other similar regulated securities market or over-the-counter market.

5.6 Put Options for the Bondholders

5.6.1 27 June 2007 and 27 June 2012: Each Bondholder may, at its option, request early redemption in
cash in whole or in part of the Bonds held by it on 27 June 2007 and 27 June 2012 at their principal amount
plus accrued interest. Any such request made shall be irrevocable.
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Bondholders who decide to exercise their right to request early redemption under this Condition 5.6.1
will be required to notify this decision to the Paying Agent not earlier than 20 Business Days nor later than
seven Business Days prior to the early redemption date.

5.6.2 Merger, Scission: Each Bondholder may, at its option, request early redemption in cash in whole or in
part of the Bonds held by it at their principal amount plus accrued interest if the Issuer enters into (A) a
merger, restructuring, consolidation or amalgamation where the resulting surviving company does not assume
the obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds or (B) a scission (each, an “Event”), unless at least 35 Business
Days prior to the completion of such Event, Bondholders are provided with notice in accordance with
Condition 14 of the availability of an opinion from an independent investment bank of international repute
selected by the Calculation Agent that the interests of Bondholders will not be materially adversely affected
as a result of the Event. The Issuer shall provide to any Bondholder upon request a copy of such opinion, if
possible, and in any event shall provide a copy of the conclusions from such opinion.

The Issuer shall provide notice to Bondholders in accordance with Condition 14 at least 35 Business
Days prior to the completion of the relevant Event of either (1) the availability of an opinion as described
above or (it) that such an opinion will not be forthcoming.

Bondholders who decide to exercise their right to request early redemption under this Condition 5.6.2
will be required to notify the Paying Agent no later than 35 Business Days following the earlier of (i) the
date on which notice is given by the Issuer that such an opinion will not be forthcoming and (ii) the date
which is 35 Business Days prior to the completion date, as publicly announced, of the Event, unless notice of
the availability of an appropriate opinion has been given to Bondholders in accordance with Condition 14.

5.6.3 Delisting: Each Bondholder may, at its option, request early redemption in cash in whole or in part of
the Bonds held by it at their principal amount plus accrued interest if the [ssuer gives notice to delist the
Shares from all regulated markets on which the Shares are listed or the Shares cease to be listed for any
reason on any regulated market in the European Union or the United States.

Bondholders who decide to exercise their right to request early redemption under this Condition 5.6.3
will be required to notify this decision to the Paying Agent no later than 35 Business Days following the
earlier of (i) the date on which the Issuer provides notice to Bondholders of the delisting of the Shares in
accordance with Condition 14 and (ii) the date on which such delisting becomes effective.

5.6.4 Public Offers: In the event of an Offer for any Shares, it will be the responsibility of the Bondholder
wishing to participate in the Offer to exercise its Conversion/Exchange Rights on a timely basis in order to
tender in the Offer the Shares for which its Bonds are convertible/exchangeable.

In the event that the Offer also includes an offer (a “Bond Offer”) to Bondholders and such Bond Offer
is accompanied by an opinion (or, in any event, at least the conclusions from such an opinion) from an
investment bank of intemational repute that such offer is fair from a financial point of view to Bondholders (a
“Faimess Opinion”), no right to early redemption shall arise.

In the event that the Bond Offer does not include a Faimess Opinion, the Issuer shall use its best efforts
to obtain a Fairness Opinion on the Bond Offer (and provide notice of the availability of such opinion, or at
least the conclusions from such opinion, to Bondholders in accordance with Condition 14 at least 5 Business
Days prior to the Specified Date) from an investment bank of international repute approved by the
Calculation Agent (an “Expert”). If the Issuer is able to obtain such an opinion, no right to early redemption
shall arise.

In the event of a Successful Offer and no Bond Offer is made, the Issuer shall use its best efforts to
make an alternative offer to Bondholders (the “Issuer Offer”) during the period of 30 days (the “Issuer Offer
Period”) following the Specified Date. The Issuer Offer shall be accompanied by a Fairness Opinion with
respect to the Issuer Offer.

In the event that both of the following conditions apply:

(i) no Bond Offer is made, or a Bond Offer is made but (a) such offer is not accompanied by a
Faimess Opinion from an investment bank of international repute and (b) the Issuer is unable to
obtain a Fairness Opinion on such offer from an Expert; and
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(i) upon a Successful Offer, the Issuer is unable to make an Issuer Offer or is unable to obtain a
Fairness Opinion from an Expert on the Issuer Offer,

then each Bondholder may request, for a period of 60 days following the expiry of the Issuer Offer Period,
early redemption in cash in whole or in part of the Bonds held by it by the Issuer at the higher of (a) the
principal amount plus accrued interest and (b) the product of (i) the value of the consideration paid in respect
of each Share under the Offer on the Final Date (valued, if not entirely cash, by the Expert) and (ii) the
Conversion/Exchange Ratio then in effect.

In the event that the Issuer obtains a Faimess Opinion on any Bond Offer or Issuer Offer, it shall
provide notice of the availability of such opinion, or at least the conclusions of such opinion, to Bondholders
in accordance with Condition 14 and shall provide to any Bondholder, upon request, a copy of such opinion,
if possible, and in any event shall provide a copy of the conclusions of such opinion.

“Final Date” means, in relation to any Offer, the date upon which the offer consideration is made
available to the Shareholders.

“Offer” means an offer to acquire more than 25 per cent. of the Shares, whether expressed as a legal
offer, an invitation to treat or in any other way, in circumstances where such offer is available to all
Shareholders, all such Shareholders other than any Shareholder who is, or is connected with, or is, or is
deemed to be, acting in concert with, the person making such offer or to whom, by reason of the laws of any
territory or requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory, the person
making such offer is determined not to make such offer.

“Specified Date™ means, in relation to any Offer, the final date for acceptance of such Offer which, if
such Offer is, prior to such final date, extended, shall be the final date for acceptance of the extended offer.

“Successful Offer” means an Offer becoming unconditional which results in the offeror (or the offeror
together with any person or persons acting in concert with the offeror) controlling more than 50 per cent. of
the Shares then outstanding.

6 PAYMENT AND DELIVERY

Payment of interest and principal and of any other sums due pursuant to the Bonds will be made to the
order of the Paying Agent in euro by crediting an account denominated in euro in the name of the Paying
Agent.

Payments and deliveries of Shares on behalf of the Issuer will be made by, or upon the instructions of,
the Paying Agent through the settlement systems (Euroclear and Clearstream) and any such payment and
delivery validly made in favour of the Bondholders will release the Issuer and the Paying Agent.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent will not be liable to the Bondholders or to any other person in respect
of any costs, commissions, losses or other expenses connected to or resuiting from the money transfer in euro
and/or any currency exchange or rounding which may be related thereto or the delivery of Shares.

If the payment date of any principal interest or other amount relating to the Bonds is not a Business
Day, the Bondholder will only have a right to payment of such amount on the next following Business Day,
and will have no right to any interest or other sum as a result of such deferral.

The Issuer has appointed BGL as the initial Paying Agent. The address of the Paying Agent is set out in
Condition 16.

The [ssuer may appoint replacement or additional paying agents provided that as long as the rules of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange so require, there will always be a paying agent in Luxembourg. Notice of any
new paying agent will be given in accordance with Condition 14.

7 FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Bondholders create and issue further notes,
bonds or debentures having the same terms and conditions in all respects as the Bonds (or in all respects
except for the first payment of interest on them) and to consolidate such further issue so that it forms a single



series with the Bonds and may treat them as the same issue for the purposes of management and trading.
The Issuer shall provide notice of any such issue in accordance with Condition 14.

8 STATUS AND NEGATIVE PLEDGE
8.1 Status

The Bonds and the interest relating thereto constitute direct, general, unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Issuer, and rank equally amongst themselves and pari passu with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and guarantees, both present and future, of the Issuer.

8.2 Negative pledge

Until the actual repayment of all of the Bonds, each of the Issuer and the Guarantor undertakes not to
grant any charge (hvpothéque) over the real property assets and rights it may or may come to possess, nor
any pledge (nantissement) on its business (fonds de commerce), in each case for the benefit of other creditors
without granting similar security to the holders of the Bonds and ensuring that the Bonds rank similarly.
This undertaking is given only in relation to bond indebtedness and does not affect in any way the right of
the Issuer or the Guarantor to dispose of its assets or to grant any security in respect of such assets in other
circumstances.

9 GUARANTEE

All of the Issuer’s obligations under the Bonds have been guaranteed (the “Guarantee™) by ARCELOR
Finance, société en commandite par actions (the “Guarantor”).

The Guarantee appears at the end of these Conditions.

10 REPRESENTATION OF THE HOLDERS OF THE BONDS

The Bondholders will be represented and the general meetings of Bondholders will be organised in
accordance with the provisions of the law of 10 August 1915 relating to commercial companies, and more
particularly articles 86 to 94-8 thereof.

A summary of the rules concerning the representation of and the body (masse) of the Bondholders in
force as at the date of issue is set out below.

The Bondholders together form a body, created inter alia for the purposes of representation of the
common interests of the Bondholders in accordance with the provisions of the law of 10 August 1915 relating
to commercial companies.

A general meeting of the Bondholders may appoint one or several representatives of the body of
Bondholders and determine their powers. When the representative(s) have been appointed, the Bondholders
will no longer be able to exercise individually the rights attaching to their Bonds against the Issuer.

A meeting of the Bondholders may be convened at any time by the representative(s) or by the board of
directors of the Issuer. The representatives, provided they have received an advance on their expenses, or the
board of directors must convene a meeting of the body of Bondholders if Bondholders representing S per cent
or more of the total amount of outstanding Bonds so request. The meetings of the Bondholders will be held at
the venue specified in the convening notice.

Every Bondholder will have the right to attend and vote at meetings of the Bondholders in person or by
proxy, except that, pursuant to the provisions of the Civil Code, if the Issuer holds Bonds itself, the Issuer is
not entitled to exercise the voting rights attached to these Bonds. Evidence of title of a person to one or
several Bonds will be established in accordance with the rules and procedures of the depositary with which
the Bonds are held. The voting rights attaching to the Bonds are proportional to the portion of the issue they
represent, each Bond carrying at least one vote.

A meeting of the Bondholders may be convened (i) in the event of a merger involving the Issuer, (ii) in
order to approve certain changes to the Bondholders’ rights and (iii) generally, in order to determine any
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measure aimed at defending the Bondholders’ interests or to ensure the exercise by the Bondholders of their
rights in accordance with the provisions of the law of 10 August 1915 relating to commercial companies.

A meeting of the Bondholders may validly decide, without any quorum requirements and by a simple
majority of the votes cast by the Bondholders present or represented at the meeting, upon the appointment
and removal of representatives, the removal of special representatives nominated by the Issuer and the
approval of any protective measure taken in the general interests of the Bondholders.

In respect of any other decision the meeting of the Bondholders may validly decide upon first a
convening only if the Bondholders present or represented hold at least 50 per cent of the total amount of the
Bonds outstanding at that time. No quorum is required at a reconvened meeting. The decisions at such
meetings will be passed by a majority consisting of not less than two-thirds of the votes cast by Bondholders
present or represented.

Each Bondholder shall have the right, during the 15 days prior to the general meeting of the
Bondholders as a body, to consult or take copies, or cause an agent to do so on its behalf, of the text of the
proposed resolutions and the reports to be presented to the meeting, at the registered office of the Issuer, and
at the offices of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg and, as the case may be, at any other place specified in the
convening notice.

11 TAXATION

All payments in respect of the Bonds or the Guarantee-will be made without withholding of or deduction
for taxation unless the withholding or deduction is required by law, in which case the relevant payment will
be made subject to such withholding or deduction. The Issuer or the Guarantor, as applicable, will not be
required to pay any additional or further amounts in respect of such withholding or deduction.

As Luxembourg legislation and tax practices currently stand, no obligatory withholding taxes are
deducted from any payment in respect of the Bonds or the Guarantee.

12 RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERS OF THE SECURITIES

There are no restrictions on transfers of the Bonds.

13 CONVERSION INTO AND/OR EXCHANGE OF THE BONDS FOR SHARES
13.1 Nature of the Conversion and/or Exchange Right

Bondholders have the right (the “Conversion/Exchange Right”) at any time to receive, at the option of
the Issuer, new and/or existing Shares which will be fully paid up and/or settled by way of set-off against the
debt owed to them as Bondholders by the Issuer, and/or the Cash Value (as defined below) thereof, subject to
the provisions of Condition 13.7.

If the Issuer elects to deliver Shares, it may, at its option, issue new Shares and/or deliver
existing Shares.

13.2 Suspension of the Conversion/Exchange Right

13.2.1 In the event of (i) an increase in Share capital, or an issue of securities conferring rights to receive
Shares or in case of a merger (fusion), division (scission), consolidation, amalgamation or other reorganisation
or any other financial transaction conferring preferential subscription rights in favour of the Shareholders of
the Issuer, and (ii) where the exercise (subject to any suspension pursuant to Condition 13.2.2) of the
Conversion/Exchange Right by a Bondholder would lead to the delivery of Shares and/or cash after the date
on which rights are actually granted, then: (a) if the adjustment will result in the relevant Bondholder being
entitled to a greater number of Shares, such Bondholder shall receive (1) delivery of such number of Shares
(and/or payment of the Cash Value thereof, as applicable), together with any payment in lieu of fractions
pursuant to Condition 13.7, as such Bondholder was entitled to prior to any such event and (2) following the
later of the calculation of the relevant adjusted Conversion/Exchange Ratio and the completion of such
financial operation, such additional number of Shares (and/or the Cash Value thereof, as applicable) as is
necessary following such adjustment (together with any payment in lieu of fractions pursuant to Condition
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13.7), all without any entitlement to the rights or; (b) if the adjustment will result in the relevant Bondholder
being entitled to a lesser number of Shares, then delivery of Shares (and/or the Cash Value thereof, as
applicable) together with any payment in lieu of fractions pursuant to Condition 13.7 will be postponed as
necessary to calculate the relevant adjusted Conversion/Exchange Ratio and until the completion of such
financial operation.

13.2.2 The Issuer may decide, in its reasonable opinion, to suspend the exercise of the Conversion/Exchange
Right in order to perform such financial operation as referred to above. The suspension period shall not
exceed three months. The Issuer’s decision to suspend the exercise of the right to receive Shares will be set
out in a notice given to the Bondholders in accordance with the provisions of Condition 14. This notice will
be published at least fifteen days prior to the date upon which exercise of the right to receive Shares will be
suspended. The notice will mention the date on which the suspension comes into force and the date on which
the period of suspension ends.

13.3 Exercise Period and Conversion/Exchange Ratio of Shares

Subject to Condition 13.2, each Bondholder shall be entitled to exercise its Conversion/Exchange Right
at any time unti] the end of the seventh Business Day preceding the date set for redemption whether upon or
prior to maturity which, in the case of maturity, is currently expected to be 15 June 2017.

The number of Shares to which each Bond entitles its holder upon exercise of the Conversion/Exchange
Right is referred to as the “Conversion/Exchange Ratio”.

Subject to subsequent adjustments as provided in Condition 13.6 “Bondholders’ rights™, the initial
Conversion/Exchange Ratio of the Bonds will be one Share for one Bond.

The Conversion/Exchange Right in respect of Bonds redeemed upon or prior to maturity shall expire at
the end of the seventh Business Day preceding the date set for redemption. Any Bondholder not having
exercised the Conversion/Exchange Right prior to the end of such seventh Business Day will receive the
redemption price determined as set out in Condition 5.1 or Condition 5.3, as the case may be.

13.4  Exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right

To exercise the Conversion/Exchange Right, Bondholders should make their request to the intermediary
with whom their securities are registered. The Paying Agent will centralise all such requests.

Any request for the exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right received by the Paying Agent during a
calendar month (the “Exercise Period”) will take effect on the earlier of the following dates (the “Exercise
Date™):

(i) the last Business Day of such Exercise Period; and
(ii) the seventh Business Day preceding the date set for redemption,

provided that the Exercise Date in December of each year shall be the third Business Day prior to the
Interest Payment Date in December and that the Exercise Period ending on the last Business Day of
January shall be deemed to have started on the Business Day following the Exercise Date in December.

In respect of Bonds having the same Exercise Date, the Issuer shall be entitled, at its option, to
choose between:

(a) the conversion of the Bonds into new Shares;

(b) the exchange of the Bonds for existing Shares;

(c) the delivery of the Cash Value of the Shares; or

(d) the delivery of a combination of new Shares, existing Shares and/or Cash,

No later than 5:00 pm (Luxembourg time) on the second Business Day following each Exercise Date
(the “Decision Date”), the Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent whether it intends to deliver Shares, the Cash
Value of the Shares or a combination thereof and such information will be available to Bondholders at the
offices of the Paying Agent.



“Cash Value” means, in respect of each Bondholder exercising its Conversion/Exchange Rights, the
arithmetic mean of the product of:

(a) the volume weighted average price of a Share on the Stock Exchange (taking into account only the
purchase and sale orders executed on the order book over the day (including transactions executed
on the Stock Exchange at the opening and closing) and excluding orders not executed on the order
book (such as block trades)), converted if necessary into euro using the rate provided by the
European Central Bank on such day (or, if such rate is not available, such other rate as, in the
opinion of BGL, as Calculation Agent (the “Calculation Agent”), may be substituted for it) and
rounding the resultant amount to the nearest €0.01 (0.005 being rounded upwards)), as provided by
the Stock Exchange or, failing this, determined by the Calculation Agent (the “Share Value™);

(b) the number of Bonds presented by such Bondholder in exercise of his Conversion/Exchange Right;
and

(c) the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect,

on each of the three successive Stock Exchange Trading Days commencing on the first Stock Exchange
Trading Day after the Decision Date.

All holders of Bonds with the same Exercise Date will be treated equally and have their Bonds
converted, exchanged and/or paid in cash, as appropriate, in the same proportion, subject to any rounding
adjustments.

In the event that the Issuer elects to deliver a combination of Shares (whether new and/or existing
Shares) and cash, the cash amount to be paid, in respect of each Bondholder, shall be equal to the difference
between (i) the Cash Value in respect of the relevant Bondholder, and (ii) the arithmetic mean of the product
of (a) the Share Value on each of the three successive Stock Exchange Trading Days commencing on the first
Stock Exchange Trading Day after the Decision Date, and (b) the number of Shares the Issuer has elected to
deliver to the relevant Bondholder (as may be adjusted by the Calculation Agent following the occurrence of
any event referred to in Conditions 13.6.2 or 13.6.3 during such three Stock Exchange Trading Day period).

The Calculation Agent shall determine the number of Shares and/or amount of cash to be delivered in
respect of an exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right by reference to the aggregate number of Bonds
in respect of which such right has been exercised by each Bondholder.

Delivery of Shares and/or payment of cash to a Bondholder will take place on or before the seventh
Business Day following the Exercise Date.

The new Shares arising as a result of conversion of Bonds and the existing Shares given in exchange for
Bonds will be listed on all stock exchanges on which all other Shares are then currently listed. Depending
upon the date from which they will carry beneficial rights (“date de jouissance™), the Shares will be listed
either directly on the first line of listing in the case of exchange or conversion for Shares having an
immediate right to dividends or on a second line of listing for existing Shares or newly issued Shares given
without coupon in the circumstances set out in Condition 13.5. The Shares which are initially in the second
line of listing will be transferred to the first line from the due date for payment of the dividend to which they
are not entitled.

13.5 Bondholders’ rights to interest payments on the Bonds and to dividends in respect of Shares
delivered

In the event of exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right, no interest will be payable to Bondholders in
respect of the period from the last Interest Payment Date preceding the Exercise Date and the date on which
the Shares are delivered.

The new Shares issued upon conversion and the existing Shares delivered upon exchange will carry
beneficial rights from the first day of the financial year in which the Exercise Date falls. They will however
not carry the right to any dividend for any financial year already ended. They will carry the right in respect
of the financial year in which the Exercise Date falls (excluding any interim dividend paid prior to the
Exercise Date) and subsequent financial years, to the same dividend (equal by reference to their accounting
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par value) as that which may be paid in relation to the other Shares carrying the same beneficial rights.
They will therefore rank pari passu with such other Shares with effect from the due date for payment of the
dividend relating to the preceding financial year or, if none is distributed, after the annual general meeting
considering the accounts of that year.

13.6 Bondholders’ rights
13.6.1  Undertakings of the Issuer

The Issuer undertakes, whilst any Bonds are outstanding, not to repay its share capital, nor to alter its
articles of association with respect to the distribution of profits to Shareholders. However, the Issuer may
create voting or non-voting preference shares or other preferred equity instruments, pursuant to the provisions
of the law of 10 August 1915 relating to commercial companies, provided that the rights of the Bondholders
are protected, in accordance with the terms of this Condition 13.6.

13.6.2  Reduction of capital by reason of losses

In the event of a reduction of capital by reason of losses, the rights of the Bondholders to receive Shares
will be reduced accordingly, as if such Bondholders had been Shareholders as of the date of the issue of the
Bonds, whether the reduction of capital is achieved through a reduction in the accounting par value of the
Shares or in the number of Shares. In the latter case, the new Conversion/Exchange Ratio for the allocation
of Shares will be determined by multiplying the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect prior to the reduction in
capital by the following formula:

Number of Shares existing after the transaction

Number of Shares existing before the transaction

13.6.3  Financial transactions
Upon completion of any of the following transactions:
1. issue of securities carrying a preferential subscription right to its Shareholders;

2. increase in Share capital by capitalisation of reserves, profits or Share premia and by distribution of
bonus Shares, or the subdivision or consolidation of Shares;

3. in the event that a nominal value is assigned to the Shares, an increase in Share capital, without
issuing Shares, by capitalisation of reserves, profits, or Share premia by increasing the nominal
value of the Shares;

4. distribution to Shareholders of any bonus financial instruments other than Shares;
5. absorption, merger, spin-off, division (scission);
6. buy-back of own Shares; or

7. distribution of an exceptional distribution,

which the Issuer may carry out after the Issue Date, the rights of the Bondholders will be protected by
adjusting the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in accordance with the following provisions.

This adjustment shall be calculated in such a manner so that the value of the Shares which would have
been delivered in the event of an exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right before the occurrence of one of
the transactions mentioned above, is equivalent to the value of the Shares which would be delivered in the
event of an exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right after the occurrence of such transaction.

In the event of an adjustment carried out in accordance with Conditions 13.6.3.1 to 13.6.3.7, the new
Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be calculated to three decimal places and rounded to the nearest thousandth
(0.0005 being rounded upwards). Any subsequent adjustments will be carried out on the basis of such newly
calculated and rounded Conversion/Exchange Ratio. However, the Bonds can only result in the delivery of a
whole number of Shares, the treatment of fractions of Shares being governed by Condition 13.7.
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13.6.3.1 In the event of a financial transaction conferring a preferential right of subscription, the new
Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be determined by multiplying the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect prior
to the relevant transaction by the following formula:

Share price ex-subscription right plus the price of the subscription right

Share price ex-subscription right

For the purposes of calculating this formula, the prices of the Share ex-subscription right and of the
subscription right will be determined on the basis of the average of the closing prices quoted on the
Stock Exchange falling in the subscription period during which the Share ex-subscription right and the
subscription right are quoted simultaneously.

13.6.3.2 In the event of an increase in Share capital by capitalisation of reserves, profits or Share
premia and by distribution of bonus Shares, or by the subdivision or consolidation of Shares, the new
Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be determined by multiplying the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect prior
to the relevant transaction by the following formula:

Number of Shares existing after the transaction

Number of Shares existing before the transaction

13.6.3.3 Only if the Issuer assigns a nominal value to the Shares, in the event of an increase in Share
capital without Shares being issued by means of a capitalisation of reserves, profits or Share premia, effected
by increasing the nominal value of the Shares, the nominal value of the Shares which may be delivered to the
Bondholders exercising their Conversion/Exchange Right, will be increased accordingly.

13.6.3.4 In the event of an allotment of bonus financial instruments other than the Shares of the Issuer,
the new Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be determined:

(a) if the right to receive financial instruments is quoted on the Stock Exchange, by multiplying the
Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect prior to the relevant transaction by:

Share price ex-right + the price of the right to receive financial instruments
Share price ex-right

For the purposes of calculating this formula, the prices of the Shares ex-right and of the right to
receive financial instruments will be determined on the basis of the average of the closing prices
quoted on the Stock Exchange of the Share and of the right to receive financial instruments on the
first ten Stock Exchange Trading Days on which the Share and the right to receive financial
instruments are quoted simultaneously. If this calculation is made on the basis of less than five
prices, it shall be confirmed by or evaluated in a certificate of an expert appointed by the Issuer.

(b) if the right to receive financial instruments is not quoted on the Stock Exchange, by multiplying the
Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect prior to the start of the relevant transaction by the following
formula:

Price of the Share ex-right + value of the financial instruments allocated to each Share
Price of the Share ex-right

For the purposes of calculating this formula, the price of the Share ex-right will be determined as in
(a) above and the value of the financial instruments allocated to each Share, if such instruments are
quoted on a regulated or similar market, will be determined on the basis of the average of the
closing prices quoted on the ten consecutive Stock Exchange Trading Days following the date of
allocation of such financial instruments during which the Share and the financial instrument(s) are
quoted simultaneously. If the financial instruments allocated are not quoted on a regulated or similar
market, their value shall be evaluated in an expert’s certificate.

For the avoidance of doubt, no adjustment shall be made under this Condition 13.6.3.4 for any
distribution within the meaning of article 72-1(4) of the law of August 10, 1915 on commercial
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companies, as amended irrespective of whether such distribution gives rise to an adjustment under
Condition 13.6.3.7 or not.

13.6.3.5 In the event of absorption of the [ssuer by another company or merger of the Issuer with one
or more other companies to create a new company, or a division (scission) or spin-off of the Issuer, the
Bonds may be exchanged upon exercise of the Conversion/Exchange Right for shares (“Substitute Shares™)
of the absorbing or new company or the companies resulting from any division (scission) or spin-off, as the
case may be, in the same manner as before such event according to the Conversion/Exchange Ratio adjusted
as set forth below.

The Conversion/Exchange Ratio for Substitute Shares shall be determined by multiplying the
Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect before such event by the exchange ratio of Shares for Substitute Shares
(expressed as a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of Substitute Shares and the denominator of
which is the number of Shares).

13.6.3.6 In the event that the Issuer makes an offer to all Shareholders to buy back its own Shares at a
price that is higher than the Share Price the new Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be determined by
multiplying the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect by the following formula:

Share price + Pc per cent x (Buy-back price-Share price)
Share price

For the purposes of calculating this formula:

“Share price” means the average of at least ten consecutive closing quoted Share prices on the Stock
Exchange chosen from the twenty consecutive closing quoted Share prices preceding the buy-back
(or the buy-back offer).

“Pc per cent” means the percentage of the Share capital that has been bought back.

“Buy-back price” means the effective price of buying back Shares (which is by definition higher than
the Share Price).

13.6.3.7 A distribution will be deemed to be an exceptional distribution to the extent that the Retun on
Equity (as defined below) taking into account the aggregate amount of all distributions per Share of the Issuer
paid in cash or in kind (before any withholding, if applicable, and excluding any tax credit) since the start of
the same financial period is greater than the Extraordinary Distnbution Trigger (as defined below), it being
expressly understood that any distribution or part of distribution which would result in an adjustment to the
Exchange Ratio in accordance with clauses 13.6.3.1 to 13.6.3.6 will not be taken into account for the purpose
of determining whether a distribution is an exceptional distribution or for calculating the Return on Equity.

In the event of a distribution of an exceptional distribution, the new Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be
equal to the product of the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect before the date of payment of the
Trigger Distribution and the following factor:

1 + Return on Equity—Standard Return on Equity

In the event of payment of any dividend per Share paid in cash or in kind (before any withholding, if
applicable, and excluding any tax credit) between the date of payment of a Trigger Distribution (as defined
below) and the close of the same financial period (a “Supplementary Distribution™), the Conversion/Exchange
Ratio will be adjusted. The new Conversion/Exchange Ratio will be equal to the product of the Conversion/
Exchange Ratio in force before the date of payment of the Supplementary Distribution and the following
factor:

1 + Supplementary Distribution Return on Equity.
For the purposes of this clause 13.6.3.7,
“Extraordinary Distribution Trigger” means 8.5%,

“Trigger Distribution™ means the distribution as a result of which the Return on Equity becomes greater
than the Extraordinary Distribution Trigger;
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“Previous Distribution” means any distribution paid since the start of the same financial period prior to
the Trigger Distribution;

“Return on Equity” means the sum of the ratios obtained by dividing the Trigger Distribution and,
where applicable, all Previous Distributions, by the average of the closing prices of the Shares on each Stock
Exchange Trading Day in the twelve month period ending on the last Stock Exchange Trading Day prior to
the date on which the directors resolve to make, or resolve to propose to the shareholders’ meeting to make,
the Trigger Distribution;

“Supplementary Distribution Return on Equity” means the ratio obtained by dividing the Supplementary
Distribution (net of all distributions or any part of distribution having resulted in an adjustment to the
Conversion/Exchange Ratio in accordance with Conditions 13.6.3.1 to 13.6.3.7) by the average of the closing
prices of the Shares on each Stock Exchange Trading Day in the twelve month period ending on the last
Stock Exchange Trading Day prior to the date on which the directors resolve to make, or resolve to propose
to the shareholders’ meeting to make, the Supplementary Distribution;

“Standard Return on Equity” means:

Rn-) + Rn-2 + Rn-3 + Rn—4 + Rn—S

where:

R, is the Return on Equity for the immediately preceding financial year;
R..> is the Return on Equity for the second preceding financial year;

R,..3 is the Return on Equity for the third preceding financial year;

Rp.4 is the Return on Equity for the fourth preceding financial year; and
Ry.s is the Return on Equity for the fifth preceding financial year,

provided that for the purpose of these calculations, Return on Equity shall mean the aggregate of the Return
on Equity as defined above and the Supplemental Return on Equity and that for any preceding financial year
completed prior to the Issue Date, the Return on Equity for such financial year shall be deemed to be 4.5%.

It is expressly understood that any distribution or part of distribution which has resulted in an adjustment
to the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in accordance with Conditions 13.6.3.1 to 13.6.3.7 will not be taken into
account as a Previous Distribution for the purpose of determining the Return on Equity.

13.6.3.8 In the event that the Issuer carries out any transaction in respect of which an adjustment would
not be made as specified in Conditions 13.6.3.1 to 13.6.3.7 and if any future law or regulation should provide
for an adjustment, the Issuer will make such adjustment in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations and with the practices used in the markets on which the Bonds are quoted.

The board of directors will report on the methods of the calculation and the results of any adjustment in
the next annual report.

In the event of an adjustment, the Bondholders will be notified of the new Conversion/Exchange Ratio
by a notice to the Bondholders given in accordance with Condition 14.

13.7 Treatment of fractional Shares

Any Bondholder exercising its Conversion/Exchange Right may receive a number of Shares, which is
calculated by multiplying the number of Bonds presented by the Conversion/Exchange Ratio in effect at such
time.

[f the number of Shares calculated in this manner is not a whole number, the Bondholder shall receive
the nearest whole number of Shares immediately less than its entitlement and will receive a payment equal to
the value of such additional fraction of a Share, calculated on the basis of the closing Share price quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the Exercise Date.

23



13.8 Notification of Bondholders
In the event of a transaction involving preferential subscription rights for Shareholders, the Bondholders
will be notified prior to the commencement of such transaction by a notice given to Bondholders
in accordance with Condition 4.
14 Notice to Bondholders

Notices to the Bondholders shall be published in the Luxemburger Wort.

1S Governing Law and Competent Courts an the Event of a Dispute
The Bonds are issued under and governed by the laws and regulations of the Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg. In the event of a dispute, the courts of Luxembourg shall have jurisdiction.
16 Agent in charge of the financial service of the Bonds and centralisation of the Conversion/Exchange
Right
Paying Agent and Calculation Agent in Luxembourg:

Banque Générale du Luxembourg SA
50, avenue J.F. Kennedy
L-2951 Luxembourg

Copies of the consolidated articles of association of the Issuer and of the contract for financial services
can be obtained from the Paying Agent.
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2.2 Guarantee of ARCELOR Finance

In consideration of ARCELOR, a société anonyme, having its registered office at 19, avenue de la
Liberté, L-2930 (hereafter the “Issuer”) issuing 3 per cent. Bonds maturing in 2017 in a nominal aggregate
amount of EUR 748,999,981.50 with a nominal value per Bond of EUR 19.25 which may be converted into
and/or exchanged for new and/or existing shares of the Issuer (the “Bonds”), ARCELOR Finance, a société
en commandite par actions, having its registered office at 19, avenue de la Liberté, L-2930 (hereafter the
“Guarantor”) hereby represents that it has full knowledge of and accepts all the terms and conditions of the
Bonds (the “Conditions™). All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given thereto in the
Conditions.

The Guarantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees the due and punctual performance of
all and any obligations of the Issuer under the Conditions, including the due and punctual payment of interest,
principal and of any other sums due pursuant to the Bonds as well as the due and punctual delivery of shares
in the [ssuer or their Cash Value, and expressed to be payable or otherwise discharged under the Conditions
by the Issuer when and as, and in the currency or form in which, the same shall be expressed to be due and
payable or otherwise discharged, whether at maturity or early redemption, on an Interest Payment Date or
upon conversion or exchange of the Bonds or otherwise, in accordance with the Conditions (the
“Guarantee”).

The Guarantor covenants that, in the event of default by the Issuer in the performance of any of the
obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds when and as the same shall be expressed to be due and payable or
otherwise discharged, whether at maturity or early redemption, on an Interest Payment Date or upon
conversion or exchange of the Bonds or otherwise (“default by the Issuer”), it will make such payment or
delivery, or cause such payment or delivery to be made, punctually as if such payment or delivery were made
by the Issuer.

The Guarantor hereby agrees that this Guarantee is its primary obligation, jointly and severally with the
Issuer, and that its obligations under this Guarantee shall be, upon default by the lssuer, unconditional,
irrespective of any invalidity, irregularity or unenforceability of or defect in any provision of the Conditions
or any of the obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds, the absence of any action to enforce the same or any
other circumstance, affecting the Issuer or otherwise, which might otherwise constitute a legal discharge or
defense of a guarantor.

The Guarantee constitutes direct, upon default by the Issuer unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Guarantor, which rank and will rank equally with all its other present or future unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations, except for such obligations as may be preferred by law.

This Guarantee is additional to and not instead of, any security or other guarantee at any time existing in
favour of the bondholders, whether from the Guarantor or otherwise.

The Guarantor hereby waives any right to require prior proceedings against the Issuer or any other
person and any other notice and all demands whatsoever, except a demand on the Guarantor as provided in
this Guarantee, and, in case of default of the Issuer, the Guarantor will pay or deliver, on first demand and
within three (3) business days of such demand, any amounts or shares of the Issuer due under the Bonds
without any previous action as described hereinbefore being necessary. The Guarantor irrevocably and
unconditionally waives expressly its right to benefit of articles 2021 (discussion), 2026 (division) and
article 2037 of the Luxembourg Civil Code.

The giving of time to the Issuer or neglect or forbearance of the Bondholders in requiring or enforcing
performance of the whole or any part of the Issuer’s obligations or any dealings or transactions between the
Issuer and the Bondholders shall not discharge or in any way prejudice or affect the Guarantor’s liability
under this Guarantee.

This Guarantee will remain in full force until all obligations under the Bonds have been fully discharged
in accordance with the Conditions. The Guarantor acknowledges that it shall not invoke any novation
affecting the Issuer, in particular, in the case of an amalgamation, reorganisation or merger affecting the
Issuer or its liquidation to release the Guarantor from its obligations under this Guarantee. The Guarantee
shall remain valid and shall not be affected by the occurrence of any of the following events affecting the
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Issuer: a gestion contrélée, a concordat judiciaire, a faillite, a banqueroute or a liquidation judiciaire or any
other analogous proceeding.

The Guarantor shall be fully subrogated to the Bondholders’ rights upon payment of any amounts and
delivery of any shares of the Issuer due to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions, provided that
until all obligations have been paid or discharged in full in accordance with the Conditions, (i) the Guarantor
shall not exercise on whatever grounds its right of subrogation (droit de subrogation) to the Bondholders’
rights in respect of any payment or delivery it may have made under this Guarantee and shall not otherwise
take any steps resulting in it competing with the Bondholders’ rights and (ii) any right the Guarantor may
have to request a repayment or other compensation by subrogation or otherwise from the Issuer (recours
subrogatoire) shall be fully subordinated in all respects to any claim of the Bondholders against the I[ssuer for
payment in full of all amounts and delivery in full of all shares of the Issuer owing to the Bondholders.

Until the actual repayment of all of the Bonds, the Guarantor undertakes not to grant any charge
(hypothégue) over the real property assets and rights it may or may come to possess, nor any pledge
(nantissement) on its business (fonds'de commerce), in each case for the benefit of other creditors without
granting similar security to the holders of the Bonds and ensuring that the Bonds rank similarly. This
undertaking is given only in relation to bond indebtedness and does not affect in any way the right of the
Guarantor to dispose of its assets or to grant any security in respect of such assets in other circumstances.

All payments in respect of the Guarantee will be made without withholding of or deduction for taxation
unless the withholding or deduction is required by [aw, in which case the relevant payment will be made
subject to such withholding or deduction. The Guarantor will not be required to pay any additional or further
amounts in respect of such withholding or deduction.

This Guarantee is governed by the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,

The Guarantor agrees that all disputes relating to the validity, interpretation and performance of this
Guarantee shall be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the competent courts in Luxembourg.

Luxerﬁbourg, 27th June, 2002

ARCELOR Finance
by its gérant

ARCELOR
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2.3 Use of proceeds
The net proceeds of the issue of the Bonds are expected to amount to approximately EUR 745 million

and will be used for the general financing needs of ARCELOR and its Group, including the refinancing of
certain existing indebtedness.
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CHAPTER 3 GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING ARCELOR AND ITS CAPITAL

3.1 General information concerning ARCELOR
3.1.1 Name and registered office

Name : ARCELOR

Registered and head office :

19, avenue de la Liberté

L-2930 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

3.1.2 Legal form

The Company is a société anonyme incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg and is registered in the
Luxembourg register of commercial companies under number B 82454,

The Company will consider the possibility of being transformed into a European company when the
legal framework permitting this is in place.

3.1.3 Date of incorporation and duration

The Company has been incorporated on 8th June, 2001 for an unlimited duration. The articles of
association were published in the Mémorial C of 24th September, 2001 and 11th October, 2001.

The articles of association have been amended by deeds dated 11th and 12th December, 2001 and by
deeds dated 15th February and 18th March, 2002 which have been published in the Mémorial C respectively
on 27th December, 2001, 11th March, 2002 and 8th April, 2002.

3.1.4 Object

In accordance with article 3 of the articles of association, the object of ARCELOR is the manufacturing
and processing of and trading in steel, steel products and other metal products as well as all products and
materials involved in their manufacturing, processing and trading as well as all industrial and commercial
activities directly or indirectly related to these objects, including research activities and the creation,
acquisition, holding, exploitation and sale of patents, licences, know-how and of intellectual and industrial
property generally.

The Company may realise such object either directly or by the creation of companies, the acquisition,
holding or taking of participations in any company or partnership, and the participation in any associations,
interest groups and joint ventures.

More generally, the object of ARCELOR includes the holding of participations, in any form whatsoever,
in any companies or partnerships and the acquisition by purchase, subscription or any other means, as well as
the transfer by sale, exchange or otherwise, of shares, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities and
instruments of any kind.

It may grant assistance to affiliated companies and take any controlling and supervisory measures in
respect of any such companies.

It may carry out any operation or transaction, whether commercial, financial or industrial, which it may
deem directly or indirectly necessary or useful for the fulfilment and development of its objects.
3.1.5 Inspection of legal and financial documents

The articles of association of ARCELOR, in French with an English translation, may be inspected at its
registered office.

The articles of association are also lodged, in French, with the register of commercial companies in
Luxembourg, with the greffe du tribunal de commerce of Brussels and with the greffe du tribunal
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de commerce of Paris and in Spain (together with a Spanish translation), with the Comision Nacional del
Mercado de Valores (“CNMV?”), the Spanish Stock Exchanges and the Spanish Liaison Entity.

ARCELOR has not yet published any consolidated financial statements (the financial information
contained herein being established on a pro forma basis). The annual report and the unconsolidated
annual accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2001 and for subsequent years and, starting from the
accounting year 2002, the consolidated annual accounts as well as the semi-annual and quarterly financial
data published by ARCELOR may be inspected at its registered office where a copy may be obtained. The
unconsolidated annual accounts and the consolidated accounts will also be lodged with the register of
commercial companies in Luxembourg, in Belgium with the Banque Nationale de Belgique and in France
with the Commission des Opérations de Bourse. In Spain these documents and the semi-annual and
quarterly financial data will be lodged with the CNMV and the Spanish Stock Exchanges and with the
Spanish Liaison Entity.

3.1.6 Places of listing

The Shares of ARCELOR are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Premier Marché of
Euronext Brussels, the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris SA and the Stock Exchanges of Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia.

3.1.7 Accounting year

The accounting year begins on 1st January of each year and ends on 31st December of the same year.
The first accounting year has ended on 31st December, 2001.

3.1.8 Allocation of profits

Luxembourg law and the articles of association provide that 5% of the annual net profits of ARCELOR
shall be allocated to the reserve required by law. This allocation shall cease to be required once such reserve
shall have reached 10% of the subscribed capital of ARCELOR.

The general meeting of the shareholders, upon proposal of the board of directors, shall determine how
the remainder of the annual net profits shall be allocated:

+ a global amount shall be allocated to the board of directors as directors’ emoluments. This amount
may not be less than EUR 1,000,000 (if profits are not sufficient, that amount shall be treated
wholly or in part as expenses); and

e the balance shall be distributed in the form of dividends to the shareholders or allocated to reserves
or carried forward.

Subject to the conditions laid down by law, ARCELOR may, upon decision of the board of directors,
distribute interim dividends if it appears that, on the basis of an accounting statement, it has sufficient own
funds available for distribution. The interim dividends may not exceed the profit made since the end of the
last accounting year increased by any profits carried forward and distributable reserves (including distributable
share issue premiums) and decreased by losses made since the end of the last accounting year, any carried
forward losses and any sums which have to be allocated to reserve pursuant to legal requirements or the
articles of association.

Dividends will be distributed to shareholders in proportion of the number of Shares held.

Dividends payable on Shares of ARCELOR directly registered in the register of Shares shall be directly
paid to the persons in the name of which the Shares are registered. As long as a shareholder holds his Shares
in ARCELOR through the intermediary of a securities settlement system or a participant in such system,
he will receive his dividends through such system or such participant and in order to receive that dividend
will have to comply with the rules of that system.

Any dividends not claimed within five years after payment thereof will be time-barred and will revert
to ARCELOR.
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3.1.9 Winding-up and liquidation

In case of liquidation of ARCELOR, the net assets of ARCELOR shall be distributed to the shareholders
in proportion of the number of Shares they hold.
3.2 General information concerning the share capital of ARCELOR and share rights

3.2.]1 Issued capital

Amount of issued capital . . . . .. .o L EUR 2,641,802,555
Number of issued Shares . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... e 528,360,511
Amount of non-issued authorised capital . . ... . .. .. ... ... ... ... ... EUR 2,358,197,445
Number of non-issued authorised Shares. . . . . . . . .. ... . ... ... ...... 471,639,489
Number of non-issued authorised Shares reserved for conversion of O.C.E.AN.E.

ARCELOR 2005, O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR 2006 and the Bonds.” . . . . ... ... 91,362,462
Balance of non-issued authorised Shares available . . . . .. . ... .. ... ..... 380,277,027

All issued Shares are fully paid.

3.2.2 Evolution of the share capital of ARCELOR since its incorporation
ARCELOR was incorporated on 8th June, 2001 with an issued capital of EUR 32,250.

Since its incorporation, the share capital of ARCELOR has only been increased as a result of the
Public Exchange Offers, the acquisition of the minority shareholding in Sidmar and the contribution of
additional ACERALIA shares by Arbed Espafia BV as described below.

On 15th February, 2002, ARCELOR issued 516,215,823 new Shares in satisfaction of the ACERALIA,
ARBED and USINOR shares tendered to the initial Public Exchange Offers on those companies and
as consideration for the contribution by Staal Vlaanderen N.V. of 1,561,668 ARBED shares.

In compliance with applicable provisions, ARCELOR subsequently reopened the offer on ARBED in
Luxembourg and Belgium and the offer on USINOR in France, with the terms of the offers remaining
unchanged.

On 18th March, 2002, ARCELOR issued a further 12,138,238 new Shares 1n satisfaction of the ARBED
and USINOR shares tendered to the re-opening of the Public Exchange Offers on ARBED and USINOR and
in consideration for the contribution by Arbed Espafia BV of 297,384 ACERALIA shares.

At the completion of the Public Exchange Offers and the ancillary transactions mentioned above,
ARCELOR issued a total of 528,354,061 ARCELOR Shares. Taking into account the 6,450 preexisting
shares, the total number of issued ARCELOR shares on 18th March, 2002 was 528,360,511 representing a
subscribed share capital of EUR 2,641,802,555.

{ Excluding the New O.C.E.AN.E. and assuming that afl conversion requests will be served by the issuance of new Shares.
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The table below summarises the above contributions:

Total

of new
ACERALIA ARCELOR ARBED ARCELOR USINOR ARCELOR ARCELOR

shares Shares shares Shares shares Shares Shares

contributed issued contributed” issued contributed issued issued
15th February, 2002 . . . . 118,495,385 157,993,846 9,895,588 123,165,502 235,056,475 235,056,475 516,215,823
18th March, 2002, . . . . . 297,354 396,472 102,416 1,100,972 10,640,794 10,640,794 12,138,238
Total ... ......... 118,792,739° 158,390,318  11,559,672¢ 124,266,474 245,697,269° 245,697269 528,354,061

As part of the Public Exchange Offers, ARCELOR also issued two O.C.E.ANN.E. as referred to in 3.2.3

below.

No further Shares or instruments giving access to the share capital of ARCELOR have been issued since
18th March, 2002 except for the Bonds.

3.2.3

Instruments giving access to the capital of ARCELOR

The instruments issued by ARCELGOR which give access to its capital (including the New O.C.E. AN.E.
to be issued in connection with the OPRE) and the number of existing or new Shares for which these
instruments can be exercised are set out in the table below:

Number of new

Maximum or existing
number of Conversion ratio Shares to be

Number New O.C.E.AN.E. O.C.EAN.E/ delivered
Instrument outstanding® to be issued’ Share® upon exercise
OCEANE. 2005. ... . ......... 24,680,648 319,352 1/1 25,000,000
OCEANE. 2006. .. ........... 27,720,776 855,123 /1 28,575,899
OCEANMNE. 2017. ... .......... 38,961,038 — ’ 1/1 38,961,038
Total . . .. ... ... .. ... ... .. 92,536,937

At the completion of the Public Exchange Offers, ARCELOR had issued 24,680,648 O.C.E.AN.E. 2005
and 27,720,876 O.C.E.ANN.E. 2006. Since their issue, no O.C.E.A.N.E. 2005 and 100 O.C.E.A.N.E. 2006
have been exercised and the latter gave rise to the delivery of 100 existing ARCELOR Shares.

3.24 Admission to listing

The existing Shares of ARCELOR are admitted to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the
Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels, the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris S.A. and the Stock Exchanges
of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia.

The listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange of any new Shares to be issued pursuant to the OPRE
and as a result of future conversions of the Bonds or the O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR has been approved.
Applications will be made for the admission to listing of such new Shares on ali other stock exchanges on
which the existing Shares are listed.

A description of the OPRE is set out in section 8.7 below.

representing 95.03% of the issued share capital of ACERALIA.
including the contribution of 1,561,668 ARBED shares by Staal Vlaanderen N.V.
representing 99.43% of the issued share capital of ARBED.
representing 97.58% of the issued share capital of USINOR at the end of the re-opening of the Public Exchange Offer.
For the O.C.E.AN.E. 2005 and O.C.E.AN.E. 2006 the figures are given as at 31st May, 2002, the next exercise date in respect of
such bonds being 28th June, 2002.
7 In case of a 100% acceptance rate in the OPRE and the absence of any conversion request of O.C.E.AN.E. USINOR before
29th June, 2002.
8 The conversion ratio of each instrument is subject to adjustment in the case of occurrence of certain events (for the O.C.E.AN.E.
2017, see Condition 13 in section 2.1).
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Stock Exchange Trading

Settlement (delivery and payment) of transactions on the stock exchanges where ARCELOR Shares are
listed will be effected through a settlement system recognised by the stock exchange in question.

Shareholders directly registered in ARCELOR’s share register must therefore, in order to be able to trade
their Shares on one of the stock exchanges where the Shares are quoted, deposit them first into one of the
settlement systems.

3.2.5 Form and means of holding ARCELOR Shares

All of the Shares are in registered form. They are all of the same class, without nominal value.
Shareholders may hold them, either by being directly entered into the Share register kept in Luxembourg by
or on behalf of ARCELOR, or by the Shares being held in book entry form with a bank or professional
securities depositary or other qualified financial intermediary, which will hold them through a securities
settlement system, either directly as a participant of such system or indirectly through such a participant.

3.2.6 General meetings of the shareholders

Every shareholder has the right to attend general meetings of shareholders in person or by appointing a
person of his choice as his proxy. The annual general meetings of shareholders shall be held at the registered
office of ARCELOR or at such other place in the city of Luxembourg as may be specified in the notice of the
meeting, on the last Friday of the month of April in each year at 11 a.m. If such day is not a bank business
day in Luxembourg, the annual general meeting shall be held at the first preceding bank business day.

Other shareholders’ meetings may be held at the dates, times and places specified in the notices of meeting.

The decision to convene a general meeting of the shareholders belongs to the board of directors.
Moreover, the shareholders’ meeting must be convened by the board of directors at the request of
shareholders representing at least 20% of the share capital in which case the meeting must be held within
the month following such request. i

Subject to what is stated in the last paragraph of this section 3.2.6, the general meeting of the
shareholders shall be convened in accordance with Luxembourg law by notices published twice, with a
minimum interval of eight days, and at least eight days before the meeting in one or several Luxembourg
newspapers and in the Mémorial C.

The convening notices for the ordinary and extraordinary meetings shall also be published in one or
more Belgian, Spanish and French newspapers of national circulation.

In Belgium, the notice shall be communicated to the market authority of Euronext Brussels and to a
press agency established in Belgium or to an electronic transmission system with a large circulation approved
by the market authority of Euronext Brussels. In Spain, the notice shall be communicated to the CNMV and
to the Spanish Stock Exchanges. In France, the notice shall be lodged at the COB at the latest on the day of
its publication.

Subject to what is stated in the last paragraph of this section 3.2.6, all shareholders registered in the
register of shares shall be convened in accordance with Luxembourg law, by ordinary mail, at least 8 days
prior to the shareholders’ meeting.

The resolutions of the ordinary shareholders’ meeting are adopted by a simple majority of the votes
validly expressed by the shareholders present or represented.

Save for the change of nationality of ARCELOR and the increase of the commitments of the
shareholders, which require the unanimous consent of the shareholders and holders of notes and bonds, the
extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders may resolve to amend the articles of association provided
shareholders representing at least half of the share capital are present or represented and provided the
amendment is adopted at a majority of 2/3 (two thirds) of the votes validly expressed by the shareholders
present or represented. If the shareholders present or represented do not represent at least haif of the share
capital, a new meeting with the same agenda may be convened by the board of directors. In such case, the
convening notices shall be published in at least 2 Luxembourg newspapers and the Mémorial C, with a
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minimum interval of 15 days, and at least 15 days before the meeting. Such notices shall also be published in
one or more French, Spanish and Belgian newspapers and in accordance with applicable stock exchange
regulations. The second meeting shall validly deliberate regardless of the proportion of the capital
represented. The resolutions will not be adopted unless carried by at least 2/3 (two thirds) of the votes validly
expressed by the shareholders present or represented.

3.2.7 Voting rights and participation in the general meetings of shareholders
Each Share is entitled to one vote.
The Company only recognises one owner per Share.

Each shareholder has the right to attend the general meetings of shareholders in person or by appointing
another person as his proxy, to speak at such meeting and to exercise his voting rights subject to the
provisions of the articles of association of ARCELOR. There is no requirement of a minimum number of
Shares to be held in order to participate in the general meetings of shareholders.

The Company does not apply a system of vote by correspondence.

Holders of registered Shares registered in the Share register five business days prior to the meeting are
admitted without other formality to such meeting.

Proxy forms must be lodged at the places and with the persons designated by the board of directors
at least five business days prior to the date of the meeting.

In accordance with Luxembourg law, shareholders holding their Shares through a clearing system may
attend and vote at general meetings of the sharcholders of ARCELOR by presenting at the place and at the
latest on the date preceding the fifth business day prior to the date of the meeting (unless ARCELOR sets a
shorter time-limit) as specified in the convening notice, a certificate indicating, inter alia, the number of
Shares held.

Such certificate may be obtained as follows:

s by shareholders holding their Shares through Clearstream or Euroclear, from the bank, professional
security depositary or the financial institution with which the Shares are held in an account;

¢ by shareholders holding their Shares through the intermediary of Euroclear France, from the
custodian of such Shares;

e for shareholders holding their Shares with an adhering entity of the Servicio de Compensacién y
Liquidaciéon de Valores S.A. (“SCLV™), the certificate must take the form of a tarjeta de asistencia,
and must be mandatorily accompanied by a certificado de legitimacion issued by the adhering entity
(the latter being governed by the provisions of section 18 et seq. of the Royal Decree n® 116/92 of
14th February, 1992).

The Shares which are the object of such a certificate, must be blocked until after the holding of the
meeting and may be transferred only after the holding of such meeting; such blocking will result from the
certificate.

Subject to the internal rules of the relevant clearing system, shareholders may also give instructions as to
how to exercise their vote to the bank, the professional securities depositary, the financial institution or the
custodian or the adhering entity of SCLV with which their Shares are held.

In such case, the Shares shall also be blocked until after, and may only be transferred after, the holding
of such meeting.

The board of directors will adopt any other regulations and procedures concerning the provision of
access cards and proxy forms so as to allow shareholders to exercise their voting rights.
3.2.8 Threshold disclosure requirement

In accordance with the Luxembourg law of 4th December, 1992 regarding the information to be
published when a major holding in a listed company is acquired or disposed of (the “Law of 1992”), in case
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a natural or legal entity governed by public or private law acquires or disposes of a holding in ARCELOR
and where following such acquisition or disposal, the proportion of voting rights held by that person or legal
entity reaches or exceeds one of the thresholds of 10%, 20%, 1/3, 50% and 2/3 of the total voting rights
existing when the situation giving rise to the declaration occurs, or falls below said thresholds, such person or
entity shall notify ARCELOR and at the same time the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier of
Luxembourg, within seven (7) calendar days, of the proportion of voting rights it holds following such
acquisition or disposal.

“Acquiring a holding” shall not only mean the purchase of a holding but also the acquisition by any
other means as more fully described in the Law of 1992.

In order to determine whether a person is required to make a declaration pursuant to the Law of 1992,
the Law (in its articles 7 and 8) assimilates the voting rights held by such person to the voting rights held by
certain other persons, including where there are links of control between such person or where they act in
concert.

If ARCELOR receives such a declaration, it must in turn disclose it to the public in each of the Member
States in which its Shares are officially listed on a stock exchange as soon as possible but not later than nine
(9) calendar days after the receipt of the declaration.

As long as the required information has not been declared and published pursuant to the Law of 1992,
the exercise of the voting rights attached to the Shares concerned is suspended.

Moreover, the articles of association provide in article 7 that the provisions of the Law of 1992 shall
also apply, after having taken into account the provisions of articles 7 and 8 of such Law, to (i) each
acquisition or disposal of Shares resulting in a holding exceeding or falling below the threshold of 2.5% of
the voting rights in ARCELOR; (ii) each acquisition or disposal of Shares resulting in a holding exceeding or
falling below the level of 5% of the voting rights in ARCELOR; and (iii) once a holding has exceeded 5% of
the voting rights in ARCELOR, each acquisition or disposal of Shares resulting in such holding exceeding or
falling below successive thresholds of 1% of the voting rights in ARCELOR.

Furthermore, the articles of association provide that any person who, in application of article 1 of the
Law of 1992, must notify the holding of Shares carrying 10% or more of the voting rights in ARCELOR,
shall promptly inform ARCELOR, by registered letter with acknowledgement of receipt, of its intention to
(i) acquire or dispose of Shares in ARCELOR in the following twelve months, (ii) seek to obtain control of
ARCELOR or (iii) seek to appoint a person to the board of directors of ARCELOR.

In case of non-compliance with the obligations of declaration set out in the articles of association and
described above, the articles of association provide that the voting rights attached to the Shares concerned
will be suspended.

The articles of association provide for certain exceptions to the threshold disciosure requirements
provided in the articles of association, which are described in section 3.2.10 hereafter.

3.2.9 Compulsory offer in case a threshold of 25% is exceeded

The articles of association provide that any person who must notify ARCELOR of an acquisition of
Shares as a result of which such person, taking into consideration the provisions of articles 7 and 8 of the
Law of 1992, holds a quarter or more of the total voting rights in ARCELOR, shall be obliged to make, or
cause another person to make, an unconditional public cash offer to all shareholders to acquire all of their
Shares and to all holders of securities conferring the right to acquire Shares of ARCELOR, such as
transferable securities or other financial instruments, allowing their holder to obtain Shares in ARCELOR,
irrespective of whether those securities are issued by ARCELOR or by entities controlled or established by
ARCELOR or by members of its Group or not, at a price payable in cash, in each jurisdiction where the
Shares of ARCELOR are listed as well as in each jurisdiction where ARCELOR has made a public offer of
its Shares; each such public offer must comply with all legal or regulatory requirements applicable to public
offers in the relevant jurisdiction. In each case, the price must be appropriate and fair and, in order to
guarantee an equal treatment of all shareholders and all holders of securities conferring the right to acquire
Shares of ARCELOR, such public offers must be made at an identical price which must be justified by a

34



report drawn up by a first ranking professional institution appointed by ARCELOR and whose fees and costs
shall be advanced by the person subject to the obligation described in the present section.

The foregoing obligation to make an unconditional cash offer shall not apply where the acquisition of
ARCELOR’s Shares by the person making such notification has received the prior authorisation of the
shareholders of ARCELOR by a resolution of the general meeting of the shareholders adopted in the manner
required to amend the articles of association including, but without limitation, in the case of a merger or a
contribution in kind against the issue of Shares.

If the public offer described above has not been made within a period of two (2) months after
notification to ARCELOR of the increase of shareholding entitling the shareholder to a quarter or more of the
voting rights, or after the notification by ARCELOR to the shareholder of its knowledge of the realisation of
such an increase, or if ARCELOR is notified that the competent authority in a jurisdiction in which
ARCELOR’s Shares are listed (or in a jurisdiction where ARCELOR has made a public offer of its Shares)
has determined that the public offer has been made in breach of legal or regulatory requirements applicable to
public offers in that jurisdiction, then starting from the day of expiry of the above-mentioned period of two
(2) months or from the date on which ARCELOR has been notified of the relevant authority’s determination,
the right to attend and to vote at general meetings of the shareholders and the right to receive dividends shall
be suspended in respect of those Shares held by that person which give that person more than a quarter of the
voting rights in ARCELOR.

A shareholder whose voting rights exceed one quarter of the voting rights in ARCELOR and who
requires the convening of a general meeting of the shareholders pursuant to article 70 of the Luxembourg law
on commercial companies, shall in order to be able to vote at the meeting, have proceeded to a final and
irrevocable public offer as described above prior to that general meeting. Failing this, the voting rights
attached to the Shares exceeding one quarter of the voting rights in ARCELOR will be suspended.

If, at the date of the annual general meeting, a shareholder has more than a quarter of the voting rights
in ARCELOR, his voting rights shall be suspended in relation to such percentage of voting rights as gives the
shareholder more than one quarter of the voting rights in ARCELOR except where the shareholder concerned
undertakes in writing not to vote the Shares exceeding one quarter of the voting rights or, if the shareholder
has proceeded definitely and irrevocably to the public offer as described in this section.

3.2.10 Exceptions to the statutory obligations of declaration and of mandatory offer

The provisions of the articles of association providing the obligations of declaration described in section
3.2.8 and those providing for a mandatory offer described in section 3.2.9 do not apply (without prejudice
however to any legal obligations):

o to ARCELOR itself, for the Shares which it may hold directly or indirectly;

e to the Depositaries in such capacity, it being specified that these provisions will apply to the persons
holding their Shares through such a Depositary and to Shares held by such a Depositary for the
account of persons who did not comply with the obligations set out in the articles of association and
described in sections 3.2.8 and 3.2.9. The term “Depositary” is defined in article 6 of the articles of
association of ARCELOR as being a securities’ settlement system or the operator of such a system
or a professional securities’ depositary or any other depositary;

s  to any transfer and to any issue of Shares by ARCELOR in the context of a merger or a similar
operation or the acquisition by ARCELOR of any other company or business; and

e to the acquisition of Shares resulting from a public offer to acquire all the Shares of ARCELOR.

3.2.11 Amendments of the share capital

The share capital of ARCELOR may be increased or reduced by a resolution of an extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders deciding in the manner required for the amendment of the articles of association.
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Under Luxembourg law and the articles of association, each shareholder has a preferential subscription
right in case of an issue of new Shares against a contribution in cash. That preferential subscription right
shall be proportional to the capital held by such shareholder.

The general meeting of the shareholders, deciding in the manner required for the amendment of the
articles of association, may limit or suspend such preferential subscription rights or authorise the board of
directors to do so in the context of the authorisation given to the board by the general meeting of the
shareholders to increase the capital within the limits of the authorised capital.

There is no preferential subscription right in case of capital increase by contribution in kind.

The capital of ARCELOR may also be increased by resolution of the board of directors adopted by a
majority of two thirds of the directors present or represented and pursuant to an authorisation given by the
general meeting of the shareholders in the manner required for the amendment of the articles of association.
This authorisation is contained in the articles of association of ARCELOR and may only be given for a
maximum duration of 5 years after the publication in the Mémorial C of the deed amending the articles of
association. Such authorisation may be renewed by an extraordinary general meeting.

The general meeting of the shareholders held on 11th December, 2001 has established an authorised
capital (including the subscribed capital) of EUR 5,000,000,000 represented by 1,000,000,000 Shares and has
given to the board of directors the authorisation to increase the share capital of ARCELOR until the
subscribed capital reaches the amount of the authorised capital. Such increase of capital may be made by
contributions in cash or in kind as well as by incorporation of reserves, of issue premiums or of carried
forward profits, with or without the issue of new Shares, or as a result of the issue and the exercise of
subordinated or non-subordinated bonds which are convertible, repayable or exchangeable into Shares or
carrying subscription rights for Shares or through the issue of any other security or instrument giving the
right to acquire Shares. That meeting has also authorised the board of directors of ARCELOR to limit or to
suspend the preferential subscription right. The authorisations mentioned above are valid for a period which
will end on 10th December, 2006, unless they are renewed.

The subscribed share capital of ARCELOR may be reduced by the extraordinary general meeting
deciding in the manner required for the amendment of the articles of association, subject to applicable legal
provisions.

3.2.12 Acquisition by ARCELOR of its own Shares

The Company may acquire its own Shares in accordance with the conditions established by Luxembourg
law and which are essentially as follows:

e the acquisition must be authorised by the decision of a general meeting of the shareholders of
ARCELOR which shall determine the terms and conditions of the acquisition and in particular, the
maximum number of Shares to be acquired, the duration of the period for which the authorisation is
given and which may not exceed 18 months and, in case of acquisition for value, the maximum and
minimum consideration;

o  the Shares held by ARCELOR as well as the Shares held by any other company of the type set out
in article 1 of EEC directive 68/151 and in which ARCELOR directly holds the majority of the
voting rights or on which it may directly exercise a dominant influence, may not, together, represent
more than 10% of the subscribed share capital of ARCELOR;

e the acquisitions by ARCELOR of its own Shares may not have the effect of reducing the net assets
below the aggregate of the subscribed share capital and the reserves which may not be distributed
under law or the articles of association; and

e only fully paid-up Shares may be acquired by ARCELOR.

Where the acquisition of ARCELOR’s own Shares is necessary in order to prevent serious and imminent
harm to ARCELOR, the authorisation of the shareholders’ meeting is not required.
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Where the Shares are acquired for distribution thereof to the employees of ARCELOR, the authorisation
of the shareholders’ meeting is not required. The Shares which are acquired to be distributed to the
employees must be distributed at the latest within one year from the date of acquisition.

The Shares acquired by ARCELOR in breach of the rules mentioned above must be disposed of within a
period of one year from the date of their acquisition or be cancelled. The Company may then proceed to a
reduction of the subscribed share capital for the corresponding amount.

As long as the Shares are held by or for the account of ARCELOR, they will not carry any voting rights
and if these Shares are included among the assets shown in the balance sheet, a non-distributable reserve of
the same amount must be created on the liability side.

In certain conditions provided by the law, the acquisition or the holding of Shares of ARCELOR by
other companies in the Group being of a type referred to in article { of the EEC directive 68/151 will be
considered as an acquisition by ARCELOR itself.

The general meeting of the shareholders of ARCELOR held on 1ith December, 2001 has authorised the
board of directors to acquire Shares of ARCELOR or to cause them to be acquired by other companies of the
Group as referred to in article 49 bis of the law on commercial companies. That authorisation is valid for
18 months (until 11th June, 2003) and allows the board of directors to acquire a maximum of 10% of the
subscribed share capital. Such Shares may be acquired for a price ranging from EUR 5 to EUR 25 per Share.

The board of directors has in turn delegated authority to the management board to purchase up to 2% of
ARCELORs issued share capital representing 10,567,210 shares. This delegation is in addition to Shares of
ARCELOR held within the Group as a result of the Public Exchange Offers. As at 31st May, 2002, this
delegation had been used for 112,212 Shares, the holding of the balance of the treasury stock resulting from
the Public Exchange Offers and not from repurchases.

At 31st May, 2002 ARCELOR holds no own shares directly but the Group holds approximately 9.3% of
the Shares and 2.04% of the voting rights in ARCELOR. Only 2.81% are counied towards the 10% limit
referred to above. Out of the above treasury stock, 11,287,411 Shares are pledged to SEPI (see section
4.10.2). A further 6 million Shares have been lent to third parties under short term securities’ lending
arrangements.

3.3 Significant shareholdings in ARCELOR

The following table sets forth the shareholdings above 3.5% (excluding Shares held by the Group) of
which ARCELOR is aware as at 31st May, 2002.

Percentage
of shares of voting
Name of sharcholders outstanding rights
Luxembourg State. . . . . . . . . . . 5.99% 6.47%
Corporacidon IMAC BV. . . . . . . . . . 4.18% 4.51%
Sogepa S.A. . . . 3.79% 4.10%
Staal Vlaanderen N.V. . . . . . . .. L 3.69% 3.99%

As far as ARCELOR is aware at the date hereof, no shareholders have, alone or pursuant to a
shareholders agreement, either de facto or in law, control of ARCELOR.
3.4 Dividends

ARCELOR was incorporated on 8th June, 2001 and had no operational activity as at 31st December,
2001. Its accounts for the period ended 31st December, 2001 show a net profit of EUR 290.07.

It will be the responsibility of the board of directors of ARCELOR to define ARCELOR’s dividend
distribution policy based, inter alia, on the Group’s financial results (excluding negative goodwill), its
financial structure and its investment policy.

37



In this respect, ARCELOR intends to keep its decisions regarding dividends in line with the past
dividends paid by ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR. The Company has not yet adopted a definitive policy.

The table below shows the dividends of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR over the 2000, 1999 and
1998 financial years.

2000 1999 1998
(EUR, per share)

ACERALIA. . . o o e 0.69 051 051
ARBED . . . o 3.00 220 2.00
USINOR® . . . 0.56 0.48 0.48

On 21st November, 2001 the board of directors of ACERALIA approved the distribution of an interim
dividend of a gross amount of EUR 0.54 per share for the financial year 2001 which was paid on 2nd
January, 2002.

On 5th December, 2001 the board of directors of ARBED approved the distribution of an interim
dividend of a gross amount of EUR 3.50 per share, for the financial year 2001 which was payable with effect
from 4th January, 2002.

On 21st November, 2001 the board of directors of USINOR approved a draft resolution proposing to the
general meeting of the shareholders the distribution of an extraordinary dividend of EUR 0.40 per share
together with a EUR 0.20 tax credit (avoir fiscal). The general meeting of USINOR approved such dividend
on 16th January, 2002 and the dividend was paid on 17th January, 2002.

The reduction in ARCELOR’s pro forma shareholders’ equity resulting from the above dividends of
ACERALIA and ARBED is reflected in the 2001 pro forma financial statements of the Group, whereas the
corresponding reduction resulting from the above USINOR dividend is reflected in the proforma 1st quarter
2002 figures of the Group. '

No dividend distribution has been resolved by the annual general shareholders’ meeting of each of
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR held on respectively 24th April, 2002, 31st May, 2002 and 4th June,
2002.

ARCELOR has not yet distributed any dividend nor does it intend to distribute any dividend during the
financial year 2002.

9 Net of avoir fiscal (form of tax credit).
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CHAPTER 4 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF ARCELOR AND
OF ITS GROUP

4.1 General

The ARCELOR Group was created as a result of the amalgamation of the ACERALIA, ARBED and
UISINOR groups (see section 3.2.2 for the success rates of the Public Exchange Offers).

The ARCELOR Group'’s steelmaking activities are divided into four sectors: flat carbon steel, long

carbon steel, stainless steel and distribution-transformation-trading. The ARCELOR Group, which has
approximately 108,000 employees in more than 60 countries, is the world’s largest steel producer with an

annual production of 43.5 million metric tons of crude steel in 2001. On the basis of pro forma figures for the
last financial year (2001), the ARCELOR Group has a turnover of more than EUR 27 billion.

The ARCELOR Group is the worldwide leader both in flat products with a turnover of more than
EUR 13 billion and in long products with a turnover of approximately EUR 4 billion. It is also one of the
worldwide leaders in stainless steel with a turnover of EUR 4.2 billion. In addition, the distribution-

transformation-trading sector has a turnover of nearly EUR 9.6 billion.

Key Figures

The pro forma consolidated net turnover of the ARCELOR Group, for each business sector, for the last

three financial years, after elimination of intra-group sales, is set out in the table below.

Pro forma consolidated net turnover

Flat carbonsteel . . . .. ... .. ... ... ... ..
Long carbonsteel . . .. .. ... ... . ... ...,
Stainless steel. . . . . . ... ... L L.
Distribution-transformation-trading . . . . . . . . .. ..
Otheractivities . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ......
Eliminations . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ......

2001 % 2000 % 1999 %
(EUR, in millions)
13,572 493 13,621 475 11,614 495
3963 144 4231 148 3,608 154
4240 154 4611 161 3,512 IS
9,541 347 10,445 364 8,084 34.4
1,251 45 721 25 524 22
(5,052) (183) (4,966) (17.3) (3,867) (16.5)
27,515 100 28,663 100 23,475 100

The table below shows the pro forma consolidated net turnover of the ARCELOR Group by
geographical region for the last three financial years. Sales to Europe (15-member EU) are made in euro and
in the other currencies of the European Union. Sales to other countries (North America, South America and
the rest of the world) are mainly made in US dollars and Brazilian reals.

Pro forma consclidated net
turnover (EUR, in millions)
Europe (15-Member EU) . . . . . . .. ... ... .. ...
North America . . . ... . ... ... ... . ... ...
South America . . . . . ... ... .. ... . ... . ...
Restofworld . . ... ... ... ... ............

39

2001

20,354
3,305
1,230
2,626

Yo

74.0
12.0
45
9.5

100

°/o

71.8
14.0
4.7
9.5

10

1999

17,654
3,078

1,891
23,475

%

752
13.1
3.6
8.1

100




The table below shows, for each business sector, for the last three financial years, after elimination of

intra-group sales, each sector’s contribution to the ARCELOR Group’s pro forma consolidated EBIT.

Pro forma consolidated EBIT

(EUR, in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Flat carbonsteel . . . . . . . . .. . . 67y 1,343 273
Longcarbonsteel. . . . . . .. .. . .. ... 367 468 265
Stainless steel . . . . . . .. 677) 199 (208)
Distribution-transformation-trading . . . . . .. ... .. ... . ..., 186 384 365
Other activities . . . . . . . .. . . .. 24) 40 15
ENminations. . . . . . . . . .. . e (23) (56) (26)
TOTAL . . . . . e (238) 2,378 692
Pro forma consolidated financial information

(EUR, in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Turnover . . . . . L e e e e e, 27,515 28,663 23,475
EBITDA Amount. . . . . . .. .. ... e 1,349 3,487 1,779
P 5.0 12.2 7.6
EBIT Amount. . . . . .. . . . e (228) 2378 684
Y e (0.8) 8.3 3.0

At the end of 2001, the ARCELOR Group comprised approximately 108,000 people worldwide, located
as set out in the tables below showing the geographical distribution and by business sector, over the last

three financial years.

Number of employees of the
ARCELOR Group on a pro forma basis on

average during the year

Geographical region 2001 2000

1999
Germany . . . . ... e e e e e 10,633 10,474 10,034
Belgium. . ... ... 21,318 21,918 20,825
Spain . . .. 16,012 16,169 16,058
France. . . . . . . . .. e 37,764 37,985 38,511
Italy . . . e 2,127 1,962 1,924
Luxembourg. . . . . .. . . .. ... 6,822 6,865 6,955
Restof Europe . . . . . . . . . . . ... 1,934 2,030 1,732
Europe (15 Member states EU)-Total . . . . . . . ... ... ... .. 96,610 97,403 96,039
North America . . . . . .. . ... ... it 3,222 3,479 3,582
South America . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 7,354 7,909 9,483
Restofworld . . .. .. ... .. .. ... . 1,158 932 641
TOTAL. . . . . 108,344 109,723 109,745

Number of employees of
the ARCELOR Group on
a pro forma basis on average

during the year

Sector 2001 2000 1999

Flat carbon steel . . . . . . . ... 54,736 52,295 53,069
Long carbonsteel. . . . .. . . .. ... .. ... 17,899 18,929 21,299
Stainless steel. . . . . . . ... 15,346 15,568 15,993
Distribution-transformation-trading . . . . . .. . ... ... ... ..., 16,006 19,023 16,024
Other activities and central services. . . . . . . . . . . .. .. .. ... ... 4,357 3,908 3,360
TOTAL. . . . . e e 108,344 109,723 109,745
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Organisation
The Group is split into three levels as regards management organisation:

e at the level of the parent company of the Group, the management board and the corporate centre
(i.e. operational management units and central services), and

e at the level of the Group:
~  the business sectots, and
~  the operational units within the business sectors.

The management board, a body acting by collective decision, comprises eight members, including its
chairman. Four members of the management board are each responsible for an operational management unit
and the other four members are each responsible for a business sector. Operational management units
principally comprise purchasing, finance, strategic orientation and planning, research and development, human
resources and technology and information.

The management board and the corporate departments manage the orientation of the Group according to
four main strategic perspectives: strategic orientations, progress management, human resources, co-ordination
and integration. They are responsible for defining and monitoring the strategic orientations and the
management plan of the ARCELOR Group, co-ordinating the sectors’ common projects, managing financial
resources on a centralised basis, implementing synergies and providing other services.

At the level of the Group, each business sector is responsible for its own results (with particular attention
to its operating results, return on capital employed and working capital requirements), implementation of the
Group’s strategy, as defined by the management board, personnel management and synergies between
operational units.

The operational units conduct the industrial and commercial operations and are also responsible for their
operating results and return on capital employed.

The main operational units, which cover either a geographical region or a range of products and services,
are set out in the table below.

Distribution-
transformation-

Flat carbon steel Long carbon steel Stainless steel trading Other activities
- Northern Europe — North - Ugine+ALZ (Europe) - Distribution — Paul Wurth
— Wallonia — South — J&L (United States) — Trading - Circuit Foil
— Centre Europe — America — Acesita (Brazil) — Packaging — DHS Group
— Southern Europe — Wiredrawing — Thainox (Thailand) — Construction
— Brazil - PLIA - Carbon Steel

- 1upP Tubes

— Tubes Inox

— Industeel

— Arcelor Stainless International

4.2 Strategy

In recent times, the steelmaking industry has been characterised by a large number of producers, a high
concentration of customers in certain markets (automotive, packaging and household appliances), and
over-production, resulting in a downward trend in prices.

Despite restructuring and cost cutting measures implemented over the last few years, a large proportion
of the savings made have been absorbed by regular reductions in sale prices, without significant improvement
of profitability or creation of value.

In this context, the ARCELOR Group intends to become a global player and to benefit from its size in
order to propose a global offer while reducing costs and financial risks, in order to improve performance and
profitability and to create value for its shareholders, customers and employees.
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ARCELOR has based its industrial plan on four business sectors: flat carbon steel, long carbon steel,
stainless steel and distribution-transformation-trading. This plan involves many major synergies in production,
sales, purchasing and management.

The identified synergies resulting from the creation of the Group will be increased gradually at EBITDA
level from EUR 300 million (before tax) at the end of 2003 to EUR 700 million (before tax) at the end of
2006. These objectives derive from the expected effects of the intentions of management and of a strategy
which may be revised in light of new economic necessities.

The Group has fixed an objective of generating in the medium term an average pre-tax return on capital
of 15% over the cycle, and to aim at a significant reduction in the net debt/equity ratio compared to the
current situation.

To implement such a strategy, the ARCELOR Group intends to:

e  optimise the European industrial configuration to improve productivity and competitiveness, and
increase flexibility to provide better services to customers and by exploiting all possible synergies;

e  provide the same product and service offering throughout the world to meet demand from global
customers through better access to the market (extensive distribution network, e-business platforms,
alliances and partnerships);

e  offer a wide range of products and enrich the product portfolio, thanks to its innovation strengths;
e  attract the highest-performing individuals, manage and develop its human resources; and

e  participate actively in the reconfiguration of the world stee!l industry, favour external growth through
targeted acquisitions to create value and to reinforce ARCELOR’s geographical presence in regions
where the ARCELOR Group is less present.

These aims will result in:
* improved profitability, particularly through synergies, while limiting investments;

e improved operational performance at a faster rate by continuous improvement programmes,
exchange of best practices and technical know-how;

e mitigation of the effects of the cyclical nature of demand thanks to the Group’s large range of
products and markets thus improving stability of cash flows; and

» increased visibility of the Group on the capital markets and improved perception by such markets
with a view to becoming the investment reference in the sector.

The ARCELOR Group will then be able to use these strong foundations to expand further in North and
South America, Asia and Europe.

Continuously improved offer of products and services

The R&D resources of the Group and its multi-market, multi-process and multi-product approach, allow
the ARCELOR Group to increase the attractiveness of steel solutions, to compete better against substitute
products (aluminium, plastic and cement) and to develop new applications for steel (e.g., by combining long
and flat products to serve the construction industry better).

The ARCELOR Group will continue to develop its product and service offer in Europe through a
broader base, by making the operating processes match customer needs, from the taking of the order until
delivery, and by optimising economic resuits at all levels thanks to the greater flexibility resulting from
its size.

Continuously improved profitability

The generation of expected synergies as well as the implementation of the processes for continuous
performance improvement (management by objectives, focus on margin, identifying and systematically
sharing best practices) throughout the Group will improve profitability.
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Recent Transactions and industrial projects in progress
s Global Strategic Alliance

ARCELOR and Nippon Steel Corporation are linked through the Global Strategic Alliance with the aim
of providing efficient steel solutions and to serve their customers better on a worldwide scale. This project
implies close co-operation in R&D, purchasing, e-business, environment and safety. The two companies will
first co-ordinate their efforts in innovation and then intend to share their licences over technologies and
existing products. The agreement covers all of the steel sectors which are common to the two groups:
automotive, stainless steel and packaging steel. Nippon Steel and ARCELOR are currently assessing the
possibilities of a partnership in long products, in particular in the construction sector.

On April 10th, 2002, Nippon Steel and ARCELOR also signed the Automotive Steel Technology
Cooperation Agreement with Tata Steel (TISCO) of India. This agreement provides for joint technical
assistance to TISCO in its relations with automotive steel users in India.

o  Severgal

On April 19th, 2002, Severstal’s General Director and Head of the Severstal group, Alexei Mordashov,
and the former Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors of ARCELOR, Francis Mer, laid down the foundation
stone of the Severgal plant, which will produce automotive hot dip galvanized steel.

Severgal is a company registered in the Russian Federation and is owned 75% by Severstal and 25% by
ARCELOR. Severgal’s annual capacity will be 400,000 tons. The plant will include a galvanizing line and
will be built at Severstal’s industrial site with completion expected in 2004. The plant will be supplied in
steel substrate mainly by Severstal. Severgal will sell its products mainly to the Russian car industry, in
particular for visible parts of automobiles.

ARCELOR will grant the joint venture a license for the use of its proprietary product, Extragal™,

including the trademark and associated know-how. Extragal™, which is a pure zinc hot dip galvanized steel
product, was specifically developed for the automotive industry. It is produced in Europe by ARCELOR, in
Canada by DoSol, a joint project with Dofasco, and from 2003 it will be produced in Brazil at the Vega do
Sul plant, currently under construction.

e Vega do Sul

ARCELOR is launching a new unit situated in S3o Francisco do Sul in the State of Santa Catarina in
Brazil, with 25% minority partners, including CST (in which the Group holds 24.6%). This project, currently
called Vega do Sul, involves the construction of a cold-rolling mill with an initial capacity of 800,000 metric
tons which could be increased to 1.2 million metric tons, and an integrated hot-dip galvanising line developed
with the Extragal technology. This line, which has an annual capacity of 400,000 metric tons, will be used to
meet the increasing demands for coated steel sheets for the bodywork sector of the automotive industry. It
will be operational in 2003 and represents an investment of more than 475 million euro.

4.3 Description of the main sectors

The production of steel in the four business sectors is based on two principal types of production
processes consisting of the traditional integrated process using the blast furnace to transform iron ore into
steel, and electric arc furnaces to produce steel from scrap metal (approximately a quarter of total
production). Whereas flat carbon steel is produced using mainly the integrated steelmaking process, long
carbon steel and stainless steel are produced using essentially the electric arc furnace process.

Even if the high fixed charges which are inherent to the integrated steelmaking process make it more
sensitive to fluctuations in macro-economic conditions, this process remains the most efficient for the
production of high quality steel and is particularly efficient when there are high levels of production.

The electric arc furnace process proves more flexible and production can be adjusted quicker to reflect
demand, due to lower capital investment and less manpower required. In addition, margins tend to be less
dependent on changes in the sale price because the cost of scrap metal, which represents approximately one
third of total costs, has, over the last few years, closely correlated to selling prices.
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4.3.1 Flat carbon steel

With crude steel production of nearly 30 million metric tons in 2001, the ARCELOR Group is the
leading flat carbon steel producer in the world.

The range of products covers the whole range of flat thin sheets: hot-rolled coils, cold-rolled coils and
coated sheets (including tin plate). The Group also produces heavy plates. The Group uses different processes
for the manufacture of coated sheets: hot-dip galvanising, electro-galvanising and organic coating.

Except for steel for packaging, all of these products are included in the flat carbon steel business sector
portfolio of activities.

The flat steel sector encompasses not only activities related to the production and the sale of steel coils,
but also processing and sale activities targeting the automotive sector (slit strips, multi-thickness welded
blanks). The fact that these downstream activities are included in the flat steel products sector is due to the
concentrated and global nature of the customers in the automotive sector.

The downstream activities targeting other customer sectors are included in the transformation business
sector. However, for certain customers the transformation sector may work directly for the flat steel products
sector which then takes charge of the sales relations with these customers, in accordance with the “one face
for the customer™ principle.

The table below shows, for the last three financial years, the pro forma consolidated turnover and the
EBITDA and EBIT of the flat carbon steel sector of the ARCELOR Group.

Pro forma consolidated financial information 2001 2000 1999

(EUR, in millions)

TUMOVET. . . . . . o e e e e e e e 13,572 13,621 11,614

EBITDA AMOunt . . . . . . . o e e e e e e 570 1,960 826
P 4.1 14.4 7.1

EBIT AMOUnt . . . . . . o . e e e e e 67) 1,343 273
o e e e e 0.7) 9.9 24

The table below shows the crude steel production in the flat carbon steel sector over the last three
financial years.

Crude steel production
(metric tons, in millions)

2000 . 29.3

2000 . e 30.7

1000 30.0
Strategy

In terms of both volume and value, the ARCELOR Group is the largest producer of flat carbon steel in
the world, with a very solid industrial base in Europe and technical expertise recognised world-wide.

The industrial base in Europe will be optimised by favouring upstream production at the coastal sites,
thus improving productivity and costs and by restructuring and specialising downstream production to
increase flexibility and optimise customer service. With its complementary customer base, the ARCELOR
Group will target the customers with the highest profitability and growth potentials.

The Group will therefore be in a position to meet the worldwide demand for products and services of
global customers in the automotive, household appliances and packaging industries thanks to an increasing
proportion of high-value-added products in its portfolio (new galvanised products for the automotive industry,
innovative organic coatings for the automotive and home appliances sectors or ultra-thin gauge products for
packaging).

As far as the more regionally based clients are concerned (those in the construction, processing and
general industry sectors), the ARCELOR Group will continue to rely on its extensive network of service and
distribution centres in continental Europe and in the United States as well as the distribution networks of its
partners.
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Industrial and commercial facilities

The Group has eight integrated production units in Western Europe which span the entire steelmaking
process including five coastal steelworks, most of which, at a technical level and in terms of production, rank
as worldwide leaders. In addition, the Group has a mini-mill equipped with a thin-slab casting facility in
Spain, through ACB.

The Group also has industrial specialised facilities (cold-rolling facilities, coating lines, etc.) in different
European countries and in the United States and, in the near future in Brazil through Vega do Sul.

Lastly, the Group also has a shareholding of 24.6% in the Brazilian producer, CST, with the reputation
in the industry to be very competitive at a worldwide level in terms of costs.

Markets

The ARCELOR Group’s flat products are mainly used in the automotive, household appliances,
construction, civil engineering, mechanical engineering and primary and secondary processing markets.

A large portion of sales is carried out under contracts covering a period of one or more years, which has
the advantage of limiting the effects of spot price fluctuations on the Group’s profit margins.

To the extent that the turnover generated by the Group with each of its main customers in the flat steel
products sector is less than 5% of the total turnover for the Group in this sector, the Group is not materially
dependent on any of these customers.

Automotive

The ARCELOR Group is the leading flat steel supplier to the European and worldwide automotive
industry. It aims to bolster its position as worldwide leader in this field, and to double its market share, to
bring it from approximately 13% to 20%, in five years, through a global presence, both geographical as a
result of a worldwide presence, and technical, by offering a full range of products.

The strategy of the ARCELOR Group is geared to the evolution of this market which is characterised by
a globalisation and concentration of players, both automobile and parts manufacturers, which, in line with
their growth policy, increasingly position themselves on emerging markets (Central America, South America,
Asia, Central and Eastern Europe).

With a flat carbon steel unit specifically and solely dedicated to automotive activities, to both
manufacturers and sub-contractors, the ARCELOR Group meets the demands of its customers by providing
steel solutions to the challenges they are facing and by being able to offer these solutions at each stage of the
industrial process both as coils and finished products.

The ARCELOR Group supplies steel to the automotive industry and offers one of the broadest ranges of
products on the market worldwide, in terms of different grades and coatings, as well as in terms of degree
of processing (coils, unwelded and welded blanks, finishings). Its range of products is also the most
innovative, with a market share in technical products (visible parts, high strength steel) above average. Also,
thanks to lines specifically reserved for the automobile sector and processes such as Sibetex and Extragal, the
Group is a leading manufacturer of surface treatment and galvanised sheets for visible parts. Likewise, the
Group is continuously improving its offer of services by developing e-business, looking for more efficient
logistics and supplying computer-aided design software and databases.

With the Global Strategic Alliance, the ARCELOR Group is participating in the standardisation of
products in order to offer the same extensive range of products to a greater number of automotive
manufacturers on a truly worldwide scale, while not affecting competition with Nippon Steel Corporation.

Household and other electric appliances (audio-video, office equipment)

The ARCELOR Group is number one in Europe in the production of steel for household appliances and
the other market segments in the electrical manufacturing market, offering a wide range of products such as
pre-painted steel, cold-rolled high yield steels, cold-rolled steel for enamelling, magnetic sheets for electric
motors, electrical equipment and alternators, corrosion-resistant coated steels and insulating panels.
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A few large global groups control the household appliance market which mainly purchase finished
products and require maximum supply flexibility. The ARCELOR Group can also provide support for
technical innovation and improved logistics services to this market.

In Europe, the strongest growth potential today lies in Central and Eastern Europe.

The ARCELOR Group has commercial facilities and service centres aimed specifically at general
industry, with a network of sales subsidiaries covering the important household appliances market.

Construction and civil engineering market

This market is one of the largest markets for steel generally.

It is characterised by an impressive number of players (such as architects, engineers, metal construction
specialists, general entrepreneurs, public authorities).

With its considerable experience, its vast range of products and its distribution system, ARCELOR is in
a key position in this market.

The ARCELOR Group offers a very wide range of flat carbon steels to this market comprising a whole
spectrum of heavy plate, galvanised steel, aluminium-zinc coated steel and pre-painted steels in a multitude of
grades of steel, dimensional varieties and finishings. The products are distributed directly to clients or made
available to them through the ARCELOR Group’s European distribution network.

In addition, thanks to its coating facilities (hot-dip galvanising and pre-painting) and its downstream
investments in various sections and sandwich panel production lines, the ARCELOR Group is able to meet
demand in the wall and roof coverings market. Furthermore, the ARCELOR Group has specific technical
expertise in the field of metal frames.

Mechanical engineering and industrial packaging

The mechanical engineering and industrial packaging market covers very diverse sectors, characterised
by specific requirements, such as metal furniture, boilers, audio/video, lighting, drums, containers and tanks,
which are sectors with specific requirements in terms of tolerance, flatness and surface purity.

The ARCELOR Group has the range of products and installations required (such as continuous annealing
facilities) to meet these requirements. The Group continues to increase its efforts in developing specialty
segments, and in improving the service and technical assistance provided to its customers.

For other sectors such as stamping, shaping, punching, materials handling equipment, agricultural or
railway equipment and gas bottles, the ARCELOR Group offers a vast range of products which are perfectly
adapted to meet the client’s requirements.

Primary and secondary processing

Re-rolling, coating, shaping and tube manufacture sectors are processing sectors involving considerable
amounts of steel, with specific requirements concemning chemical composition and mechanical characteristics.

The tubes and sections (containers) sector is characterised by a progressive changeover from cold-rolled
steel to thin gauge hot rolled (TGHR).

Thanks to the ACB mini-mill, the ARCELOR Group has a thin-slab casting facility, which enables it to
produce TGHR products.
4.3.2 Long carbon steel and wire drawing sectors

The long products sector, which produced nearly 11 million metric tons of crude steel in 2001, is
organised into the following product sub-sectors:

(a) heavy long products (beams/heavy sections, sheet piles, special sections, rails and merchant bars);

(b) light long products (rebars and wire rod);
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(c) drawn wire products: wire drawing comprises three branches of activity:
e steelcord/hosewire/saw wire (wire used to reinforce tyres and rubber hoses and saw wire);

e  low-carbon steel products (bright, annealed and galvanised wire, welded mesh, fencing,
concrete fibres); and

¢  high-carbon steel products (pre-tensioned wire).

The long carbon steel and wire drawing sectors cover both production and processing. The distribution
of long products is essentially carried out by the distribution-transformation-trading sector.

The table below shows, for the last three financial years, the pro forma consolidated turnover, EBITDA
and EBIT of the long products sector of the ARCELOR Group.

Pro forma consolidated financial information 2001 2000 1999
(EUR, in millions)

TUMOVET . . . . e e e e 3963 4,231 3,608

EBITDA AMOUnt . . . . . o . o i e e e e e e e e e e 595 729 459

T 14.7 17.2 12.7

EBIT AMOUNT . .« . o o o o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 255 468 265

o e e e e e e 8.6 11.1 74

The table below shows crude steel production in the long carbon steel and wire drawing sector for the
last three financial years.

(metric tons,

Crude steel production in millions)

200 L e e e 11.6

2000 . . . e e e e 1.7

1900 L e e 10.7
Strategy

In the long carbon sector, several product/market segments are now very attractive as a result of changes
in technology and the concept of mini-mills which use electric arc furnaces, as well as the implementation of
continuous improvement programmes, exchanges of best practices and the restructuring of the sector in
Europe.

The ARCELOR Group, which is well established in Western Europe and South America, intends to
strengthen and develop its position as world leader in this sector so as to generate stable cash flows and thus
have a positive impact on the cyclicity of its results.

In sections and sheet piles, the new Group will reinforce its distribution channels by improving its
geographic coverage, by optimising capacity utilisation and introducing plant specialisation.

In merchant bars, rebars and rails, the ARCELOR Group will organise its portfolio to concentrate on the
most attractive markets. The Group is the leader in high-quality wire rod, through its strong presence in Spain
and Brazil and its position will be able to be reinforced through the Global Strategic Alliance with Nippon
Steel Corporation.

The ARCELOR Group will pursue a global growth strategy in the steelcord sector to strengthen its
position as the second-largest non-integrated steelcord producer for the tyre industry in the world. In high and
low carbon wire, the Group intends to pursue a growth strategy in Eastern Europe and South America.

Industrial and commercial facilities

The long heavy product activity is carried on by ProfilArbed and Ares in Luxembourg and France, by
Stahlwerk Thiringen in Germany, by Aceralia Perfiles in Spain and at Aceralia Asturias’s beams/rails mill,

The sub-sector of light long products comprises the Ares mill in Luxembourg, the Aceralia Asturias wire
rod mill, the Aceralia Redondos sites in France and Spain, and various Belgo-Mineira mills in Brazil. In
addition, the ARCELOR Group has an 8.50% shareholding in Sonasid (Morocco) and has acquired, through
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the Belgo-Mineira group, a 20.44% shareholding in the share capital of the Argentinian steelmaker Acindar,
thus bolstering its position on the light long products market in the Mercosur countries.

The ARCELOR Group’s wire-drawing operations are carried out at the TrefilArbed sites in Europe, Asia
and the United States, at the Belgo-Mineira site in Brazil and the ACERALIA sites in Spain as well as
through partnerships.

The ARCELOR Group has an extensive network of sales subsidiaries and trading companies throughout
Europe and a network of sales offices and agents to handle the sale of products in the other more distant
export regions of the world.

Markets

In long carbon steels, the ARCELOR Group is the worldwide leader with a strong industrial and
commercial presence in Europe, South America and the United States. The construction and infrastructure
sector is the main user of long products. The market share of steel in the construction and public works sector
is continuing to increase, particularly in Europe, as a result of new environmental, aesthetic, architectural and
economic requirements. Thus, new market niches have been found, in particular in new composite floor deck
solutions, individual housing and renovation.

Due to the combination of the growth in apparent consumption and modernisation of industrial capacities
in Europe resulting in significant cost reductions, there has been consolidation in the long carbon sector and
margins have increased over the last few years.

The structure of the long product sector is such that the Group is the leading producer in almost all of
the markets where it operates. The market for high added value products such as heavy sections and sheet
piles, is essentially a global market and the highest growth has been recorded in Northern Europe (Germany,
France, the Benelux countries, Scandinavia, Great Britain and Ireland) and the United States. Beams used for
buildings in seismic zones is an example of innovative application.

In contrast, markets for commodity-type products are more regional because of proportionally higher
transport costs. The ARCELOR Group has a strong presence in these markets, which include products such as
rebars, in Southem Europe and South America, regions of significant growth for several years.

The Group’s strength is that it provides a full range of services with a product, including an integrated
logistics service.

As for wire drawn products, the steelcord/hosewire division products are sold to the major tyre and hose
manufacturers in the world. As for the low- and high-carbon steel products, they are sold to the industrial,
construction and agricultural sectors.

To the extent that this sector is characterised by an extremely high number of customers, the Group is
not materially dependent on any of these customers.

4.3.3 Stainless steel

The ARCELOR Group is one of the worldwide leaders in this sector with production of nearly
2.6 million metric tons of crude steel in 2001.

The stainless steel, alloys and special plates activity includes production, transformation and distribution
of flat and long stainless steel products, nickel alloys and special plates. The Group produces virtually the
whole range of stainless and alloy products: austenitic (nickel and chrome steels) and ferritic (chrome steel)
grades, ultra-thin stainless steel, high-nickel alloys, and cobalt and titanium alloys. The Group is especially
present in the field of ferritics, where applications, particularly in the automotive sector, are rapidly
developing.

Special plates, grouped together in Industeel, are stainless steel or special steels, sometimes carbon
steels, used by the oil and gas industries, for the storage and transport of chemical products, by the paper
industry and manufacturers of moulds for plastic injection moulding.

48



The table below shows, for the last three financial years, the pro forma consolidated turnover and the
EBITDA and EBIT of the stainless steel sector of the ARCELOR Group.

Pro forma consolidated financial information 2001 2000 1999
(EUR, in millions)
Tumover . . . . e e e e e e e 4,240 4611 3,512
EBITDA Amount. . . . . . . . . . . (53) 409 83
Yo e .1y 89 24
EBIT AMOUNL. . . o o o oot e e e e (677) 199  (208)
S (163) 43 (59

The table below shows crude stainless steel production for the last three financial years.

(metric tons,

Crude steel production in miltions)'’

2001 . . e 2.2

2000 . . . e e e 2.3

1090 . . e 2.3
Strategy

The ARCELOR Group is one of the worldwide leaders in the expanding flat stainless steel sector, in
terms of both volume and turnover, thanks to the natural fit that exists between partners in terms of products,
assets, skills and customer base.

The Group will use the complementary nature of its products and services as well as its extensive
distribution and service centre network in Europe to optimise its position on its privileged market segments:
cutlery and utensils, household appliances, automobile exhaust pipes and construction.

The ARCELOR Group is also world leader in long stainless and alloy products and will leverage its
innovation strengths to adapt products to the specific needs of customers.

In addition, it is expected that the position of ARCELOR will be strengthened through the Global
Strategic Alliance with Nippon Steel Corporation.

The different units of the stainless steel sector are implementing cost reduction initiatives to improve
their competitiveness in the short term in their markets. In Europe, the Ugine-ALZ amalgamation will give
rise to industrial synergies through a better rationalisation of industrial tools, particularly through
concentrating stainless steel hot-rolling at the mill in Carlam (Cockerill Sambre). In a market which is
growing, investment in capacities-at low capital cost for optimisation of existing capacities-already decided
upon at ALZ will make it possible to meet the market’s needs. In the United States, J&L is also taking the
necessary measures for its recovery: improved management, reorganisation of its hot-rolling capacities,
consolidation of its cold-rolling facilities, etc. Lastly, the sector has, through Acesita, additional capacities for
growth which, in addition to the preferential supply to the Latin American market, constitutes a low-cost
source of semi-finished products for the market or the other units of the sector. The Group’s aim is also to
ensure that Industeel performs competitively again as regards costs by exploiting, over the next two years,
areas of potential progress in those productivity operations which were launched in 2001.

Industrial and commercial facilities

The ARCELOR Group supplies a wide range of stainless steel products through the following
companies:

e flat stainless products: ALZ (Belgium), Ugine SA (France), J&L (United States), Thainox
(Thailand), and in Brazil, through a significant shareholding in Acesita (27.68%), the only stainless
steel producer in South America; the Group also produces welded stainless steel tubes through
Meusienne (France) and Matthey (Switzerland, France, USA);

10 without Acesita.
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e long stainless products and nickel alloys: Ugine Savoie Imphy and Sprint Metal (France), Techalloy
(United States) and Bedini (Italy);

e  stainless steel precision strips and nickel alloy flat products: Imphy Ugine Précision (France), Rahns
and Hood (United States); and

¢  special plates: Usinor Industeel (France and Belgium).

In order to provide its customers with high-quality technical assistance in order to optimise stainless
solutions, the ARCELOR Group benefits from a worldwide stainless steel distribution and sales network,
including steel service centres not only in the main European countries but also in Turkey and China and a
small centre in the United States.

Markets
The main markets of the sector are as follows:

»  household: large electrical appliances where customers are essentially a few major international
groups, and household equipment (sinks, cooking utensils, cutlery) with a broader clientele;

e automotive: stainless steel being used in particular in catalytic converters;

e  construction: where stainfess steel is chosen for its aesthetic quality and resistance to corrosion both
in facades, urban furniture and equipment (chimney ducts, lifts); and

e  general industry: a growing market, where stainless steel is used in the transport of fluids or in the
food, chemical or oil industries.

The ARCELOR Group benefits from its excellent geographical coverage in this sector, with a global
presence in all the stainless steel markets and a high capacity to develop new products. Its direct contact with
end customers and its worldwide distribution network are major assets for the Group.

To the extent that the turnover generated by the Group with each of its main customers in the stainless
steel products sector is less than 1% of the total turnover for the Group in this sector, the Group is not
materially dependent on any of these customers.

4.3.4 Distribution-transformation-trading

The distribution-transformation-trading sector carries out the transformation, finishing and distribution of
steel products, produced by the Group or purchased from third parties, targeting strategic markets, such as the
construction, household appliances, public works, civil engineering and general industry markets. The sector
also has a strong presence on the packaging market and has an international sales network and carries out
trading activities.

The table below shows, for the last three financial years, the pro forma consolidated turnover and the
EBITDA and EBIT of the distribution-transformation-trading sector of the ARCELOR Group.

Pro forma consolidated financial information 2001 2000 1999
(EUR, in millions)

TUNOVET. . . . . o o e e e e 9,541 10,445 8,084
EBITDA Amount . . . . . . . . . . .. . e 292 462 413
G e e e e e e 32 44 5.1
EBIT Amount . . . . . . . . . . . .. e e 186 384 365
G . e 1.9 3.7 4.5

Through a homogenous and tightly-knit network covering the main European markets, the transformation
units, service centres, trading units and sales agencies of the distribution-transformation-trading sector of the
ARCELOR Group direct access to the Group’s steel products for thousands of customers, while developing
for its customers a wide range of steel solutions.

In doing this, they provide the ARCELOR Group with high added value downstream activities, as well
as strong and long-lasting refations with the major industries comprising the main sectors of the market.
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The strategic axes for the ARCELOR Group’s distribution-transformation-trading business sector include
strengthening its market position, optimising current investments, developing transaction systems related to e-
commerce and increasing its presence in certain strategic countries, particularly in Central Europe and Asia.

Presentation of the distribution-transformation-trading activities
(a) Distribution

The distribution business unit is an international, homogenous and unified unit, resulting in the Group
being a leader in its markets. The distribution business is divided into four divisions, where specialised teams
are responsible for their own results:

e the service centres division, which are the units for steel products finishing, and the role of which is
to ensure that customers obtain the steel they require, in the formats which correspond exactly to
their needs, with the speed, flexibility and reactivity now demanded by major steel users;

e the steel trading (with storage) division, which intervenes between the steel producer and the end
customers, in particular small and medium sized end customers, to ensure the immediate availability
of the whole range of products for such end customers, and using light finishing means;

o the plastics trading division, which ensures very successful diversification of distribution to
customers in the construction and public works sectors; and

e the advance technology steels trading division, specialised in the distribution of corrosion-resistant,
anti-abrasion and mechanical steels in which IMS ranks as a leader.

Since the distribution business unit has many sites, full ranges of products (steel and plastic) and a range
of finishing tools which are well distributed geographically, the distribution business unit represents an
essential vector between the world of steel production and that of industrial customers, and is thus a source of
greater stability for all of the activities of the Group.

(6) Transformation

Transformation activities constitute an important outlet for the Group’s steel products and enable it to be
a leading negotiator with the construction, public works and civil engineering customers, thanks to
specialisation in the manufacture and sale of panels and sections for the construction industry as well as
tubes. Transformation activities also include steel for packaging.

There are industrial units in the whole of Europe, with a particularly strong presence in France,
Germany, Spain, the United Kingdom, the Benelux countries and in Central Europe.

The packaging business activities use industrial facilities comprising seven tin-plating lines in Belgium,
Spain and France.

(¢c) Trading

The trading activities consist of the purchase and re-sale of steel products not produced by the
ARCELOR Group’s plants. The purpose of the trading business unit is to assure the Group’s commercial
presence on relevant markets outside of Western Europe.

The trading business unit, through its worldwide presence, is also a considerable asset for the Group’s
production facilities as regards supply of semi-products for rolling mills or transformation units.

Markets

The products sold through the distribution business unit are used in markets such as household
appliances (casings of household appliances, ovens, extractors, etc.), construction (sliding doors and roofs,
window frames, garage doors, etc.), rolling stock and vehicles (locomotives, fork-lift trucks, cranes, etc.) and
general industry (radiator manufacturers, general maintenance services, locksmiths and metal-working, etc.).
These markets comprise different sized undertakings forming an extremely dense geographical coverage
which fully justifies the local-focus policy which has always been applied in the distribution activity. In
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addition to this local-focus policy, there is increasing emphasis on added-value development, by either
looking for high added-value market niches, or partnerships with customers and the sale of steel solutions
going as far as the implementation of manufacturing processes (bending, welding, assembly, forming,
protection, etc.).

Steel for packaging is primarily used in the packaging of mass consumer goods, and food and non-food
products. This is a worldwide market and is experiencing moderate growth, related to higher living standards
and is dependent on changes in consumer trends. It is characterised by the necessity for constant innovation
related to consumer behaviout. It requires dynamic adaptations, in close co-operation with all of the market
players, which can but benefit from combining marketing and R&D resources.

The ARCELOR Group aims to differentiate itself by concentrating on top-of-the-range products, such as
metal for vltra-light beverage cans and for easy-to-open capsules, organically-coated resistant and ductile thin
steels, metal for shaped cans, and in general, it aims to develop a new product/service offering through a
local relationship with its clients.

The principal applications in the construction sector are building shells, such as cladding, structurals,
flooring, roofing, especially for industrial, agricultural and storage buildings. Stainless steel products are also
used as finishings and interior decoration for heating and air-conditioning systems (boilers, flue pipes,
radiators, etc.), lifts, door sheeting or partitions.

To the extent that this sector is characterised by an extremely high number of customers, the Group is
not materially dependent on any of these customers.
4.3.5 Other activities

The ARCELOR Group also has other activities in the fields of engineering, copper foil and heavy plate
for tubes.

The table below shows, for the last three financial years, the pro forma consolidated turnover and the
EBITDA and EBIT of the other activities of the ARCELOR Group.

Pro forma consolidated financial information 2001 2000 1999
(EUR, in millions)

Tumover . . . . . . . e e 1,251 721 524

EBITDA Amount. . . . . . . . .. ... ... 3D (17) 24

EBIT Amount. . . . . .. ... .. . ... ... ... 24) 40 15

The figures above are significantly affected by the holding activities of the Group and are not significant
for the purposes of understanding the ARCELOR Group’s results.

The ARCELOR Group is represented in its engineering activities essentially by Paul Wurth SA based in
Luxembourg.

The engineering activities mainly comprise the design and manufacture of steelmaking installations and
equipment, in blast furnace, electric arc fumace and blast oxygen fumace, direct reductions technologies
continuous casting and other technologies for non-ferrous applications.

The Group is extending its activities to environmental protection technologies for the steel industry,
particularly with the first industrial installation of the Primus reduction process at the ProfilArbed Differdange
site to recycle waste from electric steelmaking facilities in Luxembourg.

In its engineering business activity, the Group is counting on the high level of business being maintained
by building on its experience in the steelmaking sector and on its worldwide presence in the major steel-
producing countries.

The ARCELOR Group’s copper foil activity is concentrated in the production of extra-thin foil (5 to 210
microns) which is used in the manufacture of printed circuits. These products, destined for sectors such as the
electronic and telecommunications sectors, have generated very high profitability over the last few years.
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Lastly, the DHS group, consolidated using the equity method in the pro forma accounts of ARCELOR,
carries on activities in the manufacture and sale of heavy plate. Characterised by exceptional dimensions and
specific properties, the sheets produced by the DHS group mainly target the naval construction sector,
construction of oil rigs and pipelines.

4.4 Competition

The ARCELOR Group’s markets are highly competitive. In an environment of globalisation of demand,
its markets are characterised by a fragmentation of offer (the ten leading stee! producers represent
approximately 25% of worldwide production), a chronic over-capacity, production costs which vary
considerably throughout the world and globalisation of major customers. Its markets are also characterised by
powerful and experienced competitors, with new competitors appearing in emerging markets, as well as the
development of substitute products.

Competition is based primarily on production costs, the quality of the products, their added value, the
range of products and services offered, sales prices, reputation, experience and technological innovation.

The chart below shows the world’s ten leading producers of crude steel based on the volume of crude
steel produced in 2001 (in millions of metric tons)''.
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4.4.1 Flat carbon steel
The ARCELOR Group is the world’s leading producer of flat carbon steel.

The flat carbon products of the Group are primarily in competition with those of other steel producers in
Western Europe such as Corus, Rautaruukki, Ilva (Riva group), Salzgitter, SSAB, Thyssen Krupp Stahl, VA
Stahl as well as those of US and Asian producers but also, increasingly, with those of certain producers in
Central and Eastern Europe. This strong competition also manifests itself through sale prices which
increasingly reflect the worldwide market.

In this sector, strategic alliances such as that with Nippon Steel Corporation enable the Group to
improve its competitiveness by a global offer, particularly in the automotive market.

Thanks to regular supply to its customers of products of consistently high quality, the Group is resisting
the increasing competition from certain producers in Central and Eastern Europe as well as Asian producers
practising world market sale prices. In addition, the Group benefits from a solid presence in Europe, its
extensive range of flat carbon steels (in respect of types of product and format) and the quality of related
services (such as locally situated finishing and distribution centres, assistance in design), which are solid
bases for maintaining its position as leader.

4.4.2 Long carbon steel
The ARCELOR Group is the leading producer worldwide of long carbon steels.

Following restructuring in this sector, the number of producers in Europe has fallen significantly during
the last ten years.

The ARCELOR Group is a leader in the production of heavy beams, competing with Corus, Kawasaki
Steel, Nippon Steel Corporation and Salzgitter in this market. Demand for this type of product can be
qualified as global.

As regards other long products, the ARCELOR Group’s markets are more regional. The main
competitors in Europe are, for example, Celsa, Corus, Duferco, Duferdofin, Ispat, Riva group, Saarstahl,
Salzgitter, certain producers in Central and Eastern Europe and Gerdau in Brazil. In the United States, the
main competitors are local producers such as Chaparral and Nucor.

In the wire drawing sector, the ARCELOR Group, with its partner Kiswire, is the second-largest
independent steelcord producer in the world for the tyre industry. In this sector, the main competitors are the
worldwide leader, Bekaert, and Sodetal, Tokusen and Tokio Rope. In South America, through the joint
venture between Belgo-Mineira and Bekaert, the ARCELOR Group is the leader both in steelcord, wire and
high- and low-carbon steel.

The possible extension of the alliance signed between Nippon Steel Corporation to include long products
would allow the Group to apply technological changes more frequently.

4.4.3 Stainless steel
The ARCELOR Group is one of the leaders worldwide in this sector.

Given the level of prices for stainless steel and the smaller proportion of transport costs in the price, the
market is largely global. The main competitors of the ARCELOR Group are European, such as Acerinox,
Avesta Polarit and Thyssen Krupp Stahl, but also Aichi (long products), Daido (long products), Kawasaki
(flat products), Nippon Steel Corporation (flat and long products), Sumitomo (flat and long products) in Japan,
Inchon (flat products) and Posco (flat and long products) in Korea, Yieh United (flat products) in Taiwan,
Tisco (flat products) in India, Chinastee! in China, Allegheny, AK Steel, North American Stainless
(flat products) and Carpenter Technology (long products) in the United States.
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With the complementary nature of its product ranges and with its extensive worldwide distribution and
service centre network, the ARCELOR Group intends to leverage its position on its privileged markets:
cutlery, household appliances, automobile exhaust pipes and construction. In order to offer its customers
efficient technical assistance for optimisation of stainless steel solutions, the Group has considerable capacity
to develop new products. Its direct contact with the end customers is one of the Group’s major assets.

4.4.4 Distribution-transformation-trading

As a general rule, the markets for the distribution, transformation and trading sector are regional,
whereas the markets for the other sectors are mostly global.

The Group’s main competitors in processing are Arregui, Barcelonesa-Hiemesa, Corus, Hiansa, Isocab,
Kingspan, Mannesmann, Marcegaglia, Metecno, Salzgitter, SIT and Thyssen Krupp Stahl.

In addition, in the construction sector, solutions offered by other materials are in direct competition with
those offered by the distribution-transformation-trading sector. The same applies for the packaging market,
which has high competition from plastics, glass and aluminium. The Group’s main competitors in this market
are Corus in Great Britain and the Benelux countries, Thyssen Krupp Stahl in Germany, and Riva group in
Greece and Italy.

Faced with this competition, the Group can rely on its strong brand names and products of high technical
quality and go into markets as diverse as building cladding, roofing, flooring, heating and air-conditioning
systems and tubes.

The Group’s main competitors in the distribution and trading businesses are Alfonso Gallardo, Balli,
Cargill, Corus, Descours et Cabaud, Duferco, Ispat, Ros Casares, Salzgitter, Samsung and Thyssen Krupp
Stahl.

The Group considers that because a significant part of its production is distributed through its own sales
network, it would not be affected by concentration in the distribution sector.

To respond to competition, the ARCELOR Group can count on its extremely complete ranges of
products, its large number of sites and its modem finishing tools which are well distributed geographically.

4.5 Contracts
4.5.1 Purchasing contracts

The main purchasing contracts are generally entered into for a term of one year (raw materials, transport,
maintenance), except for the purchase of scrap metal which are usually spot or very short-term contracts.
Contracts relating to energy (excluding coal) requirements are often longer and have terms of between five
and ten years. As for, in particular, the purchase of ferro-alloys, these are usually three-month contracts.
Other purchasing contracts are for varying terms. Purchases are effected primarily in euro and American
dollars.

Purchasing contracts (except raw materials) are usually renewed by tacit agreement between the parties
upon expiry. In the event of early termination of such a contract, notice of between three and six months
must generally be given.

4.5.2 Sales contracts

Generally, steel product sales contracts have a term of one or more years, or are concluded at spot price
and spot quantities. Since more than 70% of the ARCELOR Group’s turnover is generated in the European
market, sales contracts are generally denominated in euro. Sales in American dollars and in Brazilian real
represent a relatively small percentage of total turnover.

Contracts having a term of one or more years represent approximately one third of annual turnover in
the flat carbon steel sector and a small proportion of annual tumover in the stainless steel sector. In long
carbon steels, the contracts are spot contracts, except for specific products such as rails or wires used for
reinforcing tyres, for which the contracts are annual.
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Within the scope of long-term partnerships set up by the Group with certain of its major customers,
particularly to develop new products together, contracts with terms of one or more years are becoming the
norm, particularly in the automotive, packaging and household appliance sectors.

The ARCELOR Group’s renowned know-how, particularly in the automotive sector, constitutes a
positive asset to make these contracts more generalised.
4.6 Raw materials and energy

The ARCELOR Group’s steelmaking activities use principally iron ore, coal, coke and scrap metal for
both the traditional blast furnace steel production process and the electric steelmaking process. These
1naterials represent approximately 60% of the ARCELOR Group’s operating costs. The Group has stable
relationships with the suppliers of these raw materials, but without being materially dependent on them, as
none of the Group’s suppliers represents more than 25% of total raw materials and energy purchased. Nickel
and other ferrous and non-ferrous metals, including ferro and silico manganese alloys and zinc, are also used.

The ARCELOR Group’s size will lead to a standardisation of the logistics, more particularly concemning
supply methods, which should generate savings.

Raw materials and energy are paid for in euro. The other main currencies used are the US dollar and the
pound sterling. The Group’s general policy includes exchange risk hedging.
Iron ore

The ARCELOR Group uses approximately 43 million metric tons of iron ore per year. The Group
purchases iron ore mainly from mining companies in Brazil, Sweden, Australia, Mauritania, Venezuela and
Canada.

There has recently been a trend of concentration among iron ore producers. The main suppliers are
Companhia Vale Do Rio Doce (“CVRD"), SNIM, CVG, Sesagoa and Hispanobras (a joint venture company
owned by CVRD and ACERALIA).

Most contracts are denominated in US dollars or follow fluctuations of that currency.

Coke and coal

The ARCELOR Group purchases approximately 20 million metric tons of coal and coke per year from
supply sources principally in Australia, the United States, Canada and South Africa.

This market is relatively concentrated, with just a few major suppliers in the world. The main suppliers
are BHP and MIM.

Most contracts are denominated in US dollars or follow fluctuations of that currency.

Scrap metal

As the ARCELOR Group produces long steel products and stainless steel, it is a heavy consumer of
scrap metal and purchases approximately 14 million metric tons per year, sourced mainly from the European
Union, Russia and the Baltic countries.

The market is not very concentrated. The main suppliers are CFF and Boole.

Purchasing contracts are generally entered into at spot prices and quantities, and denominated, for the
most part, in euro, but also in US dollars and in pounds sterling.

Nickel, ferro-chromium and other ferrous and non-ferrous materials

Nickel is purchased mainly from suppliers in Australia, Canada, Colombia, New Caledonia, Brazil, the
Dominican Republic and Russia. A large portion of the Group’s nickel requirements are also met directly
through recycling scrap stainless steel.
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Generally, nickel prices have a significant impact on prices of stainless steel which usually comprise a
basic price and an additional component which varies with changes in the price of nickel.

The ARCELOR Group’s steelmaking activities also require various ferrous and non-ferrous materials,
such as zine, ferro-chromium, titanium, vanadium, ferro-manganese or silico-manganese.

The ARCELOR Group purchases approximately 1.2 million metric tons per year of ferrous metals.

The Group meets its needs for this type of product through a limited number of worldwide suppliers, the
main suppliers being Norimet and Glencore.

Energy

The ARCELOR Group is a major consumer of electricity, gas and oxygen.

The Group consumes annually approximately 25 TWh of electricity and 23 TWh of gas.

The main suppliers of electricity are EDF and Electrabel; the main suppliers of gas are GDF
and Distrigaz.

The opening up of the electricity and gas markets in the European Union, and the major role the
ARCELOR Group will play because of its size should allow ARCELOR to negotiate better terms for
purchasing energy.

Water

The Group has its own watercatchment at most of its sites.

4.7 Regulations
4.7.1 Eurbpean regulations
4.7.1.1 The ECSC Treaty

The European Coal and Steel Community (ECSC) Treaty governing the steel sector in Europe is due to
expire on 23rd July, 2002. From this date, the sector will be governed by the provisions of the general treaty
of the European Union, as is already the case for certain of the sector’s activities, such as initial processing
and forging.

The main aspects of the ARCELOR Group’s activities where the ECSC Treaty applies are as follows:

e the competition rules, which cover both merger control laws and regulations and price fixing
prohibitions and/or restrictions on production levels and market sharing;

o the Code on State Aids to the Steel Industry, which is more restrictive than the general provisions
of the Treaty of the European Union, which was renewed at the end of 1996 and will be in force
until the ECSC Treaty expires; new draft regulations, to replace the current code, are under
discussion; and

e funding of research.

The expiration of the ECSC Treaty will not have a significant effect on ARCELOR or the steel industry
in general. Since the decision taken in 1991 to let the ECSC Treaty expire in accordance with its terms, the
EU has aligned the application of the ECSC Treaty with the provisions of the EC Treaty. As a result, the
transition of the EC Treaty should not cause any significant problems. In addition, the EC has taken measures
to ensure that international commitments of the ECSC are assumed by the EC and that agreements authorised
under the ECSC Treaty will not be affected by the transition to the EC Treaty.

4.7.1.2  State aid

The European Commission can, in certain cases, requalify financial advantages granted by member states
to companies as state aid, and demand reimbursement thereof by the relevant companies.
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4.7.1.3  Prohibited cartels

The European Commission can, in certain cases, impose fines on companies pursuant to the provisions
concerning prohibited cartels.

4.7.2 Trade barriers

The liberalisation of trade has led to the creation of national protective trade measures to regulate
international trade. Adopted at an international level through the GATT agreements, the latest in 1994, the
principal national protective trade measures are anti-dumping and anti-subsidy legislation (countervailing
duty), safeguard clauses and voluntary restraint agreements.

In recent years there has been a marked increase in the number of national protective trade measures,
including in particular the implementation of anti-dumping and countervailing duty legislation by an
increasing number of countries. This trend has been amplified following the imposition of restrictive measures
by the United States in March 2002

Safeguard measures allow a country to protect a branch of a national industry when a product is being
imported in such increased quantities as to be a substantial cause of serious prejudice, or the threat thereof, to
the domestic industry, but such measures do not provide relief against so-called unfairly traded imports.

Anti-dumping duties aim to eliminate the effect of the trade practice consisting in selling a product on
an export market at a price below that charged in the domestic market. The duties are equal to the amount by
which the sales price on the domestic market exceeds the sales price on the export market.

Countervailing duties aim to offset the effect of the advantages of imported products resulting from
direct or indirect subsidies.

4.7.2.1  Anti-dumping and anti-subsidy measures
4.7.2.1.1 Protective measures

(1) United States

(a) Flat carbon steels

As regards plates and heavy plates, anti-dumping duties (10.43%) and countervailing duties (Sollac and
Industeel 5.56% and GTS 6.86%) have been applied to imports, particularly from France, since November
1999 and will continue to be applied until 2004.

Anti-dumping and countervailing duties have been imposed on imports from Belgium and Spain since
1993. Thus Cockerill Sambre is liable to anti-dumping duties of 6.75%, and countervailing duties of 23.15%,
and imports on cut-to-length heavy steel plate of ACERALIA and its direct and indirect subsidiaries are
subject to anti-dumping duties of 105.61% and countervailing duties of 36.86%. In December 2000, these
measures were extended until 2005, until the close of the so-called “sunset” five-year revision procedure.
They may be revised annually.

As regards corrosion-resistant cold-rolled flat products, in November 2000, anti-dumping duties and
countervailing duties applied to imports, particularly from France (overall rate of 44.53%), since 1993, were
extended until 20085, until the close of the so-called “sunset” five-year revision procedure. The Group
currently disputes this decision before the International Trade Court of the United States. They may be
revised annually.

Lastly, on 28th September, 2001, investigation proceedings were initiated on imports of certain cold-
rolled products from Argentina, Australia, Belgium, Brazil, China, France, Germany, India, Japan, Korea, the
Netherlands, New Zealand, Russia, South Africa, Spain, Sweden, Taiwan, Thailand, Turkey and Venezuela.

On 13th November, 2001, the International Trade Commission (“ITC”) voted, unanimously, to continue
the proceedings. The preliminary decision of the Trade Department as published on 29th April, 2002 fixes the
antidumping rates at 11.66% for Belgium, 46.20% for Spain and 5.17% for France.
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(b} Long carbon steel

In June 2001, the US Administration initiated anti-dumping investigation proceedings against imports of
steel beams from Luxembourg, Spain and Germany.

The final antidumping duties as published on 21st May, 2002, are fixed at 15.23% for Luxembourg,
5.19% for Spain and 8.09% for Germany.

{c) Stainless steel

e  Flat stainless steel

Ugine initiated an annual revision to attempt to obtain a reduction in anti-dumping duties which are
currently 9.38% and which have been applied, since June 1999, to imports of stainless steel strips and sheets,
in particular from France.

The final rate of the duties, published on 14th February, 2002, is 3%.

Revision of the countervailing duties of 5.38% was requested for 2000. The preliminary decision as
published on 10th May, 2002 fixes them at 1.29%, the final decision being expected on 9th September, 2002.

e Long stainless steel

In July 2000, the anti-dumping duties applied to imports of stainless steel wire rod, in particular from
France, since 1993, were extended until 2005, until the close of the “sunset” five-year revision procedure,
reduced to 7.19% after several annual revisions.

They may be revised annually.

e  Stainless steel bars

Subsequent to complaints brought by the American industry in December 2000, the US Administration
opened an investigation against imports of stainless steel bars, in particular from France (anti-dumping) and
from Italy (anti-dumping and countervailing duties).

The final anti-dumping rates, published on 16th January, 2002, are fixed at 3.90% for Ugine Savoie
Imphy and at 1.70% for Bedini. The final determination concluded that no countervailing duties would be
applied to Bedini.

e  Heavy stainless steel coils

Imports from Belgium, in particular from ALZ, have been subject to anti-dumping and countervailing
duties since respectively 1998 and 1997. In the first annual revision, the rate of the anti-dumping duties,
published on 24th October, 2001, was definitively fixed at 24.43%. In the second annual revision, the
provisional duties were fixed at 5.36%. The final countervailing duties for the first annual revision, published
on 27th August, 2001, is fixed at 1.78%. ALZ has lodged a complaint with the US International Trade
Commission contesting this rate.

(2) Brazil

In May 2000, the Brazilian government imposed anti-dumping duties on Ugine of 30.9% on imports of
cold-rolled flat stainless steel of less than 3 mm thick.

An administrative recourse has been lodged against this decision.

(3) India

On 13th December, 2001, the Indian government imposed provisional anti-dumping duties on imports of
cold-rolled stainless steel from the United States, Japan, Canada and the European Union. These duties are
fixed at 0.82 USD/kilo on imports from the United States, 0.70 USD/kilo for Japan, 0.20 USD/kilo for
Canada and 0.37 USD/kilo for the European Union.
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(4) Canada

(a) In December 2000, the Canadian government opened an investigation on imports of steel from
various countries, including Portugal (Lusosider).

(b) In 1994 anti-dumping duties and countervailing duties of 75.30% were imposed on imports of hot-
rolled carbon steel plate and certain high-strength low-alloy plate from ACERALIA; these measures were
maintained in 1999 and will be reviewed prior to September 2004.

(5) Venezuela

On 1st November, 2001, the Venezuelan government opened an investigation to determine whether anti-
dumping duties and countervailing duties should be imposed on the import of certain types of beams from
ACERALIA.

4.7.2.1.2 Actions: European Union
(a) Flat carbon steels

With respect to hot-rolled coils, in February 2000, the European Commission introduced anti-dumping
duties (3.90% to 24.90% for Taiwan, 15.40% for Yugoslavia) and countervailing duties (3.90% to 4.40% for
Taiwan). Undertakings as regards prices were signed with South Africa, Bulgaria and India.

With respect to quarto plates, a final decision in June 2000 fixed the anti-dumping duties on imports
from China at 13.1% and confirmed the undertakings conceming prices signed with [ndia and Romania.

(b) Long stainless steels

The European Union decided, in July 1999, to apply defensive anti-dumping duties (up to 55%) and
countervailing duties (up to 48.9%) on imports of wire-drawn stainless steei products of a diameter of less
than or more than | mm from India.

4.7.2.1.3 Safeguard clause
s  United States: wire rod

Imports of most types of wire rod from any country (except Canada and Mexico) are subject to a
maximum quota. Pursuant to a decision of 21st November, 2001, the quota for members of the European
Union has been set at 419,948,744 kilos.

o  United States: flat carbon steels and alloys, long carbon steels and alloys, tubes and carbon steel and
alloy accessories, stainless steel and steel for alloy tools.

On 22nd June, 2001, the US Administration opened an investigation pursuant to the safeguard clause, at
the request of the President of the United States. Four product families, subdivided into thirty-three classes,
are targeted: flat carbon steels and alloys, long carbon steels and alloys, tubes and carbon steel and alloy
accessories, stainless steel and steel for alloy tools. For the Group, twelve categories of products are relevant.
Following the end of its investigation, on 27th November, 2001, the ITC made its recommendation to the
President on 19th December, 2001,

Whilst the US Presidency had from the start emphasised the organisation of international negotiations
and the “multilateral initiative” aimed at reducing production capacities on a worldwide level and at
eliminating subsidies which distort competition, the US President announced on 6th March, 2002 the
imposition of restrictive measures on imports which came into effect on 20th March, 2002 for a period of
3 years and 1 day.

The supplementary duties on flat carbon steel are fixed at 30% for the first year, 24% for the second year
and 18% for the third year. The supplementary duties on rebars and welded tubes are fixed at 15% for the
first year, 12% for the second year and 9% for the third year. The supplementary duties on carbon steel
accessories and alloys are fixed at 13% for the first year, 10% for the second year and 7% for the third year.
The supplementary duties on stainless steel bars and coils are fixed at 15% for the first year, 12% for the
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second year and at 9% for the third year. The supplementary duties on stainless steel wire are fixed at 8% for
the first year, 7% for the second year and at 6% for the third year. Slaps are subject to quotas but stainless
steel tubes accessories and steel for tools are excluded therefrom.

Products of ACB, Aceralia Planos, Aceralia Perfiles, Aceralia Redondos, Laminoir de Dudelange,
Galvalange, Segal, Sidmar, Stahlwerke Bremen, Ares, ProfilArbed, Acesita, Cockerill Sambre, Eko Stahl,
Lusosider, Sollac, Sprint Métal, Ugine Savoie Imphy, Usinor Industeel, Usinor Packaging are concerned by
these measures.

The US Administration is currently reviewing more than 1,200 exemption applications presented, with
the support and often upon the request of American steel users, in respect of products which the American
steel industry is not able to provide. For the Group, high added value niche products are concerned by these
exemption applications. The review of applications will continue until July, 2002. Thereafter, at every
anniversary date of the decision, exemption applications based inter alia on stocks shortages may be
reviewed.

e  Europe: flat carbon steels and alloys except coated products, certain long carbon steels and alloys,
carbon steel accessories and alloys, stainless steel.

Whilst the turnover generated by the Group in the United States in 2001 is approximately 12% of its
total turnover, the impact of such measures on the Group is predominantly indirect to the extent that products
from steel producers in low-cost countries would be transferred to the European market.

It is this threat which led the European Commission to implement its safeguard clause after the
announcement of the decision of the US President. Starting 28th March, 2002, provisional restrictive
measures have been initiated under the form of applicable quotas for a 6 months’ period. Investigations are
underway in order to assess the impact of the US measures on imports into Europe and decide on whether
such measures ought to be upheld beyond the provisional period expiring on 28th September, 2002.

Following the granting of certain exemptions by the US (concerning less than 1% of European steel
exports into the US), the European Union has decided to postpone its decision regarding the imposition of
supplementary duties on US products to the middle of July.

e  Canada: flat carbon steels and alloys, certain long carbon steels and alloys.

On 25th March, 2002 the Canadian government submitted an application to the Canadian Court of
External Trade to initiate investigations in relation to the safeguard clause. The impact on the Group is
limited to flat carbon steel and alloys. Notwithstanding that the Canadian market does not generate a high
turnover for the Group, its position thereon as second importer after the United States, makes it necessary for
it to participate in these investigations. The Canadian Court of External Trade should render its report on 4th
July, 2002 on the actual prejudice or the risk of prejudice caused to the Canadian steel industry by imports.

The final decision on whether and for what period to apply restrictive measures and the selection of the
form of such measures (either supplementary duties or quantitative restrictive measures) lies with the
government.

. OECD

Under the auspices of the OECD, meetings of the representatives of steel producing countries and senior
executives of the steelmaking industries were organised in Paris on 17th and 18th September, 2001 followed
by meetings in December, 2001 and April, 2002, after steelmaking industries had been consulted by their
respective governments. There should be a further meeting prior to the end of the year in order to assess the
situation of the steel sector and to analyse the results of the current investigations on capacities and measures
which distort the market. Meanwhile the working group in charge of the analysis of capacities will meet in
September and thereafter every 6 months.

¢ WTO

At the request of the EU, the World Trade Organisation (WTO) has on 3rd June, 2002 decided to set up
a panel in order to investigate the imposition of supplementary duties on steel products by the United States.
At its meeting on l4th June, 2002, it was decided such panel would also examine the complaints by Japan
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and Korea. A decision by the WTO as a result of the findings of the panel is not expected before six to nine
months.

In addition, the United States have required the WTO to start an investigation against the EU’s
implementation of its safeguard clause.

4.7.2.1.4 Voluntary restraint agreements

The European Union has negotiated partnership and co-operation agreements with the countries of the
Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS), resulting from the dissolution of the former USSR.

In principle, the parties to these agreements apply the most-favoured nation rule to each other in
compliance with customs duties. The agreements also contain provisions on the abolition of quantitative
restrictions and other trade barriers.

The European Union ended its policy of autonomous quantitative restrictions vis-a-vis the CIS countries
in 1995, and entered into bilateral agreements with Russia and Ukraine, followed by Kazakhstan, relating to
the import of most steel products falling within the scope of the ECSC Treaty from these countries. These
agreements entered into force in 1997 for Russia and Ukraine, and on 1st January, 2000 for Kazakhstan, and
have been extended to 31st December, 2004.

Transitional measures have been taken to prepare total liberalisation, ultimately, of the steel market with
these countries, in compliance with rules on competition, state aid and protection of the environment; they
authorise in particular financial and technical aid required for restructuring their steelmaking industries.

On 29th May, 2002, the European Union announced that it would grant Russia the full market economy
status in recognition of its major reforms carried out in the recent year. This decision will be effective after
the necessary modifications of the EU trade defence legislation. On 6th June, 2002, the US Administration
also decided to revoke Russia’s non-market economy status (effective as from 1st April, 2002) and to grant
Russia the status of a market economy. The change from a non-market economy to a market economy means
that Russian-based economic data will determine anti-dumping duties (and not econometrics based on
surrogate country data) and that a higher burden of proof will be required to bring anti-dumping actions
against Russia. It also opens up Russia to subsidy cases (countervailing duty procedures).

Russian steel exports are governed by bilateral EU-Russia and US-Russia agreements. The decision to
grant Russia market economy status is currently not expected to affect these bilateral agreements.

4.8 Environment
4.8.1 Environmental regulations

Steelmaking activities require large quantities of raw materials and energy and have, by their very
nature, an impact as regards environmental matters.

In the countries in which it operates, and in particular in Europe, Brazil and the United States, the Group
must comply with various regulations relating in particular to the handling of major accidents, the disposal of
waste water and industrial waste, air and water pollution and the protection of sites. National norms
concerning emissions vary considerably from one country or region to another.

In addition, the Group may also be liable to pay tax on polluting activities, such as the taxe générale sur
les activités polluantes-TGAP introduced in France on Ist January, 1999.

Since a large part of the Group’s steel production is situated in the European Union, the Group must
comply with European regulations (and in particular the Seveso II Directive, the [PPC-Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control-Directive and the Environmental Impact Assessment Directive) and implementing
legislation.

The Group considers that it is in all material respects in compliance with all applicable regulations in the
various countries and regions where it is present and that it will continue to be so, thanks to an investment
programme aimed at ensuring compliance with those existing regulations which provide for time-{imits for
compliance.

62



The Group’s industrial sites are subject to authorisation procedures set by national authorities. The Group
considers that it holds the authorisations required for its operations and does not anticipate that it will face
any particular difficulties when applying for the renewal of such authorisations or for new authorisations.

The Group operates, through Belgo-Mineira, the Andrade mine in Brazil.

In certain countries, when sites are not operated, national authorities may, relying on applicable
legislation, require the former operator to take all measures necessary to restore the sites to the state they
were in prior to the commencement of the activity (especially where the sites have been contaminated).

Lormines ceased all mining activity in 1993. A number of proceedings are still pending against third
parties, but the amounts at stake are not significant and have, for the most part, been borne by insurance
companies. During the general meeting of 3rd March, 2000, the shareholders of Lormines noticed that the
company had achieved its corporate objectives and decided to commence dissolution proceedings. Prior to
that, they had recapitalised Lormines up to a level deemed satisfactory for the performance of its regulatory
obligations. The liquidator, who was appointed by the President of the commercial court of Nanterre, is in
discussions with the relevant authorities with a view to obtaining the regularisation of the administrative
situation and the granting of the concessions orders relating to concessions, which had been granted by the
State and which are pending as at today’s date.

During the summer of 1997, ARBED ceased all mining activity in France. Within the scope of the
measures which the French authorities can impose when a site of this type is closed down, the “Préfet”
ordered ARBED to take a certain number of measures relating to the monitoring of ground stability and the
drinking water supply system, in addition to pumping out the pit water until 30th November, 2002. Appeals
were made against these orders and negotiations followed with the French authorities. Provisions have been
made in the accounts to cover such risks. Due to popular pressure, the French authorities ordered that an
expert prepare a report on how long the pumping of the pit water should last. Following the conclusions of
such repart the “Préfer” ordered ARBED to continue the pumping work until 30th November, 2004. To the
extent the continuation of the pumping after 30th November, 2002 is due to reasons for which ARBED has
not to answer, the French authorities are willing to share the costs of pumping out the water after
30th November, 2002.

The French mining code was recently amended by law n' 99-245 of 30th March, 1999 which increased
the obligations of former operators relating to the monitoring, prevention and management of risks which
may continue after the closure of the mines as well as the indemnification for damage caused by subsidence.
These new provisions are applicable to procedures relating to the cessation of works at the date of entry into
force of the law.

The Group is not aware of the existence of any litigation or threat of litigation relating to environmental
matters which could have a significant négative impact on the Group’s financial situation. However, because
of its past and current activities, the Group is exposed to risks which may give rise to its environmental
liability, the consequences of which cannot be evaluated.

In addition, the Group’s activities may be subject to more stringent environmental regulations in the
future which could lead the Group to incur substantial expenses to ensure compliance therewith or to pay
high taxes.

However, on the basis of the information available at the date of this Prospectus, the Group considers
that the expenses which may be incurred as a result of the implementation of such regulations should not
have a significant negative impact on its activities, its financial situation or its position among its competitors.
4.8.2 Environmental protection

Environmental protection forms an integral part of the Group’s strategy and growth policy and covers all
aspects of its activities.

[n addition to recurring environmental operational charges, the Group has invested, for the protection of
the environment in the strictest sense, the equivalent of approximately 5% of total investment in 2001.
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The ARCELOR Group’s environmental policy is based on the principle of the preservation of a
long-lasting balance between the environment, health and safety, and the economy.

Continuous progress in environmental protection matters will be implemented in particular by:
o the development and implementation of better production methods and products;
¢ the employees showing a positive attitude towards the environment; and

e the introduction of the ISO 14001 international standard at most of the ARCELOR Group’s sites
before the end of 2003.

The main lines of this policy are based on the following priorities:
e  Recycling of steel

Steel is one of the most recycled materials in the world, which makes it possible to minimise
consumption of natural resources and combat the greenhouse effect. The ARCELOR Group’s recycling rate,
taking into account all of the different steelmaking processes used, is nearly 50%. The scrap metal used in
electric arc furnaces comes from steel products that have reached the end of their useful life, such as
industrial machines, used vehicles, packaging, construction products, as well as scrap steel waste recovered
from processing companies. Recycling has been greatly facilitated by magnetic sorting.

The ARCELOR Group is determined to maintain the highest possible steel recycling rate. The Group is
also actively involved in specific schemes for the recycling of packaging and vehicles which have reached
the end of their useful life and takes part in numerous initiatives aimed at making the public sensitive to the
ecological benefits of recycling.

s  Reducing the consumption of natural resources

- One of the Group’s main objectives is to reduce its consumption of water, which is essential to the
steelmaking process. More efficient management of water resources, coupled with the installation of closed
circuit systems at most production sites, has resulted in a reduction of over 25% in consumption over the past
ten years.

¢ Improvement of technology in order to reduce the adverse impact on the environment of steel
production

Polluting emissions

Dust emissions account for most of the atmospheric pollution generated by steelmaking plants. A
programme has been underway for several years to limit such emissions.

Over the past ten years, emissions released in controlled areas have decreased by over 50% thanks to the
efficient use of existing sites and the development of new sites with an innovative approach in environmental
protection matters.

Significant progress has also been made to reduce fugitive dust particles particularly through the use of
processes which fix coal and iron ore at storage areas and better road surfaces.

Air pollution may have cross-border effects. This is why agreements and international projects have been
implemented with the aim of regulating air pollution at a national level (UNECE (United Nations Economic
Commission for Europe)-Géteborg Protocol; European framework directive fixing emission ceilings in
Member States). At the ARCELOR Group level, a significant reduction of emissions of SO2, and of NOx to
a lesser extent, has been achieved through the implementation of targeted measures such as the use of coal
and iron ore with low sulphur content, the desulfurisation of gases in coking plants, the increase of energy
efficiency, higher injection rates of pulverised coal in blast furnaces, the improvement of material efficiency,
and especially the increase in the portion of the steel production generated from scrap. It is anticipated that
the implementation of new projects and an increase in energy efficiency will significantly reduce acid
emissions.

[ron ore sinter plants and electric arc furnaces are a source of dioxin emissions. The ARCELOR Group
is at present concentrating its efforts on reducing these emissions.
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Collaborating initiatives to reduce these emissions are being examined at European level. These
initiatives are complemented by specific research undertaken within a number of the ARCELOR Group'’s
plants.

Greenhouse gases

Although greenhouse gases are not pollutants within the usual meaning of the word, the ARCELOR
Group attaches great importance to reducing them. Compared with 1990, considerable progress has been
made in terms of reducing greenhouse gas emissions, both in absolute terms and in terms of emissions per
ton of steel produced. The ARCELOR Group will implement a proactive policy in the fight against
greenhouse gas emissions, which will be supplemented by voluntary measures with a view to increasing
energy efficiency and reducing CO2 emissions.

Management of porentially polluted sites

The ARCELOR Group is responsible for protecting from pollution the soil and subsoil at its industrial
sites.

The Group is also responsible for former operational sites. These historical sites are actively being
restored and the ARCELOR Group intends to continue to implement this policy.

e  Perfecting products

Continuously improving the quality and mechanical performance of steel helps prevent global pollution.
This involves, in particular, contributing to making products made from lighter steel (such as automobiles,
buildings, household products).

A life cycle analysis, from the extraction of iron ore to despatch of the finished product, was conducted
for each major type of product marketed by the ARCELOR Group. These analyses are available to any
customers wishing to carry out a life cycle analysis of their products.

At a worldwide level, a special effort has been made to harmonise the description of polluting emissions
indicators used to control pollution reduction measures. These measures provide a framework for corrective
actions to be implemented through investment or better organisation, by defining manufacturing conditions or
analysing the technology and processes which reduce polluting emissions.

4.9 Intellectual property

The ARCELOR Group has internationally recognised know-how and a broad portfolio of patents. The
Group also files applications for trademarks when it wants to protect particular trademarks. This is for
example the case of the Extragal trademark, the relating manufacturing processes of which are also protected
by patents, and Sibetex (trademark and patent), both of which relate to surface treatment used in the car
industry.

The Group has set up a team specialised in intellectual property matters which shall be responsible for
the implementation of a harmonised and systematic protection of its know how and technology.

Notwithstanding the above, the ARCELOR Group considers that its activities are not materiaily
dependent on patents, trademarks, licences or other intellectual property rights owned by it or third parties.
4.10 Other commitments
4.10.1 Warranties

In connection with the various asset transfers effected within ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR groups
over the past few years, warranties that were common in the context of such transactions were granted for
limited periods of time and limited amounts.

As at today’s date no claims have been made under these warranties which could significantly affect the
Group’s financial situation.
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4.10.2  Other commitments
(1) Sidmar

In 1984, the company Société Nationale pour la Restructuration des Secteurs Nationaux (SNSN)
subscribed for 839,467 non-voting preference shares in Sidmar which are to be transformed into voting shares
if they are not repurchased by 16th October, 2004. These shares were repurchased in 1991 by Sidmar by
means of a reduction in share capital. Further to a request of the European Commission, there will be a final
evaluation of the shares in 2004 based on the real changes in the long-term interest rates between 1992 and
2004 and the return on the Sidmar shares over the five financial years preceding 2004 and the five financial
years following 2004. Appropriate provisions have been made in ARCELOR’s pro forma accounts to cover
the evaluation to be made in 2004 to Staal Vlaanderen NV, which has been subrogated in the rights of
SNSN.

(2) Eko Stakl

The investment undertakings given by Cockerill Sambre to the Treuhandanstalt when it purchased Eko
Stahl in December 1994 have been complied with.

There is a job retention undertaking, valid until the end of 2004, which has been fully complied with to
date.

(3) ACERALIA

During the privatisation of ACERALIA and pursuant to the terms of the framework agreement signed by
ACERALIA, ARBED and the SEPI on 23rd and 24th September, 1997, ARBED undertook to the SEPI to
implement an industrial plan within ACERALIA between st January, 1998 and 31st December, 2002. In
accordance with the industrial plan, ARBED gave the following undertakings:

e  The total level of capital expenditure to be made by ACERALIA and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries (“ACERALIA sub-group”) will be a minimum of EUR 781,916,748. Compliance with
_ this undertaking will be verified at the close of the period of validity of the industrial plan.

s  The total number of employees in the ACERALIA sub-group will not be reduced below the
numbers indicated in the industrial plan proposed by ARBED, unless it is decided otherwise in
collective negotiations with the personnel representatives. This obligation is applicable for each of
the years 1998 to 2002 (inclusive), annual variations of less than 5% not constituting a violation of
this undertaking.

e  Arbed Espaiia BV, a direct and indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of ARBED, undertakes not to
vote in favour of a resolution presented to the general meeting of the shareholders or to the board
of directors relating to a material change to the company’s objects, or to the merger or demerger of
any company belonging to the ACERALIA sub-group, unless these restructuring transactions are
carried out within the ACERALIA sub-group.

In order to guarantee the undertakings described above, Arbed Espaiia BV had at the time pledged in the
SEPI’s favour 8,465,558 shares that it then owned in the capital of ACERALIA as well as its ACERALIA
warrants 97.

At 31st December, 2001 the ACERALIA sub-group’s level of capital expenditure during the relevant
period has already exceeded EUR 781,116,748 and the job retention undertaking has been respected.

Pursuant to an agreement of 14th December, 2001 between the SEPI, ARBED, Arbed Espafia BV and
ARCELOR and as a result of the successful outcome to the Public Exchange Offers:

(i) the SEPI released the above-mentioned pledge over the 8,465,558 ACERALIA shares, thus allowing
Arbed Espafia BV to submit its shares for exchange in the Public Exchange Offer made by
ARCELOR in respect of the ACERALIA shares;
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(i) ARBED Espafia BV pledged in the SEPI’s favour the 11,287,411 ARCELOR Shares it received in
exchange for the ACERALIA shares previously pledged in favour of the SEPI. This pledge is in
force until 20th November, 2003;

(iii) ARCELOR procured compliance with all of the undertakings given by ARBED/Arbed Espafia BV
under ACERALIA’s industrial plan;

(iv) the SEPI accepts that, for the purposes of the above-mentioned framework agreement, any
transaction relating to a company belonging to the ACERALIA sub-group, on the one hand, and to
ARCELOR or a company belonging to the ARCELOR Group, on the other, would be treated as an
internal transaction within the ACERALIA sub-group.

(4) COCKERILL SAMBRE

In connection with the Partnership Agreement entered into on Ist December, 1998 with Société
Wallonne pour la Sidérurgie resulting in the purchase of 75% of the shares in Cockerill Sambre, USINOR
undertook to implement an investment plan, which is being implemented as arranged.

4.11 Disputes

The Group is currently involved in a number of litigation and arbitration proceedings within the scope of
the ordinary course of its businesses.

ARCELOR considers that the Group has made sufficient provisions to cover litigation risks and is not
aware, subject to what is indicated below, of any exceptional facts or litigation or threats of litigation which
may have, or have recently had, a significant impact on the Group’s activity or financial situation.

USINOR responded to the announcement of a lawsuit filed by AK Steel Corporation in Cincinnati US
Federal District Court, against it and its subsidiaries (respectively the French companies Ugine and Sollac and
the American corapany J&L), as well as Mr Pascal Payet-Gaspard, vice-president, in charge of marketing and
sales at Ugine. USINOR believes the AK Steel lawsuit is a belated and retaliatory response to a lawsuit filed
in July 2000 by USINOR against AK Steel in the same court, alleging that AK Steel violated federal and
Ohio State antitrust laws by monopolising, attempting to monopolise, and conspiring to monopolise the US
market for aluminium-coated type 409 stainless steel. USINOR has filed a motion with the court to dismiss
AK’s lawsuit and the court is currently reviewing that motion.

USINOR, in the July 2000 lawsuit is contending that, as part of AK Steel’s unlawful scheme to exclude
business rivals from the aluminium-coated type 409 stainless steel market, AK Steel and its merger partner
Armco Inc. filed sham lawsuits, purporting to enforce fraudulently-obtained patents. The filing of AK Steel’s
new lawsuit appears to be a continuation of its misuse of the court and patent systems to prevent competition
in the marketplace.

USINOR manufactures its own aluminium-coated type 409 stainless steel product used for the
production of exhaust pipes, and sells it with its own US patented process. J&L does not manufacture
aluminium-coated products and USINOR believes the law suit has been brought against it for having attracted
clients, considered by AK Steel to be exclusively its own.

In 1998, in response to USINOR’s efforts to enter the United States market, AK Steel and Armco filed
two lawsuits for infringement of patents. USINOR has filed several motions seeking a judgement of invalidity
and non-infringement of all of the patents and is presently awaiting a final ruling on those motions from the
court. USINOR contends that AK Steel and Armco have used the patent suits to block USINOR from selling
its competing products in the United States. USINOR’s antitrust lawsuit seeks an unspecified amount of
damages which would be automatically trebled under US law plus attorneys’ fees and costs.

In November 2000, as a delaying tactic, AK Steel filed a formal paper requesting the federal court to
postpone the antitrust case brought by USINOR and to freeze indefinitely all discovery then pending in the
case. In November 2001, however, the federal court ordered that the antitrust case brought by USINOR
should proceed and discovery is ongoing in that case. USINOR believes that it will win in both its antitrust
case against AK Steel, as well as in the retaliatory suit brought by AK.
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4.12 Human resources
4.12.1 Employees

Information on the number of employees in the Group and as to their geographical and business sector
distribution is set out in section 4.1 of this Prospectus.

For the financial year 2002, the Group will implement actions decided and commenced prior to the
amalgamation aimed at improving operational performance and productivity.

On a like-for-like basis, these actions will lead to a reduction in the number of employees.

The businesses mainly concerned are, an improved competitiveness scheme at Sidmar in Gent, which
was announced in September 2001, improved competitiveness and increased production schemes at Cockerill
Sambre (Delta scheme) and in the sector of special steels (Usinor Industeel, France), and the reduction of
excess capacity in the cold-rolled flat carbon steel products (Sollac Atlantique Biache-Saint-Vaast
establishment, Pas-de-Calais-France).

The divestments required by the European Commission (i.e., of the coating lines of Sollac Lorraine in
Strasbourg and Beautor in France, Galmed in Spain, the galvanising line of Dudelange in Luxembourg, Segal
in Belgium, the galvanising line of Finarvedi in Italy and Lusosider in Portugal as well as Cofrafer, a steel
service centre situated in France and the joint controiling stake in Bamesa, a group of steel service centres
active in Spain and Portugal), will result (on the basis of the current scope thereof) in the exit of all or some
of the headcount from the units which are being sold with the transfer of all or some of the employees. Only
the employees in Strasbourg, Beautor, Cofrafer, Galmed and Dudelange are included in the employees of the
ARCELOR group, the other companies referred to being consolidated in the accounts by the equity method.
As at the date of this Prospectus, there are no plans to reduce the number of employees in these companies.

Over the next few years, generally, reductions in the number of employees, when necessary, will be
facilitated, given the age pyramid, by employees taking retirement.

4.12.2  Employment policy
Developing specialisation to achieve better performance

Against a background of growing internationalisation and accelerated changes in the scope of the
organisation, the ARCELOR Group aims to build unity among all of its employees in every country, through
shared values, with a strong emphasis on the development of individual skills and positive integration of
cultures.

Initiatives aimed at achieving better performances will be set up at all levels within the organisation for
all employees to be informed of and better evaluate their personal and team contributions. The performance
evaluation will gradually be extended to all personnel in the Group. For managerial staff, the ARCELOR
Group will implement a variable pay system making it possible to acknowledge individual and team
performance.

Suitable training will be provided to improve technical and behavioural expertise.

The internal training of managers, which will continue the experience of the founding groups, will
receive particular attention in order to achieve a higher level of expertise and encourage the integration
process at the highest levels.

The role of ARCELOR as parent company implies that the centralised management of human resources,
insofar as it relates to senior executive managers, is effected at the level of the corporate department of
ARCELOR. The management of personnel in each sector is shared between the relevant sector and the
companies comprising that sector.

Efficient social dialogue in an environment of trust

The global working relationship within the Group of ARCELOR, in the context of rapid changes in
markets and business activities, requires a close and transparent dialogue with all of the employees in order to
better anticipate the qualitative and quantitative adaptations that will need to be achieved.
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The Group will continue to develop this tradition of social dialogue, which proved to be successful in
the past. This dialogue will take place at all levels of the company in compliance with the specific laws and
regulations of the countries where the entities are situated, whilst respecting cultural particularities, and whilst
taking into account the requirements of the business activities.

In order to ensure that this dialogue will take place at the highest levels within the company, ARCELOR
has on 27th May, 2002 set up a European works council, which has replaced those existing in the ARBED/
ACERALIA group and the USINOR group.

Involvement of personnel represeniatives in decision-making

In addition, three of the seventeen members of the board of directors of ARCELOR represent the
employees (see section 6.1.2).

Health and safety at work

Improving health and safety is one of ARCELOR’s main priorities.

The companies within the Group have achieved significant results in the last few years.

ARCELOR will continue to implement an ambitious policy confirming that it retains a leading role in
terms of reduction of accidents and improvement of health at work.

4.13 Research and development (R&D)
4.13.1 General R&D policy

The ARCELOR Group intends to implement an active R&D policy by combining its resources, by
leveraging its multi-market/multi-product/multi-process approach and by using the synergies resulting from its
creation.

The ARCELOR Group intends to benefit from its experience in highly technical products to continue to
differentiate itself by providing products and services which meet its customers’ current and future needs.

The size of the Group will facilitate the development of processes for the manufacturing of new products
and the reduction of manufacturing costs.

The recent alliance with Nippon Steel Corporation should enable the ARCELOR Group to benefit from a
sharing of the R&D activities in terms of customer-demand response and cost sharing.
4.13.2 R&D objectives

The objectives are aimed at:

e developing new products with mechanical and surface properties which will contribute to meeting
customers’ expectations (lighter products, aesthetic appearance, security, durability, etc.);

e facilitating and promoting the use of steel, reducing implementing costs for customers;
e developing new applications;

e reducing manufacturing costs;

e improving reliability and increasing manufacturing processes’ flexibility; and

s actively taking into account environmental issues.

4.13.3  R&D facilities

The ARCELOR Group currently owns 18 research centres and laboratories which all carry out applied
research and technical support (for production, sales and customers). This is in addition to a research centre
(the CRM in Belgium) in which Corus is also involved and other partnerships with universities, suppliers and
customers. The Group will continue to develop research conducted in partnership with other steelmakers and
other industries, in addition to that with Nippon Steel Corporation.
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The R&D budget is approximately EUR 180 million.

4.13.4  Main projects
The Group has already planned ambitious projects for technological improvements:

e anew technology for steelmaking through direct reduction and fusion (Primus) resulting in the
reduction of emissions and the recycling of steel by-products;

e  continuous casting of thin products (through its subsidiary Eurostrip in partnership with VAI and
Thyssen Krupp TKS);

e new metallurgy with unprecedented properties (e.g., high mechanical resistance coupled with high
ductility)

e  coating processes through mechanical means (possibility of applying very innovative coatings);
e procedures for applying paint without solvents;
e new capacities for surfaces (rubbing, presentation, adherence, etc.).
The Group intends to benefit from th¢ synergies resulting from its creation to introduce a number of
other ambitious projects.
4.14 Investment
4.14,1 The ARCELOR Group’s policy

The board of directors defines the investment policy and authorises the strategic investments proposed,
planned and executed by the management board, the other investments being decided at the level of the
activities sectors and the operational units,

In taking these investment decisions, the Group will rigorously apply investment criteria designed to
attain profit targets set for the Group.

The creation of the Group will allow optimisation of investments in the different sectors of activity and
should lead to investment savings of at least EUR 350 million by 2005 compared with the three former
groups’ original investment plans on a stand-alone basis.

4.14.2  Recent and current investments

The table below shows, for each business sector, for the last three financial years, the investments in
tangible assets made by the ARCELOR Group.

Investments in tangible assets
(EUR, in millions)

Sector 2001 2000 1999
Flat carbonisteel . . . . . . . . . e e 917 944 1,007
Longcarbonsteel ... . ... .. ... ... 255 244 385
Stainless steel . . . . L e e e 169 200 173
Distribution—transformation—rading. . . . . . . . . . . .. e 158 178 144
Other aCtivities. . . . . . . . o o e e e e e 176 79 91
TOTAL . . . e e e 1,675 1,645 1,800

The table below shows, for the last three financial years financial investments made by the ARCELOR
Group.

Financial investments

Year (EUR, in millions)
2000, . . e 426
2000, . . L e e 375
1999, . o e 1,115
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4.14.2.1 Investment in tangible assets

The ARCELOR Group’s recent and future investments are principally in the European Union and in
South America.

In Belgium, Sidmar has installed at its Ghent site new hot-dip galvanising lines (Sidgal 2 and 3) and
organic coating lines (Decosteel 2), as well as a new continuous casting installation. In the cold-rolling mills,
a continuous process was implemented in tandem No. 2, and certain modifications were made in order to
produce steel with high elasticity limits for the automotive industry. A new laser-welded blank production
unit was commissioned at the Sidmar site at the end of 2000. Sidmar’s blast furnace B was relined at the end
of 2001, with relining of blast furnace A to follow at the beginning of 2003. Following these relining works,
Sidmar’s pig iron production capacity will increase by approximately 500,000 metric tons per year, to reach
4.2 million metric tons per year. Investments have also been made in the Cockerill Sambre sites in Belgium,
particularly with the commissioning of a third slab furnace in Carlam at the end of 1999 and a new
continuous casting installation in Liege.

In Spain, particularly in order to improve its position in the automobile market, the Group has
undertaken modernisation works with the continuous cold-rolling process at Sagunto, and a plant for
production of laser-welded blanks at Zaragoza has been built by the Group. At the Avilés site, a new organic
coating line with a capacity of 150,000 metric tons per year has been installed and the wide-strip line has
been modernised. In addition, two new hot-dip galvanising lines have been built (Avilés 2 and Solmed).
An increase in capacity at the ACB site (second line and pickling), an extension of the hot-rolling mill, an
increase in capacity at the LDIII steelmaking plant and improvements to the wide tin-plating lines and
organic coating lines at Avilés have been approved. These investments are in progress. [n addition, the
following investments are planned: the construction of an electric arc furnace at Gijon, an increase of the
capacity of the LDIII steelworks to 5 million metric tons, the renovation of a rolling mill in order to
manufacture 90-metre rails, the construction of a second tunnel at Tabaza and an increase of the injection
capacity in the blast furnace of Gijon.

In France, also in order to bolster the Group’s position in the automobile market, a continuous
cold-rolling process was implemented at Mardyck. The Dunkirk blast furnace No. 4 was relined at a cost of
EUR 120 million. This ensures the continuing production of pig iron at Dunkirk and the availability of
additional capacity which may be used to supply other plants within the Group. In order to be in a position to
supply manufacturers based in the Mediterranean region under the best possible conditions, the Group
reinforced its presence in this area in 1999 with vacuum metallurgy and the modemisation of the continuous
casting installations of Fos-sur-Mer.

The integrated flat stainless steel continuous cold-rolling mill line (LC2i) built at the Isbergues plant
produced its first fully-processed coils at the beginning of March 1999. The cold-rolling milling capacity
increased from 90,000 metric tons per year to 300,000 metric tons per year.

In Germany, Stahlwerke Bremen (commissioned at the end of 2000) and Ekostahl (commissioned at the
end of 1999) started up two new hot-dip galvanising lines. In addition, a third walking beam furnace was
commissioned mid-2001 at Stahlwerke Bremen.

In Luxembourg, it has been decided to build a new beam rolling mill for the production of 700,000 to
800,000 metric tons per year; industrial production is planned for the first half of 2004.

In relation to countries outside Europe, a new combined anneal and pickling line for Thainox (Thailand)
has been constructed, the Group has completed construction of the blast furnace at Monlevade in Brazil and a
new unit (cold-dip and integrated galvanising line) has been launched in Brazil.

In addition, the commencement of the industrial phase of the Primus direct reduction process, during the
first half of 2003, will enable the efficient recycling of steel by-products.
4.14.2.2 Financial investments

In Argentina, the Group (through its subsidiary Belgo-Mineira) has signed an agreement with the
Acevedo family, a core shareholder in the Argentinian steelmaker Acindar-Industria Argentina de Aceros
S.A., and has taken a shareholding of 20.44% in Acindar.
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4.15 Insurance

The Group has insurance policies which are in compliance with generally accepted international
standards, and are taken out with reputable insurance companies. High premiums are paid, particularly to
cover damage to plant and machinery and for business interruption insurance, as well as for insurance to
cover third party and transport risks.

ARCELOR considers that the insurance policies taken out provide adequate cover and that all the
significant risks are covered. In order to benefit from economies of scale possible in a group policy, the
Group intends generally to enter into contracts on a centralised basis. With a view to reducing to a minimum
the risks related to the operation of its activities, the Group uses internal and external “risk engineers” who
assist in the implementation of practical solutions limiting risks in the various phases of the production cycle.

In the context of the ARCELOR Group, the intention is to harmonise the insurance policies of
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR with a view to optimising the premiums and the total cost of the insured
risks. The Group intends to increase recourse to captive reinsurance companies by grouping together its
subsidiaries active in this field. However, in the current situation, a tightening up of the industrial insurance
market can be expected as well as an increase in insurance costs which may be significant and long-lasting.
However, given the active prevention policy that it intends to continue, and long-standing relationships with
the major insurers, the ARCELOR Group does not anticipate encountering any particular difficulty in
obtaining sufficient cover from insurers.

After the tragic events of 11th September, 2001, the insurance companies with which the Group does
business announced that they were not able to cover the “terrorist attack” risk, due to the absence of
reinsurance. In several countries where ARCELOR has subsidiaries, these subsidiaries have contacted their
business organisations in order to help them to find a solution at a national level in conjunction with the
public authorities.

4.16  Property

The ARCELOR Group has an industrial and commercial presence throughout the world at several
hundred sites. Virtually all of the production sites and rolling sites are owned by the Group.

The assets of the ARCELOR Group can be divided into two categories, land and buildings.

The very nature of the Group’s activities, most of which are in the European Union, requires many sites
where the various stages of production, processing and finishing of steel products can be carried out.

The Group has significant areas of land which are not used for production and which it intends to
designate for development where such land is not strategic to its operations.

The Group owns numerous buildings throughout the world, most of which are in Europe.
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A map of the main industrial sites, where the ARCELOR Group is present, is set out below.

4 LONG CARBON STEEL PRODUCTS
® FLAT CARBON STEEL PRODUCTS
m STAINLESS STEEL PRODUCTS

4.17 Risk factors -

In addition to the other information contained in this Prospectus, potential investors are advised to read
this section with particular attention.

4.17.1. Commercial and industrial environment
4.17.1.1  Cyclical nature of the steel market

The steel market has traditionally shown cyclical trends resulting in particular from the influence of
macro-economic conditions on demand for steel products and the recurrent imbalance between steel
production and demand.

The turnover, margins and results of the ARCELOR Group are closely linked to these factors and may
vary significantly from one year to the other.

Any forecast in relation to market growth or its evolution must be reviewed in the light of changing
economic conditions which can affect or delay expected improvements.

4.17.1.2  Strong competition in the steel market

The steel market is highly competitive. Stee! producers are also in competition with producers of
substitute materials, particularly in the automotive, construction and packaging industries.

73



Intensity of competition and cyclical steel markets result in significant variations in economic
performance which may lead to a decrease in expected profits and even to losses, which would affect the
steelmaking industry as a whole, including the ARCELOR Group.

4.17.1.3 Raw material and energy consuming industry

Steel production activities consume raw materials such as iron ore, coal, coke, scrap metal, nickel, ferro-
manganese and silico-manganese alloys and zinc. The Group maintains diversity in its sources of supply and,
save for electricity and natural gas, keeps stocks sufficient to minimise the impact of potential disruptions in
supply.

Raw materials and energy constitute major items of expenditure for the ARCELOR Group.

A significant increase in the price of raw materials and energy could have an adverse effect on the
ARCELOR Group’s results if any hedging financial instruments used prove to be insufficient or if these price
increases cannot be passed on to customers.

4.17.1.4  Activities in emerging countries

The ARCELOR Group has activities throughout the world. Risks associated with operating activities in
emerging countries can include non-payment or slower payment of invoices, nationalisation, social, political
or economic instability, greater exchange risk and restrictions on repatriation of currency. The ARCELOR
Group may not be able to insure or cover these risks. Furthermore, it may prove difficult, even impossible, to
obtain financing in countries where rating agencies’ ratings become below “investment grade™ level. The
ARCELOR Group may encounter difficulties in operating in such countries, which could affect its results,

4.17.1.5 Heavy industry

The ARCELOR Group operates in an industrial environment where most of its movable asseis may be
affected by technical problems or accidents which may lead to the interruption of its operations and have a
negative impact on production.

4.17.2 Environmental regulations and liability-Non-renewal of authorisations
4.17.2.1 Compliance with regulations-Environmental liability

In the different countries where the ARCELOR Group operates, particularly in Europe, Brazil and the
United States, steel production activities must comply with environmental regulations which are diverse,
subject to change and extensive.

These regulations relate in particular to the control of major accidents, the elimination of waste water,
the elimination of hazardous solid industrial waste, atmospheric and water pollution and protection of the
sites.

The ARCELOR Group’s activities could, in the future, be subject to stricter regulations requiring
expenditure in order to comply with such regulations or the payment of taxes which could adversely affect
the Group’s results, if this expenditure could not be quickly reflecied in customer prices.

There are potential liabilities for the ARCELOR Group as a result of its past activides, in the event of
bodily harm or damage to property, which could adversely affect ARCELOR’s results.

Lastly, on the basis of applicable regulations, regulatory authorities and courts may force ARCELOR or
the companies of its Group to carry out investigations or to restore sites, or may impose restrictions on their
activities or temporarily or permanently close their installations, which could adversely affect the Group’s
results.

4.17.2.2 Authorisations

In order to carry on its activities, the ARCELOR Group must obtain, renew or modify various
authorisations, permits and/or consents. In certain countries, procedures for obtaining these authorisations
from regulatory authorities are often long and complex and there can be no assurance that the authorisation
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requested will be granted, renewed or modified, which could adversely affect the relevant activities of the
Group.

4.17.3 Financial environment
4.17.3.1 Investment requirements and significant working capital

Free cash flow generated by heavy industries such as the steel industry can be significantly affected by
the necessity to carry out major investments; in addition, these industries require large amounts of working
capital.

4.17.3.2 Exchange rate fluctuations

Steel companies have noted over the last few years that their businesses and share price are sensitive to
the exchange rate fluctuations between the US dollar and the euro. For example, any appreciation of the euro
would reduce costs of a certain number of raw materials, but could reduce the competitiveness of exporting
European steelmakers and facilitate imports into Europe.

In addition, to the extent that the ARCELOR Group pays in a currency and obtains payment of its
products and services in another currency, its profit margins may be affected by exchange rate fluctuations.
The Group’s general policy is to hedge this type of risk either by making the currencies of its sales
correspond with those of its expenditures, or by hedging contracts.

Lastly, the choice of the currency used to evaluate the assets in a currency other than the euro can have
a significant impact on the balance sheet.
4.17.3.3 Interest rate fluctuations

In view of the structure of the Group’s indebtedness, part of which is subject to floating interest rates,
the annual financial charges are partly linked to changes in the interest rates. In particular, variation of short-
term interest rates has a considerable impact on financial charges.

4.17.4 Constitution of the ARCELOR Group and integration process

4.17.4.1 Amalgamation process

The amalgamation of the ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR groups will result in an integrated group.
The groups amalgamated being complex and very large, the integration and rationalisation process presents
numerous challenges.

The amalgamation mobilises substantial managerial resources which could lead to a temporary decline in
the Group’s performances.

In addition, difficulties or delays in the implementation of expected synergies could arise or certain
savings may not reach the levels anticipated, which could affect the Group’s expected results.
4.17.4.2 Pro forma financial data

The pro forma accounts prepared for this Prospectus have an illustrative function. Furthermore, they do
not take into account divestments imposed by the European Commission. Consequently, they cannot
accurately present the financial situation, the results of operations and cash flow as they would be if the
ARCELOR Group had in fact been created on 1st January, 1999 and if the Group thus formed had carried on
its activities on a stand-alone basis.

4.17.4.3 Social environment

The Group considers that its relations with its employees are, on the whole, good. However, the Group is
not immune from industrial action which could affect its activities and its results.
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CHAPTER 5 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF ARCELOR

5.1 Introduction

This chapter includes the following financial information:

ARCELOR unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information, including the pro forma
consolidated balance sheets as at 31st December, 1999, 2000 and 2001, pro forma consolidated
profit and loss accounts for the years ended 31st December, 1999, 2000 and 2001, and pro forma
consolidated cash flow statements as at 31st December, 2000 and 2001. This information is
disclosed in section 5.2.3 below.

Unaudited pro forma consolidated segmented financial information. This information is disclosed in
section 5.3 below.

The following additional information is presented in Appendices [ and II to this Prospectus:

In Appendix [, the audited consolidated accounts of ARBED (ACERALIA being fully integrated in
ARBED consolidated accounts) and USINOR for the financial years ended 1999, 2000 and 2001
prepared in accordancé with, respectively, accounting principles applicable in Luxembourg and
France.

In Appendix 11, the accounting policies adopted by ARCELOR and the reconciliation between the
consolidated net equities and results of ARBED and USINOR (ACERALIA being fully integrated in
the ARBED group consolidated accounts) as at 31st December 1999, 2000 and 200! prepared in
accordance with local accounting policies and those prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of ARCELOR.

The reconciliation of the consolidated net equities and net results of ARBED presented in appendix
Il includes the necessary adjustments for ACERALIA financial information to comply with the
accounting policies adopted by ARCELOR.

5.2 Basis of preparation of the pro forma consolidated financial information

5.2.1

Accounting principles

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information of ARCELOR is prepared in accordance
with the International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) adopted by the IASB (International Accounting
Standards Board), except for the accounting treatment of securitised trade receivables, as explained hereafter.
The accounting policies, as adopted by ARCELOR, are disclosed in Appendix II and are applied to the
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information on the following basis:

The ARCELOR Group is involved in various securitisation contracts, which are accounted for as
disposals. This accounting treatment does not comply with the current provisions of IAS 39. It s
however anticipated by the Group that IAS 39 will shortly be subject to a revision process that may
impact the current derecognition rules in respect of securitised receivables. Upon completion of the
revision process of IAS 39, the Group intends to renegotiate these contracts so as to ensure the
compliance with the revised conditions of IAS 39 for them to be recorded as off-balance sheet
items.

The impact on the net financial debts as at 31st December, 2001 is EUR 1,438 million and
EUR 1,620 million as at 31st December, 2000. These commitments do not represent, because of
their nature, a significant financial risk for ARCELOR.

In respect of the accounting treatment for pension commitments, ARCELOR did not harmonise the
actuarial assumptions (rates of salary increases, mortality tables, actuarial rates) for the companies
operating in the same segments and in the same geographic zones, which could be different in some
cases from the policies set out in IAS 19. This analysis will be carried out in the course of
preparation of the audited consolidated accounts of ARCELOR in accordance with IAS 19 and
could lead to a change in the amounts provided for so far.
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Moreover, deferred actuarial losses existing as of 31st December, 1999 in USINOR (EUR 57
million net of tax) are amortised over the expected average remaining working life of the
employees participating in the plans. This loss will be directly charged against equity as of
Ist January, 2000 for the purpose of the audited consolidated accounts of ARCELOR.

o In respect of the accounting treatment for the amalgamation of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR
as set out in section 5.2.2 below, fixed assets that could be subject to significant revaluation in
accordance with the alternative valuation treatment allowed by IAS 16 have been identified, such as
the flat carbon segment of USINOR, and have been restated. In addition, the fixed assets of
USINOR, contrary to the fixed assets of ACERALIA and ARBED, have not been revalued to align
retroactively the depreciation rates on those of ARCELOR. Only USINOR investments from
January 2001 are restated. These restatements should lead to the presentation of the fixed assets of
the three former groups on a more consistent basis, since the fixed assets of ACERALIA and
ARBED will be fair valued as a result of the accounting treatment of the amalgamation of
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR, in accordance with IAS 22.

5.2.2 General framework of pro forma consolidated financial information

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information set out hereafter includes the profit and loss
accounts, the balance sheets and the cash flow statements of ARCELOR (collectively called the “Unaudited
Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data”). The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data is the
combination of unaudited pro forma financial information of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR and shows,
on a pro forma basis, the effects of the amalgamation of the three former groups resulting in the creation of
ARCELOR.

The combined unaudited pro forma profit and loss accounts have been prepared on the assumption that
the amalgamation was effective on lst January, 1999. The combined unaudited pro forma balance sheets have
been prepared on the basis that the amalgamation took place as at 31st December, 2001 for the calculation of
the negative goodwill. The combined unaudited pro forma cash flow statements have been prepared on the
basis that the business combination took place on 1st January, 2000.

The negative goodwill, arising from the amalgamation of ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR and
calculated on the basis of the purchase method, was not adjusted to the fair value of the identifiable acquired
assets and liabilities. The necessary adjustments will be taken into consideration in accordance with [AS 22
when the analysis of the fair values of ACERALIA and ARBED is completed. However, based on the present
available information, no significant increase of the carrying value of the assets concerned (particularly the
tangible assets) is expected.

The fair value of the acquired shares of ACERALIA and ARBED has been determined based on the
average fair value of the USINOR shares at the end of the Public Exchange Offer on USINOR being
approximately EUR 14. This average has been calculated based on the fair values of the USINOR shares
from the opening to the closing date of the Public Exchange Offer on USINOR.

The negative goodwill of EUR 2,040 million has been calculated based on the definitive results of the
Public Exchange Offers. The definitive results in respect of ACERALIA and ARBED (including the
contribution by Staal Vlaanderen N.V.) excluding treasury shares held by the Group after the Public
Exchange Offers other than treasury shares used to acquire the minority interests in ALZ and the shares in
ACERALIA and ARBED contributed which gave rise to the issue of such treasury shares, are summarised as
follows:

e  issue of 100,056,985 shares of ARCELOR in exchange for 75,042,739 shares of ACERALIA;
e issue of 117,997,526 shares of ARCELOR in exchange for 10,976,514 shares of ARBED.

The negative goodwill is amortised over the estimated average useful lives of fixed assets, i.e. over
twelve years.
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‘

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data has been prepared on the basis of the following
financial data:

e  The audited consolidated accounts of ARBED (ACERALIA being fully integrated in ARBED
consolidated accounts) and USINOR for the financial years ended 1999, 2000 and 2001 prepared in
accordance with, respectively, accounting principles applicable in Luxembourg and France. These
audited consolidated accounts are presented in Appendix [.

»  The reconciliation of the financial information between the local principles and the accounting
policies of ARCELOR as described in Appendix II.

e  The pro forma adjustments as described in section 5.2.3.5.

For the purpose of the consolidated income statement of 1999, the IAS adjustments of USINOR include
the accounts of the continuing activities of the Cockerill Sambre group over a 12 months period and IMS
operations consolidated under the equity method for 12 months.

The sale of Samitri (during the first half of 2000) and Ros Casares (in the first half of 2001), companies
consolidated under the equity method in the ARBED group, have not been subject of restatements.

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data does not take into consideration the effect of
certain cost reduction measures expected and driven by the combination of the former three groups. Such
reductions in costs will eventually arise from various factors and no guarantee can be given that these results

can be achieved.

The disposals that have been decided following the negotiations with the European Commission are not
taken into consideration in the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Data set out in section 5.2.3.
Further information on these disposals is set out in section 8.3 of this Prospectus.

The intent of the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data is to present the effect of the
combination operation on the historical accounting and financial information at the indicated dates. They are
not necessarily representative of the financial situation and performance that could have been achieved if the
operation had been undertaken at these dates. Such data does not intend to provide an indication of the
financial situation, the results of the activities or the cash flow statements of ARCELOR at a future specific
date or period. The Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Data should be read in conjunction with the
comments in section 5.2.3.5, and with the audited consolidated accounts and the unaudited reconciliation of
the shareholders’ equities and net results of ARBED and USINOR to the ARCELOR accounting policies.
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5.2.3 Pro forma consolidated financial information

5.2.3.1 Unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account of ARCELOR as at
31st December, 2001

Balance sheet

Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ASSETS ARBED USINOR Adjustments  combination TOTAL

(in millions of euro)

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets . . . . ... ... ... ..... an (818) (26) (2,040) (2,961)
Property plant and equipment . . . . . . . .. .. 7,285 5,079 33 — 12,397
Investments under equity method . . . . . .. .. 442 1,612 (92) — 1,962
Other investments . . . . .. ... ........ 281 191 134 — 606
Receivables and other financial assets . . . . . . 427 471 (14) — 884
Deferred tax assets. . . . . . ... ... ... .. 250 1,286 — — 1,536
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS. . . . .. .. 8,608 7,821 35 (2,040) 14,424
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories . . . . . ... . ... ..., ... 3,457 3,229 13 — 6,699
Trade receivables. . . . . . . ... ... ..... 1,368 1,968 (10) — 3,326
Other receivables. . . . . .. ... ... ..... 575 830 157 — 1,562
Cash and cash equivalents. . . . . ... ... .. 1,007 1,166 4 — 2,177
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS. .. ... .. ... 6,407 7,193 164 — 13,764
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . ... ... ... ... 15,015 15,014 199 (2,040) 28,188
Consolidation Business ARCELOR
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ARBED USINOR  Adjustments combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . ... .. ... ... 2,447 4,369 2,545 (2,040) 7,321
Minority interests . . . . . . ... ... .. ... 3,574 66 (2,354) — 1,286
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities . . . . . ... .. ... 2,287 2,616 34 — 4,937
Employee benefits . . . . .. ... ........ 847 1,261 H — 2,109
Provisions . . . .. ... ... ... ....... 456 243 9 — 708
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . . .. ... ... .. 429 107 5 — 541
Other . . . .. ... ... . ... ... ... .. 182 36 64) — 154
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES. . . . . 4,201 4,263 (15) — 8,449
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables. . . . ... ... ... ...... 1,518 2,671 (18) — 4,171
Interest bearing liabilities . . . .. .. ... ... 2,103 1,579 3 — 3,685
Other amounts payables . . . . .. ... ... .. 1,158 1,521 39 — 2,718
Provisions . . .. ................. 14 545 ¢))] — 558
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . . . . .. .. 4,793 6,316 23 — 11,132
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES. . . . ... ... ... . .... 15,615 15,014 199 (2,040) 28,188
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Profit and Loss Account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Revenue . . .. .. ... ... ... ... ...
GROSS OPERATING INCOME . . . . ... ..
Depreciation and Amortisation . . . . . ... ..
OPERATING RESULT . . . . .. ........
Net financing costs. . . . . . . .. ... .. ...
Income from associates . . . . .. ... ... ..
Result of disposal of associated company . . . .
PROFIT BEFORE TAX. . . . . ... ... ...
Incometax . . . ... ............. ...
PROFIT AFTER TAX. . . . . .. ... ... ..
Minority interests . . . . . ... ... ... ...

NET PROFIT GROUP SHARE. . . . . . . ..

Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ARBED USINOR Adjustments combination TOTAL
(in millions of eura)
12359 15,124 ) — 27,515
079 266 4 — 1,349
Con (1,052 @) 170 (1,587)
T3 (186 — 170 T (238)
@) ) 3 — 5
T 12 1 — T
s — — T T 66
36 (1,129) 4 170 (719)
T 323 P — 336
247 (806) 6 170 (383)
Taedn sz 135 — 24
Mooy W e
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5.2.3.2  Unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account of ARCELOR as at
31st December, 2000
Balance sheet

Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ASSETS ARBED USINOR  Adjustments  combination TOTAL

(in miliions of euro)

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets . . . . ... ... ... .. ... (114) (426) (312) (2,040) (2,892)
Property plant and equipment . . . . . .. . ... 7,090 5,379 117 — 12,586
Investments under equity method . . . . . . . .. 406 1,552 (102) — 1,856
Other investments . . . . . . ... ... ..... 388 158 (8) — 538
Receivables and other financial assets . . . . . . 249 434 17 — 700
Deferred tax assets. . . . . ... ... ...... 250 896 — — 1,146
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS. . . . .. .. 8,269 7,994 (288) (2,040) 13,934
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories . . . . . .. ... .. ... ...... 3,345 3,752 21 — 7,118
Trade receivables. . . . . .. ... ... ..... 1,415 2,233 (68) — 3,580
Other receivables. . . . . . ... ... ... ... 527 1,229 l — 1,757
Cash and cash equivalents. . . . ... ... ... 1,105 582 5 — 1,692
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS. . ... .. .... 6,392 7,796 @4 — 14,147
TOTAL ASSETS . . .. . ... ... ... ... 14,661 15,790 375) (2,040) 28,036
Consolidation Business ARCELOR
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ARBED USINOR  Adjustments  combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . .. ... ... .. 2,466 4,816 2,908 (2,040) 8,150
Minority interests . . . . ... ... ... .. .. 3,598 704 (3,236) — 1,066
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities . . . . .. . ... ... 2,654 2,531 41 — 5,226
Employee benefits . . . . ... ... .. .. .. 787 1,008 — — 1,795
Provisions . . ... .. .............. 339 22§ — —_ 564
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . ... .. ... ... 412 111 28 — 551
Other . . . . . . .. . ... . ... 110 — — — 110
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES. . . . . 4,302 3,875 69 — 8,246
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables . . . .. ... ... ... ...... 1,581 2,908 (8%) — 4,409
Interest bearing liabilities . . . . . .. ... ... 1,589 1,526 9 — 3,124
Other amounts payables . . . . . . ... .. ... 1,059 1,512 2 — 2,572
Provisions . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... 66 448 — — 514
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . . . ... .. 4,295 6,394 (70) — 10,619
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES. . . . . . . ... ... ..... 14,661 15,790 (375) (2,040) 28,036
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Profit and loss account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Depreciation and Amortisation . . . . . ... ..
OPERATING RESULT . . . ... ... .....

Net financing costs. . . . . ... .. ... ....
Income from associates . . . .. ... ......
Result of disposal of associated company . . . .

PROFIT BEFORETAX . . . . . ... ... ...
Incometax . . .. ... . ... . .......
PROFIT AFTER TAX. . . . . ... .. ... ..
Minority interests . . . . . .. ... ... L. L.

NET PROFIT GROUP SHARE. . . . . .. ..

5233
31st December, 1999

Balance sheet

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets . . . . . ... .. ... .. ...
Property plant and equipment . . . . . . .. ...
Investments under equity method . . . . . . . ..
Other investments . . . . .. ... .. ......

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS. . . . . ...

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories . . . . . ... ... ... .. .. ...
Trade receivables. . . . . ... ... ... ....
Other receivables. . . . . .. ... ... .....
Cash and cash equivalents. . . . ... ... ...

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS. . . . . ... ...
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . .. .. ... ... ...

Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ARBED USINOR  Adjustments  combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)
13,213 15,733 (283) — 28,663
1,785 1,693 9 — 3,487
(683) (633) 37 170 (1,109)
1,102 1,060 46 170 2,378
(246) (285) 2) — (533)
88 65 5 — 158
177 — — — 177
1,121 840 49 170 2,180
(170) (89) 2 — (257)
951 751 51 170 1,923
(462) (64) 188 — (338)
489 687 239 170 1,585

H
H

Unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account of ARCELOR as at

Consolidation Business ARCELOR

ARBED USINOR  Adjustments  combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)

(153)  (579) (361) (2,040) (3,133)
7,256 5,500 123 — 12,879
636 1,425 (101) — 1,960
352 190 10 — 552
248 442 — 690
352 872 — — 1,224
8,691 7,850 (329) (2,040) 14,172
2,802 3,131 14 — 5,947
1,530 1,924 39 — 3,415
517 965 1 — 1,483
622 932 6 — 1,560
5,471 6,952 (18) — 12,405
14,162 14,802 (347) (2,040) 26,577
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . .. ... ... ...
Minority interests . . . . .. ... .. ... ...

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest bearing liabilities . . . . . .. ... ...

Employee benefits . . . . .. ... ... .. ...
Provisions . . ... ... ... ..........
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . ... ... ... ..
Other . . . . . ... . .. .. . ... ... . ...

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES. . . . .

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables . . . . ... .. ... .......
Interest bearing liabilities . . . . . ... ... ..
Other amounts payable . . . . .. ... ... ..
Provisions . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ...

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . . . . . . ..

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES. . . .. . ... ... ......

Profit and loss account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Revenue . . ... ... ... ... ... .....
GROSS OPERATING INCOME . . . . ... ..
Depreciation and Amortisation . . . . ... ...
OPERATING RESULT . . . ... ... .. ...

Net financing costs. . . . . . ... . ... ....
Income from associates . . . ... ... .....

PROFIT BEFORETAX. . ... ... .. ....
Incometax . . ... ... .. ... ... .. ..
PROFIT AFTER TAX. . . . ... .. ... ...
Minority interests . . .. . ... .. ... ....

NET PROFIT (GROUP SHARE). . . . . . ..

Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ARBED USINOR Adjustments  combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)
2,033 4,266 2,636 (2,040) 6,895
3,589 423 (3,009) — 1,003
2,789 2,171 37 — 4,997
712 897 — — 1,609
302 271 — — 573
448 155 30 —_ 633
142 —_ — — 142
4,393 3,494 67 — 7,954
1,370 2,708 (51) — 4,027
1,695 2,124 6 — 3,825
1,023 1,293 4 -— 2,320
59 494 — — 553
4,147 6,619 (41) — 10,725
14,162 14,802 347) (2,040) 26,577
Consolidation Business ARCELOR
ARBED USINOR  Adjustments  combination TOTAL
(in millions of euro)
10,652 13,052 (229) — 23,475
956 816 7 — 1,779
(585) (718) 38 170 (1,095)
371 98 45 170 684
(241) (203) H — (445)
82 (28) 3 — 57
212 (133) 47 170 296
65 2) 2 — 65
277 (135) 49 170 361
(176) (19) 58 — 137)
101 (154) 107 170 224
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5.2.3.4 Unaudited pro-forma consolidated cash flow statements as of 31st December, 2000 and 2001

31/12/2001  31/12/2000

(in millions of euro)

Cash flow from operating activities . . . . . . . . ... ... ... . ... ... .. 2,244 1,794

Investment flows

Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets . . . . . . ... ... ... ..o ... (1,690) (1,668)
Other acquisitions and disposals. . . . . . . .. .. .. ... oL (79) 509

Cash flow from investment activities . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ..., . ..., (1,769) (1,159)
Financing flows

Contribution of shareholders’ equity . . . . .. .. ... . ... ... ... L. 44 252

Dividends paid . . . . . . . . ... (359) (244)
Increase/(decrease) in loans or other financing . . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 347 (416)
Others. . . . . . . e — 97
Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities. . . . . . . ... ... ... ... .. 32 (505)
Impact of the exchange rate and other variations. . . . . ... ... ... ... .... (23)

Total increase/decrease of Cash . . . . . . . . .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ..., 484 132

Balance at the beginning of the period . . . . . . . .. ... ... .. ... ..., 1,692 1,560

Balance at the end of the period. . . . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... .. .. 2,177 1,692

5.2.3.5 Description of the main pro forma adjustments
5.2.3.5.1 Consolidation adjustments

The “Consolidation adjustments” column includes specific items described hereafter, implied by the
consolidation process of the consolidated accounts of ARBED and USINOR,

Adjustment in relation to minority interests in ACERALIA

ARBED fully consolidated ACERALIA with 30% group interest and 70% minority interests. Following
the ARCELOR business combination, the shares held by ARBED and most minority interests in ACERALIA
were converted in ARCELOR Shares, resulting in ARCELOR holding 95.03% of ACERALIA, and the
minority interests being reduced to 4.97%.

Treatment of common shareholdings

ARBED (through ACERALIA) and USINOR hold respectively 25% and 75% of the share capital of
Solmed Galvanizados SL. This company is accounted for under the equity method by ARBED and is fully
consolidated by USINOR. The ARCELOR Group now holds 100% of the shares of Solmed Galvanizados SL
which is now fully consolidared. Adjustments are posted to eliminate the impact of the equity method by
ARBED and correct the minority interests.

ARBED (through ACERALIA) and USINOR hold respectively 51% and 49% of the share capital of
Sidmed (Siderurgica del Mediterraneo S.A.). This company is accounted for under the equity method by
USINOR and is fully consolidated by ARBED. The ARCELOR Group now holds 100% of the shares of
Sidmed (Siderurgica del Mediterraneo S.A.Y which is now fully consolidated. Adjustments are posted to
eliminate the impact of the equity method by USINOR and correct the minority interests.

ARBED (through ACERALIA) and USINOR hold respectively 51% and 24.5% of the share capital of
Galmed (Galvanizaciones del Mediterraneo S.A.). This company is accounted for under the equity method by
USINOR and is fully consolidated by ARBED. The ARCELOR Group now holds 75.5% of the shares of
Galmed (Galvanizaciones del Mediterraneo S.A.) which is now fully consolidated. Adjustments are posted to
eliminate the impact of the equity method by USINOR and correct the minority interests.

Segal S.c.a r.l is accounted for under the equity method at 33.33% by ARBED and 33.33% by USINOR.
The ARCELOR Group now holds 66.66% of the share capital of that company which is now fully
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consolidated. Adjustments are posted to eliminate the impact of the equity method by ARBED and USINOR
and to reflect full consolidation.

Galvalange S.a r.1., 50% held by Sidmar and 50% by USINOR, is accounted for under the equity method
by ARBED and is proportionally consolidated by USINOR. The ARCELOR Group holds 100% of the share
capital of this company which is now fully consolidated. Adjustments are posted to eliminate the impact of
the equity and proportional methods and to reflect the consolidation under the full method.

An increase in the shareholding percentage held by the ARCELOR Group has occurred in respect of
Carlam, Gonvarri Group subsidiaries that are common to ARBED and USINOR, as well as the Dillinger
Hiitte Saarstahl Group, without any change in the consolidation method used.

Adjustments related to the additional shareholding in Sidmar N.V. and ALZ N.V.

The acquisition of the 27.8% Sidmar N.V. shares and the 12.62% ALZ N.V. shares held by Staal
Vlaanderen N.V. results in a EUR 786 million decrease in the minority interests, a EUR 291 million increase
in the net equity (group share) and a EUR 495 million increase in the negative goodwill value. The negative
goodwill and the increase in the net equity (group sharej have been calculated using the USINOR share unit
market value at the date of the respective transactions.

Elimination of intra-groups transactions

Adjustments have been posted in the Unaudited Consolidated Pro-Forma Financial Data in order to
eliminate the intra-groups transactions and balances between the ARBED and USINOR Groups.
5.2.3.5.2 Business combination

The EUR 2,040 million negative goodwill, resulting from the combination and treated according to the
purchase method as described in section 5.2.2 above, has been calculated as at 31 December 2001 and
maintained at the same amount for all of the prior periods.

This negative goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis for a total EUR 170 million amount per year.

The negative goodwill shown in the column “Business Combination” is adjusted regarding residual
negative goodwill included in ARBED’s accounts and also restated as far as cross shareholdings are
concerned. This negative goodwill also includes acquisition differences resulting from the adjustments made
in respect to common shareholdings and the additional shareholdings acquired in Sidmar N.V. and ALZ N.V.

5.2.3.5.3 Additional information

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro-Forma Financial Data has been prepared in accordance with ARCELOR
accounting policies leading to reclassifications and adjustments in comparison with the local accounting
principles applied by ARBED and USINOR.

Regarding the balance sheet, the main reclassifications and adjustments relate to:
s  Negative goodwills, which are shown as a decreasing part of intangible assets.

¢ In accordance with the provisions of IAS 39, securitised non trade receivables of the USINOR
subsidiary SODISID are not derecognised and are included in the lines “Receivable and other
financial assets” and “Non current-Interest bearing liabilities™.

e  The bonds redeemable in priority shares (TSAR) held by USINOR are included in “Non current-
Interest bearing labilities”.

Regarding the profit and loss account, the major reclassifications relate to the following items:

e  The line “Amortisation and depreciation” includes all the fixed assets amortisation and depreciation
accounted for over the period. This line accordingly includes the amortisation of positive and
negative goodwill, as well as assets impairments according to IAS 36.
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e  The operating result also comprises exceptional items. Only extraordinary items are presented on a
separate line of the profit and loss account. Under the definition provided under IAS, the Group
believes that no events or transactions occurred that would be considered as extraordinary items.

e  The result regarding the sale of associated companies as at 31st December, 2001 mainly comprises
the result of the Ros Casares Group sale; as at 31st December, 2000, it mainly comprises the result
of the Samitri mining company sale.

5.24 Auditor’s Report
To the attention of the Board of Directors of ARCELOR
Sirs,

REPORT OF THE REVISEURS D’ENTREPRISES ON THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED
PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA PREPARED FOR THE ADMISSION TO LISTING ON THE
LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE OF THE BONDS DUE 2017 CONVERTIBLE AND / OR
EXCHANGEABLE INTO NEW AND / OR EXISTING SHARES OF ARCELOR AND THE NEW
ARCELOR SHARES AND THE NEW ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. 2065 AND 2606 TO BE ISSUED AS
A RESULT OF THE OPRE ON USINOR AND THE NEW ARCELOR SHARES THAT MAY BE
ISSUED AS A RESULT OF THE CONVERSION OF O.C.E.A.N.E. ARCELOR (the “Securities”).

Following your request, we have undertaken certain agreed upon procedures as described hereafter on
the Unaudited Consolidated Pro forma Profit and Loss Accounts of ARCELOR for the years ended
31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001, on the Unaudited Consolidated Pro forma Balance Sheets of ARCELOR
as at 31 December 1999, 2000 and 200! and on the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Cash Flow
Statements of ARCELOR as at 31 December 2000 and 2001 (the “Unaudited Consclidated Pro Forma
Financial Data”), as presented in the paragraph 5.2.3 of the Prospectus prepared in connection with the
admission to listing of the Securities (the “Prospectus™).

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data has been prepared under the responsibility of the
Board of Directors of ARCELOR from the following information:

1. The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data of ARCELOR for the years ended
31 December 1999 and 2000

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro forma Profit and Loss Accounts of ARCELOR for the years ended
31 December 1999 and 2000, the Unaudited Consolidated Pro forma Balance Sheets of ARCELOR
as at 31 December 1999 and 2000 as well as the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Cash Flow
Statements of ARCELOR as at 31 December 2000 have been subject to a report from KPMG
Audit, Luxembourg, and Arthur Andersen, Luxembourg, enclosed in the Prospectus issued on

19 December 2001 for the admission to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. These data
have been updated based on the definitive results of the exchange offers.

2. The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data of ARCELOR for the year ended
31 December 2001

2.1 USINOR’s consolidated financial information

211 USINOR’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2001 prepared in accordance with French General Accepted Accounting Principles.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001 of
USINOR have been subject to an audit by Barbier Frinault & Cie and Deloitte &
Touche, France, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.
These standards require procedures to be carried out to ensure that there is a
reasonable assurance that these financial statements do not contain significant
misstatements. This audit has lead Barbier Frinault & Cie and Deloitte & Touche,
France, to provide an unqualified opinion, dated 17 April 2002 on these

financial statements.
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2.1.2 Unaudited reconciliation of net consolidated shareholders’ equity and results as at
31 December 2001 of USINOR prepared in accordance with local accounting policies
and in accordance with the accounting policies adopted by the Board of Directors of
ARCELOR.

This reconciliation has been subject to a report by Barbier Frinault & Cie presented
in paragraph 11.2.3.4 in Appendix IL

2.2 ARBED’s consolidated financial information

221 ARBED’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2001 prepared in accordance with Luxembourg General Accepted
Accounting Principles.

We have audited ARBED’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2001 prepared in accordance with Luxembourg General Accepted
Accounting Principles. These standards require procedures to be carried out to ensure
that there is a reasonable assurance that these financial statements do not contain
significant misstatements. In our audit report, dated 22 March 2002, we have issued
an unqualified opinion on these financial statements.

222 Unaudited reconciliation of net consolidated shareholders’ equity and results as at 31
December 2001 of ARBED prepared in accordance with local accounting policies
and in accordance with the accounting policies adopted by the Board of Directors of
ARCELOR.

This reconciliation has been subject to our report presented in paragraph [1.2.2.4 in
Appendix II.

The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data aims at translating the effect on historical
financial data of a given transaction or event at a date prior to the actual or the reasonably envisaged
occurrence of the event. It may however not necessarily reflect the financial position or performance that
could have been considered, had the transaction or event occurred at a date prior to the actual or envisaged
event.

The following agreed upon procedures have been undertaken:

1.1 Agreed upon procedures relating to USINOR for the year ended 31 December 2001

o  Reading the report prepared by Barbier Frinault & Cie. on the unaudited reconciliation of net
consolidated shareholders’ equity and results as at 31 December 2001 of USINOR prepared in
accordance with local accounting policies and in accordance with the accounting policies adopted
by the Board of Directors of ARCELOR.

1.2 Agreed upon procedures relating to ARBED for the year ended 31 December 2001

e  Checking of the consistency of the accounting policies and the basis of estimates of ARBED to
those used by ARCELOR as described in sections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2 of the Prospectus, as well as in
Appendix 11, paragraph I1.1.

e  Verification of the financial impact of the different accounting policies and basis of estimates
between ARBED and ARCELOR.
1.3 Agreed upon procedures relating to the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data for the year

ended 31 December 2001

e  Understanding of the assumptions, accounting policies and the basis of estimates adopted by the
Board of Directors of ARCELOR used for preparing the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma
Financial Data.
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s Verification that the financial impacts of these assumptions, basis of estimates and accounting
policies are in accordance with those described in sections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2, as welf as in Appendix II,
paragraph IL.1.

1.4 Agreed upon procedures relating to the Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data for the years
ended 31 December 1999 and 2000

e  Based on the report from KPMG Audit, Luxembourg, and Arthur Andersen, Luxembourg, enclosed
in the Prospectus for the admission to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchanges issued on
19 December 2001, verification that the financial impact of the definitive results of the exchange
offers has been correctly reflected in the revised data.

Our procedures were based on the understanding of the financial data and other information made
available to us by the management of ARCELOR and aimed at assessing its global consistency,
reasonableness and relevance.

Based on our procedures, we report our findings below:

e  The assumption and accounting policies used for the preparation of the Unaudited Consolidated
Pro Forma Financial Data are in accordance with the accounting policies and basis of estimates
adopted by the Board of Directors of ARCELOR as described in sections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2, as well as
in Appendix I, paragraph IL.1.

o  The Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data of ARCELOR for the years ended
31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001 appears to us to be generally consistent, reasonable and relevant.

The agreed upon procedures described above relating to the Unaudited Consolidated Pro forma Financial
Data of ARCELOR for the years ended 31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001 are neither an audit nor a review
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards adopted on as international level such as defined by
the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and therefore we express no opinion on the Unaudited
Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Data of ARCELOR for the years ended 31 December 1999, 2000 and
2001.

This report has been prepared in connection with the issue by ARCELOR of the Securities and their
admission to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. It cannot be used for any other purpose.

Luxembourg, 27th June 2002

KPMG Audit
Réviseur d’Entreprises

Eric Damotte
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5.3 Unaudited pro forma consolidated segmented financial information
5.3.1 Information according to business segment

(figures in millions of euro, excepting workforce figures, the latter representing an average over the period)

Flat Long
carbon carbon Stainless Distribution,
steel steel steel Trading, Other
31 December 2001 products  products products Transformation activities  Eliminations Total
Sales . . . ... ... L. 13,572 3,963 4,240 9,541 1,251 (5,052) 27,515
Gross operating result . . . . . . 570 595 (53) 292 (3h) 24) 1,349
Operating result . . . . .. ... 67) 367 (677) 186 (24) (23) (238)
Acquisition of tangible assets . . 917 255 169 158 176 — 1,675
Workforce . . ... ... .... 54,736 17,899 15,346 16,006 4,357 — 108,344
Flat Long
carbon carbon Stainless Distribution,
steel steel steel Trading, Other
31 December 2000 products  products products Transformation activities Eliminations Total
Sales . . .. . ... ... .. 13,621 4,231 4,611 10,445 721 (4,966) 28,663
Gross operating result . . . . . . 1,960 729 409 462 (17) (56) 3,487
Operating result . . . . ... .. 1,343 468 199 384 40 (56) 2,378
Acquisition of tangible assets. . 944 244 200 178 79 — 1,645
Workforce . . .. ... ... .. 52,295 18,929 15,568 19,023 3,908 — 109,723
Flat Long
carbon carbon Stainless Distribution,
steel steel steel Trading, Other
31 December 1999 . products  products products Transformation activities Eliminations Total
Sales . . .. ........... 11,614 3,608 3,512 8,084 524 (3.867) 23475
Gross operating result . . . . . . 826 459 83 413 24 (26) 1,779
Operating result . . . ... ... 273 265 (208) 365 15 (26) 684
Acquisition of tangible assets. . 1,007 385 173 144 91 — 1,800
Workforce . . . ... ... ... 53,069 21,299 15,993 16,024 3,360 —_ 109,745
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Information according to geographical area
(figures in millions of euro, excepting workforce figures, the latter representing an average over the period)

North South

31 December 2001 UE (15) America America  Other Total
Sales. . . . .. e 20,354 3,305 1,230 2,626 27,515
Gross operating result . . . . . ... 1,148 (50) 256 (5) 1,349
Operating result. . . . . .. ... .. .. ... ........ 24)  (303) 154 (65) (238)
Acquisition of tangible assets . . . . .. ... ... ... 1,407 103 143 22 1,675
Workforce. . . . . . . . ... 96,610 3,222 7,354 1,158 108,344
North South
31 December 2000 UE (15) America America  Other Total
Sales. . . . .. e 20,583 4,020 1,358 2,702 28,663
Gross operating result . . . . . .. ... L. L 3,025 142 333 (13) 3,487
Operatingresult. . . . . . .. ... .. .. .......... 2,134 75 212 43) 2,378
Acquisition of tangible assets . . . . . ... ... ... ... 1,454 64 99 28 1,645
Workforce. . . . . . .. e 97,403 3479 7,909 932 109,723
North South
31 December 1999 UE (15) America America  Other Total
Sales. . . . .. e 17,654 3,078 852 1,891 23,475
Gross operating result . . . . . . .. ... 1,630 32 194 (77) 1,779
Operating result. . . . . . . . ... ... ... ... 740 (16) 85 (125) 684
Acquisition of tangible assets . . . . .. ... ... ... 1,528 44 215 13 1,800

Workforce. . . . .. .. .. e 96,039 3,582 9,483 641 109,745

Comparison between 2001 and 2000 {all monetary amounts are in euro)
(a) Sales

In a market showing signs of weakness and characterised by a fall in the selling prices of iron and steel
products, the ARCELOR Group achieved consolidated sales of EUR 27,515 million in 2001, a decrease of
4.0%, or 1,151 million, compared with 2000.

In geographical terms, the ARCELOR Group achieved 74.0% of its sales in European Union countries
(71.8% in 2000). The North American continent (United States and Canada) contributed 12.0% to the sales of
the Group (14.0% in 2000). This distribution trend is attributed to the fall in apparent steel consumption in
the European markets and the sharp downturn in the US demand for steel following a marked decline in
industrial production.

Sales in the flat carbon steel products sector decreased by 0.4% from 13,621 million in 2000 to
13,572 million in 2001.

In 2001, sales in the long carbon steel products sector amounted to 3,963 million compared with
4,231 million for the previous year, representing a fall of 6.3%, notwithstanding price rises on some products
and a concentration on high added value products (sheet piling).

As a result of the reduction in selling prices, sales in the stainless steel products sector fell by 8.0% i.e.
371 million, to 4,240 million, compared with 4,611 million the previous year.

In the difficult economic environment during the year 2001, the distribution, trading and transformation
sector recorded a drop in sales of 8.7% from 10,445 million in 2000 to 9,541 million in 2001.

Sales for other activities amounted to 1,251 million in 2001, compared with 721 million in 2000.

(b) Gross operating result

In 2001, the ARCELOR Group achieved a gross operating result of 1,349 million, a fall of 2,138 million
compared with the figure of 3,487 million achieved in 2000. The gross operating result represents 4.9% of
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sales, compared with 12.2% the previous year. This fall in the gross operating result is essentially due to
lower selling prices for flat carbon steel and stainless steel products, the worldwide decline in apparent
demand and a sharp rise in the cost of materials. Production stoppages (intentional work stoppages, strikes)
also contributed to this reduction.

(¢c) Operating result

After a depreciation charge of 1,577 million, compared with 1,109 million in 2000, the operating result
of the ARCELOR Group amounts to a loss of 238 million compared with a profit of 2,378 million the
previous year, a fall of 2,616 million. The operating result represents (-0.9)%, compared with 8.3% the
previous year.

The operating result for the flat carbon steel products sector amounted to (~67) million compared with
1,343 million, a fall of 1,410 million. In the long carbon steel products sector, the operating result resisted
relatively well at 367 million, compared with 468 million the previous year. The stainless steel products
sector contributed negatively to the consolidated operating result, amounting to (-677) million in 2001
compared with 199 million in 2000. After an excellent performance in 2000, the operating result for the
distribution, trading and transformation sector fell by 198 million from 384 million in 2000 to 186 million
in 2001.

(d) Acquisition of tangible assets

In 2001, the ARCELOR Group invested around 1,675 million in tangible assets, more than half of which
(917 million) related to the flat carbon steel products sector. In the long carbon steel products sector, capital
expenditure amounted to 255 million. The three remaining sectors, i.e. stainless steel, distribution,
transformation and other activities, received equal shares of the remaining capital expenditure, amounting to
503 million.

(e} Workforce

In 2001, the ARCELOR Group employed an average of 108,344 people almost half of whom, 54,736,
were employed in the flat steel products sector alone. In terms of geographical area, the ARCELOR Group
employed an average of 96,610 people in European Union countries 7,354 people in South America, 3,222 in
North America and 1,158 people in the rest of the world.

Comparison between 2000 and 1999 (all monetary amounts are in euro)
(a) Sales

In an environment favourable to European iron and steel companies, characterised by increased demand
and significantly higher selling prices compared with the floor prices achieved in 1899, the ARCELOR Group
achieved sales amounting to 28,663 million, a sharp rise compared with the figure of 23,475 million in 1999.
71.8% of sales in the ARCELOR Group related to European Union destinations (75.2% as at 31 December
1999). The North American market represented 14.0% of total Group sales, compared with 13.1% the
previous year.

Sales in the flat carbon steel products sector rose by 17.3% from 11,614 million in 1999 to 13,621
million at the end of December 2000. In accordance with the general situation in the iron and steel sector,
this increase is attributable to a rise in the volume of exports and an increase in the prices of flat carbon steel
products.

At the end of December 2000, sales in the long carbon steel products sector amounted to 4,231 million
compared with 3,608 million the previous year, again representing a rise of 17.3%.

Sales in the stainless steel products sector also rose by 31.3%, from 4,611 million compared with 3,512
million the previous year. This increase is principally attributable to a rise in the price of stainless steel
goods.
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In this favourable economic environment, the distribution, trading and transformation sector also
recorded a rise in sales from 8,084 million as at 31st December, 1999 to 10,445 million at the end of 2000, a
rise of 2,361 million.

Sales in the sector relating to other activities amounted to 721 million at the end of 2000, compared with
524 million in 1999.

(b) Gross operating result

The gross operating result amounted to 3,487 million, i.e. 12.2% of the consolidated sales figure for
2000, compared with 1,779 million in 1999, representing 7.6% of consolidated sales. This increase in the
gross operating result is essentially due to a rise in selling prices and cost-cutting measures. In terms of
geographical area, the distribution of the gross operating result is as follows : 3,025 million was generated by
the operations of companies within the group belonging to the European Union (86.8% of the consolidated
gross operating result), 333 million in South America (9.5%), 142 million in North America and
approximately (-13) million in other countries of the world.

(c) Operating result

After an allocation for depreciation of 1,109 million, compared with 1,095 million in 1999, the operating
result for the ARCELOR Group amounted to 2,378 million as at 31st December, 2000, compared with
684 million in 1999, a rise of 1,694 million. The operating result represented 8.3% of sales, compared with
2.9% the previous year.

At the end of 2000, the operating result for the flat carbon steel products sectors amounted to
1,343 million, compared with 273 million in 1999, a rise of 1,070 million. In the long carbon steel products
sector, the operating result also rose to 468 million, compared with 265 million the previous year.
The stainless steel products sector rallied, with a positive operating result of 199 million, compared with a
loss of 208 million in 1999. The operating result for the distribution, trading and transformation sector
remained virtually unaltered, increasing slightly from 365 million to 384 million as at 31st December, 2000.
The sector relating to other activities saw an increase in its operating result from 15 million in 1999 to 40
million at the end of 2000.

(d) Acquisition of tangible assets

At the end of 2000, the investments in tangible assets of the ARCELOR Group amounted to 1,645
million, compared with 1,800 for the previous year. 944 million (i.e. 57.4%) was invested in the flat carbon
stee] products sector alone, whereas the long carbon and stainless steel products sector contributed 244
million (14.8%) and 200 million (12.2%) respectively. In the remaining sectors, that is, the distribution,
trading and transformation sector and the sector relating to other activities, capital expenditure amounted to
257 million, or 15.6%.

(e) Workforce

In 2000 the ARCELOR Group employed an average of 109,723 people, compared with 109,745 in 1999.
In terms of geographical area, the ARCELOR Group employed on average 97,403 people in European Union
countries 7,909 in South America, 3,479 in North America and 932 in the rest of the world. The reduction in
the workforce in South America (1,574), resulting from the disposal of the mining sector in Brazil, should be
noted.

532 Comments on unaudited pro forma consolidated segmented financial information

Composition of sectors of activity

The ARCELOR Group is divided into 4 sectors of activity: flat carbon steel products, long carbon steel
products, stainless steel products, the distribution, trading and transformation sector and the other activities
sector.

(2) The flat carbon steel products sector is composed of the following principal entities:
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(b

(c)

(d)

(e

¢  Spain: Aceralia Corporacién Siderirgica, ACB, Galmed, Sidmed, Solmed, Gonvarri and Gestamp;
e  France: Sollac Méditerranée, Sollac Atlantique, Sollac Lorraine, Usinor Auto;

e  Belgium: Sidmar and Cockerill Sambre;

¢  Germany: STAHLwerke Bremen, Eko-Stahl;

The long carbon steel products sector includes the long product activities sector with operations in Spain,
France, Luxembourg, Germany and Brazil: Aceralia Largos Perfiles, Aceralia Largos Verifia, Aceralia
Largos Redondos, ProflARBED, TrefilARBED, Stahlwerk Thiiringen and the sub-group Belgo-Mineira;

The stainless steel products sector, with entities principally located in Belgium, France, North America,
Brazil and Thailand, is composed by the following sub-groups : ALZ, Ugine, Industeel, J&L, Acesita
and Thainox;

The distribution, trading and transformation sector includes the following operations:
¢  Distribution : Profil ARBED Distribution, PUM and Velasco;
e  Trading: ARBED Americas, TradeARBED and Maison Mathieu;

e  Transformation, packaging and construction (Aceralia Transformados, Usinor Packaging,
Haironville) supplemented by the tube segment;

Other activities of the group are related essentially to holding companies, engineering companies
(Cockerill Mechanical Industries, Paul WURTH), copper sheet manufacturing companies (Circuit Foil
Luxembourg Trading), the Dillinger Hiitte Saarstahl Group, primarily engaged in the production of
reversing-mill plate, and various financial investment companies.
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5.4 Information in relation to ARCELOR main subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2001

The list reproduced below does not include all companies in the ARCELOR Group. The table is
intended to present information on the 25 leading Companies (or subgroups). In principle, these companies or
subgroups individually achieve over 10% of consolidated sales or are significant from an operational point of

VIEW.
Result
% of %o of of the  Dividend

Name of the Company Registered Office Sector of Activity interest control Currency Capital*  Reserves*  yesr* paid*
Aceralia Corp. Siderurgica S.A. . Asturias (E) Flat carbon 94.76 95.03 EUR 7512 1,501.1 1215 676
Aceralia Perfiles Subgroup. . . . Madrid (E) Long carbon 9476  100.00 EUR 2577 34 7790 99.4
Aceralia Redondos Subgroup . . Azpeita (E} Long carbon 94.76 100,00 EUR 175.5 70.5 36.0 i2.0
Aceralia Transformados S.A. . . Pamplona (E) Transformation 94,76 100,00 EUR SIt 118.4 241 0.0
Aceria Compacta de Bizcaia S.A.  Bilbao (E) Flat carbon 94,76 100.00 EUR 105.2 719 5.1 0.0
ALZNV. ... o Genk (B) Stainless 9897  100.00 EUR 139.3 74.6 (74.4) 0.0
Arbed Americas (consolidated) . New York (USA) Distribution & Trading 98.15 100,00 usD 59 927 (26.8) 0.0
Arbed SAA. . ... .. ...... Luxcmbourg (L) Holding 99.43 99.43 EUR 495.5 1,028.2 115.8 64.2
Belgo Mineira (consolidated) . .  Belo Horizonte (BR) Long carbon 5327 58.80 REAIS 765.4 11238 193.5 769
Cockerill Sambre S.A. . .. ... Ougrée (B) Flat carbon 97.58 100.00 EUR 658.0 686.9 64.5 19.7
Eko Staht GmbH . . . . . . ... Eisenhiittenstadt (D) Flat carbon 97.48 99.90 EUR 178.0 270.7 285 0.0
J&L Speciality Steel Inc . . . . . Ceraopolis (USA) Sainless 97.58  100.00 uUsD 4249 (94.9) (49.3) 0.0
Laminados Velasco subgroup . . Bilbao (E) Distribution & Trading 63.49 67.00 EUR 153 77.8 78 63
ProfilAtbed SA. . . . ... .. Luxembourg (L) Long carbon 99.43  100.00 EUR 3478 558 40.8 0.0
PumSA . ... L Reims (F) Distribution & Trading 97.57 99.98 EUR 53.7 166.6 273 0.0
Sideenter N.V. . . . ... ..., Gent(B) Coordination center 87.23  100.00 EUR 850.5 26.2 58.4 86.3
Sidmar NV. .. ... ... ... Gent (B) Flat carbon 98.98 99.54 EUR 2922 958.9 (107.9) i8.0
Sollac Atlantique S.A, . . . . . . Nanterre (F) Flat carbon 917.56 99.99 EUR 202.8 5359 (19.4) 0.0
Soltac Lorraine S.A. . ... ... Nanterre (F) Flat carbon 97.56 99.99 EUR 100.3 2319 10.0 0.0
Sollac Méditérannée S.A. . ... Nanterre (F) Flat carbon 97.56 99.99 EUR 151.2 4110 (0.8) 0.0
Stahlwerk Thiringen GmbH . . . Unterwcllenbom (D) Long carbon 9943 100.00 EUR 7.7 10.7 0.0 0.0
Stalhwerke Bremen GmbH. . . . Bremen (D) Flat carbon 68.95 69.69 EUR 270.0 119.6 (54.7) 0.0
TradeArbed SA. . ... .. ... Luxembourg (L) Distribution & Trading 98.15 100.00 EUR 220 67.0 (22.0) 1.0
Ugine SA. . ... . ...... Nanterre (F) Stainless 97.59 99.99 EUR 355.0 48.2 (67.1) 0.0
Usinor SAA.. . ... ... ..., Nanterre (F) Holding 97.59 97.59 EUR 167.7 2.252.7 (822.9) 0.0

* Figures are presented individually for each major subsidiary (except for the Belgo Mineira and Arbed Americas subgroups which
publish consolidated accounts), expressed in millions of the currency in which the capital is denominated, in accordance with local
accounting principles and before inclusion of the result of the year.
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CHAPTER 6 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT BOARD OF ARCELOR
6.1 Board of directors
6.1.1 Overview

The board of directors has the widest administrative and management powers in ARCELOR. All powers
which are not expressly reserved, by law or the articles of association, to the general meeting of the
shareholders are within the competence of the board of directors.

The articles of association provide that the board of directors is composed of 2 minimum of three
directors. Directors need not be shareholders of ARCELOR.

The directors are elected by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the shareholders or at any
other shareholders’ general meeting for a period which ends at the close of the fifth annual general meeting
following the date of their appointment.

A director may be removed from office at any time for any reason whatsoever by the shareholders in
general meeting.

In the event that the post of a director becomes vacant, the remaining directors may, by a majority of
votes validly cast, elect a director who will temporarily exercise the functions of director until the next
general meeting of the shareholders.

The board of directors appoints from amongst its members one or several chairmen and may choose one
or several vice-chairmen.

The current chairman of the board of directors is Mr Joseph Kinsch. Notwithstanding the term of office
determined in the articles of association, Mr Joseph Kinsch will resign as chairman and member of the board
of directors of ARCELOR at the ordinary general meeting of the shareholders called to approve the accounts
of the financial year 2003.

The board of directors may delegate its powers with respect to the day-to-day management of
ARCELOR’s business and to the representation of ARCELOR for the purposes of conducting such business,
to one or several managing directors, officers or other agents who may together constitute a management
board. The board of directors may also delegate special powers and confer special duties on any other person.
6.1.2 Composition of the board of directors

Chairman:

Mr Joseph Kinsch.

Vice-chairman.

Mr José Ramon Alvarez Rendueles, independent director.

Directors:
HRH Prince Guillaume of Luxembourg, independent director;
Mr Daniel Bouton, chairman and chief executive of Société Générale, independent director;
Mr John Castegnaro, employee representative;
Mr Hedwig De Koker, chairman of the board of directors of Vancaen PLC;
Mr Francisco Javier de la Riva Garriga, executive vice-president of Fertiberia S.A., independent director;
Mr Jean-Yves Durance, président du directoire of MARSH France, independent director;

Mr Ignacio Fernandez Toxo, employee representative;
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Corporacién JMAC B.V., represented by Mr Ramoén Hermosilla Martin;

Mr Jean-Pierre Hansen, administrateur délégué of Tractebel S.A;

Mr Ulrich Hartmann, chief executive officer of E.ON AG, independent director;
Mr Jean Lapeyre, employee representative;

Mr Daniel Melin, EMADYS consultant, independent director;

Mr Georges Schmit, chairman of Société Nationale de Crédit et d’Investissement;

Mr Sergio Silva de Freitas, senior vice-chairman and director of Banco Itau (Brasil), independent
director; and

Mr Femand Wagner.
The board members can be contacted at ARCELOR’s registered office.

Mr Paul Junck, secretary general, has been appointed as secretary of the Board of Directors.

6.1.3 Corporate governance-Board committees
Corporate Governance

ARCELOR follows corporate governance principles aimed at keeping shareholders informed and
ensuring market transparency and an optimal operation of the Group.

Without prejudice to its legal duties, the board of directors, based on a proposal of the chairman of the
management board, determines the strategic objectives and the business plan of ARCELOR and the Group,
adopts the means to achieve these objectives, supervises the implementation of the business plan and the
monitoring of ARCELOR and the Group and reports to the shareholders. The board of directors approves any
significant investment and all strategic operations.

The board of directors of ARCELOR has approved internal rules which regulate the organisation of the
board of directors and set out the duties of the board of directors, the chairman of the board of directors, the
audit committee, the appointments and remuneration committee and the chairman and members of the
management board, as well as the regulations concerning the representation of the Company. The internal
rules fix the maximum age for being a member of the ARCELOR board of directors at 70 years within the
conditions of the relevant rules.

The board of directors has set up an audit committee and an appointments and remuneration committee,

Audit committee

The role of the audit committee will be, in particular, to assist the board in supervising the Company and
the Group. It will also review the annual, half-yearly and quarterly, non-consolidated and consolidated
accounts, and will advise on the accounting principles and rules as well the evaluation methods used by the
Company in order to prepare the above-mentioned accounts.

The remuneration of the members of the audit committee will be EUR 3,000 for each member and
EUR 4,500 for the chairman, per meeting.

The audit committee is chaired by Mr José Ramon Alvarez Rendueles. Messrs Jean-Yves Durance,
Hedwig De Koker and Georges Schmit are members.
Appointments and remuneration committee

The main role of the appointments and remuneration committee will be to propose to the board the
remuneration policy for the members of the management board. Its role will also consist in making proposals
to the board of directors in respect of appointments to the board of directors or to the management board.

The remuneration of the members of the appointments and remuneration committee will be EUR 3,000
for each member and EUR 4,500 for the chairman, per meeting.
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The chairman of the appointments and remuneration committee is Mr Joseph Kinsch. Mr José Ramon
Alvarez Rendueles and Mr Jean-Pierre Hansen are members.
6.2 Management board

The board of directors has appointed a management board and delegated day-to-day management powers
of ARCELOR to the management board which is also responsible for implementing the decisions of the
board of directors.

The management board consists of the following individuals:
Mr Guy Dollé, chief executive officer and chairman of the management board;

Mr Jacques Chabanier, senior executive vice-president—purchasing, R&D, IT, e-commerce, Nippon Steel
Corporation Alliance;

Mr Jean-Yves Gilet, senior executive vice-president—stainless steel;
Mr Robert Hudry, senior executive vice-president—distribution-transformation-trading;
Mr Roland Junck, senior executive vice-president—long carbon steel

Mr Paul Matthys, senior executive vice-president—strategic orientation and planning, mergers and
acquisitions, synergies;

Mr Guillermo Ulacia Amaiz, senior executive vice-president—flat carbon steel; and

Mr Michel Wurth, senior executive vice-president—finance, management by objectives.

6.3 Officers’ and directors’ interests
" 6.3.1 Directors’ and corporate officers’ remuneration

No remuneration has been or will be paid by ARCELOR in respect of 2001 to the current or prospective
directors of ARCELOR or to the members of ARCELOR’s management board.

Remuneration will be paid to the members of the board of directors for their duties with effect from
2002 and for the first time at the annual general meeting of the shareholders held in 2003. This remuneration
will, as shall be decided by the annual general meeting of the shareholders, be deducted from the net profit of
ARCELOR after allocation to the legal reserve fund (réserve légale) (see section 3.1.8). This amount may be
no less than EUR [ million. The internal rules provide that such amount may not exceed EUR 2 million. In
the event of insufficient profit, the EUR 1 million will be charged in whole or in part to expenses.

The general meeting of the shareholders can also allocate a fixed remuneration and attendance fees to
the directors which will be charged to expenses.

The board of directors can decide to allot additional remuneration to the directors responsible for special
duties or assignments. This remuneration is also charged to expenses.

In 2001, as regards remuneration and, as the case may be, benefits in kind and profit-sharing:
o ACERALIA paid EUR 3,483,000 to its directors and members of its management;

» ARBED paid EUR 3,872,000 to its directors and members of its management; and

¢  USINOR paid EUR 3,201,000 to its directors and members of its management.

6.3.2 Options granted to the directors and to the key executives in respect of ARCELOR’s Shares

There is currently no share option scheme of ARCELOR in favour of its directors or in favour of the
members of the management board.

In respect of the financial year 2001, certain directors and members of the management board,
in connection with their responsibilities in ACERALIA, ARBED or USINOR were allotted by ARBED a total
of 28,049 ARCELOR Shares.
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6.3.3 Directors’ interests in ARCELOR

The directors and the members of the management board of ARCELOR hold a total of 22,229,363
Shares in ARCELOR.

6.3.4 Transactions entered into with the directors and executives

None of the directors or members of the management board of ARCELOR has been involved in any
transaction carried out by ARCELOR outside of the ordinary course of its business during the current and the
previous financial years.

6.3.5 Loans and guarantees granted in favour of directors and executives

None of the directors of ARCELOR and no member of the general management of ARCELOR have
been granted a loan from ARCELOR and ARCELOR has not granted any guarantee in their favour.

6.4 Employee profit-sharing scheme

At present there is no employee profit-sharing scheme. ARCELOR does however envisage implementing
an employee profit-sharing scheme over the next few years.

ACERALIA and ARBED do not have any employee profit-sharing or share ownership scheme.

With respect to USINOR, the general meeting of shareholders held on 30th May, 2000 authorised the
board of directors to increase the share capital by the issue of new shares reserved exclusively for the
employees of the USINOR group, either through direct share ownership or through a mutual fund (fonds
commun de placement) or through another structure or entity (as the case may be through a company savings
scheme (plan d’épargne d'entreprise)). Pursuant to this authorisation, which is valid for a period of five
years, 7,296,616 new USINOR shares of EUR 9.77 each, i.e., a total subscription value of EUR
71,287,938.32, have been issued. It is not intended to use this authorisation for future share issues in
USINOR. The scheme to which this authorisation relates will be reviewed as part of the ARCELOR Group’s
strategy.

In addition, USINOR has issued USINOR Stock Options for certain members of its management.
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CHAPTER 7 DESCRIPTION OF THE GUARANTOR

7.1 General

ARCELOR Finance (the “Guarantor™) was initially incorporated for an unlimited period in Luxembourg
on 9th October, 1975 as a société a responsabilité limitée (limited liability company) under Luxembourg
law under the name of MecanARBED and registered with the Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés of
Luxembourg under number B 13 244.

At an extraordinary general meeting held on [4th June, 2002, the legal form of the Guarantor was
changed into that of a société en commandite par actions governed by Luxembourg law, its share capital
was increased to EUR 300,000, its name was changed into ARCELOR Finance and its articles of
incorporation have been entirely restated.

The Guarantor’s registered office is at 19, avenue de la Liberté, L-2930 Luxembourg.

The restated version of the articles of incorporation of the Guarantor is expected to be published in the
Mémorial C on 15th July, 2002 and is on file with the Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés of Luxembourg.

7.2 Shareholders and share capital
- As a société en commandite par actions, the Guarantor has two different types of shareholders:

(i) actionnaires commandités which, by operation of law, are jointly and indefinitely liable for any
debts of the Guarantor that cannot be satisfied by the Guarantor;

(i1) actionnaires commanditaires whose liability is limited to the amount of their investment in
the Guarantor.

The share capital of the Guarantor amounts to EUR 300,000 and is represented by 12,000 shares
without nominal value consisting of four unlimited shares (actions de commandité) and 11,996 limited shares
(actions de commanditaire).

The actionnaires commandités with joint and indefinite liability for the debts of ARCELOR Finance are
ARCELOR, ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR, each holding one unlimited share (action de commandité).

The actionnaires commanditaires are ARBED holding 11,994 limited shares and Arbed Investment
Services S.A. and Arbed Investments S.A., two Luxembourg incorporated sociétés anonymes which are fully
owned subsidiaries of the ARCELOR Group, holding one limited share each.

7.3 Management

ARCELOR is the sole manager of the Guarantor. In that capacity, ARCELOR has the widest
administrative and management powers in the Guarantor including the power of the Guarantor to borrow
funds in any form including in the form of notes or money market instruments or in the form of bank loans
and to issue guarantees.

Under applicable law and the articles of incorporation of the Guarantor, ARCELOR may only be
removed as manager with the unanimous consent of all actionnaires commandités (including ARCELOR) and
all actionnaires commanditaires.

Any decision by the shareholders’ meeting binding the Guarantor vis-a-vis third parties or amending its
articles requires the consent of ARCELOR in its capacity as manager of the Guarantor.
7.4 Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board’s function is to supervise the affairs of the Guarantor and its financial situation
including in particular its books and accounts. The Supervisory Board may furthermore be consulted by the
manager on such matters as the manager may determine.
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The current supervisory board which has been elected for a term ending at the annual general meeting of
shareholders to be held in 2008 is composed of the following members:

- ACERALIA,
- ARBED, and
—  USINOR.

7.5 Auditor

KPMG Audit, société civile, Luxembourg, has been appointed as auditor of the Guarantor for a term
ending at the annual general meeting of shareholders to be held in 2003.

7.6 Objectives of the Guarantor

The object of the Guarantor is to provide financing in the form of loans, credit lines, guarantees or any
other form of financial assistance to entities within the ARCELOR Group or to entities in which such entities
hold a participation or economic interest.

For that purpose the Guarantor may access the capital markets inter alia by issuing bonds, commercial
paper, money market instruments or any other type of debt instrument (including convertible or exchangeable
instruments and subordinated instruments). The Guarantor may also enter into long, medium or short term
financing transactions with banks or financial institutions.

The Guarantor may carry out all types of commercial, industrial or financial transactions directly or
indirectly linked to, or deemed to support, its corporate object including the placement of its cash assets and
the hedging of financial risks as well as transactions on or using derivatives and the management of a
cash pooling system.

The Guarantor may furthermore acquire and hold any sort of interest in whatever form in any
Luxembourg or foreign company, undertaking or entity deemed to support its object.

Within the scope of its object, the Guarantor will pursue the activities of an industrial or commercial
establishment benefiting from a professional access to the financial markets.
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7.7 Financial statements

The Guarantor has been a dormant company for the last ten years. Prior thereto, the Guarantor was
active in the construction business and in the marketing of certain technologies developed by ARBED alone
or with others. Prior to 30th April, 2002, the accounts of the Guarantor contained certain provisions in
relation to the construction business which have been credited to results as they were no longer necessary and
certain intergroup credits and debts which have now been settled.

The following are the financial statements of the Guarantor (all the amounts are in EUR).

BALANCE SHEET AS AT APRIL 30, 2002

ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSETS. . . . . . . . e 798,710.21
Shares in affiliated undertakings . . . . . .. .. .. ... ... .. ..., 1,070.95
Loans to affiliated undertakings. . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 797,639.26
DEBTORS . . . . . e 3,293,520.22
Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings . . ... ... ... ... .... 3,293,520.22
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . . . . . e 4,092,230.43
LIABILITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES . . . . . . .. .. . 108,296.31
Subscribed capital . . . . ... e 25,000
Legal reserve. . . . . . . . .. . 2,500
Profit brought forward . . . . . ... o oL 80,796.31
DEBTS . . . . 397.25
Tax and social security . . . . . . ... ... L L L L 397.25
PROFITFORTHE PERIOD . . . . . . . .. .. . i 3,983,536.87
TOTAL LIABILITIES . . . . . . . . . ... . . oo 4,092,230.43
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS FROM 1ST JANUARY TO APRIL 30, 2002
Grossprofitand loss. . . . . . . . . .. .. (44.53)
Other taxes than taxes on result on ordinary activities. . . . . . . ... ... . (8,694.49)
Other interest receivable and similar income. . . . . ... .. ... ... ... 10,880.50
Extraordinary income . . . . ... ... L 3,981,395.39
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD . . . . . . ... . ... . . ... ... ...... 3,983,536.87
ALLOCABLE PROFIT AT APRIL 30, 2002
Profit for the period. . . . . . . . . . 3,983,536.87
Profit brought forward . . . . . . . . . .. e 80,796.31
Profittobe allocated . . . . . . . . . . 4,064,333.18
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Out of the profit existing as at 30th April, 2002, EUR 3,686,800 have been distributed to shareholders
and EUR 377,500 have been attributed to reserves {out of which EUR 275,000 have been capitalised).
The capitalisation of the Guarantor as at 14th June, 2002 is as follows: )

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital . . . . . . . e 300,000

Legal Reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,000

Free Reserve. . . . . . . . . . o e e 75,000

Profit Carried Forward . . . . . . . . . . ... ... 33.18

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY. . . . . . . . . . .. . o o o 405,033.18
LONG TERM DEBT . . . . . . . e e d e 0
TOTAL CAPITALISATION . . . . . . .. e 405,033.18

The Guarantor has no subsidiaries.

7.8 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Guarantor begins on st January of each year and ends on 31st December of
the same year.
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CHAPTER 8 RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

8.1 Transactions and industrial plans in progress

The most important recent transactions for the ARCELOR Group are the following:

(1) Carsid

Usinor Belgium holds a minority stake in Carsid SA which was intended to be a joint venture for the
production of slabs between USINOR, Duferco Investment SA and Sogepa.

The participation of the Walloon region through Sogepa is subject to the approval of the European
Commission and pending such approval Carsid was created without Sogepa which committed itself to make
the agreed contribution immediately after the Commission’s authorisation.

By means of a letter dated 3rd April, 2002, the Commission notified Belgium of its decision to initiate
the procedure laid down in Article 6(5)'* of Commission Decision No 2496/96/ECSC of 18th December,
1998 establishing Community rules for State aid to the steel industry. This procedure is presently in progress.

(2) Poland

On 8th October, 2001, the consortium comprising ARBED, Salzgitter, Thyssen Krupp Stahl and
USINOR submitted a global conditional offer for the acquisition of selected assets of the four Polish steel
mills: Huta Katowice SA, Huta im. T. Sendzimira SA, Huta Cedler SA and Huta Florian SA.

The submitted offer expired by end of 2001, but all consortium members are still interested to participate
in the successful reorganisation of the Polish steel industry. The latest developments in this privatisation
process, with the creation of Polskie Huty Stali (PHS) and its foreseen investment programme, however,
appear not to be in line anymore with the aforementioned developed offer.

In view to continue the jointly realised studies and in order to respect the interests of its members, the
consortium members decided to continue acting on an individual basis in the future. Each member will have
the opportunity to represent itself directly in this privatisation process and contact the Polish authorities in
order to receive clarification and initiate further actions on the new terms and timing of the privatisation
process of the Polish steel industry.

"2 «[f the Commission considers that a certain financial measure may represent State aid within the meaning of Article | or doubts
whether a certain aid is compatible with the provisions of this Decision, it shail inform the Member State concerned and give notice
to the interested parties and other Member States to submit their comments. If, after having received the comments and after having
given the Member State concerned the opportunity to respond, the Commission finds that the measure in question is an aid
incompatible with the provisions of this Decision, it shall take a decision not later than three months after receiving the information
needed to assess the proposed measure. Article 88 of the Treaty shall apply in the event of a Member State’s failing to comply with
that decision.”
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8.2 Minority shareholdings

ALZ

Pursuant to an agreement signed on 12th December, 2001 by ARBED, Staal Vlaanderen NV,
Sidarfin NV, Sidmar and Finindus NV the 12.62% minority shareholding indirectly owned by Staal
Vliaanderen NV in ALZ has been exchanged for 3,719,500 existing ARCELOR Shares owned by
the ARCELOR Group after the Public Exchange Offers so that Sidmar now directly and indirectly
owns 100% of the ALZ shares.

Cockerill Sambre

Pursuant to an agreement signed on 17th December, 2001, between USINOR (which at the time
held 75% of Cockerill Sambre’s capital) and the Région Wallonne (which at the time held the
remaining 25% through Sogepa), Sogepa has in exchange for such 25% holding received from
USINOR 19,278,704 USINOR shares held by USINOR, which Sogepa tendered to the Public
Exchange Offer on USINOR, and, following the close of the Public Exchange Offers, Sogepa
received from USINOR a further 762,897 ARCELOR Shares.

Sidmar

Pursuant to an agreement signed on 12th December, 2001 between ARCELOR, ARBED and Staal
Vlaanderen NV (which at that time owned 27.8% of Sidmar), Staal Vlaanderen NV exchanged its
holding in Sidmar for 16,787,931 ARCELOR Shares as part of the closing of the first offer on
ARBED.

As a result of the above transaction, ARBED now holds a 99.54% shareholding in Sidmar. The
remaining 0.46% is held by Belfin, a company in liquidation. Negotiations are in progress to
exchange these shares for ARCELOR Shares.

8.3 Divestments

On 18th June, 2001, ARCELOR notified the Competition Directorate-General of the European
Commission of the planned amalgamation. This notification covered two separate procedures, namely a
procedure falling within the scope of the ECSC treaty concerning flat carbon steel products, flat stainless steel
products, steel for packaging as well as distribution of steel products, and a procedure within the scope of the
EC Treaty concerning sections and panels for buildings, multi-thickness tailor-welded blanks and small
welded tubes.

On 19th July, 2001, the Commission cleared the ARCELOR transaction for the aspects relating to the
EC Treaty and also opened an in-depth review after expressing its “serious doubts” as regards the ECSC
Treaty aspects which resulted in a letter dated 28th September, 2001 sent to the parties setting out the
objections which were limited to cold-rolled flat carbon steel products, metal-coated carbon steel products and
service centres in Spain, Portugal and France as well as storage centres and oxycutting centres in France.

On 21st November, 2001, the European Commission cleared the amalgamation transaction between
ACERALIA, ARBED and USINOR, on the condition that a certain number of steel production and
distribution businesses are divested. These divestments have been equitably shared between the parties in the
countries where the ARCELOR Group is present, and correspond to a volume of sales of approximately
2 million metric tons of steel.
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% to be

Company Business activity divested
Finarvedi'?,

(ISP Arvedi), Italy . . . . . . . . . . e Hot-dip galvanising 39.9
Galmed, Spain. . . . . . . . . L Hot-dip galvanising 75.5
Lusosider, Portugal . . . . . . ... . ... Cold-rolled products 50.0

Hot-dip galvanising 50.0

Tin-plating 50.0
Segal, Belgium . . . . . . L e Hot-dip galvanising 66.6
Beautor, France . . . . . . . . .. .. e Cold-rolled products 100.0

Electro-galvanising 100.0
Lam. de Dudelange',

Luxembourg . . . ... .. ... Hot-dip galvanising 100.0

Sollac Lorraine, Strasbourg site, France . . . . . ... . ... ... . ... Hot-dip galvanising 100.0
Organic coating 100.0
Cofrafer, France. . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. Slitting 100.0
Distribution 100.0
Oxy-cutting 100.0
Bamesa'®, Spain, Portugal . . . .. .. ... Slitting 49.0

In addition, the parties undertake, if requested by the purchasers of the galvanising lines without cold-
rolling mills (all, except Beautor and Lusosider), to supply either cold-rolled flat carbon steel (the material
used to produce galvanised steel) or tailored cold-rolled products.

These transfers will not have any impact on the synergies expected.

The businesses will be transferred at their fair value. These divestments will avoid situations which are
always delicate from a competition law point of view, resulting from joint venture companies or businesses
controlled jointly with competitors. This will ensure that all of the Group’s units and sites will have exclusive
management of the ARCELOR facilities and processes, without any risk of know-how being leaked to
competitors operating businesses jointly.

Although the impact on the Group’s results will vary depending on a certain number of assumptions,
particularly the impact on upstream activities, it should be less than 5% at EBITDA level.

The pro forma consolidated financial statements set out in chapter 5 of the Prospectus do not incorporate
the effect of these imposed divestments. They include Bamesa, Finarvedi and Lusosider consolidated using
the equity method. Beautor, Cofrafer, Galmed, Segal and Laminoir de Dudelange are consolidated using the
full consolidation method. The Strasbourg site is also included in the pro forma consolidated financial
statements.

8.4 CMI
In the beginning of April 2002, the Group has sold its entire holding in Cockerill Mechanical
Industries SA (CMI) as to 75% to two former employees and as to 25% to Sogepa.

8.5 ARBED convertible bonds

By notice published on 28th March, 2002, ARBED exercised its call option in respect of the then
outstanding notes (representing a principal amount of DEM 223.86 million) of its DEM 275 million
convertible notes due 30th October, 2004 issued in 1997.

13 Divestment limited to the hot-dip galvanising line that is being built.
14 Divestment limited to hot-dip galvanising line.
15 Excluding Bamesa Celik (Turkey).
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As a result of the exercise by their holders of conversion rights into ARBED shares or existing
ARCELOR Shares under the unilateral option given to noteholders by ARBED prior to the early redemption
date of the notes, ARBED delivered prior to 1st February, 2002 185,501 ARBED shares and thereafter
8,805,793 ARCELOR Shares.

The balance of the outstanding notes (representing a principal amount of DEM 2.19 million) was
redeemed in cash on 29th April, 2002.

8.6 ARBED delisting

On 31st March, 2002, the board of directors of ARBED resolved to apply for a de-listing of the shares
in ARBED from all the stock exchanges on which it is listed, namely the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the
Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels, the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris S.A. and the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange.

8.7 Description of the public withdrawal offer by way of exchange (offre publique de retrait par voie
d’échange) of ARCELOR on the shares and O.C.E.A.N.E. issued by USINOR
Introduction

In its meeting of 21st June, 2002, the board of directors of ARCELOR has resolved to launch a public
withdrawal offer by way of exchange (offre publique de retrait par voie d’échange) (the “OPRE”) on all the
USINOR shares and all the O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR not yet held by it at the end of such OPRE.

As a result of the Public Exchange Offer on USINOR, ARCELOR acquired 245,697,269 USINOR shares
representing 97.58% of the USINOR shares, 24,680,648 O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2005 representing 98.72% of
the O.C.E.ANN.E. USINOR 2005 and 27,720,876 O.C.E.AN.E. USINOR 2006 representing 97.01% of the
O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2006, in each case on the basis of the USINOR shares and O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR
outstanding at the close of the re-opening of the Public Exchange Offer on USINOK.

Since the close of the re-opening of the Public Exchange Offer on USINOR, USINOR has issued
105,000 new shares in remuneration of the exercise of stock options granted by USINOR to its employees
(the “Stock Options™).

At 10th June, 2002, ARCELOR holds 245,697,269 shares in USINOR representing 97.54% of the
outstanding shares of USINOR and 24,680,648 O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2005 and 27,720,876 O.C.E.A.N.E.
USINOR 2006 representing respectively 98.72% and 97.01% of the outstanding O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR.
Terms of the OPRE

The terms of the OPRE are the same as in the Public Exchange Offer on USINOR namely:

- 1 ARCELOR Share for I USINOR share tendered to the OPRE,

— 1 O.CE.AN.E. ARCELOR 2005 for 1 O.C.E.AN.E. USINOR 2005 tendered to the OPRE,

-~ 1 O.CE.ANE. ARCELOR 2006 for 1 O.C.E.AN.E. USINOR 2006 tendered to the OPRE.

The number of USINOR shares and O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR that are susceptible to be tendered to the
OPRE are at 10th June, 2002:

(i) 6,208,275 USINOR shares representing 2.46% of the outstanding USINOR shares;

(i) 319,352 O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR 2005 representing 1.28% of the outstanding O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR
2005

(iii) 855,123 O.C.E.ANN.E. USINOR 2006 representing 2.99% of the outstanding O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR
2006.

In addition, a maximum of 418,000 Stock Options are exercisable under their terms before the close of
the OPRE so that the resulting 418,000 USINOR shares could be tendered to the offer.
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Finally, any USINOR share issued in case of conversion requests of O.C.E.A.N.E. USINOR validly
submitted by 28th June, 2002 can also be tendered to the OPRE. Assuming all outstanding O.C.E.A.N.E.
USINOR not held by ARCELOR were so converted into new USINOR shares, a further 1,174,475 USINOR
shares could be tendered to the OPRE.

Timetable

Subject to the decision of the Conseil des marchés financiers expected to be published on 3rd July, 2002,
the OPRE is expected to start on 9th July, 2002 and to end on 26th July, 2002,

The settlement of the OPRE is expected to occur on Sth August, 2002,

Increase of share capital

The authorised share capital of ARCELOR available for issue and not reserved for existing
O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR or the Bonds amounts to 380,277,027 Shares (see section 3.2.1).

The issue of the new ARCELOR Shares and New O.C.E.AN.E. in remuneration of the USINOR
securities tendered to the OPRE and the new Shares which may result from the conversion of such New
O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR will, as required by Luxembourg company law, be the subject of reports by an
independent auditor, Mazars & Guérard (Luxembourg) S.A., which will be available for inspection at the
registered office of ARCELOR after the issue of such new Shares and New O.C.E.AN.E.

The new ARCELOR Shares will rank pari passu with the existing Shares.

The New O.C.E.AN.E. will carry beneficial rights, in respect of interest, as from Ist January, 2002 and
as from their issue in all other respects. They will upon issue rank pari passu with the existing O.C.E.A.N.E.
ARCELOR of the same series.

Admission to listing

The new ARCELOR Shares have been admitted to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, subject
to their issue and application will be made for their listing on the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris S.A., the
Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels and the Stock Exchanges of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia.

The New O.C.E.AN.E. have been admitted to listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange subject to
their issue and application has been made for their listing on the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris S.A.

The new ARCELOR Shares that may be issued upon conversion of any of the O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR
2005 or O.C.E.AN.E. ARCELOR 2006 in issue after the close of the OPRE have been admitted to listing on
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and application will be made for their listing on the Premier Marché of
Euronext Paris S.A., the Premier Marché of Euronext Brussels and the Stock Exchanges of Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbao or Valencia.

The agent in charge of the listing of the new Shares on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange is Banque
Générale du Luxembourg S.A. and the agent in charge of the listing of the New O.C.E.AN.E. on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange is Société Générale Bank & Trust.

The sponsor in Belgium for the Shares is Fortis Banque.

The listing agent in France for the Shares is BNP Paribas and the listing agent for the New
O.C.E.AN.E. is Société Générale.

In Spain, in accordance with applicable regulations, admission to listing for the new Shares is presented
directly by the Company.

Delisting of USINOR
After the completion of the OPRE, USINOR will file a delisting request with Euronext Paris S.A..
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8.8 Unaudited pro forma first quarter figures

The Board of Directors met under the chairmanship of Mr. Joseph Kinsch on June 21, 2002 and
reviewed the consolidated accounts of the Group for the first quarter of 2002.

For the first quarter ending March 31, 2002 the Group’s net income was a loss of 24 million euro.

1st Quarter 2002'®  1st Quarter 2001'¢

(unaudited) (unaudited)
(millions of euro)
Net Sales . . . . . . . . . e 6,824 7,342
Operating INnCoOMe . . . . . . . . .« v v e i i et 65 401
Net income (Group share) . . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ..... (24) 186
Eamings per share'”. . . . . .. .. ... ... {0.05) 0.4

Consolidated net sales amounted to 6,824 million euro compared to 7,342 million for the first quarter
2001 on a pro forma basis, or a decrease of 7% on a comparable basis. This evolution reflects essentially the
strong decrease in average selling prices in flat carbon (-9%) and stainless steels (-11%), long carbon still
benefitting from a small rise (+2%).

Flat carbon also suffered from a negative volume/mix effect (-3%). Long carbon benefitted from a
slightly positive effect (+2%), while stainless enjoyed a positive (+8%) effect sustained by the beginning of a
restocking process. Distribution-transformation-trading activities were more contrasted, showing a decrease in
packaging and tubes but remaining globally positive in distribution and construction.

Total net sales of Arcelor Group for the first quarter 2002 comprise 3,315 million euro for flat carbon
steels, 2,224 million for distribution-transformation-trading, 1,086 million for long carbon steels and 1,079
million for stainless steels.

For the first quarter of 2002, 77% of net sales were in the European Union, 11% in North America,
South America represented 4% and the rest of the world 8%.

Operating income was positive at 65 million euro to be compared to 401 million for the first quarter of
2001, on a pro forma basis. The four different sectors contributed as follows (after goodwill): flat carbon
steels -73 million, distribution-transformation-trading 35 million, stainless steels -17 million and long carbon
steels 125 million. This important decline of operating margin for the first quarter is essentially due to the
severe fall of selling prices which hit a historical low on flat carbon steels and to a reduction of shipments
linked to an end of destocking.

In a context of continuous adjustment of production in the carbon flat steels sector, cost reduction
programs if close to objectives could only partially offset the impact of selling prices drops.

Implementation of synergies linked to the amalgamation is on schedule and Group integration is
progressing well.

16 Pro forma.

{7 In euro. Shares held in the Group at March 31, 2002 not taken into account.
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Financial expenses at 90 million euro improves by 39 million compared to the same period of 2001.
Due to the results of South American companies, contribution of associated companies was - 25 million euro.

March 31, 2002'°  December 31, 20012
(unaudited) (unaudited}

{millions of euro)

Shareholders equity including minority interest. . . .. ... ... ... 8,353 8,484
Netdebt. . ... ... .. 6,553 6,206
Net debt/shareholders equity (including minority interests) . . . . . .. 0.78 0.73

Net debt at March 31, 2002 was 6,553 million euro compared to 6,206 million at December 31, 2001,
variation being principally due to dividend payment in January 2002. A plan for substantial working capital
requirements reduction will allow the realization of debt reduction by year end.

Prospects

After a period of reduced activity of end user customers in the first part of the year extending the
business climate of the third and fourth quarter of 2001, it is possible to observe an improvement of apparent
consumption during the second quarter of 2002. This trend could be reinforced along the third quarter as
inventories both in the distribution networks and in the consumer channel have reached a level which can be
considered low at the end of the first quarter.

Moreover, in order to face protectionist measures enforced by the government of the United States with
regard to steel products imports, the European Union has adopted measures which could contribute to prevent
additional imports into Europe.

In this context, flat carbon steel prices have been rising since the beginning of the second quarter after
having reached historical twenty year lows. New selling price increases have been announced for the third
quarter and are being implemented. They will take effect on all markets in the third quarter

Within this context, the Group expects a significant improvement of results for the second quarter of
2002.

I8 Pro forma.
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CHAPTER 9 TAXATION

The information set out below is a summary only of Luxembourg French, Belgian and Spanish tax laws
in effect on the date hereof and which may change from time to time. Because this summary does not
address all tax considerations under Luxembourg French, Belgian and Spanish or other laws, prospective
investors should consult their professional advisers as to the tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and
disposition of the Bonds and Shares exchanged for or converted from the Bonds, including in particular the
effect of tax laws of other jurisdictions.

9.1 Luxembourg legislation
9.1.1 Non-resident Holders of the Bonds

The description set out below describes the Luxembourg tax consequences applicable to non-residents
holding the Bonds.

Investors should note that this description does not address all possible tax issues which may be of
relevance for investors intending to hold the Bonds. The description does in particular not cover the
Luxembourg tax applicable to Luxembourg permanent establishments of foreign investors to which the Bonds
would be connected.

Under Luxembourg tax laws currently in effect, there is no withholding tax on payment of interest on or
reimbursement of principal of the Bonds. Holders of the Bonds who are non-residents of Luxembourg and
who do not hold the Bonds through a permanent establishment in Luxembourg are not liable for Luxembourg
income tax on payments of interest or reimbursement of principal or upon exchange or conversion of the
Bonds against Shares or on capital gains on disposal of any Bonds.

No registration tax or similar duty will be due by a holder of the Bonds in connection with the
acquisition or disposal of the Bonds by purchase, sale or exchange or upon the conversion or exchange of the
Bonds against Shares.

9.1.2 Holders of Shares

The description set out below describes the Luxembourg tax consequences for residents and
non-residents of Luxembourg holding Shares.

Investors should note that this description does not address all possible tax issues which may be of
relevance for investors intending to hold Shares. The description does in particular not cover the Luxembourg
tax consequences which will be applicable to individual investors holding alone or together with certain other
persons a shareholding in ARCELOR of more than 10%, nor the tax consequences applicable to Luxembourg
permanent establishments of foreign investors to which the ARCELOR Shares would be connected.

9.1.2.1 Tax regime applicable to capital gains realised upon the disposal of ARCELOR Shares
(a) Residents
Individual investors

The capital gains realised by an individual person upon the disposal of ARCELOR Shares will not be
subject to taxation unless the disposal of the Shares precedes the acquisition thereof or occurs within the
six months which follow their acquisition or where the Shares are part of such investor’s net business assets.

Capital companies (sociétés de capitaux)

Capital gains realised upon the disposal of ARCELOR Shares by a resident capital company which is
subject to corporate income tax will in principle be fully taxable. However, the capital gains realised by
resident capital companies subject to corporate income tax will be exempted in case of a participation held
directly, or indirectly through a transparent vehicle, representing at least 10% of the share capital of
ARCELOR or the acquisition price of which was of an amount of at least EUR 6 million, provided that at
the time of disposal of the securities, the seller has held or commits to hold the participation during an
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uninterrupted period of at least twelve months and provided that during that period the percentage or the
value of the non-disposed of participation represents not less than 10% of the share capital of ARCELOR or
an acquisition price of EUR 6 million. The scope of the capital gains exemption can be limited in the cases
provided by the grand-ducal regulation of 21st December, 2001 executing article 166, paragraph 9 L.L.R.

(6) Non-residents

A non-resident natural person or capital company which does not have a permanent establishment in
Luxembourg to which the ARCELOR Shares are connected will not be subject to Luxembourg tax on capital
gains realised upon the disposal of those Shares.

9122 Dividends
(a) Withholding tax

Under Luxembourg law currently in force, dividends paid by ARCELOR are subject to a withholding tax
of 20% of the gross dividend. The rate of the withholding tax can be reduced, even to 0%, pursuant to the
double tax avoidance treaty existing between Luxembourg and the country of residence of the relevant
shareholder. Insofar as the double tax avoidance treaties entered into with France, Belgium and Spain are
concemned, reference is made to sections 9.2, 9.3 and 9.4 hereafter.

No withholding tax applies if the dividends are paid to a company which is resident of a Member State
of the European Union and is referred to by article 2 of the Council Directive of 23rd July, 1990 concerning
the common fiscal regime applicable to parent and subsidiary companies of different member states
(90/43S/EEC) provided that at the date of payment, the beneficiary holds or commits to hold directly or
through a tax transparent vehicle, during an uninterrupted period of twelve months at least, a minimum
participation of 10% in the capital of ARCELOR or a participation the acquisition price of which is at least
EUR 1,200,000.

() Residents

With the exception of resident capital companies which fall under the substantial participation regime
described in the foregoing paragraph, Luxembourg resident individual persons and capital companies subject
to corporate income tax must include the dividends paid on their ARCELOR Shares held on the 1st January
of each year in their taxable income, 50% of the amount of such dividends being exempted from tax.

9.1.2.3 Net assets tax

Luxembourg resident individual persons and capital companies subject to corporate income tax must
include the ARCELOR Shares held on the Ist of January of each year in their net assets for the purposes of
net assets tax. Resident capital companies which fall under the substantial participation regime described in
section 9.1.2.2 are, subject to certain conditions, exempted from net assets tax on such participation.

9.1.2.4 Holding companies subject to the law of 31st July, 1929 and undertakings for collective investment

Dividends paid to holding companies subject to the law of 31st July, 1929 (1929 holding companies™)
and to undertakings for collective investment are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 20% on the gross
dividend. Capital gains realised by 1929 holding companies and Luxembourg undertakings for collective
investment upon the disposal of ARCELOR Shares as well as the net amount of the dividend after operation
of the withholding tax are not subject to any Luxembourg tax.

ARCELOR Shares issued upon conversion of the Bonds qualify for investment by Luxembourg
undertakings for collective investment pursuant to article 129C L.LR. (loi Rau funds).
9.1.2.5 Registration taxes

No registration tax or similar tax will be payable by a shareholder upon the disposal of ARCELOR
Shares by sale or exchange.
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9.2 French legislation

On the basis of French legislation in force as at the date hereof and the France-Luxembourg tax treaty
of Ist April 1958 (the “Treaty”), the following is a summary of the main tax provisions which may apply to
holders of ARCELOR O.C.E A.N.E. or holders of Shares who are resident in France. Such holders should
however verify the tax provisions applicable 1o their own personal situation with their usual tax advisers.
Investors who are not French tax residents must comply with the tax laws in force in their State of residence.

9.2.1 Holders of ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E.
9.2.1.1  Private individuals holding securities as part of their personal estate

(A) Interest

In France, interest paid on the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. is included in the category “securities income,
interest and dividends” (“revenus de capitaux mobiliers”) for the determination of the tax payer’s global
income tax base.

The interest paid on the ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. is subject to:
3 Income Tax;

o the “Contribution Sociale Généralisée”, currently 7.5% (deductible from taxable income up to
5.1%) (article 1600-OC and [600-OE of the French tax code);

o the “Prélevement Social”, currently 2% (article 1600-OF bis of the French tax code); and

o the “Contribution au Remboursement de la Dette Sociale”, currently 0.5% (article 1600-OG and
1600-OL of the French tax code).

(B) Capital gains

The capital gains realised on the disposal of ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. held by French residents are
taxable in France in accordance with article 18 of the Treaty.

In accordance with article 150-0 A of the French tax code, capital gains realised on the disposal of
ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. are taxable, without any allowance, if the annual amount of disposals of securities
per fiscal household exceeds EUR 7,650, at an overall rate of 26%, made up as follows:

16% in respect of income tax (article 200 A of the French tax code);

7.5% in respect of the “Contribution Sociale Généralisée”;

2% in respect of the “Prélévement Social”; and

0.5% in respect of the “Contribution au Remboursement de la Dette Sociale”.

Pursuant to article 150-0 D 11° of the French tax code, capital gains may only be offset against capital
losses of a similar nature generated in the year of disposal or in the five years following such disposal and
provided the EUR 7,650 threshold mentioned above, is exceeded in the year of the capital losses.

(C) Conversion of ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. into Shares

The conversion of the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. into Shares is not treated as a disposal for a
consideration (article 150-0 B of the French tax code). The taxation of the resultant capital gains is deferred
provided that the cash adjustment, if any, is equal to no more than 10% of the nominal value of the Shares
allocated.

In the event of a subsequent disposal of the Shares, the net gain, calculated on the basis of the price or
the acquisition value of the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E,, is taxed as described in paragraph (B) above. The cash
adjustment paid or received, as the case may be, will be added to or deducted from the acquisition price of
the original ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. converted.
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(D) Exchange of the ARCELOR O.C.E.ANN.E. for Shares

The exchange of the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. for Shares is not treated as a disposal for a consideration
(article 150-0 B of the French tax code). The taxation of the resultant capital gain is deferred provided that
the cash adjustment, if any, is equal to no more than 10% of the nominal value of the Shares allocated.

In the event of a subsequent disposal of the Shares, the net gain, calculated on the basis of the price or
the acquisition value of the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E,, is taxed as described in paragraph (B) above. The cash
adjustment paid or received, as the case may be, will be added to or deducted from the acquisition price of
the original ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. to be exchanged.

9.2.1.2  Legal entities subject to corporation tax
(A) Interest

In France, interest paid on the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. is included in the tax payer’s tax base for
calculation of taxable income.

Interest paid on the ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. is subject to corporation tax pursuant to ordinary tax rules.

The interest received by shareholders which are legal entities subject to corporation tax are taxed in
respect of corporation tax as follows:

(i) Interest received by small- and medium-sized businesses with a turnover net of tax for the financial
year of less than EUR 7,630,000 (as of {st January, 2002) and with a fully paid up share capital of
which at least 75% is owned by private individuals or companies which themselves satisfy the
conditions relating to turnover and share capital ownership, are taxable pursuant to ordinary tax
rules, i.e.:

at a reduced rate of 15% for the financial years beginning after 1st January, 2002 on taxable profit
of up to EUR 38,120;

at a rate of 33.33% for profit exceeding EUR 38,120.

An additional contribution of 3% for financial years ending or periods of taxation ending after 1st
January, 2002 is added to the 15% corporation tax on amounts up to EUR 38,120, i.e, an effective
rate of 15.45%, and to the 33.33% corporation tax for amounts exceeding EUR 38,120, i.e, an
effective rate of 34.33%.

(i) Interest received by legal entities which do not satisfy the turnover and shareholding criteria
referred to above are taxable pursuant to ordinary tax rules, i.e., corporation tax at the current rate
of 33.33%, to which is added an additional contribution of 3% and a welfare tax on corporate profit
of 3.3% on the fraction of corporation tax (before set off of the “avoirs fiscaux™ and tax credits)
exceeding EUR 763,000 (as of st January, 2002), i.e., an effective rate of 35.43%.

(B) Capital gains

The disposal of ARCELOR O.C.E.ANN.E. will give rise to a gain or loss, equal to the difference between
the sale price and the purchase price of the ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. included in the calculation of the
taxable income.

The capital gains thus made are subject to corporation tax in accordance with ordinary tax rules (see
paragraph (A) above).
(C) Conversion of the ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. into Shares

The taxation of the capital gains made by legal entities which are subject to corporation tax and tax
resident in France, upon the conversion of ARCELOR O.C.E.AN.E. into Shares, will be deferred as provided
for in article 38-7 of the French tax code provided that the cash adjustment, if any, is equal to no more than
10% of the nominal value of the Shares allocated or the amount of the capital gains made.
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In the event of a cash adjustment which is less than 10% of the nominal value of the Shares allocated,
the capital gains will, up to the amount of the cash adjustment, be included in the taxable income for the
financial year during which the conversion took place.

In the event of a subsequent sale of the Shares received after conversion of the ARCELOR
O.C.E.A.N.E., the amount resulting from the sale (capital gain or loss) will be determined by reference to the
value that the bonds had from a tax perspective for the seller.

This deferral is subject to compliance with declaration obligations referred to in article 54 septies of the
French tax code.

(D) Exchange of ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. for Shares

The capital gains resulting from the exchange of ARCELOR O.C.E.A.N.E. for Shares may not be
deferred and is subject, in respect of the financial year in progress during which the exchange took place, to
corporation tax in accordance with ordinary tax rules (see paragraph (A) above).
9.2.2 Holders of ARCELOR Shares
9.2.2.1  Private individuals holding ARCELOR Shares as part of their personal estate

(A) Dividends

In accordance with the Treaty, dividends paid by the Company to French tax residents who are private
individuals are subject to a 15% withholding tax in Luxembourg.

Pursuant to article 19-3 of the Treaty, France grants a tax credit corresponding to the amount of the
Luxembourg tax.

In France, net dividends from Luxembourg companies, plus the tax credit granted under the Treaty, are
included in the category entitled “securities income, interest and dividends” (“revenus de capitaux
mobiliers”) for the determination of the tax payer’s global income tax base. The tax credit may be offset
against income tax (“Income Tax™) to the extent of the tax corresponding to dividends.

Net dividend payments (including the “avoir fiscal”) are subject to:
e Income Tax;

o the “Contribution Sociale Généralisée”, currently 7.5% (deductible from taxable income up to
5.1%) (article 1600-OC and 1600-OE of the French tax code);

s the “Préléevement Social”, currently 2% (article 1600-OF bis of the French tax code); and

o the “Contribution au Remboursement de la Dette Sociale”, currently 0.5% (article 1600-OG and
1600-OL of the French tax code).

(B) Capital gains

The capital gains realised on the disposal of Shares in the Company held by French residents are taxable
in France in accordance with article 18 of the Treaty.

In accordance with article 150-0 A of the French tax code, capital gains realised on the disposal of
Shares in the Company are taxable, without any allowance, if the annual amount of disposals of securities per
fiscal household exceeds EUR 7,650, at an overall rate of 26%, made up as follows:

e 16% in respect of income tax (article 200 A of the French tax code);
e 7.5% in respect of the “Contribution Sociale Généralisée”;
e 2% in respect of the “Prélévement Social”; and

o 0.5% in respect of the “Contribution au Remboursement de la Dette Sociale”.
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Pursuant to article 150-0 D 11° of the French tax code, capital gains may only be offset against capital
losses of a simiiar nature generated in the year of disposal or in the five years following such disposal and
provided the EUR 7,650 threshold mentioned above, is exceeded in the year of the capital losses.

(C) Registration duties
Disposals of Shares in the Company are not in principle, subject to registration taxes in France.

If the disposal of Shares in the Company is recorded in an agreement entered into in France, this
agreement 1s subject to registration duties equal to 1% of the sale price, capped at EUR 3,049 per sale.

(D) Wealth tax

Shares in the Company held by private individuals as part of their personal estate will be included in
their tax base for wealth tax purposes, if they are subject to wealth tax,

(E) Inheritance tax and gift tax

Shares in the Company acquired by private individuals by way of inheritance or gift shall be subject to
inheritance tax or gift tax respectively in France.

9.2.2.2  Private individuals who own ARCELOR Shares as part of their personal estate and effect stock
exchange transactions on a regular basis

Pursuant to article 92-2 of the French tax code, profits made on stock exchange transactions effected on
a regular basis are taxable pursuant to the ordinary rules applicable to non-commercial profit. Taxation
pursuant to article 92-2 of the French tax code is however limited to tax payers whose transactions amount to
more than just portfolio management,

9.2.2.3  Private individuals who own ARCELOR Shares and have entered them as assets on their
commercial balance sheet

Dividends are deducted from taxable profit included in the industrial and commercial earnings category,
but the amount deducted must be declared in the category entitled “securities income, interest and dividends”
(“revenus de capitaux mobiliers™) and is liable to income tax as set out in section 9.2.2.1.(A) above.

Disposals of securities are treated as for short- or long-term capital gains or losses when the securities
sold may be deemed to be included in fixed assets.

9.2.2.4  Legal entities subject to corporation tax
(A) Dividends

Dividends paid by the Company to a company which is French resident are subject to a Luxembourg
15% withholding tax pursuant to article 8 of the Treaty. The 15% rate may be reduced to 5% if the French
resident company holds at least 25% of the Company’s capital, and even to 0% if the conditions provided for
by EC Council Directive No. 90/435 of 23rd July, 1990 are met.

A tax credit corresponding to the amount of the Luxembourg withholding tax is granted to the French
resident company. This tax credit may be offset against corporation tax without, however, exceeding the
amount of the corporation tax corresponding to the dividends.

The net dividends, plus the tax credit, received by shareholders which are legal entities subject to
corporation tax are taxed in respect of corporation tax as follows:

Dividends received by small- and medium-sized businesses with a turnover net of tax for the financial
year of less than EUR 7,630,000 (as of 1st January, 2002) and with a fully paid up share capital of which at
least 75% is owned by private individuals or companies which themselves satisfy the conditions relating to
turnover and share capital ownership, are taxable pursuant to ordinary tax rules, i.e.:
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e at a reduced rate of 15% for the financial years beginning after 1st January, 2002 on taxable profit
of up to EUR 38,120;

e atarate of 33.33% for profit exceeding EUR 38,120.

An additional contribution of 3% for financial years ending or periods of taxation ending after Ist
January, 2002 is added to the 15% corporation tax on amounts up to EUR 38,120, i.e., an effective rate of
15.45%, and to the 33.33% corporation tax for amounts exceeding EUR 38,120, i.e,, an effective rate of
34.33%.

Dividends received by legal entities which do not satisfy the turnover and shareholding criteria referred
to above are taxable pursuant to ordinary tax rules, i.e., corporation tax at the current rate of 33.33%, to
which is added an additional contribution of 3% and a welfare tax on corporate profit of 3.3% on the fraction
of corporation tax (before set off of the “avoirs fiscaux” and tax credits) exceeding EUR 763,000, i.e., an
effective rate of 35.43%.

The 15% tax credit may be offset against corporation tax levied at a rate of 33.33%. This tax credit
cannot however exceed the amount of the corporation tax corresponding to the dividends received from the
Company.

However, according to the provisions of articles 145 and 216 of the French tax code, legal entities
holding at least 5% of the distributing Company’s capital may, upon election, benefit from the parent-
subsidiary preferential tax regime (dividends not subject to corporation tax except for a 5% fraction of the
gross amount (dividend plus tax credit) which corresponds to the share in costs and expenses (which may be
reduced to actual costs and expenses)) provided they undertake, when the securities are acquired, to keep
them for more than two years. In this case, the tax credit may be offset, within five years, against the
“précompte” (special corporate dividend withholding tax) arising out of the redistribution of these dividends
to shareholders.

(B) Capital gains
Capital gains are taxable in France pursuant to article 18 of the Treaty.

Capital gains made by legal entities subject to corporation tax are subject to that tax as provided above
in paragraph (A) above.

However, when the securities sold are deemed to be investment securities (“titres de participation™)
(i.e., they are recorded in an investment account, or are recorded in a special sub-account and represent at
least 5% of the share capital or a purchase price of EUR 22.8 million (as of Ist January, 2002)) and have
been held for more than two years by the same legal entity, the capital gains on the disposal qualify for
taxation at the reduced rate applicable to long-term capital gains, subject to the obligation regarding the
special long-term capital gains reserve. The reduced rate is currently 19%, to which must be added:

e the 3% additional tax, i.e., an effective rate of 19.57%, and,

o  for legal entities which do not meet the tumover and shareholding criteria referred to in section
2.4.(A) (turnover net of tax for the financial year of less than EUR 7,630,000, with a fully paid up
share capital of which at least 75% is owned by private individuals or companies which themselves
satisfy the conditions relating to turnover and share capital ownership), the 3.3% welfare tax on
corporate profit on such fraction of corporation tax (before offset of the “avoirs fiscaux™ and tax
credits) as exceeds EUR 763,000, i.e., an effective rate of 20.2%.

(C) Registration duties

Registration duties on the disposal of shares in a listed company by legal entities subject to corporation
tax are identical to those applicable to private individuals (see section 9.2.2.1 .(C)).
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9.3 Belgian legislation
The text below is a summary of the Belgian tax provisions applicable to the new ARCELOR Shares.

This summary does not attempt to set out all the implications of owning ARCELOR Shares and does not
take into account the particular circumstances of each investor, who may be subject to specific rules, nor the
tax laws of countries other than Belgium. More particularly, this summary does not cover the tax provisions
applicable to investors subject to specific rules, such as those applicable to UCITs (“organismes de
placement collectif”), traders in securities or foreign exchange, persons who hold or will hold the Shares
Jurther to stock lending arrangements, repurchase or conversion transactions, synthetic transactions or other
integrated financial transactions, as well as employees holding the Shares as part of specific profit-sharing
schemes. This summary does not cover the situation of Belgian non-residents, and more particularly, Belgian
non-residents having an establishment in Belgium.

This summary is based on laws, international conventions, administrative regulations and the
interpretations in force at the date of publication, subject to subsequent amendments, amendments which
could have retroactive effect. Hence, the corporate tax law reform project as described in the bill adopted by
the Council of Ministers on 19th April, 2002 is not taken into consideration as it might be subject to
modifications.

Potential investors are invited to consult their personal advisers as to the tax implications of an
investment in Shares with respect to their particular situation, including as regards the effects of any
national, federal or local law.

For the purposes hereof, a2 “Resident Private Individual” is a private individual subject in Belgium to
private individual income tax, a “Resident Company” is a legal entity subject to corporation tax in Belgium;
and, a “Resident Legal Entity” is a legal entity subject to taxation on legal entities in Belgium.

9.3.1 Tax aspects related to the holding of ARCELOR Shares
9.3.1.1 Income tax-dividends
9.3.1.1.1 “Withholding tax”

The Luxembourg withholding tax on dividends mentioned in section 8.1.2.2 above (the “Luxembourg
withholding tax”) is reduced to 15% for dividends paid to Resident Private Individuals, Resident Legal
Entities or Resident Companies, in accordance with article 10 of the treaty for the avoidance of double
taxation entered into between Belgium and Luxembourg (the “Treaty”). This rate may be reduced to 10%
if the beneficiary of the dividends is a company (save for “sociétés en nom collectif”, “sociétés en
commandite simple” or “sociétés coopératives”) having held a direct shareholding interest since the
beginning of the financial year in the share capital of ARCELOR of at least 25% or which has been acquired
for a value of at least EUR 6,197,338.12. This rate may be reduced to 0% for such a beneficiary, if the

conditions provided for in European Directive No. 90/435 of 23rd July, 1990 are met.

In addition and as a general rule, a special 25% Belgian withholding tax (the “withholding tax”) is
applied to the net amount (after deduction of any Luxembourg withholding tax) of dividends paid or allocated
to the shares through an intermediary established in Belgium. Benefits allocated to shares in any form
whatsoever and in any respect whatsoever are also treated as dividends subject to the withholding tax, after
deduction of any Luxembourg withholding tax.

Exemption from the equalisation tax may be obtained provided that certain formalities are complied with
for dividends paid or allocated to Resident Companies.
9.3.1.1.2 Resident Private Individuals

For Resident Private Individuals who purchase and hold Shares as a private investment, the deduction of
the withholding tax, as the case may be, exonerates them, in principle, fully from private individual income
tax.
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Holders of the Shares who receive dividends outside of Belgium without deduction of the withholding
tax in Belgium are however under an obligation to declare this income in their tax returns, and will be taxed
on this income at 25% plus additional local taxes.

For Resident Private Individuals who pu}chase the Shares as a professional activity, the dividends (after
deduction of any Luxembourg withholding tax) must be declared and are taxed at the progressive rates of
private individual income tax applicable to professional income. The withholding tax can in principle be
offset against the amount of private individual income tax and is reimbursed to the extent that it exceeds the
effective amount of income tax to be paid if the two following conditions are met: the tax payer must have
full title to the Shares at the time of allocation or payment of the dividends and the distribution of the
dividends must not have led to a reduction in the value of the Shares or a capital loss on the Shares.

9.3.1.1.3 Resident Companies

The dividends received (after deduction of any Luxembourg withholding tax) must be declared and are
taxed at the rate of corporation tax.

The withholding tax (if any) may in principle be offset against corporation tax, and any excess may be
reimbursed to the extent that it exceeds the effective amount of corporation tax to be paid and if the two
following conditions are met: the taxpayer must have full title to the Shares at the time of allocation or
payment of the dividends, and the distribution of the dividends must not have led to a reduction in the value
of the Shares or a capital loss on the Shares.

Resident Companies may deduct from their taxable income up to 95% of gross dividends received (save
for certain non-deductible expenses) if, on the date of allocation or due date for payment of the dividends,
they hold at least 5% of ARCELOR’s share capital or a shareholding interest of an acquisition value of more
than EUR 1,200,000 (quantitative conditions). This 95% exemption of the dividends is, however, only
possible if ARCELOR is subject to income tax in Luxembourg (qualitative conditions).

9.3.1.1.4 Resident Legal Entities

For Resident Legal Entities, the tax on dividends (after deduction of any Luxembourg withholding tax)
constitutes, in principle, the final tax. If the withholding tax has not been withheld, the beneficiary of the
dividends must declare and pay the withholding tax itself to the Belgian Treasury.

9.3.1.2 Income tax-capital gains and capital losses

9.3.1.2.1 Resident Private Individuals

For Resident Private Individuals who hold Shares as a private investment, capital gains on any sale
thereof are not in principle taxable, and the losses are not deductible.

By way of exception, speculative capital gains or capital gains generated outside of normal management
of a private estate are subject to a tax of 33% (on top of which additional local taxes are due). Losses arising
from such transactions are deductible from income from similar transactions.

Resident Private Individuals who hold Shares as part of their profession are taxable, at the progressive
rates of tax for private individuals applicable to professional income, on all capital gains made on the sale of
the Shares. The losses suffered on the latter are, in principle, deductible from professional income.

9.3.1.2.2 Resident Companies

Resident Companies are not in principle subject to corporation tax on capital gains upon the disposal of
Shares, if the dividends which may be allocated by ARCELOR meet the requirement for the 95% exemption
on dividends received (see the qualitative conditions referred to in section 9.3.1.1.1.3). The quantitative
conditions for exoneration of the dividends do not apply.

In principle, losses on Shares incurred by Resident Companies are not deductible.
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9.3.1.2.3 Resident Legal Entities

Capital gains made by Resident Legal Entities upon the disposal of Shares are not in principle subject to
Belgian capital gains tax. Capital losses on Shares are not deductible.

9.3.1.3  Indirect taxes
9.3.1.3.1 Tax on stock exchange transactions
The usual rate is 0.17%, with a maximum of EUR 250 per transaction per party.

Transactions effected by the following entities having their tax residence in Belgium and acting for their
own account are exempt from this tax:

e  professional intermediaries described in the first paragraph of article 2 of the Belgian law of
6th April, 1995;

e  insurance companies described in the first paragraph of article 2 of the Belgian law of 9th July, 1975;

e pension funds described in point 6° of the third paragraph of article 2 of the Belgian law of
9th July, 1975; and

e  UCITs described in livre 11l of the Belgian law of 4th December, 1590.

"9.3.1.3.2 Inheritance tax and gift tax

An inheritance tax is paid on the market value of Shares forming a part of the estate of a Belgian
resident.

9.4 Spanish legislation

This section ts a summary of the tax regime that is currently likely to apply under Spanish law to
investors who are private individuals or legal entities resident in the Kingdom of Spain (respectively
“Private Individuals” and “Legal Entities" resident in Spain) and who hold shares in ARCELOR.
Amendments to Spanish law, including retroactive amendments, may occur. In particular, such investors
should be aware that a Project of modification of the Private Individual Income Tax Law (as defined below),
published on 5th June, 2002, is currently under discussion in the Spanish Parliament and that, in principle,
it is expected to be enacted within 2002 and it is projected that it shall be applicable to fiscal years starting
as from Ist January, 2003. Such project may entail the modification of several aspects of the taxation regime
described below; spefically it must be noted that is currently projected that the marginal Private Individual
Income Tax rate will be lowered to 45%, the tax rate for capital gains obrained by Private Individuals from
assets held for more than one year will be lowered to 15%, and the rate applicable to certain withholdings
Sfrom payments to and tax prepayments by resident Private Individuals and Legal Entities will be lowered to
15%. These statements are included only for information purposes: they may be subject to changes during the
legislative procedure.

In any case, this section is not an exhaustive description of the potential tax consequences resulting from
the purchase, holding and/or transfer of shares in ARCELOR; nor, in particular, those deriving for
companies holding an interest of 5% or more in ARCELOR. Investors must consult their usual tax adviser in
order to assess their own individual tax situation.

9.4.1  Private Individuals resident in Spain

Private Individuals whose usual place of residence is on Spanish territory, in accordance with the
provisions of article 9.1 of law No. 40/1998 on Income Tax of Private Individuals and other tax rules
(the “Private Individual Income Tax Law”) of 9th December, 1998, as well as residents outside of Spain who
are members of Spanish diplomatic delegations, Spanish consulate offices or occupying other official
positions, pursuant to article 9.2 of the Private Individual Income Tax Law, are considered to be investors
resident in Spain, without prejudice to the provisions of the Convention for the avoidance of double taxation
entered into between the Kingdom of Spain and the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg of 3rd June, 1986 (the
“Treaty”) and/or any other convention for the avoidance of double taxation which may be applicable.
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Private Individuals, of Spanish nationality, having established tax residence in a country or on territory
qualified pursuant to a Spanish regulation as a tax haven for the tax year in which the change of residence
occurred and during the four following years, are also considered to be investors resident in Spain.

9.4.1.1 Dividends

Pursuant to article 23 of the Private Individual Income Tax Law, any income from the property,
entitlement to use or beneficial ownership of the ARCELOR Shares and, in particular, dividends, will be
taxable as “securities income”.

In accordance with article 10 of the Treaty, a withholding tax at a maximum rate of 15% will be applied
to dividends paid by a Luxembourg company to a Private Individual resident in Spain who properly attests
his right to Treaty coverage.

For the purposes of Private Individual Income Tax, the net dividends distributed by ARCELOR are
grossed up by the amount of the Luxembourg withholding tax. Administration and depositary costs (except
for portfolio management costs) can be deducted in order to assess the tax base. This income is included in
the general part of the tax base and is taxed at a progressive rate of taxation of between 18% and 48%
(which is the sum of the rates fixed by the Spanish State and those fixed by the autonomous regions).

Pursuant to the Treaty, the amount of withholding tax effectively deducted in Luxembourg constitutes a
tax credit in Spain which may be offset against the Private Individual Income Tax, but cannot exceed the
amount of Private Individual Income Tax as computed on the gross amount of the dividend.

If the Shares are deposited with Private Individuals or Legal Entities resident in Spain, or Private
Individuals or Legal Entities not resident in Spain or, if non-resident, who exercise an activity in Spain
through a permanent establishment or where such Private Individuals or Legal Entities are acting as paying
agents, a Spanish withholding tax will apply at a rate of 18%, except if a withholding tax has been applied in
Spain on this same income. Private Individuals who are resident in Spain may deduct this tax withheld from
the amount due in respect of Private Individual Income Tax. If this tax withheld exceeds the amount of
Private Individual Income Tax due, Private Individuals may request to be refunded of that excess amount.

9.4.1.2 Capital gains and losses on the disposal of Shares

The capital gains and losses made by Private Individuals resulting from (i) the disposal of Shares for
consideration or without consideration or (i) the other cases of transfers of Shares referred to in section 4 of
chapter 1 of part I of the Private Individual Income Tax Law, are determined in accordance with articles
32 to 35 of the Private Individual Income Tax Law. These capital gains or losses will be included in the tax
base and subject to taxation, in accordance with the general rules applicable to this type of income, it being
worth mentioning that:

(a) When an investor owns securities of the same kind (homogéneos) purchased at different dates, those
which were acquired at the earliest date will be deemed transferred first.

(b) In accordance with articles 31.5 et seq. of the Private Individual Income Tax Law, the capital losses
resulting from the disposal of securities admitted to trading on one of the official Spanish secondary securities
markets, and acquired within the two months preceding or following the said disposal, will not be taken into
account for calculation of the tax base.

(c) In general, the capital gains on the disposal of Shares acquired more than one year prior to the date
of disposal will be taxed at a special rate of 18% (which is the sum of the rates fixed by the Spanish state
and those fixed by the autonomous regions).

(d) In the event that the Shares disposed of were acquired less than one year prior to disposal, the
capital gains on the disposal is included in the calculation of the general tax base and will be taxed at a
progressive rate capped at 48% (which is the sum of the rates fixed by the Spanish state and those fixed by
the autonomous regions).

Although the Private Individual Income Tax Law provides that a withholding tax could be applied to
capital gains, the rules in force do not make provision for any effective withholding tax on capital gains
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deriving from the disposal of shares by investors who are Spanish tax residents and subject to the Private
Individual Income Tax.

94.1.3 Wealth tax

Pursuant to article 9 of the Private Individual Income Tax Law, Private Individuals resident in Spain are
subject to Wealth Tax on the whole of their estate which they own on 31st December of each year,
irrespective of where their assets are situated or where their rights may be exercised. Law No. 19/1991 of
6th June, 1991 provides that beyond a threshold of EUR 108,182.18 a progressive tax rate of between 0.2%
and 2.5% is applied to the estate.

To this end, the shares of companies which are traded within an official Spanish stock exchange and
which are held by Private Individuals as part of their personal estate will be determined at the average market
value during the fourth quarter of each year.

9.4.1.4  Inheritance and gift tax

Shares received for no consideration by Private Individuals resident in Spain are subject to Inheritance
and Gift Tax in accordance with law No. 29/1987 of 18th December, 1987, applied at a progressive rate of
between 7.65% and 81.6% depending on the general scale of rates of taxation and the specific circumstances
of the person receiving the shares.

9.4.2 Legal Entities resident in Spain

Legal Entities resident on the Spanish territory, in accordance with article 8 of law No. 43/1995 of
27th December 1995 on Corporation Tax (the “Corporation Tax Law”) will be considered to be investors
who are Spanish resident investors, without prejudice to the provisions of the Treaty or other conventions for
the avoidance of double taxation which may be applicable.

9.4.2.1 Dividends

Legal Entities resident in Spain subject to Corporation Tax must include in their tax base the gross
amount of dividends (i.e., the amount grossed up with the Luxembourg withholding tax) or share of profits
received, after deduction of the costs related to their shareholding, in accordance with articles 10 et seq. of
the Corporation Tax Law.

The dividends distributed by the Company to a company resident in Spain are subject to a Luxembourg
withholding tax at a rate of 15% pursuant to article 10 of the Treaty. The 15% rate may be reduced to 5% if
the company resident in Spain holds at least 25% of the capital of the Company and the Spanish company
has held this interest for a period of at least one year prior to the date of distribution of the dividends.

In certain circumstances, no withholding tax is applied if the conditions set out in the EC Council Directive
No. 90/435 of 23rd July, 1990 are fulfilled.

In accordance with the Treaty, the Luxembourg withholding tax constitutes a tax credit in Spain, which
can not exceed the amount of Corporation Tax computed on the gross amount of the dividends. Dividends
from participations equal or higher than 5% can be exempt from Corporation Tax under certain conditions.

The tax credit is offset against the Corporation Tax corresponding to all income from Luxembourg,
except for income from permanent establishments located in Luxembourg. The tax credits which are not
offset because of insufficient tax may be offset within the ten years following the financial year in which they
were obtained.

If the Shares are deposited with Private Individuals or Legal Entities resident in Spain, or with Private
Individuals or Legal Entities not resident in Spain who exercise an activity in Spain through a permanent
establishment or where such Private Individuals and Legal Entities are acting as paying agents, a Spanish
18% withholding tax will be deducted except if a withholding tax has been applied in Spain on this income.
Legal Entities resident in Spain can offset this withholding tax against Corporation Tax due. If this
withholding tax exceeds the Corporation Tax due, Legal Entities may request to be refunded of that excess
amount.
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9.4.22 Capital gains or losses on disposal of Shares

The capital gains or losses resulting from the disposal or any other form of transfer of Shares by
Legal Entities not owning 5% or more of the Company constitute ordinary income taxable at the normal rate
of corporation tax, in accordance with articles 10 et seq. of the Corporation Tax Law.

In the event of a transfer for no consideration to a legal entity subject to corporation tax, the income
generated will be taxed in accordance with the rules applicable for corporation tax, inheritance and gift tax
not being applicable.

92.4.3 Indirect raxation

The purchase and, as the case may be, the disposal of Shares, will not be subject to any registration
duties or value added tax, in accordance with article 108 of law No. 24/1988 of 28th July, 1988
on stock exchanges and the relative tax laws relating thereto.
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CHAPTER 10 SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE OF THE BONDS

Sociéte Générale, Deutsche Bank AG London, Commerzbank Aktiengeselischaft, Crédit Agricole
Indosuez Lazard Capital Markets and KBC Financial Products UK Limited (the “Managers™) have pursuant
to a Subscription Agreement dated 27th June, 2002, severally agreed with ARCELOR to subscribe and pay
for the Bonds at 100% of their nominal amount less commissions.

The Managers are entitled to terminate the Subscription Agreement in certain limited circumstances prior
to the issue of the Bonds.

United States

The Bonds and the Shares to be issued upon conversion or delivered upon exchange of the Bonds have
not been, and will not be, registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)
and may, subject to certain exceptions, not be offered or sold within the United States.

The Bonds are being offered and sold outside of the United States in reliance on Regulation S.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of the Bonds, an offer or sale of the
Bonds or the Shares to be issued upon conversion or delivered upon exchange of the Bonds within the
United States by a dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration
requirements of the Securities Act.

United Kingdom

Each Manager has represented and agreed that (i) it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of
the period of six months from the date of issue of the Bonds, will not offer or sell any Bonds to persons in
the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their business or otherwise in
circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom
within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995; (ii) it has complied and will comply
with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services Act 1986 with respect to anything done by it in
passed on and will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any document received by it in connection
with the issue of the Bonds to a person who is of a kind described in Article 11(3) of the Financial Services
Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996, as amended, or is a person to whom such
document may otherwise lawfully be issued or passed on.

Luxembourg

Each Manager has further represented and agreed that the Bonds may not be offered or sold through a
public offering or a public sale in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

France

Each Manager has represented and agreed that the Bonds are being issued outside of France, and that it
has not offered or sold, and will not offer or sell the Bonds in France, and has not distributed and will not
distribute or cause to be distributed in France this Prospectus or any other offering material relating to the
Bonds, except in a private placement in accordance with article L 411-2 of the Code monétaire et financier
and Decree no. 98-880 dated October 1, 1998 concerning offers to qualified investors (investisseurs gualifiés).

Spain

Each of the Managers has represented and agreed that the Bonds have not been offered or sold and will
not be offered or sold in Spain save in accordance with the requirements of the Spanish Securities Market
Law (Ley del Mercado de Valores) of 28 July 1988 (as amended by Law 37/1998) and Royal Decree 291/
1992 on Issues and Public Offering of Securities (Real Decreto 291/1992 sobre Emisiones y Ofertas Publicas
de Valores) of 27 March 1992 (as amended by Royal Decree 2590/1998).
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Belgium

No action has been or will be taken by the Issuer or the Managers that would permit a public offering of
the Bonds in Belgium. Bonds have not and may not be offered or sold within Belgium, except to institutional
investors within the meaning of article 3, 2° of the Belgian Royal Decree of 7th July, 1999 on the public
nature of financial transactions, acting for their own account.
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1))

2)

3

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The issue of the Bonds and of the new Shares which may result from the exercise of the conversion
rights by Bondholders has been authorised and approved by the board of directors of ARCELOR at a
meeting held on 26th April, 2002 and the Guarantee, the OPRE and the issue of the new Shares and of
the New O.C.E.A.N.E. pursuant thereto and the issue of new Shares as a result of conversions of New
O.C.E.A.N.E. has been authorised and approved by the board of directors of ARCELOR at a meeting
held on 21st June, 2002, all on the basis of the authorised share capital approved by the shareholders of
ARCELOR at an extraordinary general meeting held on 11th December, 2001. In accordance with
Luxembourg regulations, the issue of the Bonds, the New O.C.E.A.N.E. and the new Shares which may
result from their conversion and from the OPRE will be the subject of reports prepared by an
independent auditor, Mazars & Guérard (Luxembourg) S.A.

The Bonds, the new Shares referred to in 1 above and the New O.C.E.A.N.E. have been admitted to
listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Banque Générale du Luxembourg S.A. is acting as the
listing agent for the Bonds and the new Shares. Société Générale Bank & Trust is acting as the listing
agent for the New O.C.E.AN.E. A notice légale (legal notice) relating to the issuance and the listing of
the Bonds, the new Shares referred to in 1) above and the New O.C.E.A.NE. and the consolidated
articles of association of ARCELOR and of ARCELOR Finance have been registered prior to listing
with the Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés at the Luxembourg District Court, where such documents
may be obtained upon request.

Since 31st March, 2002, the date of ARCELOR’s latest unaudited consolidated pro forma financial
information included herein, there has been no material adverse change in the condition, financial or
otherwise, or in the eamings or business prospects of ARCELOR and its subsidiaries considered as one
enterprise except as otherwise disclosed herein.

For so long as any of the Bonds and the O.C.E.AIN.E. ARCELOR are outstanding, copies of the most
recent annual audited consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements of ARCELOR and the
consolidated semi-annual interim financial statements will be available free of charge upon request at the
offices of the relevant listing agent.

Copies of the consolidated articles of association of ARCELOR and the contrat d’agent financier
relating to the Bonds and, after their issue the reports of the independent auditor referred to above may
be inspected at the offices of the relevant listing agent.

The Bonds have been accepted for clearance through Clearstream and Euroclear (Common Code
14840095 and ISIN Code XS 0148400954).

The current paying agents for the ARCELOR Shares are

—  in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, the principal paying agent, Banque Générale du Luxembourg
S.A., 50, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-2951 Luxembourg,

—  in Belgium, Fortis Banque, 3, Montagne du Parc, B-1000 Brussels,
— in Spain, the Spanish Liaison Bank,

— in France, BNP Paribas, 4, rue d’Antin, 75002 Paris.

The identification references for the ARCELOR Shares are:

—  Common code: 14020594

— ISIN Code: LU0140205948

—  SICOVAM Code: 5786

~  CIK Code: SVM 45%90.31
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1.1 Consolidated financial statements of ARBED

This section encloses the audited consolidated balance sheets, profit and loss accounts and cash flow
statements of the ARBED group for the years ended 31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001 and the notes to the

consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2001.

L1.1 Consolidated balance sheets

Assets

C. Fixed Assets . . . . . . . . .. . e e

I. Intangibleassets. . . ... .. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ...
1. Concessions, patents, licenses, trade marks and similar rights
a) acquired for valuable consideration . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ..
2. Goodwill in so far as acquired for valuable consideration. . . . . ... ..
3. Paymentsonaccount . . ... ... ... ...
4. Consolidation goodwill . . . . .. ... ... ... . ... ... ..
IT. Tangibleassets. . . . .. ... .. ... ... ... .. ... ... . .....
LooLand Lo
2. Buildings. . . . ... e
3. Plantandmachinery. . . . . . . ... ... o
4. Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment . . . . .. ... ... ...
5. Leasingand similarrights. . . . . .. ... .. L L
6. Payment on account and tangible assets in course of construction . . . . .
III. Financial assets . . . .. . ... . ... ... ... ... ... ... ......
I. Shares in affiliated undertakings . . . ... . ... .. ... ... ... ..
2. Loans to affiliated undertakings. . . . . ... .. .. ... . ... ...
3. Participating interests . . . . . . . ... ...
4. Interests accounted for under the equity method. . . . . . ... ... ..
5. Louns to undertakings in which the company has a participating interest .
6. Other investments held as fixed assets . . . . .. ..............
7. Otherloans. . . . . . . . . . o
8 Ownshares. . . ... ... .. . e
D. Currentassets . . . . . ... ... . ... e
L Stocks. . . .. ... e
1. Raw materials and consumables. . . . . ... ... ... 0oL
2. Work INprogress. . . . . . v v o v e e
3. Finishedgoods. . . . ... ... ... .. ...
4. Goodsforresale . ... ... .. .. .. ... ... .
S. Advance paymentsmade . . . . ... ... Lo
I Debtors. . . .. . . . . .. e
I. Tradedebtors. . . . . . .. .. . ...
2. Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings . . .. ... ... ... ...
3. Amounts owed by undertakings in which the company has a participating
INEETEST . . . . L . e e
4, Otherdebtors. . . .. .. ... . . ..
I Investments. . . . .. . . .. ... .. ... e
1. Ownshares. . . .. ... ... . i
2, Other inVeStMENtS . . . . . . . . v v vt e
IV. Cash atbankandinhand . . .. . .. ... .. ... ... ...... ...
E. Prepayments. . . . . . ... ... ... L
Total ASSetS. . . . . . . . .. e e e
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31.12.2000  31.12.2000  31.12.1999
8,906.7 8,664.6 9,230.2
63.8 63.9 61.0
20.2 18.4 5.0
234 19.5 29.2
0.4 3s 3.6
19.8 225 232
7,818.8 7,627.2 7,981.8
385 391.6 502.4
1,546.8 1,613.9 1,727.0
5,030.8 4,818.2 4,705.2
221.0 238.8 290.7
56.0 78.1 823
579.2 486.6 674.2
1,024.1 973.5 1,187.4
103.2 106.2 1624
18.7 17.5 40.6
9.4 455 567
4329 405.6 636.0
85.0 14.6 5.5
2248 286.3 248.5
150.0 97.7 42.6
0.1 0.1 0.1
6,415.7 6,504.0 5,614.4
3,392.8 3,331.1 2,759.6
962.2 904.3 734.5
1,013.9 914.5 750.5
987.9 1,008.3 816.8
421.0 501.7 4543
7.8 23 35
1,968.4 1,955.1 2,186.8
1,395.2 1,475.9 1,496.8
498 382 932
33 13.4 1.0
520.1 427.6 595.8
159.6 156.4 97.9
2.8 35 0.8
156.8 152.9 97.1
894.9 1,061.4 570.1
15.0 62.5 2.7
15,3374 15,231.1 14,887.3




Liabilities

A. Capital and reserves . . . . . .
Group’s share. . . . .. . ... ...
. Subscribed capital . . ... ..
II. Share premium account . . . .
III. Ownshares . . ... ......
IV. Reserves. .. ..........
1. Legal reserve . . . ... ..
2. Reserve for own shares . . .
3. Undistributable statutory reserve
4. Otherreserves . . . . . . ..

I

5. Capital gains on disposal of assets (art. 5S4 LIR) . . . ... . ..

V. Other consolidation reserves
V1. Difference on first consolidation

VII. Foreign currency translation reserve. . . . . . . ... ... ....

VIIL Profit brought forward . . . .
IX. Profit for the year (Group’s share)
Minority interests. . . . . . . . . ..
I. In the capital and reserves
2. Inthe own shares . . . . . .

3. In the profit for the year

B. Provisions for liabilities and charges. . . . . . ... ... .. ...
1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations . . . . . ... ..

2. Provisions for taxation

3. Provisions for major repairs and maintenance . . . . . . .. .. .

4. Provisions for deferred taxation

5. Other provisions. . . . . . .
C. Creditors . ... ... .. ...
Debenture loans . . . . . . .
Other loans . . . ... ...
‘Amounts owed to credit institutions . . . . . ... ... ... ..
Amounts received on account of orders . . . . ... .. ... ..
Trade creditors . . . . . ..
Bills of exchange payable
Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings . . . .. ... ... ..
Amounts owed to undertakings in which the company has a

PN U W —

participating interest

9. Other creditors. . . . . . ..
D. Deferred income . . . . .. ..

Total liabilities . . . . ... ... ..
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31.12.2001  31.12.2000  31.12.1999
{EUR million)
6,257.9 6,320.3 6,121.8
2,673.5 2,678.1 2,292.3
495.5 495.5 495.5
324.6 3246 324.6
(73.7) (73.7) (73.7)
563.1 560.5 557.5
49.6 496 49.1
2.8 3.5 —
3754 3754 3754
294 28.7 322
105.9 103.3 100.8
1,131.9 775.8 612.5
209.9 209.9 216.6
(139.5)  (113.0) 52.7
76.0 54.9 34.2
85.7 443.6 724
3,584.4 3,642.2 3,829.5
3,593.4 3,317.5 3,850.2
(169.9) (169.9) (169.9)
160.9 494.6 149.2
1,939.0 1,864.0 1,673.2
845.7 796.1 684.8
55.7 59.0 12.4
142.2 167.9 158.8
416.6 4489 4292
478.8 392.1 388.0
- 7,062.4 6,981.4 7,032.9
S11.7 510.6 497.0
679.2 681.8 834.5
2,9642 294677  3,048.1
200.3 185.0 125.0
1,520.7 1,543.6 1,232.7
1359 135.5 125.2
29.5 72.0 53.5
7.2 13.4 123
1,013.7 892.8 1,104.6
78.1 65.4 59.4
15,3374 15,231.1 14,8873




1.2 Consolidated profit and loss accounts

I. Salesandservices. . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ...
I, Nettumover. . . . . . .. ... ... ...
2. Change in stocks of finished goods and in work in progress . . . .
3. Ownwork capitalized. . . . . ... ... ... ... .....
4. Other operating income . . . . .. . .. ... ...
II. Cost of sales and services . . . . . .. ... ..............
5. a) Cost of raw materials and consumables . . . . . . ... ... .
b) Other external charges . . . . . ... .. ... .. ...... .
6. Staffeosts . . .. ... ...
a) Wagesandsalaries . . . ... ... ... ... oL
b) Social security costs. . . . .. ..o
7. a) Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible and

intangible fixed assets. . . . ... ... L L.
b}~ Exceptional amounts written off current assets . . . . . .. ..
8. Other operating charges. . . . ... ... ... ........
IIL.Operating result . . .. ... ......................
IV.Interestincome . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ... ... ... ...
9. Income from participating interests. . . . . .. .. ... ......

10. Investment income from other investments and from long term
loans . . . ..o

V. Interest charges. . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ...

12. Amounts written off investments . . . . . . ... ... .. ... ..

13. Interest payable and similar charges . . . . . .. ... .. ... ..

VL Net financial result . . . . . . .. .. ... ... .0 0oL

14. Share in the ordinary results of the companies accounted for under

theequity method . . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... ... ...

VII.  Result on ordinary activities before taxation . . . . . ... . ..

15. Tax on result on ordinary activities . . ... ... .........

VIII. Result on ordinary activities after taxation . . . . . . . ... ..

IX. Result on extraordinary activities before taxation . . . . . .. . ..

16. Extraordinary income . . . . . ... .. ... L.

17. Extraordinary charges . . . . . . .. .. .. ... ... ... ... .

18. Tax on extraordinary result . . . . . .. ... . ... ... .....

X. Extraordinary result after taxation. . . . . . . .. ... ... ... .

XI. Result for the year . . . . . . .. .. ... ... Lo L0

Result attributable to minority interests. . . . . .. ... ... ... ..

XII. Result for the year attributable to the group . . . . . . . . .. ..
Earnings per share (Euros)

—before dilution. . . . . ... ... L

—afterdilution. . . . ... ..o
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31.12.2001 31.12.2000 31.12.1999%
(EUR millions)
12,989.5 14,201.6 11,011.1
12,501.6 13,2320 10,6524
69.9 498.3 (93.3)
28.1 25.4 36.0
389.9 445.9 416.0
12,626.0 13,102.1 10,588.0
6,9612 17,5799 58003
23543 22430  1,8433
2,2055 22318  1,997.2
1,588.1  1,555.7  1,449.0
617.4 676.1 548.2
661.0 633.1 560.6
18.0 18.2 26.7
426.0 396.1 359.9
363.5  1,099.5 423.1
292.5 268.2 170.4
10.3 373 6.9
0.0 0.0 0.0
2822 230.9 163.5
4842 499.7 405.4
325 45.8 31.8
451.7 4539 373.6
(191.7)  (231.5)  (235.0)
10.1 76.9 82.1
181.9 944.9 270.2
(23.7) 1492 322
205.6 795.7 238.0
65.1 1425 (16.4)
65.1 208.1 30.2
— 65.6 46.6
24.1 0.0 0.0
41 142.5 (16.4)
246.6 938.2 221.6
160.9 494.6 149.2
85.7 443.6 72.4
9.54 49.4 8.1
8.65 44.4 7.1



1.1.3 Consolidated cash flow statements

I.  OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated net profit (Group) . . . . . . ... . e

Consolidated net profit (Minority interests). . . . . ... ........... .. ...

Result of companies accounted for under the equity method net of dividends received

Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible fixed assets . . . . . ... .. ..

Capital gains on sales of assets, movements in provisions and other value adjustments,
capital transactions . . . .. ... oL e

CASHFLOW . . . . . e
Changes in working capital requirements

Stocks: (Increase =-) . . . . ... e e
Debtors and others: (Decrease =+), . . . . .. .. .. Lo
Creditors: (Increase = +). . . . . . . .. ... e
INCREASE (= -) IN WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS . . . . . ... ..

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES. . . . . ... . ... . ....

[1. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of assets

— mtangible. .o
- tangible. . .. e
- fimancial ... L
Acquisition of ARISTRAIN. . . . . .. . . .. ... . . . .
Acquisitionof ACB . . .. . . .. ...
Acquisition of UCIN. . .. . . ... .. . o
Full consolidation of CSBM. . . . . . . . . . . . ... . ..

TOTAL ACQUISITIONS . . . . . ... ... . ... ... . ... ...

DISPOSALS OF ASSETS

—otangible. . L L L e e
—AmAnCiaAl T. L L
- disposal of EGEMIN. . . . . .. . . . . e
- disposal of SAMITRE . . . . ... ... . ...

TOTAL DISPOSALS. . . . . . ... ... . .. .
CASH FLOW RELATING TO INVESTMENT. . . .. ... ... .. ... .. ...

III.  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital INCrease . . . . . . .. . e
Contribution of the minority interests in capital increase . . . ... ... ... ...,
New loans and other financing items . . . . . . . .. ... L. oL
Loansredeemed . . . .. . .. ... L
Dividends paid by parent company to its shareholders. . . . . . ... .. ... ...
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority shareholders. . . . . .. .. ... .. ...

CASH FLOW RELATING TO FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES. . . . ... ... ...

Cashatbankandinhand . . . . . . ... .. . L e
Investments. . . . . ... L. e e
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31.12.2001  31.12.2000  31.12.1999
(EUR millions)
85.7 443.6 724
160.9 494.6 149.2
9.1 (56.8) (58.0)
661 633.1 560.6
(1.9) (22.8) 329
915.2 1.491.7 757.1
(26.7) (561.5) 165.0
18.3 (345.7) {67.1)
(31.8) 50.8 16.3
(40.2) (165.0) 114.2
875.0 1.326.7 871.3
(16.6) (23.3) (14.7)
(946.9) (921.3) (965.4)
(219.6) (229.5) (76.0)
(32.7) (32.7) 327N
— - (4.6)
(29.7) (29.7) (86.3)
— 100.0
(1.245.5) (1,236.5) (1.079.1
572 264 41.9
17 54.7 10.8
— — 16.6
— 541.2 —
174.2 622.3 69.3
(1,071.3) (614.2) (1,010.4)
245 — —
9124 778.1 926.1
(663.2) (860.7) (926.6)
(64.7) (20.8) (18.5)
(142.5) (49.7) (73.3)
66.5 (153.1) (92.3)
2.8 189 (35.8)
(36.3) (28.5) 18.4
(163.3) 549.8 {248.8)
1,217.8 668.0 9i6.8
894.9 1.061.4 570.1
159.6 156.4 979
1.054.5 1.217.8 668.0




1.1.4 Notes to the consolidated accounts as at December 31, 2001
NOTE 1 Accounting principles
1.1 Accounting bases

ARBED’s consolidated accounts are prepared in accordance with Luxembourg law, which enacts the
7th EEC Directive, and with the following accounting principles inspired by US GAAP (United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles):

e  the non-capitalization of expenditures such as formation expenses, restructuring costs and research
and development expenses,

e  application of the historical cost basis : no statutory or optional upward revaluation of tangible fixed
assets or reversal of revaluations,

e inventory valuation in accordance with the FIFO or weighted average price method,

e the depreciation of tangible fixed assets over their estimated economic life on a consistent basis
throughout the group irrespective of local tax rules applicable to the various consolidated entities,

s adequate provisioning for future costs arising from additional contractual or voluntary pension
arrangements,

e the recognition of deferred taxes.

1.2 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include all significant subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly controlled,
after the restatement of their financial statements to ensure consistency with group accounting policies.

Control is presumed to exist where the majority of the voting rights are held, where the right to appoint
or remove the majority of the board of directors is achieved or by the presence of an agreement with other
shareholders or partners giving the company control as previously defined.

Furthermore, effective control is also considered to apply when the group has a dominant influence over
the financial and operating policies of the entity in question.

Companies are generally considered to be significant to the group when both their turnover and
shareholder’s equity exceed EUR 1.25 million. At the end of 2001, 240 (2000: 225) companies are fully
consolidated in addition to ARBED SA.

1.3 Joint ventures

All significant companies under joint control have been accounted for under the equity method.

1.4 Associated companies accounted for under the equity method of consolidation

The equity method is used for all companies, which are considered as significant and in which the group
holds, directly or indirectly, between 20% and 50% (89 companies in 2001 compared with 86 in the prior
year).

1.5 Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill on consolidation represents the difference between the cost of acquisition of a consolidated
company and the group’s share of the fair value of the net assets at the date of acquisition after recognition
of unrealized gains and losses at that date, as well as provisions for liabilities and charges reflecting probable
contingent losses identified at that date.

Positive goodwill on consolidation arises where the book value exceeds the adjusted capital and reserves
and is recorded as an intangible asset in the balance sheet. Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis
generally over 5 years (trading activities) or 10 years (industrial activities).
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Negative goodwill on consolidation arising prior to 1990 is included in “Difference on first
consolidation” in the group’s “Capital and reserves”. Minor differences arising from 1990 are inciuded in the
result for the relevant financial year. Significant differences are deducted from tangible fixed assets and are
consequently allocated to income on the same basis as the depreciation of these assets.

1.6 Foreign currency translation

All balance sheet items, except capital and reserves are translated at the year-end rate. Capital and
reserves are translated at historic rates. Exchange differences arising from the movement in closing rates are
recorded in reserves under “Foreign currency translation reserve”.

Profit and loss account items are translated at the average rate for the year, exchange rate differences are
recorded in the result for the year.

Exchange rates applied:

Exchange rates 2001 2000
applied closing average closing average
FEuro=. . . . . ... ... GBP 0.6085 0.6224  0.6241 0.6093

KRW (100) 11.6144 11.5607 11.8765 10.4603
USD 0.8813  0.896%  0.9305 0.9234
CAD 1.4077 1.3888 1.3965 1.3702
CZK 3.9622  34.0704 350471 35.5278
SGD 1.6306 1.6057 1.6280 1.5877
PLN 3.4953  3.6780 — —

1.7 Consolidated accounts in Euro

The consolidated accounts are published in Euro currency in which the capita! is denominated as a result
of the decision of the shareholders’ meeting of May 28, 1999 to convert the “Capital and reserves” account
of ARBED SA into Euro.

1.8 Pensions and similar obligations

Certain employees of the group are entitled to retirement benefits in addition to those stipulated by the
legislation in force in the country in which the individual companies are located. This contribution by the
group can be either on a contractual or voluntary basis depending on the country and system involved.
Generally, these pension plans are defined benefit plans, administered by the company itself or, in certain
cases, subcontracted to insurance companies. Provisions are also recorded to cover commitments in respect of
early retirement.

The calculation of these additional commitments is based on actuarial valuation carried out in
accordance with FAS 87 for the main entities taking into account the probability of an employee leaving
before retirernent age, mortality assumptions, as well as estimates of salary increases and assumptions
regarding investment returns.

1.9 Taxation

Deferred taxes arise from the fiscal analysis of each balance sheet item. Provisions for deferred taxes are
computed in accordance with FAS 109; except that assets and liabilities on all temporary differences are
offset for each consolidated fiscal entity and only the net deferred tax liability is recognized in the balance
sheet, excluding any net deferred tax asset. The liability method is applied, whereby deferred taxes are
calculated at the latest actual or anticipated rate at the closing date. No provision is recorded in the
consolidated accounts for taxes due on the distribution of reserves by shareholders or participating interests
where such reserves are considered to be invested on a permanent basis.
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1.10. Movement in Capital and Reserves (EUR Million)

IL.

ML
Iv.

V.
VL
VIL
VIIL

IX.

Subscribed capital
(ARBED SA)
Share premium account
(ARBED SA)

Own shares
Reserves
(ARBED SA)

Other consolidation reserves. . . . . . .
Difference on first consolidation. . . . .
Foreign currency translation reserve. . .
Results brought forward
(ARBED SA)
Result for the year

TOTAL Capital and reserves (Group’s share).

111

L.
2.
3.
TOT

Minority interests

Capital and reserves
(ARBED SA)

Own shares
Result for the year

AL Capital and reserves
(Minority interests’ share)

Allocation

2001 result

31.12.2000 2000 and 2001 Capital  and exchange  31.12.2001
Total and transfers Increases differences Total
495.5 — —_ — 495.5
324.6 — — — 324.6
(73.7) — — — (73.7)
560.5 2.6 — — 563.1
775.8 356.1 — — 1,131.9
209.9 — — — 209.9
(113.0) _ — (26.5) (139.5)

549 21.1 — — 76.0
443.6 (443.6) — 85.7 85.7
2,678.1 (63.8) — 59.2 2,673.5
Allocation Change in 2001 result

31.12.2000 2000 and 2001 scope of and exchange  31.12.2001
Total and transfers  consolidation differences Total

33175 352.1 (38.7) (37.5) 3,593.4
(169.9) —_ — — (169.9)
494.6 494.6 — 160.9 160.9

3,642.2 (142.5) (38.7) 1234 3,584.4
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NOTE 2 Movement in intangi